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dated February 22, 2023 issued by Registrar of @oiep, Central Registration Centre bearing Corpdontity Number U26202DL2023PLC410521. At theetiaf incorporation our company
has took over the running business of proprietprsttincern of the promoter Amrit Lal Manwani, namélys Sahasra Electronic Solutions along with theetss and liabilities of the
proprietorship concern as going concern. For furtfeails of our Company, please refer to chaptledt‘History and Corporate Structure’beginning on page 119 of this Draft Red Herrin

Prospectus.
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DETAILS OF THE OFFER

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER OF UPTO 65,78,000 EQUITY SHARE S OF FACE VALUE OF % 10/- EACH (THE “EQUITY SHARES”) OF SAHASRA ELECTRO NIC SOLUTIONS
LIMITED (“OUR COMPANY” OR “SESL” OR “THE OFFER”) AT AN OFFER PRICE OF % [e] PER EQUITY SHARE FOR CASH, AGGREGATING UP TO % [e] LAKHS
(“PUBLIC OFFER”) COMPRISING OF A FRESH ISSUE OF UPT O 60,78,000 EQUITY SHARES AGGREGATING TOgR [e] LAKHS (THE “FRESH ISSUE") AND AN OFFER

FOR SALE OF UPTO 5,00,000 EQUITY SHARES BY THE SELUNG SHAREHOLDER (“OFFER FOR SALE") AGGREGATING TO X [¢] LAKHS COMPRISING BY AMRIT

LAL MANWANI; OUT OF WHICH [ e] EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF % 10 EACH, AT AN OFFER PRICE OF % [e¢] PER EQUITY SHARE FOR CASH,
AGGREGATING R [e] LAKHS WILL BE RESERVED FOR SUBSCRIPTION BY THE MA RKET MAKER TO THE OFFER (THE “MARKET MAKER RESERVAT ION
PORTION"). THE PUBLIC OFFER LESS MARKET MAKER RESER VATION PORTION I.E. OFFER OF [ o] EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF % 10 EACH, AT AN
OFFER PRICE OF % [e] PER EQUITY SHARE FOR CASH, AGGREGATING UPTO % [e] LAKHS IS HEREIN AFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “NET OFF ER”. THE
PUBLIC OFFER AND NET OFFER WILL CONSTITUTE 26.32% A ND [e]% RESPECTIVELY OF THE POST-OFFER PAID-UP EQUITY SH ARE CAPITAL OF OUR
COMPANY.

THE PRICE BAND AND THE MINIMUM BID LOT WILL BE DECI DED BY OUR COMPANY AND SELLING SHAREHOLDER IN CONSU LTATION WITH THE BRLM
AND WILL BE ADVERTISED IN ALL EDITIONS OF [ e] (A WIDELY CIRCULATED ENGLISH NATIONAL DAILY NEWSP APER) AND ALL EDITIONS OF [ o] (A
WIDELY CIRCULATED HINDI NATIONAL DAILY NEWSPAP ER, AND DELHI EDITION OF [ e], A HINDI REGIONAL NEWSPAPER (HINDI BEING THE
REGIONAL LANGUAGE OF DELHI WHERE OUR REGISTERED OFF ICE IS LOCATED), AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE BID/OFFER OPENING
DATE AND SHALL BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE SME PLATFOR M OF NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED (“NSE EMER GE") FOR THE
PURPOSES OF UPLOADING ON THEIR WEBSITE.

In case of any revision to the Price Band, the @if#r Period will be extended by at least threeitamithl Working Days following such revision of tirice Band, subject to the Bid/Offe

Band and the revised Bid/Offer Period, if applieabtill be widely disseminated by notification teetStock Exchanges, by issuing a public notice,asal by indicating the change on tf
respective websites of the Book Running Lead Marsaged at the terminals of the Syndicate Membedstgnintimation to Self-Certified Syndicate BanKSCSBs”), other Designated
Intermediaries and the Sponsor Bank(s), as apdi

Period not exceeding 10 Working Days. In caseafef majeure, banking strike or similar circumsemour Company may, in consultation with the B8alnning Lead Managers, for
reasons to be recorded in writing, extend the Biféf@Period for a minimum of three Working Daysbgct to the Bid/Offer Period not exceeding 10 WiogkDays. Any revision in the Price
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The Offer is being made through the Book Buildingdess, in terms of Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of the SedesiContracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as ame(i®&2ZRR") read with Regulation 253
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended, whereinnmore than 50% of the Net Offer shall be allodate a proportionate basis to Qualified InstitudibBuyers (“QIBs”, the “QIB
Portion”), provided that our Company and Sellinga@older, in consultation with the Book RunningatieManagers, allocate up to 60% of the QIB Port@mnchor Investors on §
discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBIRORegulations (“Anchor Investor Portion”), of whiome-third shall be reserved for domestic Mutuald3) subject to valid Bids bein
received from domestic Mutual Funds at or aboveAhehor Investor Allocation Price. In the eventupider-subscription, or non-allocation in the Anchawestor Portion, the balance Equi
Shares shall be added to the Net QIB Portion. Euré?s of the Net QIB Portion shall be availabledthocation on a proportionate basis only to Mufaands, and the remainder of the N
QIB Portion shall be available for allocation opraportionate basis to all QIBs, including Mutuain@és, subject to valid Bids being received at avabthe Offer Price. However, if th
aggregate demand from Mutual Funds is less thaonfB#te Net QIB Portion, the balance Equity Shareslable for allocation in the Mutual Fund Portiaill be added to the remaining Ne
QIB Portion for proportionate allocation to QIBsurther, not less than 15% of the Net Offer shalabailable for allocation on a proportionate basislon-Institutional Bidders and not leg
than 35% of the Net Offer shall be available fdo@dtion to Retail Individual Bidders in accordaneith the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, subject to vellitls being received at or above tl
Offer Price. All potential Bidders (except Anchawestors) are required to mandatorily utilize thephcation Supported by Blocked Amount (“ASBA”) mess providing details of thei
respective ASBA accounts, and UPI ID in case ofRlBing the UPI Mechanism, if applicable, in whibk corresponding Bid Amounts will be blocked bg B8CSBs or by the Sponsg

details, se“Offer Procedure” beginning on pag25¢ of this Draft Red Herring Prospecti

Bank under the UPI Mechanism, as the case maylibetextent of respective Bid Amounts. Anchor Btees are not permitted to participate in the Offeough the ASBA process. Far
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ELIGIBLE INVESTORS

For details in relation to Eligible Investors, @eaefer to section title‘Offer Procedure” beginning on pag25€ of this Draft Red Herring Prospeci.

RISK IN RELATION TO THE FIRST OFFER

The face value of the Equity Share<i40/-. The Floor Price, Cap Price and Offer Prietetmined by our Company and selling shareholdecpnsultation with the Book Running Led
Managers, on the basis of the assessment of méekeind for the Equity Shares by way of the BooKdiuj Process, as stated undBasis for Offer Price” on page 78 should not b
considered to be indicative of the market pricéhef Equity Shares after the Equity Shares aredlidte assurance can be given regarding an actigestained trading in the Equity Shar
nor regarding the price at which the Equity Shandisbe traded after listing
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GENERAL RISKS

investment. Investors are advised to read thefastors carefully before taking an investment decisn the Offer. For taking an investment decisiovestors must rely on their ow|

of India (“SEBI"), nor does SEBI guarantee the aacy or adequacy of the Draft Red Herring Prospe@pecific attention of the investors is invitedhe sectiofiRisk Factors” beginning
on page25 of this Draft Red Herring Prospecti

Investments in Equity and Equity-related securite®Ilve a degree of risk and investors shouldime¢st any funds in this Offer unless they canralffio take the risk of losing their entine

examination of our Company and the Offer includimg risks involved. The Equity Shares Offered m ®ffer have not been recommended or approvedeb@eleurities and Exchange Board

n

ISSUER & SELLING SHAREHOLDER ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY

The Company, having made all reasonable inquisiesepts responsibility for and confirms that thisfbRed Herring Prospectus contains all informatigth regard to the Company and th
Offer, which is material in the context of the Offthat the information contained in this Draft Reédrring Prospectus is true and correct in all mataspects and is not misleading in a

responsibility for only such statements specificalbnfirmed or specifically undertaken by such iBgliShareholder in this Draft Red Herring Prospedtu the extent such statemen
specifically pertain to itself and/or its OfferetiéBes and confirms that such statements are tdie@mect in all material respects and are noteaidihg in any material respect. Howeve
none of the Selling Shareholder assume any redgbitysfor any other statements, disclosures orartakings, including without limitation, any and ef the statements, disclosures
undertakings made by or in relation to our Comp#syhusiness, or any other Selling ShareholdehisDraft Red Herrin Prospectu

material respect, that the opinions and intent@sessed herein are honestly held and that theneceother facts, the omission of which makesEhift Red Herring Prospectus as a wha|
or any of such information or the expression of angh opinions or intentions, misleading in anyeriat respect. Further, each of the Selling Shddehpseverally and not jointly, accepts
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LISTING

The Equity Shares Issued through Red Herring Potspare proposed to be listed on the SME PlatfidfrMSE (“NSE Emerge”). In terms of the Chapter iXdfee SEBI (ICDR) Regulations
2018 as amended from time to time, our Companyrdasved “in-principle” approval letter dateel] from National Stock Exchange of India Limited (8&") for using its name in the Offe
Document for listing of our shares on the SME Blatf of NSE (“NSE Emerge”). For the purpose of tssue, the Designated Stock Exchange will be théoMa Stock Exchange of Indi
Limited (‘“NSE”").

=

BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGER TO THE OFFER REGISTRAR TO THE OFFER
il
HEM SECURITIES LIMITED BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
904, A Wing, Naman Midtown, Senapati Bapat Margfiistone Road, Address: S6-2, @ Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, next to Ahura @grivtahakali
Lower Parel, Mumbai-400013, Maharashtra, India Caves Road, Andheri (East) Mumbai — 400093, Maharadndia.
Tel. No.: +91- 022- 49060000; Telephone:+91 22 6263 8200;
Fax No.: +91- 022- 22625991 Facsimile: +91 22 6263 8299
Email: ib@hemsecurities.com Email: ipo@bigshareonline.com
Investor Grievance Emait redressal@hemsecurities.com Investor Grievance Email: investor@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.hemsecurities.com Website: www.bigshareonline.com
Contact Person:Sourabh Garg Contact Person:Vinayak Morbale
SEBI Regn. No.INM00001098: SEBI Registration Number: INRO00001385
BID/ OFFER PERIOD
ANCHOR PORTION OFFER OPENS/ CLOSES ON*: [o] | BID/ OFFER OPENS ON**: [ o] | BID/ OFFER CLOSES ON**; [ e]***

*QOur Company and the Selling Shareholder in consultation with the BRLM, may consider participation by Anchor Investors, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Anchor
Investor Bidding Date shall be one Working Day prior to the Bid/Offer Opening Date.

**QOur Company and the Selling Shareholder, in consultation with the BRLM, may decide to close the Bid/Offer Period for QIBs one Working Day prior to the Bid/Offer Closing Date, in
accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.
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Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

SECTION | — GENERAL

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus uses certainrdéfins and abbreviations which, unless the cont#herwise indicates or
implies, or unless otherwise specified, shall hdneemeaning as provided below. References to aisid¢ions, acts, regulations,
rules, guidelines, circulars, notifications, cladtions, directions, or policies shall be to sdebislations, acts, regulations, rules,
guidelines, circulars, notifications, clarificatisn directions, or policies as amended, updated pkupented, re-enacted or
modified, from time to time, and any reference &adutory provision shall include any subordinbdgislation made, from time to
time, under such provision.

The words and expressions used in this Draft RedifgeProspectus, but not defined herein shall héve meaning ascribed to
such terms under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, #BI2\ct, the Companies Act, the SCRA, the Depdesitagkct and the rules
and regulations notified thereunder, as applicable.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in of seetions“Statement of Tax Benefits”, “Financial Information of the
Company” and “Main Provisions of the Articles of Associationbn page 84, 142 and 285 respectively, shall hagenteaning
ascribed to such terms in such sections.

General Terms

Terms Description

“Issuer”, “the Company”| Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited, a Companyiiporated in India under the Companjes
“Our Company” “SESL” and Act, 2013, having its Registered office at 33, Rack Jasola Vihar New Friends Colony, Soyth
“Sahasra Electronic SolutionsDelhi-110025, New Delhi, India.

Limited”

“we”, “us” and “our” Unless the context otherwisedicates or implies refers to our Company, togetiwéh our
Subsidiay.

“you”, “your” or “your¢” Prospective investors in this Off

Company related and Conventional terms

Term Description

AOA/ Articles/ Articles of| Articles of Association of our Company, as amenfileth time to time.
Associatiot

Audit Committee The committee of the Board of Diogs constituted as the Company’s Audit Committee i
accordance with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR)g&ations and Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Mgstof Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
as described in the chapter title@ur Management beginning on page 125 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus

Auditor/ Statutory Auditc The Statutory Auditc of our Company beinM/s. Kapoor Tandon & Cc(FRN: 0009520

Bankers to our Compa Citi Bank N.A.

Board of Directors/ the The Board of Directors of our Company, includingdally constituted Committees thereof. Hor
Board/ our Board further details of our Directors, please refer éot®n titled“Our Management” beginning on
pagel?2t of this Draft Red Herring Prospecti

Chief Financial Officer/ CFC | The Chief Financial Officer of our Company beManeesh Tiwa.

CIN Corporate Identification Number beiU26202DL2023PLC4105..

Companies Act/ Ac The Companies Act, 2013 and amendments th.

Company Secretary andThe Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of owmm@any being Neha Tahir (M. Nqg.:
Compliance Office A4657)).

CSR  Committee/ The corporate social responsibility committee of Board, constituted in accordance with the
Corporate Social Section 135 of the Companies Act and as describetié chapter tittedOur Management”
Responsibility Committe beginning on pag12t of this Draft Red Herring Prospectt

Depositories A depository registered with SEBI undbe Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 19968mended from time to time, being. Natiopal
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Centralpdsitory Services (India) Limited (CDS

Depositories Ac The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from tintérte.

Director(s) / our Directors The Director(s) of o@ompany, unless otherwise specified. For detail®wf directors, se
“Our Management” on pagel 2E of this Draft Red Herring Prospec

D

DP/ Depository Participa A depository participant as defined under the D#pnss Act, 199.

Equity Shareholderg/ Persons/ Entities holding Equity Shares of our Camyp
Shareholde|
Equity Share Equity Shares of the Company face value o 10/ each unless otherwise specified in

1



Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

Term

Description

context thereo

Fugitive economic offender

Shall mean an individwko is declared a fugitive economic offender unslection 12 of thg
Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 (17 of 2(

IBC

The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2

Independent Director

An Independent Director asneef under Section 2(47) of the Companies Act, 2848 as
defined under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. For iifetaf our Independent Directors, s&aur
Managemen” on pagel2E of this Draft Red Herring Prospectt

ISIN

International Securities Identification Number thiis case beinINEORBQO0101..

IT Act

The Income Tax Act, 1961 as amended till ¢

JV/ Joint Venture

A commercial enterprise undegtajointly by two or more parties which otherwisgain their
distinct identities

Key Management Personng
KMP

tIKey Management Personnel of our Company in termfRedulation 2(1)(bb) of the SEHR
Regulations, Section 2(51) of the Companies Actl0or details, see section titlé@ur
Management”on pagel2E of this Draft Red Herring Prospectt

MOA/ Memorandum/| Memorandum of Association of our Company as ameffided time to time.
Memorandum of Associatit
CMD or Chairman &| The Chairman & Managing Director of our Company, itrhal Manwani.

Managing Directc

Materiality Policy

The policy adopted by our Boaoth May 23, 2024 for identification of Group Compas)i
material outstanding litigation and material outstag dues to creditors, pursuant to
disclosure requirements under the SEBI (ICDR) Rafiputs, 2018 as amended from time
time.

Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

The committee of the Board of Directors constitusl the Company’s Nomination al
Remuneration Committee in accordance with Reguiati® of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation
and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as ibestrin the chapter titled'Our
Management’beginning on pagl12Et of this Draft Red Herring Prospect

Non-Executive Director

A Director not being an Extee Director. For details of our Non-Executiver@itors, se€
“Our Management” on pagel 2E of this Draft Red Herring Prospec

NRIs / Non-Resident Indiang

A person resident dets$ndia, as defined under Foreign Exchange Manage#ct, 1999 and
who is a citizen of India or a Person of Indianddriunder Foreign Exchange Managem
(Non-debt instruments) Rules, 2(

he
to

nd

ent

Person or Persons

Any Individual, Sole Proprietiprstinincorporated Association, Unincorporated @igation,
Body Corporate, Corporation, Company, Partnerdtipijted Liability Company, Joint Venture
or Trust or any other entity or organization vafidtonstituted and/or incorporated in t
jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as tontext require

Proforma Financia

Statements

Proforma financial statements of our Company andtfor the year ended March 31, 2024
prepared to reflect the impact of a material Investt made by us in our Subsidiary Compa
Sahasra Semiconductors Private Limited which waslemafter the date of latest resta
financial statements i.e. after March 31, 2024. Hieforma financial statements reflect t
results of operations as if acquisition had takéace on April 01, 2023. For further detai
please refer to section titledProforma Financial Statements’beginning on page 205 of th
Draft Rec Herring Prospectt

and
ny,
ed
he

is

Promoter(s)

Shall mean promoters of our CompanyArerit Lal Manwani, Arunima Manwani & Varu
Manwani. For further details, please refer to sectitled “Our Promoters & Promoter Group”
beginning on pagl37 of this Draft Red Herring Prospect.

Promoter Group

Includes such Persons and compeoiesituting our promoter group covered under Re@n
2(1)(pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 a$isted in the sectioriOur Promoters &
Promoter Group”beginning on pagl37 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectu

RBI Act The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as amended fhom to time

Registered Office of ouf The Registered Office of our Company situated at B8cket 1, Jasola Vihar New Friends
Compan' Colony, South Dell-11002¢, New Delhi, Indi.

Reserve Bank of India / RE | Reserve Bank of India constituted under the RBL

Restated Financidl The Restated Financial statements comprising oRtistated Statement of Assets and Liabilities
Information as at March 31 2024 & March 31 2023 of our Comp&rgs at February 21, 2023 & March 31

2022 of our erstwhile proprietorsh{@ahasra Electronic Solutiongnd the Restated Stateme

2023 to March 31 2023 of our Company and for theogé year ended February 21, 2023
March 31 2022 of our erstwhile proprietorshiahasra Electronic Solutiong)repared in

(ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and the Revised Guidanate ldn Reports in Company Prospectu
(Revised 2019) issued by the ICAI, together with skhedules, notes and annexure the

of Profit and Loss and Cash Flows for the Fiscaldeel March 31 2024 & period February 2

accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Adtr@stated in accordance with the SE

nts
2,
&

Bl
ses

RoC/ Registrar of Compan

Registrar of Companies, Delhi" Floor, IFCI Tower 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi 1100It@lia

2



Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

Term Description
Stakeholders’”  RelationshipStakeholders’ relationship committee of our Companystituted in accordance with Secti
Committee 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 2@BBI (Listing obligations and disclosu

requirements) regulations 2015 as described irchiapter titled‘Our Management” beginning
on pagel 2t of this Draft Red Herring Prospect

Selling shareholder

Shall mean Selling sharehotdeour Company i.e. Amrit Lal Manwani. For furthdetails,
please refer to section title@®ur Promoters & Promoter Group”beginning on page 137 of th
Draft Red Herring Prospect.

Shareholder

Shareholders of our Company from time to til

Sub- Account

Sub- accounts registered with SEBlenrtde Securities and Exchange Board of India (gaor
Institutional Investor) Regulations, 1995, othearthrsub-accounts which are foreign corporats
foreign individuals

Subsidiary

Prospectu:

Subscriber to MOA

Initial Subscribers to MOA beidgnrit Lal Manwani, Arunima Manwani, Varun Manwa
Varsha B P Manwani, Akshay Manwani, Narayan BellzasgPintu Nask.

Offer Related Terms

Terms

Description

Subsidiary of our Company as set ot/®®ir Subsidiary” on page 123 of this Draft Red Herring

re

n

D

or

Acknowledgement Slip The slip or dqcument issued by the Designated nmediary to a bidder as proof of registratipn
of the Application

Allocation/  Allocation of| The Allocation of Equity Shares of our Company piarg to Fresh Issue of Equity Shares to the

Equity Share successful Bidder

Allotment Advice Note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent teetBidders who have been allotted Equity
Shares after the Basis of Allotment has been aggrty the Designated Stock Excha

Allotment/ Allot/ Allotted Unless the context othe_rwise requires, means tloémadnt of Equity Shares, pursuant to the
Offer to the successful bidde

Allottee (s A successful bidder to whom the Equity Shares bogted.

Anchor Investor Allocation The .price at which Equity Shares will be allqcategihe Anchor Investors in terms of the Red

Price Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which wiltlecided by our Company in consultation
with the Book Running Lead Managers during the Amdhvestor Bid/ Offer Perio

Anchor Investor Applicatior] The applicatiqn form use_zd by an Anchor In_ves_tommke a Bid !n the Anchor Investor Por_ti N

Form and which will be considered as an application Adlotment in terms of the Red Herring
Prospectus and Prospe

Anchor Investor Bid/ Offerl One Working Day prior to the Bid/ Offer Opening Badn which Bids by Anchor Investors shall

Perioc be submitted and allocation to the Anchor Invesstial be complete
The final price at which the Equity Shares will déotted to the Anchor Investors in terms of the
Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, whick will be equal to or higher than the Offer

Anchor Investor Offer Price | Price but not higher than the Cap Price.
The Anchor Investor Offer Price will be decideddiy Company, in consultation with the Bopk

Running Lead Manage

Anchor Investor Portion

Book Running Lead Managers, to the Anchor Investorsa discretionary basis in accordar
with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.
One-third of the Anchor Investor Portion shall leserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subjec
valid Bids being received from domestic Mutual Fsnat or above the Anchor Invest
Allocation Price, in accaordance with the SEBI (R)IRegulation:

Up to 60% of the QIB Portion which may be allocabydour Company, in consultation with the

ce

tto
or

Anchor Investor(s)

A Qualified Institutional Buyer, applying under tiechor Investor Portion in accordance w
the requirements specified in the SEBI (ICDR) Ragiahs and the Red Herring Prospectus
who has Bid for an amount of at leZ 200 lakhs

th
and

Application Supported by
Block Amount (ASBA)

An application, whether physical or electronic, didey ASBA Bidders, to make a Bid an
authorising an SCSB to block the Bid Amount in &@&BA Account and will include amount
blocked by the SCSB upon acceptance of UPI ManBatpuest by the UPI Bidders using t
UPI Mechanisn

d
S
he

ASBA Account

A bank account maintained by ASBA Bidders with &0SB and specified in the ASBA For
submitted by such ASBA Bidder in which funds wi# blocked by such SCSB to the extent
the specified in the ASBA Form submitted by suchBASBidder and includes a bank accol
maintained by a Retail Individual Investor linkeda UPI ID, which will be blocked in relatio
to a Bid by a Retail Individual Investor Biddingt¢ligh the UPI Mechanisi

m
of
nt
n

ASBA Application
Location(s)/ Specified Citit

Locations at which ASBA Applications can be uplodd® the SCSBs, namely Mumbai, Ne
Delhi, Chennai, Kolkata and Ahmedat

W

ASBA Biddel

Any prospective investor(s) / Bidder (s) in thisf@fwho apply(ies) through the ASBA proct

3



Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

Terms Description

except Anchor Investc
ASBA  Form/ Bid cum An application form (with or without UPI ID, as dpable), whether physical or electronic, us
Applicati by Bidders which will be considered as the appiigafor Allotment in terms of the Red Herrir

pplication

Prospectus or the Prospec
Banker to the  Offer Agreement datede] entered into amongst the Company, the sellingettedder, Book Running
Agreemer Lead Manager, the Registrar, Sponsor Bank and #ém&d to the Offe

Bankers to the Offer/ Publi
Offer Bank/ Sponsor Bal

cBanks which are clearing members and registeredd 8Bl as Bankers to an Offer and w
whom the Public Offer Account will be opened, iistbase beinge]

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which the Equity Shares will be A#ldtto successful bidders under the Offer
which is described in the chapter titlgdffer Procedure” beginning on page 258 of this Drd
Red Herring Prospecti

Bid

An indication to make an offer during the Bid/ Gffeeriod by a Bidder (other than an Anch
Investor) pursuant to submission of the ASBA Foamduring the Anchor Investor Bid/ Offe
Period by an Anchor Investor, pursuant to submissibthe Anchor Investor Application Forn
to subscribe to or purchase the Equity Shares @ica within the Price Band, including 3
revisions and modifications thereto as permittedenrthe SEBI ICDR Regulations and in ter
of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum A&ggibn Form. The term “Bidding” shall b
construed accordingl

Bid Amount

The highest value of optional Bids indicated in Bid cum Application Form and in the case
Retail Individual Bidders Bidding at Cut Off Pricthe Cap Price multiplied by the number
Equity Shares Bid for by such Retail Individual 8&t and mentioned in the Bid cu
Application Form and payable by the Retail IndivatiBidder or blocked in the ASBA Accou
upon submissionf the Bid in the Offel

Bid Lot

[e] equity shares and in multiples af][equity shares thereaft

Bid/ Offer Closing Date

Except in relation to any Bids received from thechAor Investors, the date after which {
Syndicate, the Designated Branches and the RegfsBnokers shall not accept the Bids, wh
shall be notified in in all editions of the Englistational newspapem], all editions of Hindi
national newspapew] and Delhi Edition of Regional newspap@®i fvhere the registered offic|
of the company is situated, each with wide cirdalgtand in case of any revision, the exten
Bid/ Offer closing Date also to be notified on tliebsite and terminals of the Syndicate, SCS
and Sponsor Bank, as required under the SEBI ICBguRtions

Bid/ Offer Opening Date

Except in relation to any Bids received from thechAor Investors, the date on which
Syndicate, the Designated Branches and the RegisBnokers shall start accepting Bids, wh
shall be notified in in all editions of the Englistational newspapem], all editions of Hindi
national newspapemw] and Delhi Edition of Regional newspape®i fvhere the registered offic
of the company is situated, each with wide cirdafatand in case of any revision, the exten
Bid/ Offer Opening Date also to be notified on thebsite and terminals of the Syndicate 3
SCSBs, as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulat

Bid/ Offer Period

Except in relation to any Bids received from thechAar Investors, the period between the B

case may be, inclusive of both days, during whiahdBrs can submit their Bids, including al
revisions thereof. Provided however that the Biddi®ffer Period shall be kept open for
minimum of three Working Days for all categoriesBifiders

Offer Opening Date and the Bid/ Offer Closing Datethe QIB Bid/ Offer Closing Date, as the

)
th

and
aft

of
of
m

he
ch

e
Hed
B’'s

he
ch

e
led
and
id/

ny
a

Bidding

The process of making a B

Bidding/ Collection Centers

Centers at which the Designated intermediaries| sttakpt the ASBA Forms, i.e. Designat
SCSB Branches for SCSBs, specified locations fordgates, broker centers for registe
brokers, designated RTA Locations for RTAs andglesied CDP locations for CDI

ed
ed

Book Building Process/ Boo
Building Methot

k Book building process, as provided in Part A of &tile XIII of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
terms of which the Offer is being me

>

BRLM / Book Running Lead
Manage

Book Running Lead Manager to the Offer in this caséng Hem Securities Limited, SEE
Registered Categc-I Merchant Banke

3

Broker Centers

Broker Centres notified by the Stock Exchanges,reviige investors can submit the Applicati
Forms to a Registered Broker. The details of suobk& Centers, along with the names 3
contact details of the Registered Brokers are allglon the websites of the Stock Excha

on
and

Business Da

Monday to Friday (except public holiday

CAN or Confirmation of
Allocation Note

The Note or advice or intimation sent to each sssftg Bidder indicating the Equity which wi
be allotted, after approval of Basis of Allotmegtthe designated Stock Exchan

Cap Price The higher end of the price band above which thier@®rice will not be finalized and abo
P which no Bids (or a revision thereof) will be actesf
Client Id Client Identification Number maintained with one thfe Depositories in relation to Dem
accoun
Collecting Depositon| A depository participant as defined under the D#prss Act, 1996, registered with SEBI a

4



Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

Terms

Description

Participants or CDPs

who is eligible to procure Kgggions at the Designated CDP Locations in teafeircular no.
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2@d$ued by SEE

Collecting  Registrar
Share Transfer Agent

an

Registrar to an Offer and share transfer agenistezgd with SEBI and eligible to procure Bi
at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of circui@. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015
dated November 10, 2015 issued by S

)

ds

Controlling Branches of th
SCSB:

b Such branches of the SCSBs which coordinate watBIRLM, the Registrar to the Offer and t
Stock Exchang

he

Cut Off Price

The Offer Price, which shall be any price withire tRrice band as finalized by our Company
consultation with the BRLM. Only Retail Individudvestors are entitled to Bid at the Cut-
Price. QIBs (including Anchor Investor) and Nonilhgional Investors are not entitled to Bid
the Cu-off Price

in
Dff
at

Demographic Details

The demographic details of the Bidders such as tAddress, PAN, name of the Bidde
father/husband, investor status, occupation and Bagount details

rs

Depositor/ Depositories

A depository registered with SEBI under the Semsitand Exchange Board of Ind
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 199&mended from time to time i.e. Natio
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Centralpdsitory Services (India) Limited (CDS

ia
al

Depositories Ac

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from tintante.

Designated CDP Locations

Such locations of the CDPs where Bidder can sulihét Bid-Cum-Application Forms t
Collecting Depository Participant
The details of such Designated CDP Locations, alith names and contact details of
Collecting Depository Participants eligible to goc®id-Cum-Application Forms are availab
on the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. www.rdiainom

D

D.

he
le

Designated Date

The date on which funds are transferred from therdwg Account(s) and the amounts block
are transferred from the ASBA Accounts, as the caag be, to the Public Offer Account(s)
the Refund Account(s), as applicable, in termsefRed Herring Prospectus and the Prospe
after the finalisation of the Basis of Allotment bonsultation with the Designated Sto
Exchange, following which Equity Shares may be #dld to successful Bidders in the Of

Designated  Intermediarie
Collecting Agent

An SCSB’s with whom the bank account to be blockednaintained, a syndicate member
5/sub-syndicate member), a Stock Broker registeréld recognized Stock Exchange, a Deposit
Participant, a registrar to an Offer and sharesfearagent (RTA) (whose names is mentioned
website of the stock exchange as eligible for dloidvity).

or
ary
on

Designated Market Mak

[o]

Designated RTA Locations

Such locations of the RTAs where Bidder can subhatBid-Cum-Application Forms to RTA
The details of such Designated RTA Locations, alaith names and contact details of t
RTAs eligible to accept Bid-Cum-Application Forme available on the websites of the Stq
Exchange i.e. www.nseindia.c

he
ck

Designated SCSB Branches

Bidder and a list of which is available on the wehs of SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherActiasdoRecognised=yes. Recognizg
Intermediaries or at such other website as mayréscgbed by SEBI from time to tin

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collectMBBA Bid-Cum-Application Form from the

D

2d-

Designated Stock Exchar

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE Eneerg. SME platform of NSI

DP ID

Depository Participant’s Identity Numk

DP/ Depository Participa

A depository participant as defined under the Dépres Act, 199

Draft Red Herring Prospectu

SDraft Red Herring Prospectus dated June 25, 262 d5in accordance with Sections 26 & 32
the Companies Act, 201!

of

Electronic Transfer of Fun

Refunds through NACH, NEFT, Direct Credit or RTGSapplicable

Eligible NRI

A Non-Resident Indian in a jurisdiction outside im@vhere it is not unlawful to make an offer
invitation under the Offer and in relation to whaimns Draft Red Herring Prospectus w
constitute an invitation to subscribe for the Eg@hares

or
ill

Eligible QFls

QFIs from such jurisdictions outside India whergsihot unlawful to make an Offer or invitatig
under the Offer and in relation to whom the Progeeconstitutes an invitation to purchase
Equity shares issued thereby and who have openedaDeaccounts with SEBI registerg
gualified depositary participan

n
the
2d

Escrow Account(s)

The account(s) to be opened with the Escrow CalledBank and in whose favour the Anch
Investors will transfer money through NACH/direcedit/ NEFT/ RTGS in respect of the B
Amount when submitting a Bi

o O
=

Fll/  Foreign Institutional

Investor:

Foreign Institutional Investor as defined under $SE@oreign Institutional Investorg

Regulations, 1995, as amended) registered with $B8ér applicable laws in Ind

First Bidder/

Applicant/Bidders

Bidder(s) whose name shall be mentioned in thecBid Application Form or the Revision For|
and in case of joint bids, whose name shall algmeap as the first holder of the beneficid
account held in joint name

m
ary

Floor Price

The lower end of the Price Band, subject to anysien(s) thereto, at or above which the O
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Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

Terms Description
Price and the Anchor Investor Offer Price will beafised and below which no Bids will he
acceptec
Foreign  Venture Capitdl Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered wilBSunder the SEBI (Foreign Venture Capital
Investor: Investor) Regulations, 20(
A Foreign Portfolio Investor who has been registgrarsuant to the of Securities and Exchange
FPI / Foreign Portfolig Board of Inglia (FQ(eign Portfollio Inyestors) Redidas, 2014, provided that any FII or QFI. who
Investor holds a valid certificate of registration shall d&emed to be a foreign portfolio investor till the

expiry of the block of three years for which feesvé been paid as per the SEBI (Fore
Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995, as anee

ign

General Corporate Purposes

Include such identified purposes for which no sfie@mount is allocated or any amount
specified towards general corporate purpose orsaok purpose by whatever name called, in
offer document. Provided that any Offer relatedemges shall not be considered as a pa

SO
the
t of

general corporate purpose merely because no gpewifiount has been allocated for such
expenses in the offer docume
The General Information Document for investing inblic issues, prepared and issued| in
General Informatior accordance with th'e circular (SE'E.,I/HO/CFD/DILl/CH??ZOZO/B?) dated March 17, 2020 issued
Document (GID) by  SEBI, suitably ~ modified and updated pursuant  tahe  circular
(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/50) dated March 30,280and the UPI Circulars and any
subsequent circulars or notifications issued by ISEBn time to time
Listing Agreemer The Equity Listing Agreement to be signed betwegn@ompany and the Stock Exchat
Lot Size [o]
Mandate Request Mandate Request means a request initiated on thbyRdponsor bank to authorize blocking |of
funds equivalent to the application amount and sgbent debit to funds in case of allotm
Member Brokers of NSE who are specifically registeas Market Makers with the NSE (SME
Market Maker -
platform). In our casee] is the sole Market Marke
Market Maker ReservationThe reserved portion ofe] Equity Shares oR10 each at an Offer price & [e] each is
Portior aggregating tR [e] Lakhs to be subscribed by Market Maker in thi$e@
Market Making Agreement The Market Making Agreement dateel] between our Company, Book Running Lead Mangger
and Market Maker,e].
Monitoring Agenc' [o]
nggﬂg? Agency The agreement to be entered into between our Coyrgrashthe Monitoring Agency dated][
5% of the Net QIB Portion, ore] Equity Shares, which shall be available for afibgn to
Mutual Fund Portion Mutual Funds only on a proportionate basis, sulffgetalid Bids being received at or above the
Offer Price.
A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the SEBRIufual Funds) Regulations, 1996, jas

Mutual Funds

amended from time to tin

Net Offer

The Offer (excluding the Market Maker Reservatianti®n) of [e] equity Shares 010/ each
at a price oR [e] per Equity Share (the “Offer Price”), includingshare premium of [e] per
equity share aggregating? [e] Lakhs.

Net Proceeds

The Offer Proceeds received from the fresh isswduding Offer related expenses. For further

information on the use of Offer Proceeds and Oéiguenses, please refer to the section ti
“Objects of the Offer"beginning on pag66 of this Draft Red Herring Prospect

tled

Net QIB Portion

The portion of the QIB Portion less the number ofuiy Shares Allocated to the Anch
Investor:

or

Non- Resider

A person resident outside India, as defined uné@/4 and includes NRIs, FPIs and FV!

Non- Resider

A person resident outside India, as defined un&MA and includes NRIs, FPIs and FV(

Non-Institutional Bidders

All Bidders that are not QIBs, RIBs or Eligible Elapees Bidding in the Employee Reservat
Portion and who have Bid for Equity Shares, foraamount of more tha® 200,000 (but no
including NRIs other than Eligible NR

Non-Institutional Portion

The portion of the Offer being not less than 15%h&f Offer, consisting ofe]] Equity Shares
which shall be available for allocation on a prdjmrate basis to Non-Institutional Investo
sulject to valid Bids being received at or above thfeCPrice.

s,

Offer Agreement

The Offer Agreement dated May 31, 2024 betweenGmmpany, Selling Shareholder and Bqg
Running Lead Manage

Offer Price

The final price at which the Equity shares willdlktted in terms of the Red Herring Prospec
and the Prospectus, as determined by our compangnsultation with BRLM on the Pricin
date in accordance with the Book Building process the Red Herring Prospect

tus

Offer Proceeds

Proceeds to be raised by our Company through tfiex,Jor further details please refer chap
titled “Objects of the Offer"beginning on pag66 of this Draft Red Herring Prospect

ter

Offer/ Public Offer/ Offer

The Initial Public Offer of upto 65,78,000 Equithases o 10/- each at Offer price & [e]/-

size/ Initial Public Offer,

per Equity share, including a premium Z [e]/- per equity share aggregating Z [e] lakhs

6
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Terms

Description

Initial Public Offering/ IPO/

comprising of a Fretdsue of 60,78,000 Equity Shares and the OffeBale of 5,00,000 Equit
Shares by Selling Sharehold

y

Offered Shares

Offer of upto 5,00,000 Equity shares aggregating {®] lakhs being offered for sale by th
selling shareholder in the of

e

Other Investor

Investors other than Retail Individual Investorfie$e include individual Bidders other th
retail individual investors and other investors lutting corporate bodies or institutio
irrespective of the number of specified securisipplied for

an
ns

Overseas Corporate Bod
OCB

Overseas Corporate Body means and includes ay eefined in clause (xi) of Regulation 2
the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of @G@rieermission to Overseas Corpor
yBodies (OCB’s) Regulations 2003 and which was iisterce on the date of the commencenm
of these Regulations and immediately prior to sasoclmmencement was eligible to undertd
transactions pursuant to the general permissiontggaunder the Regulations. OCBs are

allowed to invest in this Offe

of
ate
ent
ke
not

Pay-in-Period

The period commencing on the Bid/Offer Opening datel extended till the closure of t
Anchor Investor Pein-Date

ne

Payment through electron
transfer of fund

CPalyment through NECS, NEFT or Direct Credit, adiapble.

Person/ Persons

Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporatedsociation, unincorporated organizati
body corporate, corporation, company, partnerslmpgted liability company, joint venture, d
trust or any other entity or organization validiynstituted and/ or incorporated in the jurisdicti
in which it exists and operates, as the contexiireg

DN,

Price Band of a minimum price (Floor Price)®fe] and the maximum price (Cap Price) df

[e] and includes revisions thereof. The Price Bandl e decided by our Company in
Price Band consultation with the BRLM and advertised in twotiomal daily newspapers (one each|in
English and in Hindi) with wide circulation and ormily regional newspaper with wide
circulation at least two working days prior to Biel/ Offer Opening Dat:
Pricing Datt The date on which our Company in consultation g BRLM, will finalize the Offer Prici
The Prospectus, to be filed with the Registrar omPanies in accordance with the provisiong of
Prospectus Sections 26 & 32 of the Companies Act, 2013, coingi, inter alia, the Offer Price, size of the

Offer and certain other iormation.

Public Offer Account

Account to be opened with the Bankers to the Gfiereceive monies from the ASBA Accour
and from the Escrow Accounts in case of Anchor $twés), on the Designated Di

ts

QIB Category/ QIB Portion

The portion of the Net Offer (including the AncHarestor Portion) being not more than 50%
the Net Offer, consisting o] Equity Shares aggregating ¥pe] lakhs which shall be Allotteg
to QIBs (including Anchor Investors) on a propomtbe basis, including the Anchor Inves
Portion (in which allocation shall be on a disavatiry basis, as determined by our Compan
consultation with the BRLMSs), subject to valid Bideing received at or above the Offer Price
Anchor Investor Offer Price (for Anchor Investo

of
|

y in
or

Qualified Institutional
Buyers/ QIBs/ QIB Biddel

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under ®eation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI (ICDR
Regulations

Red Herring Prospectus/ RH

The Red Herring Prospectus to be issued in accoedaith Section 32 of the Companies A
2013 and the provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regolasi which will not have complet
particulars of the price at which the Equity Shanek be offered and the size of the Off
Pincluding any addenda or corrigenda therg
The Red Herring Prospectus will be filed with the@Rat least three Working Days before

Bid/Offer Opening Date and will become the Prospgaipon filing with the RoC after th
Pricing Dat

Refund Account

The ‘no-lien” and ‘non-interest bearing’ accounteopd with the Refund Bank, from whi
refunds, if any, of the whole or part, of the BichAunt to the Anchor Investors shall be m

Refund Account(s)

Accounts to which the monies to be refunded toBhlers is transferred from the Public Off
Account in case listing of the Equity Shares dogtsoecur

Refund Bank/ Refund Banke

Bank which is / are clearing member(s) and registevith the SEBI as Bankers to the Offer

" which the Refund Account will be opened, in thiseaeing e].

at

Refund through electroni
transfer of fund

CRefunds through NECS, direct credit, RTGS or NE&S applicable.

Registered Broker

Individuals or companies registered with SEBI asatling Members” (except Syndicate/Sy
Syndicate Members) who hold valid membership ei®E having right to trade in stocks list
on Stock Exchanges, through which investors candowgll securities listed on stock exchang
a list of which is available on the website of 8teck Exchange

b-
pd
es,

Registrar Agreement

The agreement dated June 10, 2024 entered intogumemCompany, selling shareholder g

nd

the Registrar to the Offer in relation to the rasgbilities and obligations of the Registrar to

Offer pertaining to the Offe

Whe




Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

Terms

Description

Registrar and Share Transf i

Agents or RTAs

Registrar and share transfer agents registered S&fI and eligible to procure Applications
he Designated RTA Locations in terms of circulay. ICIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015
DATED November 10, 2015 issued by SE

e

Registrar/ Registrar to th
Offer/ RTA/ RTI

eRegistrar to the Offer, in this case being Bigst#eevices Private Limited.

Regulation !

Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act of 12&3amended from time to tir

Regulations

SEBI (Issue of Capital And Disclosure Requiremefsyulations, 2018 as amended from ti
to time

me

Reservation Portion

The portion of the Offer reserved for category ligible Bidders as provided under the SE|
(ICDR) Regulations, 201

EZtS:é\éﬁz Categor)/Categories of persons eligible for making applaatinder reservation portion.
Retail Individual Bidders/ Individual Bidders, submitting Bids, who have Bior fEquity Shares for an amount not more
RIBs/  Retail Individual| than % 2,00,000/- in any of the bidding options in thet N&ffer (including HUFs applying
Investors/ RII through their Karta and Eligible NRIs and doesinolude NRIs other than Eligible NRI
Retail Portion The portion of the Offer being not less than 35%th# Net Offer, consisting ofe] Equity
Shares, available for allocation to Retail IndivatlBidders
The form used by the Bidders to modify the quargiftyquity Shares or the Bid Amount in apy
Revision Form of their Bid Cum Application Forms or any previoRsvision Form(s), as applicable. QIBs and
Non-Institutional Investors are not allowed to wditaw or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity
of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any st
SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India constitutedker the SEBI Act, 199
SEBI (Forelgn_ Portfolio Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreignfélay Investors) Regulations, 2014.
Investor) Regulatior
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure RequiremeRsyulations, 2018 issued by SEBI pn
/ICDR Regulation/| September 11, 2018, as amended, including instnetand clarifications issued by SEBI frgm
Regulatiol time to time
SEBI (PFUTP) Regulations SEBI (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Tradeatices relating to Securities Markets)
/PFUTP Regulation Regulations, 20(
SEBI  (Venture Capital) Securities Exchange Board of India (Venture CapRagulations, 1996 as amended from time
Regulations to time
SEBI Act/ SEB Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 19823rmended from time to tin
SEBI Insider Trading The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prtibibiof Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
Regulation as amended, including instructions and clarifiasissued by SEBI from time to tin
ggfg,',SELE’,tmg Regull_z?;lg:gs The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listdigligation and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations/ Listing
Regulations/SEBI (LODF

Regulations, 2015 as amended, including instrustiand clarifications issued by SEBI frg
time to time.

SEBI SAST / SEBI (SAST
Regulations/ SEBI Takeove
Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substatizjuisition of Shares and Takeove
Regulations, 2011 as amended from time to time.

=

Securities laws

Means the Act, the Securities Contracts (Regulathmt, 1956, the Depositories Act, 1996 a
the rules and regulations made thereunder and #mergl or special orders, guidelines
circulars made or issued by the Board thereundettam provisions of the Companies Act, 20
or any previous company law and any subordinatéslign framed thereunder, which a
administered by the Boar

nd
or
13
re

Self-Certified
Bank(s) / SCSB(s)

Syndicatg

Shall mean a Banker to an Offer registered undeurBgs and Exchange Board of Ing
(Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994, as amefrdedtime to time, and which offer th
service of making Application/s Supported by Blogk&mount including blocking of ban
account and a list of which is available
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherActicmzdoRecognised=yes or at such ot
website as may be prescribed by SEBI from timénte.

ia

on
her

Selling Shareholder

Shall mean Selling Shareholder of our CompanyAmrit Lal Manwani. For further detailg
please refer to section title@®ur Promoters & Promoter Group”beginning on page 137 of th
Draft Red Herring Prospec!

n

Share Escrow Aent

The share escrow agent appointed pursuant to tie &Escrow Agreement, namee]

Share Escrow Agreement

The agreement date®][ entered into between our Company, the Sellingr&imlder and th

Share Escrow Agent in connection with the trangferthe Offered Shares by the Selling

Shareholder and credit of such Equity Shares talémeat account of the Allottees in accorda
with the Basis of Allotmen

0

nce

SME Exchang

SME Platform of the National Stock Exchange of &ndimited i.e.“‘NSE Emerge”

Specified Securitie

Equity shares offered through this Draft Red Heyfrospectu

8
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Terms

Description

Sponsor Bank

Sponsor Bank means a Banker to the Offer registesigd SEBI, which is appointed by th
Issuer to act as a conduit between the Stock Exgsarand NPCI (National Paymen
Corporation of India) in order to push the mandetdlect requests and / or payment instructi
of the Retail Investors into the U

Sub Syndicate Member

A SEBI Registered member of NSE appointed by th& BRund/ or syndicate member to act
a Sub Syndicate Member in the Of

Syndicat:

Includes the BRLM, Syndicate Members and Sub SwtdidMember:

Syndicate Agreement

The agreement dated][ entered into amongst our Company, the BRLM arel 8yndicate
Members, in relation to the collection of Bids lvist Offer

Syndicate ASBA Bidding
Location:

Bidding Centers where an ASBA Bidder can submiirtf®d in terms of SEBI Circular na.

CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011, namely Mbai, Chennai, Kolkata, Del

Syndicate Members
Members of the Syndice

Intermediaries registered with SEBI eligible to asta syndicate member and who is permitte
carry on the activity as an underwriter, in thiseaeing e].

Systemically Important Nont-

Banking Financial Compa

Systemically important non-banking financial compas defined under Regulation 2(1)(iii)
the SEBI ICDR Regulatior

Transaction Registration Slig
TRS

/The slip or document issued by the member of thedBgte or SCSB (only on demand) as
case may be, to the Bidder as proof of registraticthe Applicatior

U.S. Securities A«

U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amen

Underwriter

The BRLM who has underwritten this Offer pursuamtthe provisions of the SEBI (ICDR
Regulations, 2018 and the Securities and ExchamgedBof India (Underwriters) Regulation
1993, as amended from time to tir

Underwriting Agreemel

The Agreemente] entered between the Underwriter, BRLM and our @any.

UPI is an instant payment system developed by t6®INit enables merging several bank
features, seamless fund routing & merchant paymmémtone hood. UPI allow instant transfer

UPI money between any two bank accounts using a payaduhiess which uniquely identifies
person’s bank accot
SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/22 dated Redny 15, 2018, SEBI circular n
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1,018, SEBI circular no
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3, 2019,SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76  dated June 28, 2019SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133 dated November 801® SEBI Circular ng

UPI Circulars SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/50 dated March 30, 20p20SEBI Cir(_:ular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March ,1®021, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2p21SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated June 2, 2021SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022,SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022SEBI Circular No:
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/76 dated May0,32022.and any subseque
circulars or notifications issued by SEBI in thégard

UPI ID ID created on Unified Payment Interface (UPI) fangée window mobile payment syste

developed by the National Payment Corporation didiNPCI

UPI ID Linked Bank Account

Account of the Rlls, applying in the Offer usingtblPI mechanism, which will be blocked up
accepting the UPI mandate to the extent of the @pjate application amount and subsequ
debit of funds in the case of allotme¢

UPI Mandate
Mandate Request

Reques

A request (intimating the RII by way of notificatimn the UPI application and by way of a SN
directing the RIl to such UPI application) to thé By sponsor bank to authorize blocking
funds equivalent to the application amount and egbent debit to funds in case of allotm

/

ts
pNS

d to

the

0N ~—~

ng
of
a

D.

nt

ent

VS
of

UPI Mechanism

The mechanism that was used by an RIB to make anBige Offer in accordance with the U
Circulars on Streamlining of Public Iss

3

UPI PIN

Password to authenticate UPI transac

Venture Capital Fund/VCF

Foreign Venture Capital Funds (as defined underSeeurities and Exchange Board of In
(Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996) registavith SEBI under applicable laws in In

i

a

Wilful  Defaulter(s)
fraudulent borrower

or

Company or person categorised as a wilful defaditerany bank or financial institution (g
defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consorthereof, in accordance with the guidelin
on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bankirmafia and includes any company whg
director or promoter is categorised as such arakfised under Regulation 2(1)(lll) of the SE
(ICDR) Regulations, 201

1S
es
se
Bl

Working Day

In accordance with Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBIQR) Regulations, 2018, working da:
means, all days on which commercial banks in Mumlame open for busines
However, in respect of—

(&) announcement of Price Band,; i

9
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Terms

Description

(b) offer period, working days shall mean all days,leding Saturdays, Sundays and pul
holidays, on which commercial banks in Mumbai grerofor business;

(c) the time period between the Offer Closing Date #madlisting of the Equity Shares on t
Stock Exchange, working day shall mean all tradiags of the Stock Exchange, excludi

ic

ne

Sundays and bank holidays, as per circulars isey&EBI

Technical and Industry Related Terms

Term Description

ATMPs Assembly, Testing, Marking & Packag
BGA ball grid arra:

BoM Bill of Materials

CAGR Compound Annual Growth R

Cape; Capital Expenditut

CcBU Completely Built Uni

CEEW Council on Energy, Environment and Wi
CEF Community Enterprise Fui

COB Chip on boar

COVID CoronaVirus Disease of 20:.

DRAM Dynamic Random Access Mem

DTA Domestic Tariff Are

EBITDA EBITDA is calculated as Profit before tax + Depeagicin + Interest Expens— Other Incom

EBITDA Margin

EBITDA Margin’ is calculated as EBITDA divided byeRenue from Operatior

ECGLS

Emergency Credit Linked Guarantee Sch

EMDE Emerging Markeand Developing Economi
eMMC embedded MultiMediaCa

ERF Enterprise Resource Plan

ESDM Electronics System Desigh and Manufactu
ESM Enterprise Service Managem

EV Electric Vehicle

FABs Fabrication Plan

GDF Gross Domestic Prodt

IC integrated circu

IMF International Monetary Ful

ISO International Organization for Standardisa

IT Information Technolog

LC Letter of credi

LED Light-emitting diods

Lol Letter of Inten

MGNREGS Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employment GuaraBigem
MoU Memorandum of Understandi

MRP Maximum Retail Pric

mSC Moisture sensitive devic

MSME Micro, Small, and Medium Enterpris

NAND NOT-AND

NFE Net foreign exchang

NFHE National Family Health Surve

NOR Non-Volatile Storage Technolo

NPE National Policy on Electroni

NPI New Product Introductic

NPV Net present valt

NSEZ Noida Special Economic Zo

ODMs Original Design Manufacture

OEMs Original Equipment Manufactur

OF< Offer for Sal

OHSAS Occupational Health and Safety Assessment £
P&M Plant and Machine

PAT PAT is calculated as Profit before t— Tax Expense
PAT Margin PAT Margin is calculated as PAT for the period/ydaided by Revenue from Operatic
PCE Printed Circuit Boar

10
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Term Description

PCBA Printed Circuit Board Assemk

PLI Schem Production Linked Incentive Sche

PLI WG Product Linked Incentive Scheme for White Gc

PMF Phased Manufacturing Poli

PWB Printed Wiring Boarc

QA Quality Assuranc

R&D Research & Developme

REACH Registration, EvaluatiotAuthorizatior and restriction of Chemice

Return on Capital Employed

Return on Capital Employed is calculated as EBNid#id by capital employed, which is defin
as shareholders’ equity plus total borrowings {eatr& nor-current}

pd

Return on Equity

Return on Equity is ratio of Profit after Tax andekage Shareholder Equ

Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations is the total revenue gé&eerby our Company from the sale
Product

RMTS Resilient Modulus Testing Syst

RoHE Restriction of Hazardous Substar
SEZ Special Economic Zol

SMT Surface Mount Technolor

SPEC! Scheme for Promotion of Manufacturing of Electren@omponents and Semiconduci
SSC Solid State Driv

UAV Unmanned Aerial Vehic

UNDP United Nations Development Programn
USB drivet Universal Serial Bus Drivt

WHO World Health Organizatic

X-ray Diagnostic radiolog

Conventional terms and Abbreviations

Abbreviation

Full Form

Rs / Rupees/ INR ?

Indian Rupees, the legal currency of the Repuljliodia

AS / Accounting Standa

Accounting Standards as issued by the Institughartered Accountants of In

Alc

Accoun

dia

ACS Associate Company Secret

AGM Annual General Meetir

ASBA Applications Supported by Blocked Amount

AMT Amouni

AlF Alternative Investment Funds registered undee Securities and Exchange Board of In|
(Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 20amendec

AY Assessment Year

AOA Articles of Associatio

Approx Approximately

B.A Bachelor of Art

B. Comr Bachelor of Commer:

B.E Bachelor of Engineerir

B. Sc Bachelor of Scienc

B. Tect Bachelor of Technolog

Bn Billion

BG/LC Bank Guarantee / Letter of Cre

BIFR Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstiorect

BSE BSE Limited

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limi

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Ri

CAN Confirmation of Allocation Note

Companies Act, 2013

Companies Act, 2013 to the néxie force pursuant to the notification of sectoof the
Companies Act, 2013 along with the relevant ruleslenthereunder as amen

Companies Act, 1956

Companies Act, 1956 (withoterence to the provisions that have ceased updficatibn of
the Companies Act, 2013) along with the releval@sunade thereunc

CA Chartered Accounta
CAIlIB Certified Associate of Indian Institute of Bkers
CB Controlling Branc
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Abbreviation Full Form

CC Cash Cred

CIN Corporate Identification Numh

CIT Commissioner of Income T

CS Company Secreta

CS & CC Company Secretary & Compliance Offi

CFC Chief Financial Office

CSF Corporate Social Responsibil

C.P.C. Code of Civil Procedure, 19(

CrPC Code of Criminal Procedure, 1¢

CENVAT Central Value Added Ta

CsT Central Sales T¢

CWA/ICWA Cost and Works Accounte

CMD Chairman and Managing Direc

DIN Director Identification Numbt

DIPF Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Miny of Commerce, Government of In
DP Depository Participal

DP ID Depository Participant’s Identification Numl

EBITDA Earnings Before Interest, Tax Depreciation & Amortizatio
ECS Electronic Clearing Syste

ESIC Employee’s State Insurance Corpora

EPFA Employee’s Provident Funds and Miscellaneous PimvisAct,195;
EMI Equated Monthly Installment

EPS Earnings Per She

EGM /EOGN Extraordinary General Meeti

ESOF Employee Stock Option Pl

EXIM/ EXIM Policy

Export— Import Policy

FCNR Accoun

Foreign Currency Nc-Resident Accoul

FIPB

Foreign Investment Promotion Bo

FY / Fiscal/Financial Ye:

Period of twelve months ended March 31 of thatipaldr year, unless otherwise ste

FEMA

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 as astbrficbm time to time, and the regulatio
framed there undc¢

FCNR Accoun

Foreign Currency Nc-Resident Accoul

FBT Fringe Benefit Ta

FDI Foreign Direct Investme

Fls Financial Institution

Flls Foreign Institutional Investors (as definedden Foreign Exchange Management (Transfef or
Offer of Security by a Person Resident outsidedndélegulations, 2000) registered with SEBI
under applicable laws in Inc

FPls “Foreign Portfolio Investor” means a persorowhtisfies the eligibility criteria prescribed @ng
regulation 4 and has been registered under ChHpi€Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014 jahhshall be deemed to be an intermediary in
terms of the provisions of the SEBI Act, 1!

FTA Foreign Trade Agreeme

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investors registerath®EBI under the Securities and Exchange Bqgard
of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regjolss, 200C

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, includirgrthes and regulations thereur

FEMA Rules Foreign Exchange Management (I-debt Instruments) Rules, 2(

Finance Ac Finance Act, 19¢

Fraudulent Borrowe A fraudulent borrower as defined in Regulation @{) )of the SEBI ICDR Regulation

FV Face Valu

GIR Numbe General Index Registry Numb

Gol/Governmer Government of Indi

GBP /{1 British pound sterling, the official currency ofthnited Kingdom and its territorit

GDF Gross Domestic Prodt

GST Goods and Services T

GVA Gross Value Adde

HUF Hindu Undivided Famil

HNI High Net Worth Individug

HSL Hem Securities Limite

IBC The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
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Abbreviation Full Form

ICAI The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ir

ISIN International Securities Identification Numt

IST Indian Standard Tin

ICWAI The Institute of Cost Accountants of In

IMF International Monetary Fui

P Index of Industrial Productic

IPO Initial Public Offel

ICSI The Institute of Company Secretaries of li

IT Information Technolog

IT Act InformationTechnologyAct,20(

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standz

|.T. Act Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to
IT Authorities Income Tax Authoritie

IT Rules Income Tax Rules, 1962, as amended, except as sthterwis
Indian GAAF Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in Ir
Ind AS Indian Accounting Standards as referredhtarid notified by the Ind AS Rules
Ind AS Rules The Companies (Indian Accounting SsadpRules, 2015
IRDA Insurance Regulatory and Development Auth
KMP Key Managerial Personr

BRLM Book Running Lead Manag

LLB Bachelor of Law

Ltd. Limited

LLP Limited Liability Partnership

MAT Minimum Alternate Ta

MoF Ministry of Finance, Government of In(

MoU Memorandum of Understandit

M. A Master of Art:

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government ofdia
M.B. A Master of Business Administrati

MAT Minimum Alternate Tax

M. Com Master of Commer(

Mn Million

M. E Master of Engineerir

M. Tect Masters of Technolog

Merchant Banker

Merchant Banker as defined under Skcurities and Exchange Board of India (Merch
Bankers) Regulations, 19

ant

rplus
he

MSME Micro, Small and Medium Enterpris

MAPIN Market Participants and Investors Datal

NA Not Applicable

NCLT National Company Law Tribun

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limit

Net worth The aggregate of paid up Share Capitdl Simare Premium account and Reserves and Su
(Excluding revaluation reserves) as reduced byeggie of Miscellaneous Expenditure (to
extent not written off) and debit balance of Pré&fiLoss Accour

NACH National Automated Clearing Hot

NEFT National Electronic Funds Trans

NECS National Electronic Clearing Syst

NAV Net Asset Valug

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limit

NCT National Capital Territor

NPV Net Present Valt

NRIs Non-Resident Indiar

NRE Accoun Non-Resident External Accoul

NRO Accoun Non-Resident Ordinary Accou

NOC No Obijection Certifical

NSDL National Securities Depository Limit

OCB or Overseas Corpora]
Body

teA company, partnership, society or other corpotatey owned directly or indirectly to th
extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseasts in which not less than 60% of t

[©)

beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIseditly or indirectly and which was in exister
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ns
to

Abbreviation Full Form
on October 3, 2003 and immediately before such dat® eligible to undertake transactio
pursuant to the general permission granted to O@#ier the FEMA. OCBs are not allowed
invest in the Offe

P.A. Per Annun

PF Provident Fun

PC Post Gradua

PGDBA Post Graduate Diploma in Business Adminigirat

PLR Prime Lending Rat

PAC Persons Acting in Conct

P/E Ratic Price/Earnings Rat

PAN Permanent Account Numt

PAT Profit After Tay

P.O. Purchase Order

PBT Profit Before Ta

PLI Postal Life Insuranc

POA Power of Attorne

PSL Public Sector Undertaking:

Pvt. Private

Q.C. Quality Control

RoC Registrar of Compani

RBI The Reserve Bank of Inc

Registration Ac Registration Act, 19C

ROE Return on Equit

R&D Research & Developme

RONW Return on Net Wort

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlem:

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, asrated from time to tinm

SCRF Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 nasnaled from time to tin

SME Small and Medium Enterpris

SCSE Self-Certified syndicate Ban

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 19823mende

SEBI AIF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Bazrdndia (Alternate Investments Funds) Regulatio2®]12, ag
amendec

SEBI Fll Regulations

Securities and Exchange Badrthdia (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regubats, 1995, ag
amended from time to tinr

SEBI FPI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Badrdindia (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulatior2014, as
amended from time to tin

SEBI FVCI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Bo#idddia (Foreign Venture Capital Investor) Regialias, 2000, as
amended from time to tin

SEBI Insider Trading
Regulation

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibitidrinsider Trading) Regulations, 2015,
amende

as

SEBI (PFUTP) Regulations
PFUTP Regulation

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibitwdéri-raudulent and Unfair Trade Practig
relating to Securities Markets) Regulations, Z

es

SEBI Regulations/ SEBI
ICDR Regulation:

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue opitgh and Disclosure Requirement
Regulations, 2018, as amenc

SEBI SBEB Regulatior

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share BEseployee Benefits) Regulations, 2C

SEBI Takeover Regulations
Takeover Regulations /
Takeover Cod

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substam§ijuisition of Shares and Takeove
Regulations, 2011, as amended.

SEBI VCF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Boéiddia (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1886amende
from time to time

)

SEBI

Securities and Exchange Board of Ir

STT

Securities Transaction T

Sub-Account

Sub-accounts registered with SEBI unlerSEBI (Foreign Institutional Investor) Regulais,
1995, other than sraccounts which are foreign corporate or foreigrividdials

Sec Sectior

SENSEX Bombay Stock Exchange Sensitive In

SICA Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) A&385
SS Small Scale Indust

SPV Special Purpose Vehic
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Abbreviation Full Form

TAN Tax Deduction Account Numk
TRE Transaction Registration S
Trade Marks Ac Trade Marks Act, 19¢

TIN Taxpayers ldentification Numk
UIN Unique identification numb
UK United Kingdon

U.N. United Nation

US/United State

United States of Ameri

U.S. Securities Ac

The United States Securities Act, 1¢

USD/ US$/ $/ US Dolle

United States Dollar, the official currency of tHaites States of Ameri

U.S. GAAF

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the tgdiStates of Americ

and
nd

VAT Value Added Tax

VCF Venture Capital Fund

VCFs Venture capital funds as defined in and tegesl with the SEBI under the Securities &
Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Rafipns, 1996 or the Securities a
Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment @snRegulations, 2012, as the case may

WDV Written Down Valu

WOS Wholly-owned Subsidial

WTD Whole Time Directc

w.e.f. With effect from

-5 ) Represent Outflo

The words and expressions used but not definekisnDraft Red Herring Prospectus will have the same@aning as assigned to
such terms under the Companies Act, 2013, the Biesuand Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (th&BEAct”), the SCRA,
SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure RequiremeRegjulations, 2018 the Depositories Act and thesraind regulations made

thereunder.
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, USE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION A ND MARKET DATA AND CURRENCY OF
FINANCIAL PRESENTATION

Certain Conventions

In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the terms”wes”, “our”, the “Company”, “our Company”, unlesthe context otherwise
indicates or implies, refers to Sahasra Electr@ulutions Limited. All references in the Draft Ridérring Prospectus to “India”
are to the Republic of India. All references in Baft Red Herring Prospectus to the “U.S.”, “US&"“United States” are to the
United States of America.

In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, unless thetexd otherwise requires, all references to onedgemlso refers to another
gender and the word “Lac / Lakh” means “one hundhedisand”, the word “million (mn)” means “Ten LAtakh”, the word
“Crore” means “ten million” and the word “billiorb()” means “one hundred crore”. In this Draft Reertihg Prospectus, any
discrepancies in any table between total and threafithe amounts listed are due to rounding-off.

Use of Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise, throughout this Draft Riedring Prospectus, all figures have been expressdRupees and Lakh.
Unless stated otherwise, the financial data inDhreft Red Herring Prospectus is derived from oustRied Financial statements
comprising of the Restated Statement of AssetsL#atallities as at March 31 2024 & March 31 2023cnir Company & as at
February 21, 2023 & March 31 2022 of our erstwhileprietorship(Sahasra Electronic Solutionsgind the Restated Statements
of Profit and Loss and Cash Flows for the Fiscaldeel March 31 2024 & period February 22, 2023 todde&81 2023 of our
Company and for the period/ year ended Februarg@23 & March 31 2022 of our erstwhile proprietapsiSahasra Electronic
Solutions)prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, the CamgmAct and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 includsdier
Section titled‘Financial Information of the Company” beginning on page 142 of this Draft Red Herringspectus.

There are significant differences between IndianABAthe International Financial Reporting StandafdERS” ) and the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the tddiStates of America (“U.S. GAAP”). Accordinglfet degree to which the
Indian GAAP financial statements included in thisafd Red Herring Prospectus will provide meaningfiibrmation is entirely
dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity witldian accounting practice and Indian GAAP. Anliarece by persons not
familiar with Indian accounting practices on thadicial disclosures presented in this Draft RedrinigrProspectus should
accordingly be limited. We have not attempted tpl&x those differences or quantify their impacttba financial data included
herein, and we urge you to consult your own adsisegarding such differences and their impact arfinancial data.

Any percentage amounts, as set forttRisk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management’s Discasion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operationsind elsewhere in the Draft Red Herring Prospeatisss otherwise indicated, have been
calculated on the basis of the Company's restdtehéial statements prepared in accordance withapipdicable provisions of
the Companies Act, Indian GAAP and restated in etanece with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as sktéatethe report of our
Statutory Auditor, set out in section titléBinancial Information of the Company” beginning on page 142 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

As on date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus axsehacquired 54.18% stake of Sahasra Semicondutivate Limited with
effect from June 21, 2024. The principal busindsSathasra Semiconductors Private Limited is manufag, wafer/chip dicing,
grinding chip bonding, testing marking, packing &lsg of semiconductor components and productacoessories using these
semiconductors. Further, to carry on complete m®aé integrated circuits (IC) packaging as auttegtiunder its memorandum
of association. As a result of the acquisition,ave able to consolidate all of these operatiors aur business at a group level.
Accordingly, we have included in this Draft Red Hieg Prospectus, the Unaudited Proforma Financi&rination of our
Company, comprising the proforma consolidated imdasheet as at March 31, 2024 and the proformenséait of profit and loss
for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2024 re#ld the notes to the proforma financial informatipnepared to illustrate the
impact of the acquisition of Sahasra Semicondud®igate Limited on the group’s financial positias at March 31, 2024 as if
the acquisition of Sahasra Semiconductors Privatetéd had taken place on April 1, 2023. The UntdiiProforma Financial
Information addresses a hypothetical situation dmes not represent our actual consolidated finanesalts and is not intended
to be indicative of our future condition and resuif operations. SetRisk Factors —The Proforma Financial Information
included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is handicative of our expected results or operatioimsthe future periods or
our future financial position or a substitute forar past results”We do not have any associate company as on da&tefifRed
Herring Prospectus. Our fiscal year commences ail Apf every year and ends on March 31 of evesyttyear.

For additional definitions used in this Draft RedrHng Prospectus, see the sectiDefinitions and Abbreviations”on page lof
this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. In the sectidedt“ Main Provisions of the Articles of Associationbn page 285 of the Draft
Red Herring Prospectus defined terms have the mgayiven to such terms in the Articles of Assodatof our Company.

Use of Industry & Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market datiafarecast used throughout the Draft Red Herrirgspectus was obtained
from internal Company reports, data, websites, $figupublications report as well as Government Rahbns. Industry
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publication data and website data generally statethe information contained therein has beeniddafrom sources believed to
be reliable, but that their accuracy and completemad underlying assumptions are not guarantegthair reliability cannot be
assured.

Although, we believe industry and market data usatie Draft Red Herring Prospectus is reliabldas not been independently
verified by us or the BRLM or any of their affileg or advisors. Similarly, internal Company reparid data, while believed by
us to be reliable, have not been verified by ardependent source. There are no standard data igatmeethodologies in the
industry in which we conduct our business and ndthfagies and assumptions may vary widely amongeuidfit market and
industry sources.

In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, @ie section titledBasis for Offer Price” on page 78 of the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus includes information relatingtw peer group companies. Such information haa beeved from publicly
available sources, and neither we, nor the BRLMeghadependently verified such information.

Currency of Financial Presentation

All references to “Rupees” or “INR” or “Rs.” orR" are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of Republic of India. Except
where specified, including in the section titfdddustry Overview” throughout the Draft Red Herring Prospectus gliies have
been expressed in Lakhs.

Any percentage amounts, as set forttRisk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management's Discussion and Analigsof Financial
Conditions and Results of Operationsdn page 25, 95 and 214 respectively of this DRegt Herring Prospectus, unless
otherwise indicated, have been calculated basediprestated financial statements prepared in dec@e with Ind GAAP.

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus contains conversfocertain US Dollar and other currency amounts indian Rupees that
have been presented solely to comply with the requénts of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Theseversions should not
be construed as a representation that those U&rwllother currency amounts could have been, mbeaconverted into Indian
Rupees, at any particular rate.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus includes certarnwvard-looking statements”. We have included eta¢nts in the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus which contain words or phrasesh sas “will”, “aim”, “is likely to result”, “believe”, “expect”, “will
continue”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “intend”, “pid, “contemplate”, “seek to”, “future”, “objective™goal”, “project”, “should”,
“will pursue” and similar expressions or variatiomissuch expressions, that are “forward-lookingesteents”. Also, statements
which describe our strategies, objectives, plargoais are also forward looking statements.

All forward looking statements are subject to rigkscertainties and assumptions about us that czaulde actual results to differ
materially from those contemplated by the releviamvard-looking statement. Forward-looking statetsereflect our current
views with respect to future events and are notuarantee of future performance. These statememtsbased on our
management’s beliefs and assumptions, which in &wenbased on currently available information. éiltgh we believe the
assumptions upon which these forward-looking stetégmare based are reasonable, any of these agsusn@buld prove to be
inaccurate, and the forward-looking statements dasethese assumptions could be incorrect. Impbftentors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from our exp@ns include but are not limited to:

1. General economic and business conditions in theketgrin which we operate and in the local, regipmational and
international economies;

2. Reduction or elimination of tax exemptions giventots functioning in Special Economic Zones.

3. Our ability to effectively manage the operationgnfl costs associated with our manufacturing faasli

4. Any change in government policies resulting in @ages in taxes payable by us;

5. We rely on the continued operations of our manufag facilities and any slowdown, shutdown or dpgfon in our
manufacturing facilities may be caused by natural ather disasters causing unforeseen damages wiéghlead to
disruptions in our business and operations coulc len adverse effect on our business, results efatipns, financial
condition and cash flows;

6. Our ability to retain our managements personnelahdr employees;

7. Foreign exchange fluctuations may adversely affectearnings and profitability;

8. Failure to comply with quality standards may lead&ncellation of existing and future orders;

9. General economic, political and other risks thataut of our control,

10. Company’s ability to successfully implement its\gtb strategy and expansion plans;

11. Failure to comply with regulations prescribed byhauities of the jurisdictions in which we operate;

12. Our dependency on our R&D activities for our futstecess; and

13. Any adverse outcome in the legal proceedings ircvhie are involved.

For further discussion of factors that could caose actual results to differ, see the Section ditlRisk Factors”, “Our
Business” and “ Management’s Discussion and Analgsdf Financial Condition and Results of Operationdjeginningon
page25, 142 and 214 respectively of the Draft Red Herring ProspecBy their nature, certain market risk disclosiaes only
estimates and could be materially different fromawdictually occurs in the future. As a result, aktfuture gains or losses could
materially differ from those that have been estedat

There can be no assurance to investors that thectatns reflected in these forward-looking staets will prove to be correct.
Given these uncertainties, investors are cautiomdto place undue reliance on such forward-lookstgfements and not to
regard such statements to be a guarantee of auefperformance.

Neither our Company or our Directors or Selling i@halder or our Officers or Book Running Lead Magragr Underwriter nor

any of their respective affiliates have any obligratto update or otherwise revise any statemeffiesctang circumstances arising
after the date hereof or to reflect the occurresfaenderlying events, even if the underlying asstioms do not come to fruition.
In accordance with SEBI requirements, our Comp&a}ling Shareholder and the BRLM will ensure thateistors in India are
informed of material developments until such tinsetfae grant of listing and trading permission by 8tock Exchange for the
Equity Shares allotted pursuant to this Offer.
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SECTION Il - SUMMARY OF DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTU S

A. SUMMARY OF BUSINESS

Our Company is an EN 9100:2018 certified compartyicivis engaged in the business of providing sohgitowards electronics
system design and manufacturing (“ESDM”) servicegsamanufacturing plant located at 68AA, NSEZ,iddg Uttar Pradesh,
which is equipped with four high speed SMT linevihg a total capacity of around 1800000 units. Wevjgle product and
solutions right from printed circuit board (“PCB&ssembly, Box Build, LED lighting. Memory, IT acsesies, computer and IT
hardware. We have during the FY 2024-25, acquiredtrolling stake in Sahasra Semiconductor Privairited, whose
Semiconductor Packaging Facility is located at BitliyRajasthan & engaged in the manufacturing @ftedbnic components like
integrated circuits, chips, semiconductor devieddMC, mSD, COBs, COB based USBs, LED drivers ICABGAND flash &
memory products.

For further details please refer to the chapteletit“‘Our Business” beginning on page 95 of this Draft Red Herring $pectus.

B. SUMMARY OF INDUSTRY

On an overall basis, electronics manufacturing gemvn from US$37.1 billion in 2015-16 to US$ 67.Midn in 2020-21.
However, COVID-19 related disruptions impacted grewth trajectory in 2020-21 and led to a declinettie manufacturing
output to US$67.3 billion. The National Policy ole&ronics (NPE) 2019 set a target of achievingradver of US$ 400 billion
by 2025. However, the COVID-19 pandemic broughhviitunforeseen and unprecedented challengesgh dif this, the NPE
2019 targets for electronics production in 2025a2&JS$ 300 billion appears to be more realisticsaaring the disruption on
account of COVID-19 in the past 18 months which Ib@sn aggravated with the new variants of the COY8Drirus such as the
Omicron.

For further details please refer to the chaptetetit“Industry Overview” beginning on page 87 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

C. OUR PROMOTERS

Our Company is promoted by Amrit Lal Manwani, Amma Manwani & Varun Manwani. For further detailsgde refer to the
chapter titled'Our Promoters & Promoter Group” beginning on page 137 of this Draft Red Herringspectus.

D. DETAILS OF THE OFFER

Initial Public offer of upto 65,78,000 Equity SharefZ 10 each(“Equity Shares”) of Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limitétie
“Company” or the“Issuer”) for cash at a price ¢f [e] (including a Share premium &f[e] per Equity Shareper shargthe
“Offer Price”), aggregating t& [e] lakhs (the Offer” ) comprising of fresh Issue of 60,78,000 equityrebafZ [e] per equity
share aggregating t© [e] lakhs and offer for sale of 5,00,000 equity skadbg selling shareholder & [e] per equity share
aggregating td@ [e] lakhs, of which uptoq] equity shares o 10 each for cash at a price®fe] (including a Share premium of
Z [e] per Equity Shareper share aggregating¥de] Lakhs will be reserved for subscription by Markealérs to the Offefthe
“Market Maker Reservation Portion). The Offer less Market Maker Reservation Portien Offer of upto ¢] equity shares of
Z 10 each for cash at a pricefe] (including a Share premium &f[ o] per Equity Shareper share aggregating ¥de] Lakhs
is hereinafter referred to as thdet Offer” . The Offer and the Net Offer will constitute 26%8nd p]%, respectively of the
post Offer paid up equity share capital of the Camp

For further details please refer to the chaptetetit“Terms of the Offer” beginning on page 248 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

E. DETAILS OF THE SELLING SHAREHOLDER

The Selling Shareholder have consented to parteipahe Offer for Sale in the following manner:

Name of the Selling| Type | Authorization | No. of Equity | No of Equity Shares offered| % of the pre-Offer paid-
Shareholder Letter dated | Shares held by way of Offer for Sale up Equity Share capital

Promoter Selling Shareholder

Amrit Lal Manwan | Promotelr| April 08, 202¢ | 1,79,64,70 | 5,00,00! | 2.64%

The Selling Shareholder has confirmed that theitifqthares proposed to be offered and sold in tfier@re eligible in term of
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and that the Sel8hgreholder has not been prohibited from dealimgsecurities market and
the Equity Shares offered and sold are free from la@an, encumbrance or third-party rights. The BejlShareholder has also
confirmed that he is the legal and beneficial ovengfrthe Equity Shares being offered by them utide©Offer for Sale.
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F. OBJECTS OF THE OFFER

Our Company intends to utilize the Proceeds ofaffer to meet the following objects:-

(Zin Lakhs)
Sr. No. Particulars Amount
1. Funding Capital Expenditure towards installationadflitional plant and machinery at new 6.028.04
manuficturing facility situated eBhiwadi, Rajastha T
2. Investment in our Subsidiary, Sahasra Semicondsid®ivate Limited for financing it$
capital expenditure requirements in relation towandstallation of additional plant and 2,542.30
machiner
3. Funding of Working Capital requireme [o]
4. General Corporate Purpcs [o]
Total [o]

For further details please refer to the chaptefetit“Object to the Offer” beginning on pag®6 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

G. PRE-OFFER SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS & PROMOTER GROU P AND SELLING SHAREHOLDER

Our Promoters & Promoter Group collectively holdg2169,500 Equity shares of our Company aggregair®$.00% of the pre-
Offer paid-up Share Capital of our Company. Follogvare the details of the shareholding of the Pterso% Promoter Group,
as on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus:-

Sr. NET Pre IPO Post IPO
No Shares Held % Shares Held Shares Held % Shares Held
Promoters (A)
1. | Amrit Lal Manwan 1,79,64,70 94.9¢ [e] [o]
2. | Varun Manwar 1,20( 0.01 [e] [e]
3. | Arunima Manwar 1,20¢ 0.01 [e] [o]
Sub Total (A) 1,79,67,100 94.99 [e] [e]
Promoter Group (B)
4. | Varsha B P Manwa 1,20( 0.01 [e] [e]
5. | Akshay Manwar 1,20( 0.01 [e] [e]
Sub Total (B) 2,400 0.02 [e] [e]
Total (A) + (B) 1,79,69,500 95.00 [e] [e]

*As mentioned above, Amrit Lal Manwafisélling Shareholder”) is offering 5,00,000 equity shares to publichistOfferand
post offer the holding of Amrit Lal Manwani willdece to 1,74,64,700 equity shares.

H. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Following are the details as per the Restated [Einastatements for the financial period/ yearseshdn March 31 2024 &
March 31 2023 of our Company & February 21, 2023/&rch 31 2022 of our erstwhile proprietorstffpahasra Electronics
Solutions)

(Zin lakhs)
Sr. | Particulars March 31, | March 31, | February 21, | March 31
No 2024 2023 2023 2022
Company Proprietorship
1 Paid up Share Capi/ Proprieto Capita 1891.4¢ 1796.9! 2435.0¢ 1521.5°
2. | Net Wortt 6031.¢9 2027.5( 2435.0¢ 1521.5°
3. | Revenu (including other incomq 10,278.7¢ 1,063.9: 6,002.9: 2,212.8(
4. | Profit/(loss) after ta 3,26277 230.5¢ 1794.5t 250.17
5 Earnings per Sha 18.(5 1.3C 10.11 1.41
6 Net Asset Value per Share
(Based on Weighted Average Number of Shi 3337 11.43 13.72 8.57
7. | Total Borrowmgs (including current maturitie$ long-term 2171.89 689 84 798.60 30.96
borrowings

. AUDITOR QUALIFICATIONS

Except as mentioned below, there are no such pgrdiditor’'s Qualifications in the Financial Statemsof the Company which
requires any effect to be given in the Restatedrtéial Statement.

Financial Year | Emphasis of Matter

2022-23 We draw your kind attention to the following mat
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Financial Year | Emphasis of Matter

1.The Company has made provision of the employeesgfibeas estimated by the management instead of
actuarial valuation as per AS 15 (amount unascestgi

2.The assets and liabilities of SES as on 21.02.2028 been transferred to Sahasra Electronic Solyition
Limited (SES Limited) pursuant to succession agesgrentered by SES with SES Limited.

3.In view of approval of NSEZ in next financial yearApril 2023 SES has carried on business actwitia
behalf of this company from 22.02.2023 to 31.0320#hd consequently the production, sales jand
expenditure were carried on by SES on behalf af ¢tbimpany and accordingly such income and expeaeditu
has been accounted for by this company.

4. Long term investments are yet to be transferrétiémame of this company.

5. Allotment of share capital was made in the Boar@ting held on 26.04.20.

J. SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

Our Company, Promoters, Directors, Group Compaaiesour Subsidiary Company are involved in certegal proceedings,
which is outstanding as on date of Draft Red HerrfProspectus. For further details, please refeth chapter titled
“Outstanding Litigations and Material Developmentsin page 223 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

S. No. | Name of Entity Criminal Tax Material Civil | Aggregate amount
Proceedings| Proceedings | Litigations involved R in lakhs)
1. Company
By the Compan Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against the Compat Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. Directors & Promoters
By the Directors & Promote 1 Nil Nil 12.1¢
Against the Directors & Promote Nil Nil Nil Nil
3. Subsidiary Company
By the Compan Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against the Compat Nil Nil Nil Nil
4. Group Companies (Material to our Company)
By theGroup Compaies Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against theGroup Compaies Nil 2 1 746.5:

K. RISK FACTORS

For details on the risks involved in our busingdsase see the Chapter titfdRisk Factors” beginning on page 25 of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

L. SUMMARY OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Our Company have the below mentioned contingebitlili@s for the financial period/ years ended oarth 31 2024 & March
31 2023 of our Company & February 21, 2023 & MaB&h2022 of our erstwhile proprietorshipahasra Electronics Solutions)
For further details, please refer Mote ZE — Contingent Liabilitiesof the chapter titled'Financial Information of the
Company”on page 174 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

(Zin Lakhs)
As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | February 21, 2023 | March 31, 2022
(Company) (Proprietor)
Contingent liabilities in respect
Claims  against the company not 714 714 i )
acknowledged as deb
Guarantees given on Balf of the Compan 3250.0( - - -
Other commitmen 1206.6° - - -
Total 4,463.81 7.14 - -

M. SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Following is the summary of the related party tesnt®ns entered by the Company (based on Restataddfal Statements) for
the financial period/ years ended on March 31 222arch 31 2023 of our Company:-
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AA RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

(A) List of Related parties

Names of the related parties with whom transactwer® carried out during the years and descripifarelationship:

Sr. No. Name of the Person / Entity Relation
(@) List of Related parties
1 Mr. Amrit Lal Manwan Chairman & Managing Directc
2 Varsha BP Manwa ManagingDirector's Wife
3 Mr. Varun Manwar Directol
4 Mrs. Arunima Manwatr Director's Wife (Appointed as Director w.e.f 22neldfuary, 2021
(b) Entity
4 Sahasra ElectroniPrivate Limite Chairman & Managing Directors is CMD he
5 Sahasra SemiconductcPrivate Limitec Chairman & Managing Directors is Director ht
6 Infopower TechnologiePrivate Limitet Director Is one of the Director he
7 Sahasra Electronics RwanPrivate Limitec | Director Is one of the Director he
8 Sahasra Electroni Sole Proprietorship of one Direc
9 Optima Technology IN Chairman &ManagingDirector Is one of the Director he
1C Megma RFID & LabelPrivate Limitec Chairman &ManagingDirector Is one of the Director he

(B) TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES :-

(Zin lakhs)
Particulars For the period March 31, For the Period March 31,

2024 2023
Remuneration Paid to Related Party
Amrit Lal Manwan 175.0( -
Varun Manwar 91.0(C -
Arunima Manwar 28.0( -
Pradeep Kumar (sitting fet 0.92
Share Allotted
Amrit Lal Manwan - 1796.4!
Varun Manwar 0.1z
Arunima Manwar 0.12
Mone_zy recelved against share allotment/Purchase 22 38 1774.32
consideratio
Export Sales & Domestic Sales
Optima Technology Associates 5,603.8! 881.1:
Sahasra Electroni 431.7¢ 6.14
Sahasra Electronics RwanPrivate Limitec 336.6: -
Megma RFID & LabelPrivate Limitec 136.2¢ -
Purchase & Import of Raw Material
Optima Technology Associates 408.9¢ 98.6:2
Infopower TechnologiePrivate Limitec 315.3( 109.1%
Sahasra Electroni 214.1¢
Sahasra ElectroniPrivate Limitec 573.5(
Sahasra SemiconductcPrivate Limitec 18.3¢
Interest Paid , Received & re-imbursement
Sahasra Electroni 0.3t 9.4%
Infopower TechnologiePrivate Limitec 0.32 0.32
Sahasra ElectroniPrivate Limitec 491.5( 31.3¢
Sahasra SemiconductcPrivate Limitec 14.2: 2.0¢
Megma RFID & LabelPrivate Limitec 2.94 -
Varsha BP Manwani (Rel 1.8C
Loan Given
Sahasra SemiconductcPrivate Limitec 1,125.0¢ -
Amrit Lal Manwani (Repaic 330.0( 258.0(
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Particulars For the period March 31, For the Period March 31,
2024 2023
Loan Taken
Amrit Lal Manwan 410.0(
Details of Balance Outstanding of related parteata
(Zin lakhs)
Outstanding Balance
Name Relation Particulars March 31, 2024 Ma2r(62331,
Mr. Amrit Manwan KMP Current Liabilities 411.3; 331.3:
Mrs. Arunima KMP Current Liabilities 2.00 -
Manwan
Mr. Varun Manwar KMP Current Liabilitie: 6.20 -
Optima Tech Significant Influence Trade Receivabli 759.3¢ 1028.1°
Associates Inc 9 Trade Payablt 33.4¢ 933.0:
Entities over which Key ManagerialTrade Payablt 60.1% 1506.0:
Infopower . ;
Technologies  Private Perso.nnellan.d' its relatlves are ablg on-Current
Limited | exercise significance influence / Grou vestment 11.00 11.00
Companies
. | Entities over which Key Managerial
Sahasra EIEECUOHICSPersonneI and its relatives are able
(Rwanda) Private . ianif infl /G LPrade Receivables 246.00 652.29
Limited exercise significance influence / Group
Companies Wholly owned subsidi
Entities over which Key Managerial Trade Receivabl 7.5¢ 6.1<
Sahasra Electronics Personnel and its relatives are able LP
. L - rade Payable - 0.35
exercise significance influen
Sahasra Entities over which Key Managerifailnves'[men 948.0( 64£.0C
. . . - JTrade Payab 3.0¢ -
Semiconductors PrivatePersonnel and its relatives are abl @urrent Asse 14 2;

. . . . . . Lt -
Limited exercise significance influence Loar 1125.01 -
Megma RFID & Labelg .. .. .

Private Limited-NSEZ Significant Influence Trade Receivable 109.03 -
Sahasra Electronics.. ...
Private Ltd Significant Influence Trade Payable 311.65 -

Note: Related party relationship is as identifigdite Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

For further details, please refer to thdote Y — Related Party Disclosures chapter titled“Financial Information of the
Company”on page 168 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

N. DETAILS OF FINA

NCING ARRANGEMENTS

There are no financing arrangements whereby thexgiers, members of the promoter group, the dirsatbthe issuer and their
relatives have financed the purchase by any otbesop of securities of the issuer other than imitrenal course of the business

of the financing entity during the period of six ntles immediately preceding the date of this DradtiRierring Prospectus.

O. WEIGHTED AVERAGE PRICE AT WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES W ERE ACQUIRED BY EACH OF OUR

PROMOTERS/ SELLING SHAREHOLDER IN THE ONE YEAR

Weighted average price at which the Equity Sharesevacquired by our Promoters and Selling Sharehaid Last one year
preceding the date of this Draft Red Herring Progjse

Sr. No. | Name of the Promoters & Selling Shareholdel No. of Shares held Weighted Average Price (irg per equity share
1. Amrit Lal Manwan 20C 1C
2. Arunima Manwar Nil Nil
3. Varun Manwar Nil Nil

P. AVERAGE COST OF ACQUISITION OF SHARES FOR PROMOTERS/ SELLING SHAREHOLDER

The average cost of acquisition of Equity SharesuoyPromoters and Selling Shareholder are sét forthe table below:
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Sr. No. | Name of the Promoters & Selling Shareholder No. of Shares held| Average cost of Acquisition (ink)*
1. Amrit Lal Manwan 1,79,64,70 10.0¢
2. Arunima Manwar 1,20( 10.0¢
3 Varun Manwar 1,20( 1C.0C

*The average cost of acquisition of Equity SharesunyPromoters has been calculated by taking irtocoant the amount paid
by them to acquire, by way of fresh issuance amdfer, the Equity Shares less amount received é&my tlor the sale of Equity
Shares through transfer, if any and the net cosioglisition has been divided by total number afreb held as on date.

Q. DETAILS OF PRE IPO-PLACEMENT

Our Company does not contemplate any issuance ameplent of Equity Shares from the date of this DRgd Herring
Prospectus till the listing of the Equity Shares.

R. OFFER OF EQUITY SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH IN THE LAST ONE YEAR

Except for the details mentioned below, we haveissted Equity Shares for consideration other twsh in the preceding one
year.

Date of Number of | Face | Issue Reason of Benefits Accrued to | Name of Allottees No. of
Allotment Equity Value | Price Allotment our Company Shares
Shares ® ® Allotteed
Upon 1,77,40,781 10.00 10.00 Pursuant to [fhicquisition of the| Amrit Lal Manwan | 1,77,40,78
Incorporation acquisition of M/s| running business of
Sahasra Electronic M/s Sahasrg TOTAL 1,77,40,781
Solution Electronic Solutior

S. SPLIT/CONSOLIDATION OF EQUITY SHARES IN THE LAST O NE YEAR

Our Company has not undertaken split or consobidatif the Equity Shares in the one (1) year preugthie date of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

T. EXEMPTION FROM COMPLYING WITH ANY PROVISIONS OF SEC URITIES LAWS, IF ANY, GRANTED BY
SEBI

As on date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus,Gampany has not availed any exemption from comglyiith any provisions
of securities laws granted by SEBI.
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SECTION llI: RISK FACTORS

An investment in our Equity Shares involves a digiree of financial risk. Prospective investorswdta@arefully consider all the
information in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus,ripaularly the “Financial Information of the Company” and the related
notes,“Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financi@ondition and Results of Operationsin
page 142, 95 and 21#spectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus dahe risks and uncertainties described belowoitgef
making a decision to invest in our Equity Shares.

The risk factors set forth below are not exhaustimd do not purport to be complete or comprehensivierms of all the risk

factors that may arise in connection with our besi® or any decision to purchase, own or dispostefEquity Shares. This
section addresses general risks associated witlinthestry in which we operate and specific risksaa$ated with our Company.
Any of the following risks, individually or togetheould adversely affect our business, financ@hdition, results of operations
or prospects, which could result in a decline ia tralue of our Equity Shares and the loss of appant of your investment in our
Equity Shares. While we have described the riskksuartertainties that our management believes arterna, these risks and
uncertainties may not be the only risks and undetitss we face. Additional risks and uncertaintiegluding those we currently
are not aware of or deem immaterial, may also havedverse effect on our business, results of dipers financial condition

and prospects.

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus contains forwérdking statements that involve risks and unceties Our actual results
could differ materially from those anticipated imese forward-looking statements as a result ofagerfactors, including the
considerations described below and elsewhere mImaft Red Herring Prospectus. The financial artideo related implications
of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, havenbeéisclosed in the risk factors below. Howeverrehare risk factors the
potential effects of which are not quantifiable @hdrefore no quantification has been provided witbpect to such risk factors.
In making an investment decision, prospective tiovesnust rely on their own examination of our Campand the terms of the
Offer, including the merits and the risks involv&du should not invest in this Offer unless youpepared to accept the risk of
losing all or part of your investment, and you sldogonsult your tax, financial and legal advisorboait the particular
consequences to you of an investment in our E§higyes.

Materiality

The Risk factors have been determined on the hasibeir materiality. The following factors have dme considered for
determining the materiality.

1. Some events may not be material individuallynbay be found material collectively.
2. Some events may have material impact qualitgtinstead of quantitatively.
3. Some events may not be material at present &ytom having material impact in future.

Note:

The risk factors as envisaged by the managememigafath the proposals to address the risk if anyleds specified or
guantified in the relevant risk factors below, we aot in a position to quantify the financial irgation of any of the risks
described in this section.

In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, any discregias in any table between total and the sums o&theunt listed are due to
rounding off. Any percentage amounts, as set fiortfiRisk Factors” on page 212 antManagement Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsbn page 214 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectudess otherwise
indicated, has been calculated on the basis oatheunt disclosed in tH&estated Financial Statements”

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

1. Our business is dependent on the sale of our praguo certain key customers which also includes goof our Group
Companies. The loss of any of these customers sk lof revenue from sales to these customers couwldeha material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditjarsults of operations and cash flows.

Our business is dependent on certain key custofoersale of our products which includes both domeeahd international
entities. For the fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022,toprten customers contributed to 95.78%, 89.15%%hd4% of our revenue
from operations. The loss of any of these custoroeesloss of revenue contributed by these custemmery materially affect our
business, financial condition, results of operatiand cash flows. Further, there can be circumetantiere our customers may
vary their material sourcing strategies which mégca our sales with those customers. Also, we oaassure you that we will
be able to significantly reduce our dependenceeondf these key customers in the future. Furtherind the fiscal 2024, 2023
and 2022, the sales of our products to our prongrieup and Group Company, contributed to approxatgat2.99%, 61.09%
and 95.09% of our revenue from operations. Thusagor portion of our business comprises of salesctly to our group
companies, for which we do not have long term agesgs. We sell such products to our group compasgd on the orders
procured by them and if such companies opt othpplgrs for fulfilling their demands, we may not bble to find alternate
customers.
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Also, many of the purchase orders we receive frastamners specify the price per unit, product speatibn and delivery

schedule, with the quantities to be delivered. Hmresuch orders may be amended or cancelled andayebe unable to seek
compensation for any surplus bought out or manufadt components. As we are dependent on certaincéstpmers for a

significant portion of our sales, the loss of ame @f our key customers, if not replaced, may heweaterial adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financiatition. Also, our customers have high standasdpfoduct quality, any failure
to meet customers’ expectations could result inlithédated damages. Also, purchase orders aredilpisubject to conditions
such as ensuring that all products delivered toctitgomer have been inspected. Customers may desearadf their payment

dues, require indemnification for rectification tife error in the product supplied or replace thesiisting products with

alternative products, any of which may have an estveffect on our business and results of opemtion

2. We are significantly dependent on revenue from sale PCBA. Any inability to anticipate or adapt tovelving up
gradation of the required products or inability tensure product quality or reduction in the demandthese products may
adversely impact our revenue from operations anawth prospects.

The revenue from the sale of PCBA contribute toigmiicant portion of our revenue from operationsdawe are thus

significantly dependent on the sale of PCBA. Oue sd PCBA, which represented 87.18%, 97.24% an@0® of our revenue

from operations for the fiscal year 2024, 2023 2682 respectively. We cannot assure you that wianeilease our market share
in the future for these products. Demand for th@selucts depends primarily on the orders receivesh four customers. Further,
the products may be substituted by product up gi@dand our company may be unable to upgrade theshicts. We may not

be able to introduce new product that are in fagtewing and more profitable categories. Any ofseadactors could have a
material adverse impact on our financial conditeord the results of operations. Further, we may bésoequired to invest in

updated technology and processes to develop updyradduct having the desired specification, queditind characteristics and
continually monitor and adapt to evolving demandhyAsuch upgradation may also require for additiccegital investment

which may affect our business operations and fiiéuposition.

3. Our company has been recently incorporated and haken-over the running business of M/s Sahasra Bfenic
Solutions, thus we have limited operating historg a Company which may make it difficult for investoto evaluate our
historical performance or future prospects.

Our Company was incorporated as a limited Compamjeu the Companies Act, 2023 with Registrar of Canigs, dated
February 22, 2023. The company has takeover theimgrbusiness along with the assets and liabilitiEshe proprietorship
concern of our Promoter namely M/s. Sahasra Eleitr8olutions, thus we have limited operating higtas a company from
which one can evaluate our business, future présed viability. Our future business operation &ndncial position may not
be comparable with that of the proprietorship conand difficult to estimate and could fluctuatgrsficantly and as a result the
price of our Equity Shares may remain volatile.tker, the transfer of assets and liabilities hasenbundertaken based on the
MOU entered between the promoter of our companytla@awner of the proprietorship firm based ondbesideration mutually
decided between them pursuant to the agreemertt Bateruary 22, 2023. In case of any dispute betwheeparties with regards
to the MOU for transfer of assets and liabilitietvieen the proprietorship and the Company may havadverse effect on the
business and financial position of the companyoAtke agreement does not restrict the Proprietagain start the business of
manufacturing of PCBA, Box build, LED and electrobioxes and accessories which may have an advéese @ our business
and profitability. Also, there can be no assuratiwd conflict of interests may not arise in theufet in allocating business
opportunities. In cases of conflict, our promotoray favour other companies in which our promoterehan interest that could
have a material adverse effect on our business.

4. Inventories and trade receivables form a major part our current assets. Failure to manage our invemny and trade
receivables could have an adverse effect on ouesaprofitability, cash flow and liquidity.

Our Company’s business is working capital intensind hence, inventories and trade receivables éomajor part of our current
assets. The results of operations of our businessiependent on our ability to effectively manage imventory and trade
receivables. To effectively manage our inventorg, must be able to accurately estimate customer mrhpotential orders and
supply requirements and purchase new inventoryrdouly. However, if we misjudge expected custordemand / potential
orders, it could cause either a shortage of pradocian accumulation of excess inventory. Durirg fiecal year 2023-24, FY
2022-23 and FY 2021-22 our inventories w&r2108.21 lakhsZ 801.69 lakhs an& 304.05 lakhs. To effectively manage our
trade receivables, we must be able to accuratelipate the credit worthiness of our customers arsdie that suitable terms and
conditions are given to them in order to ensureammtinued relationship with them. Moreover, simeest of our sales are based
on orders received from customers as per theiriregents, if we fail to accurately evaluate thedirevorthiness of our
customers, it may lead to bad debts, delays invextes and/ or write-offs which could lead to aulidjty crunch, thereby
adversely affecting our business and results ofadjpas. During the fiscal year 2023-24, FY 2022&2@ FY 2021-22 our trade
receivables werg& 2656.69 lakhsg 1764.74 lakhs and@ 459.89 lakhs. We may be subject to working capitkls due to delays
or defaults in payment by clients, which may restour ability to procure raw materials and makgrpants when due. In
addition, any delay or failure on our part to sypible required quantity or quality of products, hiiit the time stipulated by our
agreements, to our customers may in turn causg delgayment or refusal of payment by the custorSecch defaults/delays by
our customers in meeting their payment obligatitmsis may have a material effect on our businesanéial condition and
results of operations.
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5. Any delay, interruption or reduction in the supplyf raw materials required to manufacture our prodtecmay adversely
affect our business, results of operations, casbwvik and financial condition.

Our business operations are significantly dependerthird parties for the material requirements ffanufacturing of finished
goods. We source our raw materials and bought outponents and sub-assemblies like: Electronic Comps (micro
controllers, IC, resistors, capacitors, LED, PCRI ather semiconductors), Wiring Harness, PlastidsP&heet Metal Parts,
Process consumables etc. from third party supplieated domestically and in countries like Unitgtdtes, China, Hong Kong,
Thailand, Singapore etc. During the fiscal 202423@nd 2022 our imports comprise04988.87 lakhst 3361.27 lakhs and
1201.41 lakhs respectively. The quality of our prad is primarily dependent on the quality of oawrmaterials, and any
deterioration in the quality of raw materials supglto us will have an adverse effect on the qualit our products, market
reputation and sales volumes. There can be no mgeardhat we will be able to maintain our currénedup of suppliers or
adequate supply of such raw materials at all timeslitionally, the prices of our primary raw matds are volatile and fluctuate
based on a number of factors outside our influe¥\e.cannot be certain that we will be able to abtaw material meeting the
specified quality standards on commercially acdgptterms, or that our suppliers will perform apested. If we fail to receive
the quality of raw materials that we require orotége appropriate financial terms or obtain adégsapply of raw materials in a
timely manner, or our suppliers discontinue thepbumf such raw materials, we cannot assure thatwwillebe able to find
alternate sources for the procurement of raw nmedtein a timely manner or at all. Our cost of raatemials and components
consumed constituted 52.50%, 55.35% and 70.94%uofrevenue from operations, for the Fiscals 2023R32and 2022
respectively. Further, if we cannot fully offsetirases in the prices of our raw materials, we expgerience lower margins. The
occurrence of any such event may adversely afi@cbosiness, results of operations, cash flowsfimadicial condition.

Also, we do not have long term supply contractexalusive arrangements with any of our suppliens, @y major disruption to
the timely and adequate supplies of our raw mdseegposes us to volatility in the prices of rawtenils and could adversely
affect our business, results of operations anchfiizh condition. Further, the availability of thesev materials and components is
dependent on the global supply chain and theirtabes can be caused by, among other things, warsain the supply of quality
material, import duties, currency exchange rategural disasters, changing economic conditionsptber geographic and
political events. Any such disruption would imp#woe production and overall financial position of @ompany.

6. Our business is substantially dependent on our ergring teams to accurately carryout the designirapgineering and
estimation studies for potential orders. Any dev@at during the execution of the order as comparexdur estimates could
have a material adverse effect on our cashflowsulks of operations and financial condition.

We have developed in-house resources with competetadeliver our product as per customer spetitios which include our
qgualified engineering team. We rely on our in-hotisem of 35 engineers as on March 31, 2024 forlyinaed efficient
operations. While our teams have the necessaryasidl experience in carrying out designing, estasand engineering studies,
we may not be able to assure the accuracy of dudies. The accuracy of the design and the engimgeerork are key for the
products being accepted by our customers. Furtieeratcuracy of the estimates is dependent on ticespguoted by our
suppliers and how accurately we have analyzed atichaed the specifications provided by customérsy deterrence or
deviation in the estimation and calculation of Key elements on which we rely before submittingtgtions to customers as
compared to our estimates during implementationggetation could have a material adverse effeatworcash flows, results of
operations and financial condition.

7. We are subject to strict design & quality requirents, customer inspections and audits, and any faduto comply with
design & quality standards may lead to cancellatiaf existing and future orders and could negativeisnpact our
reputation and our business and results of operaisoand future prospects.

We develop and manufacture complex and specialivethbonents which caters to various sectors basepexific requirements
stipulated by our customers. Given the nature ofppaducts and services and the sector in whicloperate, we believe that our
customers have high standards for product qualiégsign standards and delivery schedules. Adherenaesign & quality
standards is a critical factor as any defect irdpots manufactured by our Company or failure to gigrwith the specifications
of our customers may, in turn, lead to the manufactof faulty end-products. Component failures, wiacturing non-
conformance, efficacy concerns or design defects wispect to our products, if they were to occonyld result in directly or
indirectly, personal injuries or other adverse &feThis may lead to cancellation of supply orderd at certain instances may
impose additional costs in the form of product iligb and/or product recall. Further our facilitieprocess and products are
exposed to regular inspection and audits by outoousrs to ensure that their internal standardsppeopriately met. Any non-
compliance observed during inspection/audit mayeham adverse impact on our business, financial itond results of
operations and future prospects. Any negative pifpliregarding our Company or our products couldeasely affect our
reputation, our operations and our results fronrans

8. We derive a majority portion of our revenues fromports and are subject to risk of international tie.

We have historically derived a significant portiohour revenues from operations from export to ¢oes like: United States,
Rwanda, Tunisia, United Kingdom, Germany, Canadawsy, Austria, Belgium etc. During the Fiscal 20®scal 2023 and
Fiscal 2022, our revenues from our exports amourtt€B503.97 lakhst 6803.39 lakhs an&l 2038.30 lakhs respectively, which
constituted 83.57%, 98.46% and 93.93% respectivelypur total revenues from operations. Further,itééh States has
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contributed to more than 70% of our revenue frorarafions during the last 3 years. During the Fi&#4, Fiscal 2023 and
Fiscal 2022, our revenues from our exports to WnBeates constituted 78.73%, 93.49% and 74.29%ecésply, of our total
revenues from operations Therefore, any develofsnianthe global ESDM industry or the industrieswihich our customers
operate or specifically in the geographies whereoperate could have an impact on our sales fronorexplf any severity
persists or war like situations occurs between ti@s across the globe in future our revenue froqpogt may be affected.
Further from time to time, tariffs, quotas and othariff and non-tariff trade barriers may be imgdson our products in
jurisdictions in which we operate or seek to selt products. There can be no assurance that thetr@siwhere we export,
among others, where we seek to sell our produdishat impose trade restrictions on us in futuree Way also be prohibited
from exporting to certain restricted countries timaty be added to a sanctions list maintained bysiernment of India or other
foreign governments. Any such imposition of tra@deriers may have an adverse effect on our restibperations and financial
condition. In addition, our revenues from thesekats may decline as a result of increased competitegulatory action, pricing
pressures including as a result of anti-dumpingsuess, fluctuations in the demand for or supplpwf products or services, or
the outbreak of an infectious disease such as C@ADOur failure to effectively react to these attans could adversely affect
our business, prospects, results of operationgiaadcial position.

9. Our Company operates under several statutory angulatory approvals in respect of our operations. ikae to obtain or
maintain licenses, registrations, permits and appeds may affect our business and results of opevas.

We require certain statutory and regulatory pernlitgenses and approvals to operate our busindssugh we believe that we
have obtained those permits and licenses whichadegjuate to run our business, we cannot assurethtbe is no other
statutory/regulatory requirement which we are reggiito comply with. Further, some of these app®waak granted for fixed
periods of time and need renewal from time to tikive. are required to renew such permits, licensdsagprovals. There can be
no assurance that the relevant authorities wili@sany of such permits or approvals in time orliatRailure by us to renew,
maintain or obtain the required permits or apprevaltime may result in the interruption of our ogt@ns and may have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarmaldition and results of operations. Furthermore,made application for E-
Waste Management System under E-Waste (ManageRel®$, 2022 and for Battery Waste Management uBd#ery Waste
Management Rules, 2022 for our manufacturing figciituated at NSEZ, Noida which are pending apgkotrurther, our
Subsidiary company has also applied for the renesfalegistration for the E-Waste Management Systerder E-Waste
(Management) Rules, 2022 and for Battery Waste dament under Battery Waste Management Rules, 2022Zannot assure
you that the approvals, licenses, registrations pewhits required will be issued to us and thoseaaly issued will not be
suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliavitte any terms or conditions thereof, or pursuanany regulatory action.
Any denial, suspension or revocation of the apgmVigenses, registrations and permits that has loe may be issued to us may
affect our business and results of operations. fedher details regarding the material approvalkssnses, registrations and
permits, which have not been obtained by our Companare, pending renewal, s&8overnment and Other Approvalsbn
page 226 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

10. Restrictions on foreign trade and/or any increase shipment cost may adversely impact our businesssh flows and
results of operations.

Most of the products, raw materials and componeadgired in our manufacturing and assembly linecgss are imported.
During the Fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022 the importipases accounted for 76.75%, 79.94% and 71.43%tafpurchases in the
respective years. The import of goods is regulétedarious regulatory requirements, which empowtkesrelevant authority to
undertake any measures that it deems fit. Suchunesinclude denying approval for import of suchdurcts. There can be no
assurance that such regulations will not becomeeraimgent in the future, which could potentiaistrict our ability to import
from other jurisdictions. Historically, we have begependent on import from countries like: Unitedt&s, China, Hong Kong,
Thailand, Singapore etc. While our trade with thgsesdictions are not currently subject to anyulegory ban or restriction,
there can be no assurance that such regulatiohsetilevolve into more stringent regulations, whiebuld place onerous
requirements on us and consequently restrict oilityato trade in these countries. There can alsonb assurance that, under
these circumstances, we will be successful in iflémg alternate suppliers or we will be able touste such products, raw
materials or components domestically at favouradtens in a timely manner. While we have not in past experienced any
significant challenge in importing products, thean be no assurance that we will not experiencesaich challenges in the
future.

11. We may be subject to risks associated with produatranty. In case any product warranty getting matdized due to
product defect, we may be subject to additional tcgsoduct liability claims or loss of future purcise orders from
customers which may affect our business and resolt®perations.

We are subject to risks and costs associated widtugt warranties, supply of defective productshimitthe warranty periods
stipulated for our products. We usually provide naaty against manufacturing defects on our prodwttser than for physical
damages during transit. Any defects in the finispeaducts may result in invocation of such warmesitissued by us and may
require repair or replacement resulting in addaiarosts to the Company. Further, apart from thdtimeshal cost relating to repair
and replacement, our company may be subjectedoupt liability claims. There can be no assurameg tve will be able to
successfully defend or settle such claims and lasvagainst defective products. Multiple instanoésnanufacturing defects in
our products or any product liability claim agaiost could generate adverse publicity, leading lmsa of reputation, customers
and/or increase our costs, thereby materially athebrsely affecting our reputation, business, resaft operations, financial
condition and cash flows.
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12. Our Statutory Auditors have included certain Key dit Remarks on our Audited financial statements.

Our auditor has included the below Key Audit Rersarkthe financial statements of the Company aailéetbelow:

Financial Year | Emphasis of Matter Management Reply

2022-23 We draw your kind attention to the follogimatter: The observations of th
Statutory Auditors,
1. The Company has made provision of the employeesfivers estimated by thewhen read togethe
management instead of actuarial valuation as petA@&mount unascertained) with the relevant note
2. The assets and liabilities of SES as on 21.02.2@83%een transferred to Sahasta the accounts an
Electronic Solution Limited (SES Limited) pursuaot succession agreemenaccounting policies ar
entered by SES with SES Limited. self-explanatory and d
3. In view of approval of NSEZ in next financial yaarApril 2023 SES has carriednot call for any furthe
on business activities on behalf of this compaynfi22.02.2023 to 31.03.2023omment.
and consequently the production, sales and experditere carried on by SES
on behalf of this company and accordingly such iimecand expenditure hasThe company has

)

O 0O U =

been accounted for by this company. rectified all the pointg
4. Long term investments are yet to be transferradémame of this company. in the Restatement qf
5. Allotment of share capital was made in the Boareting held on 26.04.20. Account:.

13. Our Subsidiary Sahasra Semiconductor Private Limdtes engaged in the business of semiconductor chipmufacturing
which exposes us to certain risks. If we are unabeeffectively manage our operations or pursue @rowth strategy, our
business, financial condition, results of operatisrand prospects may be adversely affected.

Our Subsidiary Sahasra Semiconductor Private Lidnite engaged in the business of semiconductor chipaufacturing
including products like integrated circuits, chiggmiconductor devices, eMMC, mSD, COBs, COB bd$88s, LED drivers
IC, BGA, NAND flash & memory products. Our compatopk over 54.18% stake in the said company on 21n024. As a
new entrant in this Industry, we may face multipteallenges. The revenue from operation of our slidngi for the FY2024,
FY2023 and FY2022 wer2 300.84 Lakhs¥ 126.32 Lakhs an& 0.61 lakhs and the losses for the same periodRwi&50.53)
Lakhs,Z (104.96) lakhs and (27.82) lakhs. As we are a new entrant in the senductor market, we will be exposed to various
challenges, including those relating to identificatof potential markets, customer preferencesuleggry regimes, business
practices and customs. We may require significamantial resources for expansion of our operatiansjuding capital
expenditure, inventory and hiring of additional doyges for our plant. We may be required to obtains to finance such
expansion and we may not be successful in obtaisiiet funds in a timely manner and/or on favourédams including rate of
interest, primary security cover, collateral segrierms of repayment, or at all. An inability &fectively manage these
operations, recover from the losses incurred by swenpany or pursue our growth strategy may leazp&rational and financial
inefficiencies, which may result in a material achee effect on our business, prospects, financialdition and results of
operations

14. The Pro Forma Financial Information included in thé Draft Red Herring Prospectus is not indicative ofir expected
results or operations in the future periods or otuture financial position or a substitute for our @st results.

The company acquired 54.18% stake of Sahasra Sedchictors Private Limited with effect from June 2024 and therefore the
Proforma Financial Information for the Fiscal 20B4s been included in this Draft Red Herring Progpedt illustrates the
impact of acquisition made by company and its fai@nperformance for the year ended March 31, 282# the acquisition had
taken place at the beginning of the earliest regbstear presented. For further details, ddistory and Certain Corporate
Matters -Details regarding material acquisitions ativestments of business/ undertakings, mergers bByamations or any
revaluation of assets, in the last ten yearahd “Proforma Financial Statements”on page 205 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

The Proforma Financial Information has been prepaseour Statutory Auditor. It addresses a hypathésituation and does not
represent our actual financial condition or reswfsoperations and is not intended to be indicatWeour future financial
condition and results of operations. The adjustsesat forth in the Proforma Financial Informatiore dased on available
information and assumptions that our managemeigJes to be reasonable. As the Proforma Finanefarmation is prepared
for illustrative purposes only, it is, by its natuisubject to change and may not give an accureterg of the actual financial
results that would have occurred had such tramsecty us been effected on the dates they are adstarhave been effected,
and is not intended to be indicative of our futfirancial performance. The Proforma Financial Infation does not include all
of the information required for financial statemeeninder India GAAP. Accordingly, investors shoulat mnduly rely on our
Proforma Financial Information. If the various asgtions underlying the preparation of the Profoffr@ancial Information do
not come to pass, our actual results could be m#yedifferent from those indicated in the Profanfinancial Information.
Accordingly, the Proforma Financial Information limded in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is mé¢nded to be indicative of
expected results or operations in the future psrimdthe future financial position of our Comparnyaosubstitute for our past
results, and the degree of reliance placed by tovesn our Proforma Financial Information shouddlimited.
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15. We have had negative cash flows from operating wtigs in the past and may continue to have negatoash flows in the

future.

Our cash flows from operating activities, investamivities and financing activities for the Fis@8l24, period from February 22,

2023 to March 31, 2023, period from April 1, 2082Rebruary 21, 2023 and 2022 are set forth below:

(Z In lakhs)
For Fiscal February 22, April 01, For Fiscal
March 31, 2023 to 2022 to March 31,
Particulars 2024 March 31, February 21, 2022
2023 2023
(Company) (Proprietor)

Net Cash generated from / (used in) operating itiet 94.6¢ 182.5¢ 1,168.1¢ 125.37
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activit (839.15 72.52 (879.44 (435.27
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activil 2,137.9¢ (116.82 (157.82 347.5¢

Cash flows of a company are a key indicator to stivevextent of cash generated from the operatiéres @mpany to meet
capital expenditure, pay dividends, repay loansraalle new investments without raising finance frexternal resources. If we
are not able to generate sufficient cash flomsdy adversely affect our business and financiatatjpns.

16. We intend to utilise a portion of the Net Proceettsvards funding the capital expenditure of our Subgry, Sahasra
Semiconductor Private Limited and we cannot assy@u that we will be able to derive the benefitsrfrahe proposed
object.

Our Company proposes to utilise 2542.30 lakhs towards funding the capital expemeitof our Subsidiary, Sahasra
Semiconductor Private Limited. The proposed investinby our Company will be undertaken to expand rttemufacturing
facility for carrying out Electronic ManufacturinGervices by installation of new machines. The mactufing facility of the
subsidiary is located at Plot no B-2, Elcina Elesics Manufacturing Cluster, Industrial Area SalayBhiwadi, Distt. Alwar,
Rajasthan- 301019, admeasuring the total land @r&225.60 sq. mtr. For further information, sé&bjects of the Offer” on
page 66 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. Oomgany has relied on the management estimateshrptoposed
expenditure. Further, the subsidiary company hasady placed order for new machinery amounting 1©92.80 lakhs which is
around 42.98% of the amount proposed to be investdte subsidiary. These estimates are dependeatiwent conditions and
are subject to change in light of changes in esllecitcumstances, costs, other financial conditionbusiness strategies and the
passage of time. We cannot assure that we wilbieta derive the benefits from the proposed objecterive the synergies of
the proposed project with existing business andatjpas of the Company. Subject to applicable lamesmay have to revise our
funding requirements, including increasing or dasieg expenditure for expansion programme on adaufum variety of factors.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to ula#tersuch capital expenditure within the cost inideby such quotations or
that there will not be cost escalations.

17. Our registered office and manufacturing facility hee been taken on lease basis. If we are unablectoemv these leases or
relocate on commercially suitable terms, it may leas material adverse effect on our business, resuf operation and
financial condition

Our manufacturing facility situated at 68AA, Noi8aecial Economic Zone, Noida—201305, Uttar Pradestia have been taken
on lease basis from Noida SEZ Authority Noida. Tglowve have entered into long-term lease agreenvéttisrespect to this

property, but such lease agreement may be terndiratey in the event of a default or upon the gxpirtheir tenure and may not
be renewed. For details, s&ur Business” on page 95 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectuso Athe registered office of the
company situated at 33, Pocket 1, Jasola Vihar, Reeands Colony, South Delhi-110025, New Delhi,itntlas been taken on
lease from Varsha B P Manwani. Additionally, thade agreements require our Company to comply véttain conditions

including prior consent of the lessor for certaiti@ns such as making significant structural atiers, subletting, transferring or
assigning the leased premises. If we fail to magtsach conditions, we may be required to incuitaadl liability or the lease

deed may be terminated by the lessor. Also, weestteg same premises of our registered office witlhh Group Companies
namely Sahasra Electronics Private Limited & Inf@po Technologies Private Limited. In case of argpdie, we may suffer a
disruption in our operations which could have awmease effect on our business and operations. Anfjipteior overlapping use

of the said facilities may create some disruptidrichh may affect our business operations.

18. Our Company has not yet placed orders for machimesriand equipment required by us for expansion ofrou
manufacturing facility. Any delay in placing the alers or supply of plant and machinery may result fime and cost
overruns, and may affect our profitability.

The object of the Issue for which the funds arengpeimised in the issue includes acquisition of nreies and equipment for
expansion of our manufacturing facility. Our Comypdmas identified the machineries to be acquired has received the
guotations from the suppliers, but we have notgiaiinal orders for the machineries and equipmegtegating t& 6,028.04

lakhs which are proposed to be acquired for ouaegipn plan by utilization of Issue Proceeds. OCom@any is further subject
to risks on account of inflation in the price oétplant and machinery. Since the part fundingtierglant and machinery is from
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the IPO proceeds, any delay in access to IPO pdsceeuld eventually delay the process of placirggdtders. The purchase of
machineries and equipments would require us toidengactors including but not limited to pricindelivery schedule and after-
sales maintenance. There may be a possibility lafyds the supplier’s end in providing timely deliy of these machineries and
equipment, which in turn may delay the implementatof our expansion plan. Further, the quotaticgled upon by us in
arriving at the total cost of machineries and emépt are valid for a specific period of time andyntepse after the expiry of the
specific period. Consequent upon which, there cbeld possible escalation in the cost of machisenel equipments proposed
to be acquired by us at the actual time of purch&seilting in increase in the project cost, whitéy result in cost overruns, and
may affect our profitability. For further detailsad sectiofiObjects of the Offer’beginning on page 66 of the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

19. We are planning to expand our operations at Plot Be3/1, Elcina Electronics Manufacturing Cluster,ridustrial Area
Salarpur, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar-301019, RajasthaiVe may face business or financial challenges whictay adversely
affect our profitability and results of operations.

We are currently expanding our manufacturing facilly setting up another manufacturing unit at Riot B-3/1, Elcina
Electronics Manufacturing Cluster, Industrial Agalarpur, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar-301019, Rajasthan vhich we have entered
into a lease with one of our promoter group Sah&deatronics Private Limited vide a lease agreenuziéd June 15, 2024
Although, the Promoters of our Company have expegen the industry, but we may face new businassfimancial challenges
including sales issues, marketing, production, opsimization etc. which may adversely affect owofipability and results of
operations. Also, the fund utilized for the ins#ithn of machinery will be financed from the isqureceeds of this initial public
offer, in case of any delay in raising funds frdme tnitial public offer will impact our expansiotgps or we might get delayed in
implementation of this expansion plan.

Further, the construction activities on the aborenpses are expected to be completed by July 34,20 case of any issue with
regards to the occupancy of the said premises webmaubject to search of any new premises foptbposed expansion which
may have an adverse effect on our business platisgpowth. Also, we will apply for all the registians and regulatory
approvals required for the said unit post the cetigh of construction activities, for details ofyigtrations and approvals refer
section“Objects of the Offer”beginning on page 66 of the Draft Red Herring Pectus. Any delay in construction activities or
receipt or non-receipt of such approvals, licensegistrations and permits could result in cost ame overrun or which could
affect our planned expansion and operations. Fuyrtive premises is located in Elcina Electronicsnifacturing Cluster,
Industrial Area Salarpur, Bhiwadi and the Lesse® raquired to fulfil certain conditions as per tieems entered with these
authorities. In the event we or the original lesae® unable to comply with the restrictions, oghts to use our unit may be
suspended or withdrawn, which may in turn adveraéflgct our business, financial condition, resofteperations and prospects.

20. If we are unable to manage our growth effectivelypdafurther expand into new markets our businesstdte financial
performance and results of operations could be mi@hy and adversely affected.

Our company have in the past grown from a reverit®2175.65 Lakhs in FY2022 to a revenue from openatitz 10115.27
lakhs in FY2024 representing a growth of 115.62B0 the PAT of the company has grown fr&r@50.17 Lakhs in FY2022 to a
PAT of % 3262.77 lakhs in FY2024 representing a growth@if.24%. The success of our business will dependuorability to
effectively implement our business and growth styst As part of our growth strategy, we aim to, agother things, continue
to grow our businesses as and when opportunitiest escluding reduce operating costs and improverational efficiencies,
increase our geographical reach and expand ouoroestbase etc. As we continue to grow our busiaagsexpand into newer
markets, we may face several challenges, includinget forth below:

acquiring new customers;

identifying customer requirements and preferencesich markets;

obtaining approvals and certifications for our pro in such jurisdictions;

making accurate assessments of the resources reaguiire;

preserving a uniform culture, values and work emwvinent;

developing and improving our internal administratimfrastructure, particularly our financial, opwaal, communications,
internal control and other internal systems;

recruiting, training and retaining sufficient skil management, technical and marketing personnel;

e maintaining high levels of customer satisfactiamg a

o adhering to expected performance and quality staisda

In pursuing our growth strategy, we will requireddibnal capital investments and cash outlays, Whitay have a material
impact on our cash flows and results of operati@hg. operating expenses and capital requiremenysincaease significantly
pursuant to our expansion plans. Our ability to agenour growth effectively requires us to fore@asturately our sales, growth
and manufacturing capacity and to expend fundsmprave our operational, financial and managemenmtrots, reporting
systems and procedures. Any inability to implenmnt future business plan, manage our growth effelstj further expand into
new markets or failure to secure the required fogdin favourable terms or at all could have a ntand adverse effect on our
business, future financial performance and residltperations
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21. We enjoy certain tax related & policy benefits imobusiness, which if withdrawn by the competenttharity may affect
our financial conditions & profitability.

Our company enjoy certain tax related and policydfi¢s which are applicable to us such as tax beonatler section 10AA of
Income Tax Act, the tax benefit is applicable focdhsecutive assessment years beginning from F¥2@2Further an amount
equal to fifty percent of the profit and gains sled from services is deductible for the next 5 gesnd another next 5 years,
further deduction would be available to the ex@inb0 percent of the profit provided condition éxis section 10AA should be
satisfied. The Company has its manufacturing unEZ Noida and accordingly, is eligible for therakaid deduction, earlier
we have also been entitled to subsidy under MER®m®e for undertaking capital expenditure any chargehese regulations or
applicable tax laws would materially affect our mgi®ns and growth prospects. For details of thpliegble key industry
regulations and policies please refer chaptertitiey Industry Regulations and Policiesbeginning on page 106 and chapter
titled “Statement of Possible Tax Benefitdieginning on page 84 of this Draft Red Herringspertus. We cannot predict the
current or future initiatives of the governmentsl arlevant authorities and there can be no asserdrat we will continue to
enjoy tax incentives. We may not be able to comyith the obligations and stipulations that woultbal us to avail ourselves of
such benefits or concessions, and consequentlynayelose such benefits and concessions. We areshggble for incentives
under the ‘Production Linked Incentive Scheme (Pol) IT Hardware and our subsidiary is eligible f@roduction Linked
Incentive Scheme (PLI) for electronic applicatioRsinted Circuit Boards (PCB); PCB Laminates, peggt photopolymer films;
PCB printing inks; System in Package (SIP); Assgmbesting Marking and Packaging (ATMP) units. ot assure you
that we will be granted these incentives withinsmeable time or at all. The reduction or terminaité our tax incentives, or non-
compliance with the conditions under which suchiteentives are made available, will increase awrliability and adversely
affect our business results of operations, cashsfland financial condition.

22. The manufacturing facility of the company is locateén NSEZ; thus our company is required to computgacomply with
certain restrictions imposed upon our company, iewail to comply with these terms such benefits nmay withdrawn
which may affect our financials and results of opaions.

Our company is currently availing the benefits parg to location of the manufacturing facility inSEZ; in order to
continuously avail these benefits, we are requicedxport goods of a defined amount. Below areddils of the export and
foreign transactions required to be undertakereashe LOA —

(in Z Lakhs)
Particular 2025 2026 2027 | 2028 2029
FOB value of Expo 1300C | 1380C | 14,50C | 1500C | 15,50C
Foreign exchange outgo for 5 ye 8,39C 8,80z 9,244 | 9,56t 9,88C
NFE earnings for 5 yee 4,61C 4,99¢ 5,25€ | 543t 5,62C

Further, the approvals received by us to develpprate and maintain the SEZs are subject to uflifgfcertain conditions such
as maintaining all licenses, approvals requiredeundrious laws for carrying on our business frdva SEZ premises. In the
event we are unable to comply with the restrictiansgler the laws governing SEZs in India, our rigltsise our unit may be
suspended or withdrawn, which may in turn adverséfigct our business, financial condition, resok®perations and prospects.
Any failure in meeting the obligations we may net dble to renew the LOA issued by NSEZ. Any redurctir withdrawal of
benefits or our inability to meet any of the coiatis prescribed under such schemes would adveedtdgt our business,
financial condition, to the extent of unfulfilledlgation along with interest.

23. Loans availed by our Company has been secured orsq®al guarantees of our directors. Our businessyancial
condition, results of operations, cash flows andogpects may be adversely affected in case of introcaf any personal
guarantees provided by our directors.

Our Promoter & Managing Director, Amrit Lal Manwamas provided personal guarantee to secure ais@mifportion of our
existing borrowings taken from the banks and maytinae to provide such guarantees and other sgqoit listing. In case of a
default under our loan agreements, any of the paisguarantees provided by the aforesaid may bekew which could
negatively impact their reputation and net wortfsoA we may face certain impediments in taking sieos in relation to our
Company, which in turn would result in a materidlarse effect on our financial condition, businessults of operations and
prospects and would negatively impact our reputatide may also not be successful in procuring radter guarantees/ alternate
security satisfactory to the lenders, as a resaly meed to repay outstanding amounts under sudlitiéscor seek additional
sources of capital, which could affect our finahcandition and cash flows. For further detailsaeting loans availed by our
Company, please refégtatement of Financial Indebtednessdn page 212 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

24. Fraud, theft, employee negligence or similar incitls may adversely affect our results of operatioasd financial
condition.

As on March 31, 2024 we had total inventory coirgisof raw material, WIP and finished goods to vakue of? 2108.21 Lakhs.

Our business operations require us to maintairelargounts of inventory at times. Our operations tgubject to incidents of
theft or damage to inventory in transit, prior toduring factory stocking and transportation. Alligh we have set up various
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security measures and follow stringent operatipnatesses but, there can be no assurance thatllweteéxperience any fraud,
theft, employee negligence, security lapse, logginsit or similar incidents in the future, whicbuld adversely affect our results
of operations and financial condition. Additionally case of losses due to fraud, theft or damagsexd by other casualties, there
can be no assurance that we will be able to redoeer our insurer the full amount of any such losa timely manner, or at all.
If we incur a significant inventory loss due torthparty or employee theft or misconduct and ifrslass exceeds the limits of, or
is subject to an exclusion from, coverage underipsurance policies, it could have a material as@esffect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

25. We do not make any provisions for decline in thduaof investments made by our Company. Any contina decline in
the value of investments made by our company mapdot our financial results and condition.

The value of Investment made by our company asafchi31, 2024 stood &t959.00 Lakhs which represents investment in the
equity shares of our Subsidiary company and oreiofjroup company. There have been no provisiorterbg the management
for fluctuation in the value of investments. Furthepart from the investment in share capital, @weehalso advanced a sumof
1125.00 lakhs in the form of loan and provided ooape guarantee in favour of our Subsidiary compd&nyr details of the
financial information of our Subsidiary companyeethaptefOur Subsidiary” beginning on page 123 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus. Any future loss or profit on the sdleéhe said investment will be included in the aatoonly when the said
investments are sold which may have a material ainpa our financial conditions and results of opieres of the company.

26. There are certain discrepancies/errors noticed ionge of our corporate records relating to forms filevith the Registrar
of Companies and other provisions of Companies A13. Any penalty or action taken by any regulatauthorities in
future, for non-compliance with provisions of corpate and other law could impact the reputation afidancial position
of the Company to that extent.

There are few discrepancies noticed in some ofcogporate records relating to e-forms filed witle fRegistrar of Companies,
which inter-alia includes clerical errors like: magnt of remuneration to Managing Director retrospety. Further, our
company had not complied with Accounting Standa8s15 and AS 18 in the past, however the same haea duly complied
by the company in the restated financial statemexitsough, no show cause notice in respect ofath@ve has been received by
the Company till date, any penalty imposed for smoh-compliance in future by any regulatory auttyodould affect our
financial conditions to that extent.

27. Our business is dependent on our manufacturing fétgi and we are subject to risks in relation to oumanufacturing
process, such as technology failures, cyber-attackecurity breaches or obsolescence, destructibeftf breakdowns of
our major plants or machineries or failures to repaor maintain the same could have a material adsereffect on our
business, results of operation or financial conditi.

Our business is dependent upon our ability to marag manufacturing facility, which are subjectvirious operating risks,

including those beyond our control, such as thelmewn and failure of equipment or industrial aecits and severe climate
conditions and natural disasters. Any significamtifomction or breakdown of our machinery may ensginificant repair and

maintenance costs and cause delays in our opesatfome are unable to repair breakdown of maclyineia timely manner or at
all, our operations may need to be suspended fiorited time until we procure new machinery to @ the same. In addition,
we may be required to carry out planned shutdowhn®u facilities for maintenance, statutory inspees and testing.

Obsolescence, destruction, theft or breakdownsuofneajor plants or machineries may significantlgréase our machineries
purchase cost and the depreciation of our plardsw@archineries, as well as change the way our mamagieestimates the useful
life of our plants and machineries. Further, sorhew major machineries or parts may be costlyefplace or repair. We may
experience significant price increases due to sugipbrtages, inflation, transportation difficultiesunavailability.

28. IT systems are critical to our ability to manage ooperations any disruption or shutdown of the samgay have an
adverse effect on our business operations.

Our IT systems enable us to coordinate our operstisom planning, production scheduling, raw matesrdering, invoicing,
delivery, customer relationship, management andsibec support. If we do not allocate and effecivatanage the resources
necessary to build and sustain the proper IT itduature, we could be subject to transaction errprecessing inefficiencies,
customer service disruptions and, in some instariass of customers. We face cyber threats, thiteatise physical security of
our facilities and employees, the potential foribess disruptions associated with IT failures, redtdisasters, or public health
crises. We have installed anti-virus software tevent our systems and infrastructure from beingatefd. If we are unable to
protect sensitive information, our customers coglebstion the adequacy of our threat mitigation datéction processes and
procedures. Due to the evolving nature of thesarggadhreats, the impact of any future incidentieat be predicted. Although
we have not experienced any significant disrupt@insur manufacturing facility in the past, but eannot assure you that there
will not be any disruptions in our operations ire tfuture. Our inability to effectively respond tack events and rectify any
disruption, in a timely manner and at an acceptabk, could lead to the slowdown or shut-down wf @perations for limited
time or under-utilization of our manufacturing filgi which in turn may have an adverse effect am business, results of
operations and financial condition.
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29. We operate in a highly competitive market, and ocmmpetitors may have larger resources which maywallthem to
compete more effectively than we can, which coutdult in a loss of our market share and a decre@seur net revenues
and profitability.

We operate in the ESDM industry, which is highlyngetitive. The industry is highly fragmented asr¢his competition from
various domestic and international players. We fawmapetition from both organized and unorganizeyis in the industry. We
face competition from some of the listed peersiaslased in the chaptéBasis for Offer Price” beginning on page 78 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus among others. The #jrésgjectory in the industry has encouraged netraets to enter into this
industry with new business models. In such highdynpetitive environment, to gain more market share anmpetitors may
reduce prices which is a challenge for the exisgitayers. We compete in various aspects, includsgy experience, breadth of
product and service offerings, product complexitinctionality and quality, sales and distributiGupply chain management,
among others. Intensified competition may resulpiiiting pressures and reduced profitability and/rimpede our ability to
achieve sustainable growth in our revenues or casde lose market share. Further, if our competittevelop and implement
methodologies that yield greater efficiency anddpiativity, they may be able to offer services antlons similar to ours at
lower prices without adversely affecting their rohargins. Even if our offerings address indusand customer needs, our
competitors may be more successful at selling theivices and solutions. Any of these events ceulastantially harm our
results of operations. We cannot assure you thawillde able to compete with them successfullyjalihcould have a material
adverse effect on our business operations anddialaconditions.

30. Our Subsidiary Company and some of our Group Compadrave incurred losses in past and any operatingses in the
future could adversely affect the results of opecats and financial conditions of our group company.

The details of profit and loss of our Subsidiarg &roup Company in past years are as follows: -

(in  Lakhs)
Particular For the year ended on
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Infopower Technologies Private Limit (355.28 31.64 42.0C
Megma RFID and Labels Private Limi 204.4: 305.9° (223.82
Sahasra Semiconductors Private Lim (104.96 (27.83 (16.12
Sahasra Electronics (Rwanda) Private Limited (imFRkhs' (1165.13 73.5¢ 448.5¢

Any operating losses could adversely affect theral@perations of the group and financial condifoand also divert the
attention of the management and promoter towarlgtbup company which could have an adverse effectur operations and
financials. For more information, regarding the Q@amy, please refer chapter titl@dur Group Companies”beginning on page
234 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

31. We deploy advanced technologies in the manufactgriof PCBA, Electronic items, LED lighting, etc. Anipcapability to
adopt a new technology or change in the requiremeft particular technology may affect our position

The manufacturing of PCBA, Electronic items, LEBHing, etc. is technically complex, time consumargl resource intensive
because of complex manufacturing process and stdboerence to customers specifications and reqgaittsn We constantly

upgrade our technical abilities to offer our clethe full range of products at lower cost and authcompromising on quality.

To use existing infrastructure to its maximum byiding major civil works, and provide cost effeaiand viable solutions,

meeting the norms at the same time. In the eveahypichange in any technology presently used, wiielare not able to provide
or we lack sufficient expertise in that technologyg will not be in a position to undertake such kvorders for lack of technical

qualification and our competitors may get an adzgetdue to our incapability which could have anease effect on our business
and revenue from operations.

32. Our Company is involved in certain legal proceedsgnd potential litigations. Any adverse decisionsuch proceedings
may render us/them liable to liabilities/penaltipsbsecutions and may adversely affect our busineswl results of
operations.

Our Company, Directors and Promoter, Group Comgaaiel Our Subsidiary company is currently involvecertain legal
proceedings. These legal proceedings are pendimiffatent levels of adjudication before variousuds and tribunals. The
summary of outstanding litigation in relation taneinal matters, direct tax matters, indirect taxttes, actions by regulatory/
statutory authorities and matters above the méitgriareshold against our Promoters and Directarge been set out below.

S. No. | Name of Entity Criminal Tax Material Civil | Aggregate amount
Proceedings| Proceedings | Litigations involved R in lakhs)
1. Company
By the Compan Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against the Compat Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. Directors & Promoters
By the Directors & Promote | 1 | Nil | Nil | 12.1¢
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S. No. | Name of Entity Criminal Tax Material Civil | Aggregate amount
Proceedings| Proceedings | Litigations involved R in lakhs)
Against the Directors & Promotse Nil Nil Nil Nil
3. Subsidiary Company
By the Compan Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against the Compat Nil Nil Nil Nil
4. Group Companies (Material to our Company)
By theGroup Compaies Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against theGroup Compaies Nil 2 1 746.5:

Amount mentioned to the extent quantifiable. Thewamhmay be subject to additional interest/othearges being levied by the
concerned authorities which are unascertainabl@aslate of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. Rattier details, please refer
to the chapter titledOutstanding Litigations and Material Developmentgin page 223 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Decisions in any of the aforesaid proceedings advey our interests may have a material adversetafh our business, results
of operations, financial condition and prospectshé courts or tribunals rule against us or oum@any, our Directors and
Promoter, we may face monetary and/or reputatitossles and may have to make provisions in our éiadistatements, which
could increase our expenses and our liabilities.

33. Our manufacturing activities require deployment débour and depend on availability of skilled laboutn case of
unavailability of such skilled labour, our businessperations could be affected.

Our manufacturing operations require deployment and ability to retain skilled labour. In case sueour workforce is
unavailable, or we are unable to identify and resich skilled labour our business could be adixersiected. We cannot
guarantee that we may be able to continue withsdmme on favourable terms or at all. Any such failaray impact the
operations, business process and profitability. idalthlly, there have been amendments in the lalamgr Employment related
laws, which may have a direct impact on our emptogests and consequently, on our margins. Furthgst amendments in
labour laws in India may be lead to increasing afstompliance, wages, social security, Occupati@efety, Health and
Working Conditions. We cannot assure you that wik eeintinue to comply with all these labour relatesvs and that as we
continue to grow our business in the future, obola and employee costs coupled with operating tiamges and expenses will
not significantly increase.

34. We have in the past entered into related party tsantions and may continue to do so in the futurenéfe can be no
assurance that such transactions, individually on the aggregate, will not have an adverse effect amwr Company’s
financial condition and results of operations.

Our Company has entered into various transactidtts aur directors, promoters, promoter group anougrcompanies. These
transactions, inter-alia includes sales, purchasesyneration, loans and advances, purchase, satté€xpenses, reimbursement
of expenses etc. For details, please reféNtiie Y-Related Party Transactionstinder Section titletiFinancial Information of
the Company”and Chapter titledCapital Structure” beginning on page 168 and 57 respectively of biaft Red Herring
Prospectus. Our Company has entered into suchattmss due to easy proximity and quick executidithough all related-
party transactions that we may enter into in thariare subject to approval by our Audit Committ8eard or shareholders, as
required under the Companies Act, we cannot asgate that such future transactions or any other réuttransactions,
individually or in aggregate, will not have an atkee effect on our financial condition and result®perations or that we could
not have achieved more favourable terms if sualstetions are not entered into with related parkasthermore, it is likely that
we may enter into related party transactions irftiere. Any future transactions with our relatedtes could potentially involve
conflicts of interest. Accordingly, there can beassurance that such transactions, individualiy ¢éhe aggregate, will not have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarmgabition, cash flows, results of operations araspects.

35. Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to pbtes against all potential losses to which we nisysubject and this
may have a material effect on our business and ficéal condition.

Our insurance policies include vehicle insuranceyive Cargo Insurance, Bharat Laghu Udyam SuraRsltiay for our Plant,
Machinery, Stock, Furniture and Building and Burgldnsurance Policy, which we believe are commésciappropriate.
However, we have not insured ourselves for Key rgarial person insurance, employee compensatioménsa, group personal
accident, group medical insurance, product ligbititaims insurance and Cash in Transit insuranaave¥er, for unforeseen
circumstances, we may not have sufficient insuracmeerage to cover all possible economic lossedyding when the loss
suffered is not easily quantifiable. Even if we dawade a claim under an existing insurance poligy,may not be able to
successfully assert our claim for any liabilityloss under such insurance policy. Further, the @mphas not taken the public
liability policy as the company is involved in hagdaus work. Additionally, there may be variousesthisks and losses for which
we are not insured either because such risks ameumable or not insurable on commercially acceptédrms. The occurrence of
an event for which we are not adequately or sw@ffity insured could have an adverse effect on asginess, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows. Father details of our Insurance Policies, pleester section titled'Our
Business”beginning on page 95 of this Draft Red Herringdpectus.
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36. We do not own the trademark/ logo which we are wugsifor our business purpose. The trademark/ logo kdveen taken
from our promoter pursuant to a no objection ceitiite from the promoter.

We currently do not own the trademark/logo 1! iolwhwe are currently using for our business purpd$ere might be
insufficient protection for our intellectual properights, potentially leading to significant neigatimpact on our business and
results of operations. As on the date of this DiReftl Herring Prospectus, we do not own any regdteademarks, the trademark
which we are using for our business purpose haea lb@ken vide an no objection certificate datedilA28, 2024 from our
Promoter. We cannot assure you that our promotémai withdraw the NOC provided to our companyrther, our promoter
group also use the same trademark/logo for thesiness purpose. In case of any conflict with ownprter/promoter group
entities our promoter may withdraw the NOC providedur company, we will not be able to use the s@demark/logo which
will render our intellectual property rights inadexe or if we otherwise fail to sufficiently protebese intellectual property, our
business, financial condition and results of openatcould be adversely affected.

37. We are dependent on third party transportation piders for the delivery of our raw materials, compemts and finished
products. Accordingly, continuing increases in traportation costs or unavailability of transportaticservices for them, as
well the extent and reliability of Indian infrastrature may have an adverse effect on our businegsricial condition,
results of operations and prospects

We use third party transportation providers fordeévery of our raw material, components and fieid products. Transportation
strikes if happen could have an adverse effectvaradl industry and accordingly may affect-our iiptef raw materials and
components and our ability to deliver our produot®ur customers. In addition, transportation casthdia have been steadily
increasing over the past several years. Continimaggases in transportation costs or unavailabilftyransportation services for
our products may have an additional cost escalatfdontinuing increases in transportation costs oavailability of
transportation services for our products may havadverse effect on our business, financial comdlitresults of operations and
prospects. In addition, India’s physical infrasture is less developed than that of many developgidns, and problems with its
road networks, electricity grid, communication gyst or any other public facility could disrupt awrmal business activity,
including our supply of raw materials and the datwof our products to customers by third-partys@ortation providers. Any
deterioration of India’s physical infrastructure widd harm the national economy, disrupt the transpion of goods and supplies,
and add costs to doing business in India. Thesklgmts could interrupt our business operations, Wwigiould have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations anahfital condition. We are subject to the risk ofrgases in freight costs. If we
cannot fully offset any increases in freight cosfspugh increases in the prices for our produets,would experience lower
margins, which in turn may adversely affect ouribess, financial condition and results of operagion

38. We are exposed to foreign currency fluctuation rigkwhich may affect our results of operations.

Our business involves import and export transastiwith foreign companies, which is paid or receivedJS Dollars or other
foreign currencies. A depreciation of Rupee agathsise foreign currencies would mean that our itsperould become
expensive and will impact our gross margins. Durihg fiscal year 2023-24, fiscal year 2022-23 &disyear 2021-22 the
imports accounted for approximatef 5380.37 lakhsT 3677.23 lakhs &% 1201.41 lakhs respectively. Similarly, any
appreciation of Rupee against these foreign cuieengould adversely affect the export value of prgducts. During the fiscal
year 2023-24, fiscal year 2022-23 & fiscal year 2@2 the exports accounted for approximatel$503.97 lakhsz 6803.39
lakhs & ¥ 2038.30 lakhs respectively. The exchange rate dmiwthe Rupee and these foreign currencies hatidhec
substantially in recent years and may continuductdate significantly in the future. The foreigrchange gain/(loss) during the
fiscal year 2023-24, fiscal year 2022-23 & fiscaly 2021-22 accounted f@r125.45 lakhsg 128.30 lakhs & 31.31 lakhs
respectively. Though, we have made foreign curregaiy in last 3 financial years but in case of &ogses we will have to bear
the complete risk of currency exchange rate fluabna.

39. Under-utilization of our manufacturing capacities ay have an adverse effect on our business, futurespects and future
financial performance. Moreover, information relatig to capacity utilization of our production facties included in this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus is based on certainsasiptions and has been subjected to rounding offidafuture
production and capacity utilization may vary.

Our capacity utilization is affected by the availi#y of raw materials, industry and market condlits as well as by the product
requirements of, and the procurement practice iahb by, our customers. For the FY 2023-24, FY 202Znd FY 2021-22 our
capacity utilization of manufacturing facility abMa SEZ was 55.00%, 42.06% and 30.20% respectilretyre event that we are
unable to achieve full capacity utilization of aczurrent manufacturing facilities, this would resintoperational inefficiencies
which may have an adverse effect on our busingsandial condition, cash flows, future prospects doture financial
performance. For further details in relation to capacity utilization, se&Our Business” on page 95 of the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus. Under-utilization of our manufacturgapacities over extended periods, or significarttewrutilization in the short
term, could adversely impact our business, growttsgects and future financial performance. In ocafseversupply in the
industry or lack of demand, we may not be able tibtze our capacity efficiently. Further informatiorelating to capacity
utilization of our production facilities included this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is based omuarassumptions and estimates
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of our management, assumptions relating to avéitlal@ind quality of raw materials and assumptioakting to operational

efficiencies. Actual production levels and utilipet rates may differ significantly from the estimdtproduction capacities or
historical estimated capacity utilization of oucifgies. Undue reliance should therefore not becpt on our capacity utilization
information for our existing facilities included this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. For furtheoinfation, see the section titled
“Our Business” on page 95 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

40. While our Company will receive proceeds from theelsh Issue, it will not receive any proceeds frone tBffer for Sale
portion, and the Selling Shareholders, shall be ket to the Offer Proceeds to the extent of theuityy Shares offered by
them in the Offer for Sale.

In addition to the Fresh Issue component from whiechCompany will receive proceeds, the Offer idelsl an Offer for Sale by
the Selling Shareholder. The Selling Shareholddlr neceive the entire proceeds from the Offer faleS(after deducting the
applicable Offer Expenses) and our Company will reaeive any part of such proceeds from the OfferSale. The proceeds
from the transfer of the Offered Shares, shall &gl po the Selling Shareholder. Certain membersusfPromoter Group are,
therefore, interested in the Offer in connectiothwheir respective portion of the Offered Shafes: more information, see
“Objects of the Offer’on page 66 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

41. Our Company may not be successful in penetratingwnexport markets.

Expansion into new export markets subjects us tmwa challenges, including those relating to @aklof familiarity with the
culture and economic conditions of these new regitanguage barriers, difficulties in staffing anenaging such operations and
the lack of reputation in such regions. In additidine risks involved in entering new geographic kets and expanding
operations, may be higher than expected, and we fagy significant competition in such markets. Bgpanding into new
geographical regions, we could be subject to amfuhdi risks associated with establishing and condgatperations, including
compliance with a wide range of laws, regulationd aractices; exposure to other government actiand;political, economic
and social instability.

42. We are dependent on our promoters and senior mamaget and other key personnel, and the loss of, ar mability to
attract or retain, such persons could affect our $iness, results of operations, financial conditiamd cash flows.

Our performance depends largely on the effortsadnilities of our Promoters and Directors Amrit Manwani, Varun Manwani
& Arunima Manwani and other key personnel. Theyengained experience in this line of business ane loaer the years-built
relations with suppliers, customers, regulators @her persons who are connected with us and hese &ctively involved in the
day-to-day operations and management. Further Vievbehat the inputs and experience of our semanagement, in particular,
and other key personnel are valuable for produgtld@ment activities, procurement of raw materialsgcessful delivery of
products and our overall business operations ofGampany. For details in relation to the experieateur key management
personnel, seéOur Management” on page 125 of this Draft Red Herring ProspectWye cannot assure you that these
individuals or any other member of our senior mamagnt team will not leave us or join a competitothat we will be able to
retain such personnel or find adequate replacenieatsimely manner, or at all. We may require reglgeriod of time to hire and
train replacement personnel when qualified persitienminate their employment with our Company. Waynalso be required to
increase our levels of employee compensation magiglly than in the past to remain competitive imaating employees that our
business requires. The loss of the services of pecbons may have an effect on our business, sestibbperations, financial
condition and cash flows.

43. Our contingent liabilities as stated in our Restdt&inancial Statements could affect our financiabadition.

Our Contingent liabilities as on March 31, 2024 @®14463.81 Lakhs. If these contingent liabilities evatlize, fully or partly,
the financial condition of our Company could besatéd.

(Zin Lakhs)
As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | February 21, 2023 | March 31, 2022
(Company) (Proprietor)
Contingent liabilities in respect
Claims  against the company not 714 714 i )
acknowledged as deb
Guarantees given on Behalf of the Comg 3250.0( - - -
Other commitmen 1206.6° - - -
Total 4,463.81 7.14 - -

For more information, regarding our contingent ilitibs, please refetNote ZE” in chapter titledFinancial Information of the
Company”beginningon page 174 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
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44. Our lenders have charge over our immovable and miglegproperties in respect of finance availed by us.

We have secured our lenders by creating a chargemw movable and immovable properties in respédinancial facilities
availed by us from Citi Bank Limited. We have besttended such loan against hypothecation of ourg@mryis property and
current assets. For further information on therfgiag and loan agreements along with the total artsoautstanding and the
details of the financial facilities, please referchapter‘Statement of Financial Indebtednessbeginning on page 212 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

45. The Objects of the Issue for which funds are beimgised, are based on our management estimates aadehnot been
appraised by any bank or financial institution omg independent agency. The deployment of funds Wél entirely at our
discretion, based on the parameters as mentionethschapter titled “Objects of the Issue”.

The fund requirement and deployment, as mentionethé “Objects of the Issue”on page 66 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus is based on the estimates of our mamsgeand has not been appraised by any bank ordigainstitution or any
other independent agency. These fund requiremeatdased on our current business plan. We cansateashat the current
business plan will be implemented in its entiretyaball. In view of the highly competitive and dymic nature of our business,
we may have to revise our business plan from tisménte and consequently these fund requirements. deéployment of the
funds as stated under chapt@bjects of the Issue”is at the discretion of our Board of Directors anil be subject to
monitoring by an external independent agency apedifior the purpose. Further, we cannot assure theatactual costs or
schedule of implementation as stated under chéPtaiects of the Issue’will not vary from the estimated costs or schechfle
implementation. Any such variance may be on accafimne or more factors, some of which may be bdyouar control.
Occurrence of any such event may delay our busipless and/or may have an adverse bearing on qeced revenues and
earnings.

46. Any variation in the utilization of the Net Procesdas disclosed in this Draft Red Herring Prospecslsall be subject to
certain compliance requirements, including prior gapoval of the shareholders of our Company.

We propose to utilize the Net Proceeds towardssimvent in our subsidiary, Funding Capital Experéitiwowards installation of
additional plant and machinery for Expansion, temeorking capital requirements and general coteoparposes. For further
details of the proposed objects of the Issue;Gegects of the Issue’beginning on page 66 of this Draft Red Herringspeztus.
However, these objects of the Issue have not beppramed by any bank, financial institution or otlfredependent agency.
Further, we cannot determine with any certaintyéf would require the Net Proceeds to meet any akeenditure or fund any
exigencies arising out of the competitive environméusiness conditions, economic conditions oeoflactors beyond our
control. In accordance with the Companies Act, 2848 the SEBI ICDR Regulations, we cannot undergaievariation in the
utilization of the Net Proceeds as disclosed ia Diiaft Red Herring Prospectus without obtaining dpproval of shareholders of
our Company through a special resolution. In thenéwf any such circumstances that require us ttp thee disclosed utilization
of the Net Proceeds, we may not be able to obterapproval of the shareholders of our Companytimealy manner, or at all.
Any delay or inability in obtaining such approvdl the shareholders of our Company may adverselgcafbur business or
operations. Further, our Promoters would be requioeprovide an exit opportunity to the sharehaddefrour Company who do
not agree with our proposal to modify the objedtshe Issue, at a price and manner as prescribe8EBl. Additionally, the
requirement to provide an exit opportunity to swibsenting shareholders of our Company may deterPoamoters from
agreeing to the variation of the proposed utilzatdf the Net Proceeds, even if such variatiom ihe interest of our Company.
Further, we cannot assure you that the Promotdrhaile adequate resources at their disposal dinsdis to enable them to
provide an exit opportunity. In light of these farst, we may not be able to vary the objects ofl$isee to use any unutilized
proceeds of the Issue, if any, even if such vamiais in the interest of our Company. This mayrietsbur Company’s ability to
respond to any change in our business or finamagatition, if any, which may adversely affect oursiness and results of
operations.

47. Industry information included in this Draft Red Haing Prospectus has been derived from industry stes. There can be
no assurance that such third-party statistical, éincial and other industry information is completegliable or accurate.

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus includes infoiorabn Industry in which we operate from variousses. For further details,
please seélndustry Overview” beginning on page 87 of this Draft Red Herringsdpextus. The data has been furnished by
independent agency on their websites and has atioreship with our Company, its Promoters, Direstar the Book Running
Lead Manager as on the date of this Draft Red HgrArospectus. The data used in these sources awaybleen reclassified by
us for the purposes of presentation and may alsd@a@omparable. Industry sources and publicatgereerally state that the
information contained therein has been obtainednfraources generally believed to be reliable, buatt their accuracy,
completeness and underlying assumptions are natagieed and their reliability cannot be assuredlustry sources and
publications are also prepared based on informa#nf specific dates and may no longer be cuweméflect current trends.
Industry sources and publications may also bage itifermation on estimates, projections, forecastd assumptions that may
prove to be incorrect. Accordingly, investors miedy on their independent examination of, and sthadt place undue reliance
on, or base their investment decision solely os itifiormation. The recipient should not construg ainthe contents in this report
as advice relating to business, financial, legatation or investment matters and are advised tsudb their own business,
financial, legal, taxation, and other advisors @ning the transaction.
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48. We have not identified any alternate source of fung and hence any failure or delay on our part toahilize the required
resources or any shortfall in the Issue proceedsyrtielay the implementation schedule.

The proposed fund requirement as detailed in tbgosetitled “Objects of the Issue’is to be funded from the proceeds of this
Issue. We have not identified any alternate soofdending and hence any failure or delay on out pmmobilize the required
resources or any shortfall in the Issue proceedg deday the implementation schedule. We therefoamnot assure that we
would be able to execute our future plans/strategiiin the given timeframe. For details, pleaseereb the Chapter titled
“Objects of the Offer"beginning on page 66 of this Draft Red Herringspextus.

49. Any Penalty or demand raised by statutory authagiin future will affect financial position of th&€€ompany.

Our Company is engaged in the manufacturing busjivessich attracts tax liability such as Goods aadviBe tax and Income tax
as per the applicable provisions of Law. We are alsbject to the labour laws like depositing of tcitions with Provident
Fund, Employee State Insurance and ProfessionalAraxdemand or penalty raised by the concernelaaity in future for any
previous year and current year will have an add#idiability. For instance, our company in the tplaad delayed filing of GST
Returns due to operational reasons and accordpaity/late fees and penalties on the same. Any deémapenalty raised by the
concerned GST authority for such late filing mafeetf the financial position of the company.

50. Our ability to pay any dividends will depend upouttdire earnings, financial condition, cash flows andorking capital
requirements.

We may retain all our future earnings, if any, @me in the operations and expansion of our busifess result, we may not
declare dividends in the foreseeable future. Aryridetermination as to the declaration and paymwiedividends will be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and will dedeon factors that our Board of Directors deem ratetyincluding among
others, our results of operations, financial cdodijtcash requirements, business prospects andthay financing arrangements.
Accordingly, realization of a gain on shareholdergestments may largely depend upon the appreniatfothe price of our
Equity Shares. There can be no assurance thatquityEShares will appreciate in value. For detafl®ur Dividend history refer
to the SectioriDividend Policy” on page 141 of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

51. Excessive dependence on Citi Bank in respect of héecilities obtained by our Company.

Our company has been sanctioned financial fadglitig Citi Bank. The Company is dependent on sucliitias and any default
under such arrangement with such lender may creaiglem for operation of the Company, which mayeetffthe financial
stability of the Company. At the same time this magult into difficulty in arranging for funds foe-payment and may also
adversely affect the financial position of the Camyp.

Further, we have entered into agreements for agadebt facilities from lenders. Our financing agaments contain restrictive
covenants whereby we are required to obtain appfova our lenders, regarding, among other thingshsas major changes in
share capital, management, changes in fixed assetjon of any other charge, undertake any gteeaobligation etc. Certain

covenants in these agreements require us to oapgiroval/permission from our lenders in certaindibons. There can be no

assurance that such consents will be granted omtbavill be able to comply with the financial coxants under our financing

arrangements. In the event of default or the bredatertain covenants, our lender has the optiomake the entire outstanding
amount payable immediately. There can be no assatiwat we will be able to comply with these finahor other covenants or

that we will be able to obtain consents necessatsite the actions that we believe are requirezp&rate and grow our business.
For further details in this regard, please refechiapter titled'Statement of Financial Indebtednessbeginning on page 212 of

this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

52. The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares tmyyr Promoters & selling shareholder may be lowdran the Issue
price of the Equity Share in the proposed IPO.

The average cost of acquisition of Equity SharesusfPromoters & selling shareholder may be lowentthe Issue price of the
Equity Share in the proposed IPO. For further detaigarding the average cost of acquisition ofiggbhares by our Promoters
in our Company and build-up of Equity Shares of Busmoters in our Company, please see section ti@apital Structure”
beginning on page 57 of this Draft Red Herring peasus.

53. Our Promoters and the Promoter Group will jointlyoatinue to retain majority shareholding in our Congmy after the
issue, which will allow them to determine the outne of the matters requiring the approval of shardtiers.

Our promoters along with the promoter group wilhttoue to hold collectivelydq] % of the post issue paid up share capital of the
company. As a result of the same, they will be &blexercise significant influence over the conttbthe outcome of the matter
that requires approval of the majority sharehokletdte. Such a concentration of the ownership msy have the effect of
delaying, preventing or deterring any change indbwtrol of our company. In addition to the abowe;, promoters and promoter
group will continue to have the ability to takeians that are not in, or may conflict with our irgst or the interest of some or all
of our minority shareholders and there is no asmgdhat such action will not have any adverseceffa our future financials or
results of operations.
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54. We may require further equity issuance, which widlad to dilution of equity and may affect the matiqerice of our Equity
Shares or additional funds through incurring debbtsatisfy our capital needs, which we may not béeaio procure and
any future equity offerings by us.

We may need to raise additional capital from timéirme, dependent on business conditions. The rfathat would require us to
raise additional capital could be business growdlyobd what the current balance sheet can sustdiditianal capital
requirements imposed due to changes in regulatgime or significant depletion in our existing d¢apbase due to unusual
operating losses. Any fresh issue of shares orextible securities would dilute existing holderadasuch issuance may not be
done at terms and conditions, which are favourablbe then existing shareholders of our Compaingut Company decides to
raise additional funds through the incurrence ditdeur interest obligations will increase, and mvay be subject to additional
covenants, which could further limit our ability &@cess cash flows from our operations. Such fingsacould cause our debt -
equity ratio to increase or require us to creatr@bs or liens on our assets in favour of lendafes.cannot assure you that we
will be able to secure adequate financing in thiirion acceptable terms, in time, or at all. Qailufe to obtain sufficient
financing could result in the delay or abandonnmedrdgur expansion plans. Our business and futungteesf operations may be
affected if we are unable to implement our expamsimategy. Any future issuance of Equity SharesinyCompany may dilute
shareholding of investors in our Company; and heftaect the trading price of our Company’s Equityages and its ability to
raise capital through an issue of its securitiasaddition, any perception by investors that sissuances or sales might occur
could also affect the trading price of our Companktuity Shares. Additionally, the disposal, pledgencumbrance of Equity
Shares by any of our Company’s major shareholderthe perception that such transactions may os@ay affect the trading
price of the Equity Shares. No assurance may bengdiltat our Company will not issue Equity Sharethat such shareholders
will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Eg@hares in the future.

55. The Issue price of our Equity Shares may not beiirative of the market price of our Equity Sharestef the Issue and the
market price of our Equity Shares may decline beltive issue price and you may not be able to sellnfquity Shares at
or above the Issue Price.

The issue price of the equity shares has been lmasathny factors and may not be indicative of treket price of our Equity
Shares after the Issue. For further informatiormgderefer the section titl¢Basis for Offer Price” beginning on page 78 of the
Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The market pricewftquity Shares could be subject to significanttliations after the Issue in
case of unfavourable situation it, and may dedtialow the Issue Price. We cannot assure you thatwib be able to sell your
Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price.

56. QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders are not permittieto withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of quéty of Equity
Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after sultinij a Bid and Retail Individual Investors are ngpbermitted to
withdraw their Bids after Bid/Offer Closing Date.

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and-hatitutional Bidders are not permitted to witharar lower their Bids (in

terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amuat any stage after submitting a Bid. Retail Widiial Bidders can revise
their Bids during the Bid/Offer Period and withdréweir Bids until Bid/Offer Closing Date. While ware required to complete
Allotment, listing and commencement of trading jpiarst to the Issue within three (3) Working Daysarirthe Bid/ Issue Closing
Date, events affecting the Bidders’ decision toestvin our Equity Shares, including adverse chaingégernational or national
monetary policy, financial, political or economioralitions, our business, results of operationd) dlasvs and financial condition
may arise between the date of submission of theaBd Allotment, listing and commencement of tradfe may complete the
Allotment, listing and commencement of trading af &quity Shares even if such events occur and suehts may limit the
Bidders’ ability to sell our Equity Shares Allottguirsuant to the Issue or may cause the tradiree f our Equity Shares to
decline on listing.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

57. Financial instability in both Indian and internatiomal financial markets could adversely affect ourgelts of operations
and financial condition.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are initeel by economic and market conditions in othemtdes, including
conditions in the United States, Europe and ceeaierging economies in Asia. Financial turmoil isigd Russia and elsewhere
in the world in recent years has adversely affethedindian economy. Any worldwide financial instiay may cause increased
volatility in the Indian financial markets and, elitly or indirectly, adversely affect the Indianoeomy and us. Although
economic conditions vary across markets, loss wéstor confidence in one emerging economy may cawseased volatility
across other economies, including India. Finariogthbility in other parts of the world could haaglobal influence and thereby
negatively affect the Indian economy. Financiatulions could materially and adversely affect business prospects, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flowsthar, economic developments globally can havegaifs&tant impact on our
principal markets. Concerns related to a trade between large economies may lead to increasedavisfsion and volatility in
global capital markets and consequently have amdtngn the Indian economy and could result in #gopesf sustained instability
across global financial markets, induce volatililycommodity prices, increase borrowing costs, eamstflow of capital from
emerging markets and may lead to overall slowdoweconomic activity in India.
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58. If certain labour laws become applicable to us, gurofitability may be adversely affected.

India has stringent labour legislations that prbtee interests of workers, including legislatidratt sets forth detailed procedures
for dispute resolution and employee removal andsleton that imposes certain financial obligatioms employers upon
retrenchment. Any change or modification in thesg®g labour laws may affect our flexibility in fowulating labour related
policies.

59. A slowdown in economic growth in India may adverngedffect our business, financial condition, cashofis, results of
operations and prospects.

The performance and growth of our business aressadéy dependent on economic conditions prevatehtdia, which may be

materially and adversely affected by centre oresfatlitical instability or regional conflicts, a mgral rise in interest rates,
inflation, and economic slowdown elsewhere in thaldror otherwise. There have been periods of stwwdin the economic

growth of India. India’s economic growth is affedtley various factors including domestic consumpton savings, balance of
trade movements, namely export demand and moverirekey imports (oil and oil products), global eocomic uncertainty and

liquidity crisis, volatility in exchange currencgtes and annual rainfall which affects agricultymadduction. Any continued or
future slowdown in the Indian economy or a furthmarease in inflation could have a material advexf§ect on the price of our
raw materials and demand for our products and,rasudt, on our business and financial results. [kdén financial market and
the Indian economy are influenced by economic amagket conditions in other countries, particulamy@merging market in

Asian countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europlee U.S. and elsewhere in the world in recentyéas affected the Indian
economy. Although economic conditions are differieneach country, investors’ reactions to developt®ién one country can
have adverse effects on the securities of companiegher countries, including India. A loss in @stor confidence in the
financial systems of other emerging markets maysedncreased volatility in Indian financial marketsd, indirectly, in the

Indian economy in general. Any worldwide finandiadtability, including the financial crisis and fltwations in the stock markets
in China and further deterioration of credit comatis in the U.S. or European markets, could alse fzanegative impact on the
Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occurirmgad could harm our business and financial result

60. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal umtnties in India, including adverse applicationfatax laws and
regulations, may adversely affect our business dimé&ncial performance.

Our business and financial performance could beem#ly affected by changes in law or interpretatiof existing, or the
promulgation of new, laws, rules and regulationgnisia applicable to us and our business. For &urtetails please refer to the
chapter‘Government and Other Approvalsbn page 226 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectusdétails of the laws currently
applicable to us. The governmental and regulat@gids in India and other jurisdictions where we rape may notify new
regulations and/or policies, which may require abtain approvals and licenses from the governraedt other regulatory
bodies, or impose onerous requirements and condita our operations, in addition to those whichaneeundertaking currently.
Any such changes and the related uncertaintiesrefipect to the implementation of new regulatioay tmave a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, reswf operations and cash flows. In addition, unfaable changes in or
interpretations of existing, or the promulgationnaw, laws, rules and regulations including foreiigmestment laws governing
our business, operations and investments in ourgaagnby non-residents, could result in us beingragkto be in contravention
of such laws and/or may require us to apply foritamlthl approvals. Tax and other levies imposedtly central and state
governments in India that affect our tax liabilinclude central and state taxes and other lewegne tax, turnover tax, goods
and services tax, stamp duty and other speciattamd surcharges which are introduced on a temporgrermanent basis from
time to time. The final determination of our taaMilities involves the interpretation of local thaws and related regulations in
each jurisdiction as well as the significant useestimates and assumptions regarding the scopgwkfoperations and results
achieved and the timing and nature of income eaamedexpenditures incurred. Moreover, any chandadian tax laws could
have an effect on our operations. Uncertainty ia aipplicability, interpretation or implementatioh any amendment to, or
change in, governing law, regulation or policy,liing by reason of an absence, or a limited boflgdministrative or judicial
precedent may be time consuming as well as costlju$ to resolve and may impact the viability of aurrent business or
restrict our ability to grow our business in théufe.

61. Natural calamities could have a negative impact tire Indian economy and cause Our Company’s busin&ssuffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such dbaqekes, tsunami, floods etc. In recent yearsgettient and severity of these
natural disasters determine their impact on théaméconomy. Prolonged spells of abnormal rairdalbther natural calamities
could have a negative impact on the Indian econamiych could adversely affect our business, prospdmancial condition
and results of operations as well as the prick®Bquity Shares.

62. Government regulation of foreign ownership of Indiasecurities may have an adverse effect on the @rid the Equity
Shares. Foreign ownership of Indian securities islgect to government regulation.

Under foreign exchange regulations currently ireetffin India, transfer of shares between non-ressdand residents are freely
permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if theynply with the pricing guidelines and reporting uggments specified by the
RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are soughbéotransferred, is not in compliance with sucleipg guidelines or reporting
requirements or fall under any of the exceptionferred to above, then the prior approval of the R8Il be required.
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Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert tingees proceeds from the sale of shares in Indiaforeign currency and
repatriate that foreign currency from India wilbrére a no objection/ tax clearance certificaterfrihe Income Tax authorities.
There can be no assurance that any approval reluine the RBI or any other government agency caplitained.

63. Our performance is linked to the stability of polés and the political situation in India.

The Government of India has traditionally exercjsaud continues to exercise, a significant inflieenoger many aspects of the
economy. Our business, and the market price anddity of our Equity Shares, may be affected byiast rates, changes in
government policy, taxation, social and civil unirasd other political, economic or other developtaén or affecting India. Any
political instability in India may adversely affettte Indian securities markets in general, whichld@lso adversely affect the
trading price of our Equity Shares. Any politicakiability could delay the reform of the Indian eomy and could have a
material adverse effect on the market for our BgBitares. There can be no assurance to the ingabtarthese liberalization
policies will continue under the newly elected goweent. Protests against privatization could sloswid the pace of
liberalization and deregulation. The rate of ecoitotiberalization could change, and specific lawsd gpolicies affecting
companies in the ESDM sectors, foreign investmentrency exchange rates and other matters affectwgstment in our
securities could change as well. A significant ein India’'s economic liberalization and deregolatpolicies could disrupt
business and economic conditions in India and byeaéfect our business
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SECTION IV — INTRODUCTION

THE OFFER

PRESENT OFFER IN TERMS OF THIS DR

AFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS

Offer of Equity Shares by our Company?®

Offer of upto 65,78,000 Equity Shares3f0 each for cash at a price Yfe]
(including a Share premium &fe] per Equity Share) per share aggregating
[e] Lakhs

Consisting of:

Fresh Issue

Upto 60,78,000 Equity ShareZldf each for cash at a price ¥#®] (including
a Share premium <[e] per Equity Share) per share aggregaz[e] lakhs.

Offer for Sale

Offer for sale by existing sharetelupto 5,00,000 equity sharestaD each at
a price 0Z[e] per equity share aggregatingZ[e] lakhs.

The offer consists of

Market Maker Reservation Portion

Upto [e] Equity Shares 010 each for cash at a price3j#®] (including a Share
premium ofZ[e] per Equity Share) per share aggregating[«j Lakhs

Net Offer to the Public

Upto [e] Equity Shares 0¥10 each for cash at a price¥®] (including a Share
premium of[e] per Equity Share) per share aggregating#j Lakhs

Out of which*

A. QIB Portion®®

Not more than 4] Equity Shares oR 10 each for cash at a price fe]
(including a Share premium &fe] per Equity Share) per share aggregating
Z[e] Lakhs

Of which

i)  Anchor Investor Portion

Upto [e] Equity Shares 0¥10 each for cash at a price¥®] (including a Share
premium of[e] per Equity Share) per share aggregating#j Lakhs

i) Net
Investor Portion is fully subscribe

QIB Portion (assuming Anchor

Upto [e] Equity Shares of 10 each for cash at a price ¥fe] (including a
Share premium [ e] per Equity Share) per share aggregating[#j Lakhs

Of which

(a) Available for allocation to Mutual Fund
only (5% of the Net QIB Portio

sUpto [e] Equity Shares 010 each for cash at a price3j#] (including a Share
premium ofZ[e] per Equity Share) per share aggregating[ & Lakhs

(b) Balance of QIB Portion for all QIB
including Mutial Fund:

5 Upto [e] Equity Shares 010 each for cash at a price¥®] (including a Share
premium of[e] per Equity Share) per share aggregating#j Lakhs

B. Non-Institutional Portion

Not less tham][Equity Shares 0¥10 each for cash at a price¥j®] (including
a Share premium [ e] per Equity Share) per share aggregating fe] Lakhs

C. Retail Portion

Not less thae] Equity Shares o¥10 each for cash at a price3j®] (including
a Share premium [e] per Equity Share) per share aggregating[#d Lakhs

Pre and Post- Offer Equity Shares

Equity Shares outstanding prior to the
Offer

1,89,14,763 Equity Shares of face valu&td each.

Equity Shares outstanding after the Offe

Upto[e] Equity Shares of face valiz10 ecch.

Use of Net Proceeds by our Company

Please see the chapter titl&bjects of the Offer”on page66 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectu

*Number of shares may need to be adjusted forizetspon determination of Offer price.

Notes:

1) The Offer is being made in terms of Chapter IXtef SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended fioma to time. This
Offer is being made by our company in terms of Ratipn of 229(2) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations readtiwiRule
19(2)(b)(i) of SCRR wherein not less than 25% & Bost — Offer paid up equity share capital of @mpany are being

offered to the public for subscription.

2)

The Offer has been authorized by the Board of Darscvide a resolution passed at its meeting heldpril 09, 2024 and

[=]

to

by the Shareholder of our Company, vide a speeisblution passed pursuant to Section 62(1)(c) @QGbmpanies Act,

2013 at the Extra Ordinary General Me

eting heldviay 13, 2024.

The Selling Shareholder have consented to parteipathe Offer for Sale in the following manner:

Name of the Selling
Shareholder

Type

Authorization
Letter dated

No. of Equity
Shares held

No of Equity Shares offered
by way of Offer for Sale

% of the pre-Offer paid-
up Equity Share capital

Promoter Selling Shareholder

Amrit Lal Manwan | Promoter | April 08, 202¢ |

1,79,64,70 | 5,00,00( | 2.64%
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3)

4)

The Selling Shareholder has confirmed that the dsihares proposed to be offered and sold in thHer@fe eligible in
term of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and that theye not been prohibited from dealings in seasitharket and the
Equity Shares offered and sold are free from agry, lencumbrance or third-party rights. The SelBfgreholder has also
confirmed that he is the legal and beneficial owrarthe Equity Shares being offered by him untber@®ffer for Sale.

The SEBI (ICDR) Regulations permit the Offer of seiies to the public through the Book Building Pegs, which states
that, not less than 15% of the Net Offer shall bailable for allocation on a proportionate basifNtm-Institutional Bidders
and not less than 35% of the Net Offer shall belabi for allocation on a proportionate basis &tdd Individual Bidders
and not more than 50% of the Net Offer shall betetl on a proportionate basis to QIBs, subjectaiid Bids being
received at or above the Offer Price. Accordinglg, have allocated the Net Offer i.e. not more th@% of the Net Offer to
QIB and not less than 35% of the Net Offer shalbbailable for allocation to Retail Individual Irsters and not less than
15% of the Net Offer shall be available for alléoatto Non-institutional bidders.

Subject to valid Bids being received at or abowe @ffer Price, under subscription, if any, in amgegory, except in the
QIB Portion, would be allowed to be met with spiller from any other category or combination of gatees of Bidders at
the discretion of our Company in consultation wilie Book Running Lead Managers and the Designatetk &xchange,
subject to applicable laws.

Our Company and Selling Shareholder, in consuhatiith the Book Running Lead Manager, allocate a®% of the QIB
Portion to Anchor Investors on a discretionary ®asiaccordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. -@mel of the Anchor
Investor Portion shall be reserved for domesticluEunds, subject to valid Bids being receivednfldomestic Mutual Funds at
or above the Anchor Investor Allocation Price. e tevent of under-subscription in the Anchor Ineeftortion, the remaining
Equity Shares shall be added to the QIB Portionthien, 5% of the Net QIB Portion shall be availabbe allocation on a
proportionate basis to Mutual Funds only, and tamainder of the QIB Portion shall be available &dlocation on a
proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders (other tlarchor Investors), including Mutual Funds, subjecvalid Bids being received
at or above the Offer Price. However, if the aggteglemand from Mutual Funds is less than 5% ofN&eQIB Portion, the
balance Equity Shares available for allotment & BMutual Fund Portion will be added to the Net (RBrtion and allocated
proportionately to the QIB Bidders (other than Aochnvestors) in proportion to their Bids. For tuet details, please refer
section titled'Offer Procedure” beginning on page 258 of this Draft Red Herringspectus.
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SUMMARY OF OUR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNEXURE - |

RESTATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Zin Lakhs

As at the year ended

PARTICULARS March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' Funds
(& Share Capiti 1,891.4¢ 1,796.9!
(b) Reserves & Surpl 4,140.2: 230.5¢
(c) Share Application Mone -
Total 6,031.69 2,027.50
2. Non-Current Liabilities
(& Long Term Borrowing - -
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Ne - -
(d) Long Term Provisior 35.9¢ 26.11
Total 35.96 26.11
3. Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowincg 2,171.8! 689.8¢
(b) Trade Payablt - -
Due to Micro and small enterprise 220.9¢ 386.5!
Due to Other 1,535.2¢ 905.7¢
(c) Other Current Liabilitie 680.9¢ 640.8¢
(d) Short Term Provisior 127.6: 143.6:
Total 4,736.71 2,766.62
Total 10,804.36 4,820.23
B) ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
(& Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible A
i) | Property, Plant and Equipm: 1,336.5! 1,136.1¢
i) | Intangible Asse 1.6C -
i) | Capital Work in progre: - -
(b) Non-Current Investme 959.0( 659.0(
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Nt 18.2¢ 13.8¢
(d) Long Term Loans and Advanc 134.0¢ -
(e) Other Nor-Current Asse 485.9; 22.8(
Total 2,935.46 1,831.82
2. Current Assets
(& Trade Receivabli 2,656.6! 1,764.7:
(b) Cash and Cash equivalel 1,710.0¢ 316.6(
(c) Inventorie: 2,108.2; 801.6¢
(d) Shor-Term Loans and Advanc 1,357.0¢ 60.0¢t
(e) Other Current Asse 36.8¢ 45.3¢
Total 7,868.90 2988.43
Total 10,804.36 4,820.23
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ANNEXURE - 1l

RESTATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(Zin Lakhs)
For the year ended on
PRRITIGUARE March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Revenue From operatic 10,115.2 1,043.1(
2 | Other Incom 163.5: 20.81
3 Total Revenue 10,278.79 1,063.91
4 | Expenses
(a) | Cost of Material Consum: 5,523.5: 989.38
(b) | Purchase of Stock in tra - -
(c) | Change of Inventories of Work in progress and Fiai$ good (213.19 (268.73
(d) | Employee Benefit Expens 886.2: 52.51]
(e) | Finance Cos 107.8¢ 8.57
(f) | Depreciation and Amortisation Expen 203.3: 19.4¢
(g) | Other Expenst 351.2¢ 23.3-
5 Total Expenses 6,859.00 824.53
6 | Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional & Extraordinary items & Tax (3-5) 3,419.7! 239.3¢
7 | Exceptional iter -
8 | Profit/(Loss) Before Extraordinary items & Tax (6-7) 3,419.79 239.38
9 | Prior Period Expens - -
1C | Extraordinary item - -
11 | Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (8-9-10) 3,419.79 239.38
12 | Tax Expense:
(a) | Current Tax 597.5! 39.9¢
(b) | Deferred Ta» (4.39 (13.85
(c) | Previous year Te - -
(d) | MAT Credit entitlement (436.10 (17.27
(e) | Prior period expens - -
(f) | Excess/ short provision written back/ - -
Total 157.02 8.83
13 | Profit/(Loss) for the Year 3,262.77 230.55
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ANNEXURE-III

RESTATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Zin Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended on

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities :

Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit &Loss

3,419.7! 239.3¢
Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortizaticExpense! 203.3: 19.4¢
Finance Cos 107.8¢ 8.57
Interest Incom: (27.64 (3.92
Loss on sales of Asse 0.2¢ -
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,703.64 263.51
Changes in Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receiva (891.95 (50.17
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventc (1,306.52 55.6(
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans & Adval (1,297.04 110.7%
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Cur Asset: (13.85 (22.98
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Paya 463.9: 55.3(
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabili 40.0¢ 238.0¢
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions (18.70 (467.59)
Cash generated from operations 679.62 182.56
Less- Income Taxes paid 584.9¢ -
Net cash flow from operating activities A 94.66 1856
B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets including of CW (485.18 (13.53
Sale of propert 79.27 -
Loans& Advances iver/ repaymer (134.08 87.6¢
Investmenmade/ sold during the peri (300.00 -
(Increase)/Decrease Non- Curren Asset: (26.80 (5.53
Interest Incomt 27.6¢ 3.92
Net cash flow from investing activities B (839.15) 72.52
C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities :
Proceeds from Issue of Share Cag 1,931.8: 0.51
Dividend Paic (1,168.02 -
Borrowings taken/ repaid during the pel 1,482.0! (108.76
Finance Cos (107.88 (8.57
Net cash flow from financing activitie C 2,137.96 (116.82)
Net Increase/(Ccrease) In Cash & Cash Equivale (A+B+C) 1,39347 13827
Cash equivalents at the beginning of the 316.6( 178.3:
Cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,710.08 316.60
Notes:- (Zin Lakhs)

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Component of Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash on han

0.6¢ 1.11
Balance With bank 609.4( 18466
Fixed Deposit: 1,100.0¢ 130.8:
Total 1,710.08 316.60
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Brief Summary:

GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated as Limited Comparthénname of “Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limitaedtier the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 vide Certificate of Ippmration dated February 22, 2023 issued by Regisfr Companies, Central

Registration Centre bearing Corporate Identity Nemb26202DL2023PLC410521. At the time of incorpmmatour company

has took over the running business of proprietprsbincern of the promoter Amrit Lal Manwani, namklfs Sahasra Electronic
Solutions along with the assets and liabilitieshef proprietorship concern as going concern.

Amrit Lal Manwani, Arunima Manwani, Varun Manwaniarsha B P Manwani, Akshay Manwani, Narayan Beltss® Pintu
Naskar were the initial subscribers to the Memouamaf Association of our Company.

For further details, please refer to chapter titlétistory and Corporate Structure’beginning on page 119 of this Draft Red

Herring Prospectus.

Registered Office

Sahasra Electronic Solutionkimited
33, Pocket 1, Jasola Vihar New Friends Colony, 5@élhi-110025, New Delhi, India.
Tel. No.: +91-120-4202604
Email: contact@seslimited.in
Website www.seslimited.in
CIN: U26202DL2023PLC410521
Registration No.: 41052

Corporate  Office/
Manufacturing Unit

Sahasra Electronic Solutiond.imited

68-AA Noida Special Economic Zone, Nepz Post Offiéautam Buddha Nagar, Noida-201305, U
Pradesh, India.

Tel. No.: +91-120-4202604

Email: contact@seslimited.in

Website www.seslimited.in

CIN: U26202DL2023PLC410521

Registration No.: 41052

Address of the RoC

Registrar of Companies, Delhi
4" Floor, IFCI Tower 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi 11®0Ihdia.

Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors of our Company as on the @é&filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectusisists of:

Name of Directors Designation Address DIN

Amrit Lal Manwan | Chairman & Managing Direct | 33, Pocket |, JasolSouthDelhi-11002! India. 0092020!
Arunima Manwar | Executive Directc 33, Jasola, Pocket SouthDelhi-110025, Indi. 0699614
Varun Manwar Non-Executive Directo 33, Jasola, Pocket SouthDelhi-110025, Indi. 0092173!
Abhilasha Gaur Independent Director Flat No,30ck S2 Raheja Society, Sector -3107607862

Sadar Bazi, Gurgaor122001, Haryana, Inc.

Pradeep Kumar Independent Director 93, Anupamarthgents B-13 Vasundharfa00505518

Enclave, Delhi Eas-110096, Indic

»
o a %WN!‘g

Udayan Mukerji Independent Director C-12, Chierclave, Near Nehru Place, Greatdd3636654

Kailast-1, South Dell-110048, Indi

tar

For further details in relation to our directorsegse refer to chapter titl€@ur Management” on page 125 of this Draft Red

Herring Prospectus.

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Maneesh Tiwari Neha Tahir
Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

68-AA Noida Special Economic Zone, Nepz Post Office | 68-AA Noida Special Economic Zone, Nepz Post Offidautam
Gautam Buddha Nagar, Noida-201305, Uttar Pradeslia.| | Buddha Nagar, Noida-201305, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Tel. No.: +91-120-4202604 Tel. No.: +91-120-4202604
Email: maneesh@sahasraelectronics.com Email: cs@sahasraelectronics.com
Website www.seslimited.in Website www.seslimited.in
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Investor Grievances:

Investors can contact the Company Secretary and Copfiance Officer, the BRLM or the Registrar to the Offer in case of
any pre-Offer or post-Offer related problems, suchas non-receipt of letters of Allotment, noncredit & Allotted Equity
Shares in the respective beneficiary account, noreceipt of refund orders and non-receipt of funds blectronic mode.

All grievances relating to the Offer other than thechor Investors may be addressed to the Registriére Offer with a copy to
the relevant Designated Intermediary with whom A8BA Form was submitted. The Bidders should givi details such as
name of the sole or first Bidder, ASBA Form numi&dder DP ID, Client ID, PAN, date of the ASBA oy details of UPI IDs
(if applicable), address of the Bidder, number afuiy Shares applied for and the name and addréskeoDesignated
Intermediary where the ASBA Form was submittedi®yASBA Bidder.

Further, the investors shall also enclose the Askedgment Slip from the Designated Intermediariesaddition to the
documents/information mentioned hereinabove.

All grievances relating to the Anchor Investors niieyaddressed to the BRLM, giving full details sasmame of the sole or first
Bidder, bid-cum-application form number, Bidders MmP, Client ID, PAN, date of the Anchor Investor pligation Form,
address of the Bidder, number of Equity Sharesiegfibr, Bid Amount paid on submission of the Anchavestor Application
Form.

For all Offer related queries and for redressalahplaints, investors may also write to the Bookiing Lead Manager.

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Ofer and our Company:

Book Running Lead Manager to the Offer Legal Advisor to the Offer

Hem Securities Limited Mindspright Legal
Address 904, A Wing, Naman Midtown, Senapati Bapakddress: 712-714, C-Wing, Trade World, Kamla City, Senapati
Marg, Elphinstone Road, Lower Parel, Mumbai-40001Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai-400013, Mabhtra,

Maharashtra, India. India

Tel No.:+91-22-4906 0000 Contact Person:Richa Bhansali
Email: ib@hemsecurities.com Tel No.: +91-022- 42197000
Investor Grievance Email: redressal@hemsecurities.com | Email: ipo@mindspright.co.in
Websitewww.hemsecurities.com Website: https://mindspright.co.in

Contact Person Sourabh Garg
SEBI Reg. No.:INM00001098:

Registrar to the Offer Statutory Auditor

Bigshare Services Private Limited M/s. Kapoor Tandon & Co.
Address: S6-2, &' Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next|t€hartered Accountants,
Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (Ea#tpidress D-104, 10th Floor, Himalaya Hous@3, Kasturba

Mumbai-400093, Maharashtra India. Gandhi MargNew Delhi-110001, India.
Tel No.:+91 22 6263 8200 Tel No.: +91-512-2361244
Fax No.:+91 22 6263 8299 Email: devendra_mathur@yahoo.co.in
Email: ipo@bigshareonline.com Firm Registration No.: 000952C
Investor Grievance Email: investor@bigshareonline.com | Membership No: 082570
Contact Person Vinayak Morbale Contact Person Devendra S. Mathur
Website www.bigshareonline.com Peer Review Certificate N0.016174
SEBI Reg. No: INR00000138

Bankers to our Company Monitoring Agency*
Citi Bank N.A.

Address: 9" Floor, DLF Square, M Block, Jacaranda Malg,
DLF City, Phase Il, Gurgaon-122002
Tel: +91-88263-87261 [e]
Email: japnit.walia@citi.com
Website: www.citi.com

Contact Person:Japnit Walii

Bankers to the Offer/ Refund Banker/Sponsor Bank* Syndicate Member*

[e] [e]

*The Monitoring Agency, Banker to the Offer (SporBamk)and Syndicate Member shall be appointed priorltodiof the Red
Herring Prospectus/ Prospectus with the RegistfaCompanies.
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Designated Intermediaries:
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks (SCSB's)
The list of banks that have been notified by SEB&tt as SCSBs for the ASBA process is providethenwebsite of the SEBI

(https://lwww.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherActiavRdoRecognised=yesand updated from time to time. For details on
Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Bid-éyplication Forms, refer to the above-mentione®5link.

Further, as notified by SEBI vide its circular 8EBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 201Be applications

through UPI in IPOs can be made only through th&BsZ mobile applications whose name appears orSHRI website

www.sebi.gov.inat the following path: Home> Intermediaries/Market Infrastructure Institutio®s Recognized intermediaries
> Self- Certified Syndicate Banks eligible as IssBanks for UPI.

Investor shall ensure that when applying in IPQhggUPI, the name of his Bank appears in the lisB66Bs displayed on the
SEBI website which are live on UPI. Further, he/shall also ensure that the name of the app and®idandle being used for
making the application is also appearing in theexfaid list.

Syndicate SCSB Branches

In relation to ASBA Bids submitted to a member oé Syndicate, the list of branches of the SCSBheaSpecified Locations
named by the respective SCSBs to receive depddtel@um Application Forms from the members of Byndicate is available
on the website of the SEBILtp://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherActiom?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=2&d updated
from time to time. For more information on suchraaes collecting Bid-cum-Application Forms from tBgndicate at Specified
Locations, refer to the above-mentioned SEBI link.

Registered Brokers

Bidders can submit Bid cum Application Forms in @ier using the stock brokers network of the StBgkhanges, i.e., through
the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres. Bh@fl the Registered Brokers eligible to accepBASorms, including details
such as postal address, telephone number and eatdless, is provided on the website of the SEBI at
(https://Iwww.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherActiasRdoRecognised=yggespectively, as updated from time to time.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

The list of the Registrar to Offer and Share Trangigents (RTASs) eligible to accept Bid cum Apptioas forms at the
Designated RTA Locations, including details such afdress, telephone number and e-mail address,prandded at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherActiaz?zdoRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=1@s updated from time to time.

Collecting Depository Participants (CDP’s)

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept ASBA Foratshe Designated CDP Locations, including deailsh as name and contact
details, is provided on the websites of SEBI latps://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherActiavRdoRecognised=ygsas
updated from time to time.

Brokers to the Offer

All members of the recognized stock exchanges wbaldligible to act as Brokers to the Offer.

Experts Opinion

Except as stated below, our Company has not olut@ing expert opinions:

Except for the reports in the sectititatement of Special Tax Benefits*Financial Information of the Company” “Statement
of Financial Indebtedness”’on page 84, 142 and 212 respectively of this DREt Herring Prospectus from the Statutory
Auditor, our Company has not obtained any expemiops. We have received written consent from ttegu$ory Auditor for
inclusion of their name in this Draft Red HerringpBpectus, and such consent has not been withdaawn the date of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus. However, the téarpert” shall not be construed to mean ‘@xpert” as defined under the U.S.
Securities Act, 1933.

Inter-se Allocation of Responsibilities

Since, Hem Securities Limited is the sole Book RuogniLead Manager to this Offer, a statement ofrirge allocation of

responsibilities among Book Running Lead Managewoisapplicable.
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Appraisal and Monitoring Agency

As per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, appointmedntnonitoring agency is required only if Issue sezeeeds 10,000 Lakh.
As the size of the Issue exceetlsl0,000 Lakh, our Company has appointel s the Monitoring Agency to monitor the
utilisation of the Net Proceeds, in accordance \Ridgulation 262 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Fetadls in relation to the
proposed utilisation of the Net Proceeds, ‘€@gjects of the Offer"on page 66 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Green Shoe Option

No Green Shoe Option is applicable for this Offer.

Credit Rating

As this is an Offer of Equity Shares, there is redd rating for the Offer.

IPO Grading

Since the Offer is being made in terms of Chapteoflthe SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 there israquirement of appointing
an IPO Grading agency.

Debenture Trustees
As this is an Offer of Equity Shares, the appoinitraf Debenture trustees is not required.
Filing of Draft Offer Documents/ Offer Documents wth the Designated Stock Exchange/ SEBI/ ROC

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus is being filedhvitational Stock Exchange of India Limited, ExcharRjaza, C-1, Block-G,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400084harashtra, India.

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus will not be filwdh SEBI, nor will SEBI issue any observation dre tDraft Red Herring
Prospectus in terms of Regulation 246(2) of SEBIOR) Regulations, 2018. Pursuant to Regulation 246¢ SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018 and SEBI Circular Number SEBI/EED/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 dated January 19, 2018p0pycof Red
Herring Prospectus/ Prospectus will be filed ontime@ugh SEBI Intermediary Portal lattps://siportal.sebi.gov.in

A copy of the Red Herring Prospectus along withriegerial contracts and documents required tolbd finder Section 32 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and a copy of the Prospeotbe filed under Section 26 of the Companies 2813 would be filed
with the RoC at its office and through the elecicquortal athttp://www.mca.gov.in

Book Building Process

Book Building, with reference to the Offer, reféosthe process of collection of Bids on the ba$ithe Red Herring Prospectus
within the Price Band. The Price Band shall be mieiteed by our Company and the Selling Sharehold@onsultation with the
Book Running Lead Manager in accordance with thekBBuilding Process, and advertised in in all editi of the English
national newspaper], all editions of Hindi national nhewspapes][and Delhi Edition of Regional newspapaf jwhere our
registered office is situated at least two workitays prior to the Bid/ Offer Opening date. The ©ffeice shall be determined by
our Company and the Selling Shareholder, in coagait with the Book Running Lead Manager in accomgawith the Book
Building Process after the Bid/ Offer Closing Daeincipal parties involved in the Book Buildingdeess are:-

e  Our Company;

e The Book Running Lead Manager in this case being Securities Limited,

e The Syndicate Member(s) who are intermediariessteggd with SEBI/ registered as brokers with Natlddtock Exchange
of India Limited and eligible to act as UnderwrgielThe Syndicate Member(s) will be appointed byBbek Running Lead
Manager;

e The Registrar to the Offer and,;

e The Designated Intermediaries and Sponsor bank

The SEBI (ICDR) Regulations have permitted the Offesecurities to the public through the Book Birly Process, wherein
allocation to the public shall be made as per Ragn 253 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The Offer is being made through the Book Buildimgdess wherein not more than 50% of the Net Otfiatl e available for
allocation on a proportionate basis to QIBs, predidhat our Company and the Selling Shareholdecpimsultation with the
BRLM allocate upto 60% of the QIB Portion to AncHarestors on a discretionary basis in accordanite the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations (the Anchor Investor Portion”), out of which one third shall be reserved fomdsstic Mutual Funds, subject to
valid Bids being received from domestic Mutual Fsirad or above the Anchor Investor Offer Price. 5%he QIB Portion shall
be available for allocation on a proportionate ®asiMutual Funds only, and the remainder of thB Qbrtion shall be available
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for allocation on a proportionate basis to all @BRIders, including Mutual Funds, subject to vali@i8being received at or
above the Offer Price. Further, not less than 15%eNet Offer shall be available for allocatiom @ proportionate basis to Non-
Institutional Bidders and not less than 35% of Met Offer shall be available for allocation to Retadividual Bidders, in
accordance with the SEBI Regulations, subject twl\Bids being received at or above the Offer Prisk potential Bidders may
participate in the Offer through an ASBA processbgviding details of their respective bank accowhich will be blocked by
the SCSBs. All Bidders are mandatorily requiredititize the ASBA process to participate in the @ffgnder-subscription if
any, in any category, except in the QIB Categorguld be allowed to be met with spill over from aother category or a
combination of categories at the discretion of Gompany and the Selling Shareholder in consultatith the BRLM and the
Designated Stock Exchange.

All Bidders, except Anchor Investors, are mandatoty required to use the ASBA process for participatig in the Offer. In
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs biding in the QIB Portion and Non-Institutional Bidders bidding in
the Non-Institutional Portion are not allowed to wthdraw or lower the size of their Bids (in terms ofthe quantity of the
Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage. RethIndividual Bidders can revise their Bids during the Bid/Offer
Period and withdraw their Bids until the Bid/Offer Closing Date. Further, Anchor Investors cannot witldraw their Bids
after the Anchor Investor Bid/Offer Period. Allocation to the Anchor Investors will be on a discretioary basis.

Subject to valid Bids being received at or abowe @ifer Price, allocation to all categories in et Offer, shall be made on a
proportionate basis, except for Retail Portion whatotment to each Retail Individual Bidders shadit be less than the
minimum bid lot, subject to availability of Equifhares in Retail Portion, and the remaining aveal&guity Shares, if any, shall
be allotted on a proportionate basis. Under — gifitgmn, if any, in any category, would be allowtxbe met with spill — over
from any other category or a combination of categgoit the discretion of our Company and the Sgll8hareholder in
consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager #ml Stock Exchange. However, under-subscriptibany, in the QIB
Portion will not be allowed to be met with spillenfrom other categories or a combination of catiego

In terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/D15 dated November 10, 2015 and the SEBI (Is$@@apital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, alirliestors (except Anchor Investors) applying jpublic Offer shall use only
Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) pess for application providing details of the backaunt which will be
blocked by the Self Certified Syndicate Banks (S€SBor the same. Further, pursuant to SEBI CircuMo.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November @018, Retail Individual Investors applying in publdffer may use
either Application Supported by Blocked Amount (A&Bfacility for making application or also can ut#l as a payment
mechanism with Application Supported by Blocked Ambfor making application. For details in this aeds, specific attention
are invited to the chapter titlé®ffer Procedure” beginning on page 258 of the Draft Red Herringspeatus.

The process of Book Building under the SEBI ICDRg®ations is subject to change from time to time #me investors are
advised to make their own judgment about investriteough this process prior to making a Bid or aation in the Offer.

For further details on the method and procedureBfdding, please see section entitl&dffer Procedure” on page 258 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

lllustration of the Book Building and Price Discovey Process:

For an illustration of the Book Building Processdatine price discovery process, please refer toctiapter titled“Offer
Procedure”on page 258 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Bid/ Offer Program:

Event Indicative Dates
Bid/ Offer Opening Dal [e] W

Bid/ Offer Closing Dite [e] @
Finalization of Basis of Allotment with the Desigad Stock Exchan¢(T+1) On or abou[e]
Initiation of Allotment/ Refunds/ Unblocking of Fda from ASBA Account or UPI ID On or about ¢]
linked bank accou (T+2)

Credit of Equity Shares Demat accounts of Allotte (T+2) On or abou[e]
Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares orsthek Exchanc (T+3) On or aboufe]

@ Qur Company in consultation with the Book Runnim@d Manager may consider participation by Anchovestors in
accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Theh&n Investor BidOffer Period shall be one Working Day prior to tRl/

Offer Opening Date in accordance with the SEBI (RjRegulations.

(2) Our Company and the Selling Shareholder, insottation with the BRLM, may decide to close th#/@ifer Period for QIBs
one Working Day prior to the Bid/Offer Closing Daite accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

The above timetable is indicative and does not titoies any obligation on our Company or the BooknRing Lead Manager.
Whilst our Company shall ensure that all steps tteg completion of the necessary formalities for tleting and the
commencement of trading of the Equity Shares orSthek Exchange are taken within 3 Working DaythefBid/ Offer Closing
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Date, the timetable may change due to various fecsnich as extension of the Bid/ Offer Period by ©@ompany, revision of the
Price Band or any delays in receiving the findidig and trading approval from the Stock Exchanffgee Commencement of
trading of the Equity Shares will be entirely at tfiscretion of the Stock Exchange and in accorgarith the applicable laws.

Bid Cum Application Forms and any revisions to saene will be accepted only between 10.00 A.M. @®3.M. (IST) during
the Offer Period (except for the Bid/ Offer Closibgte). On the Bid/ Offer Closing Date, the Bid CAplication Forms will be
accepted only between 10.00 A.M. to 3.00 P.M. (I®F)etail and non-retail Bidders. The time fopgpng for Retail Individual
Bidder on Bid/Offer Closing Date maybe extendedamsultation with the BRLM, RTA and NSE taking irdocount the total
number of applications received up to the clostititngs.

Due to the limitation of time available for uploadithe Bid Cum Application Forms on the Bid/Offdo§ing Date, Bidders are
advised to submit their applications one (1) daprpto the Bid/ Offer Closing Date and, in any caset later than 3.00 P.M.
(IST) on the Bid/ Offer Closing Date. Any time miemted in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is IBiiders are cautioned that,
in the event a large number of Bid Cum Applicatitorms are received on the Bid/Offer Closing Daseisaypically experienced
in public Offer, some Bid Cum Application Forms magt get uploaded due to the lack of sufficienteinfuch Bid Cum
Application Forms that cannot be uploaded will hetconsidered for allocation under this Offer. Apgions will be accepted
only on Working Days, i.e., Monday to Friday (exailhg any public holidays). Neither our Company tiee BRLM is liable for
any failure in uploading the Bid Cum Applicationrfts due to faults in any software/hardware systeotlrerwise.

In accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, QIBsl &on-Institutional Bidders are not allowed to withw or lower the size
of their Application (in terms of the quantity dieg Equity Shares or the Application amount) at amage. Retail Individual
Bidders can revise or withdraw their Bid Cum Apption Forms prior to the Bid/Offer Closing Date.lgdation to Retall
Individual Bidders, in this Offer will be on a progionate basis.

In case of discrepancy in the data entered in légnetrenic book vis-a-vis the data contained inphgsical Bid Cum Application

Form, for a particular Bidder, the details as per file received from Stock Exchange may be takeitha final data for the

purpose of Allotment. In case of discrepancy inda& entered in the electronic book vis-a-visdag contained in the physical
or electronic Bid Cum Application Form, for a pattiar ASBA Bidder, the Registrar to the Offer stedk the relevant SCSBs/
RTAs / DPs / stock brokers, as the case may behéorectified data.

Underwriting

The Company and the Book Running Lead Manageraddtfier hereby confirm that the Offer will be 10Q%aderwritten by the
Underwriter @] in the capacity of Underwriter to the Offer.

Pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreendated p] entered into by Company, Underwriter, the obiigias of the
Underwriter are subject to certain conditions sj@titherein. The Details of the Underwriting conmménts are as under:

No. of shares | Amount Underwritten % of Total Offer

Dzl aiilie N underwritten (Z in Lakhs) Size Underwritten

[e] [e] [] [e]

*Includes [#] Equity Shares of the Market Maker Reservationti®arwhich are to be subscribed by the Market Make} in its
own account in order to claim compliance with tleguirements of Regulation 261 of the SEBI (ICDRjuRgions, 2018, as
amended.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of our Queny, the resources of the above-mentioned Undemaire sufficient to
enable them to discharge their respective obligatio full.

Change in Auditors during the last three (3) years

Except as stated below, there have been no chamges Company’s auditors in the last three (3)rgea

Details of Statutory Auditor Date of Change Reason
Jain Pramod Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants, Due to Merger of firm with P.K. Gaur &

Address: F-591, Sarita Vlhar, New Delhi — 110076, Delhi November 30 Associates vide Merger Agreement
Tel. No.: +91-120-41401901 2023 ' | dated December 01, 2023. Further, the
Email Id.: jainpjco@gmall.com name of the firm has been changed tp P
Contact Person:Pramod Kumar Jain KM B & Co.
Firm Reg. No.: 016746
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Details of Statutory Auditor

Date of Change

Reason

PKMB & Co.

Chartered Accountants,

Address: Suite#4G, Uppal's M6 Plaza, Jasola District Cen
Delhi- 110025, New Delhi

Tel. No.: +91-9910103832

Email Id.: jainpjco@gmall.com

Contact Person:Pramod Kumar Jain

Firm Reg. No.:005311D

tre
December 20,
2023

PKMB & Co.

Chartered Accountants,

Address: Suite#4G, Uppal's M6 Plaza, Jasola District Cen
Delhi- 110025, New Delhi

Tel. No.: +91-9910103832

Email Id.: jainpjco@gmall.com

Contact Person:Pramod Kumar Jain

Firm Reg. No.: 005311}

tre
April 25, 2024

Resignation due to professional
preoccupation.

Kapoor Tandon & Co.

Chartered Accountants.

Address: D-104, 10th Floor, Himalaya Hous23, Kasturba
Gandhi MargNew Delhi-110001, India

Tel No.: +91-512-2361244

Email: devendra_mathur@yahoo.co.in

Contact Person Devendra S. Mathur

Firm Reg. No.: 000952C

Peer Review Certificate N0.01617-

May 13, 2024

Appointment of Auditor in Casual
Vacancy

Details of the Market Making arrangement for this Offer

Our Company has entered into a Market Making Ageseirdated ¢] with the following Market Maker for fulfilling te Market

Making obligations under this Offer:

Name [o]
Correspondence Address: [o]
Tel No.: [e]
E-mail: [e]
Website: [e]
Contact Person: [o]
SEBI Registration No.: [o]
Market Maker Registration No. [o]

The Market Maker shall fulfill the applicable okdiions and conditions as specified in the SEBI IOR&ulations, as amended

from time to time and the circulars issued by N&H 8EBI in this matter from time to time.

Following is a summary of the key details pertainig to the Market making arrangement:

>

The Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) shdble required to provide a 2-way quote for 75% &f fime in a day. The
same shall be monitored by the stock exchangehé&urthe Market Maker(s) shall inform the exchamgadvance for each
and every black out period when the quotes ardeiog offered by the Market Maker(s).

The prices quoted by Market Maker shall be in caamgle with the Market Maker Spread Requirementsather particulars
as specified or as per the requirements of the (8 platform of NSE) and SEBI from time to time.

The minimum depth of the quote shall #k00,000/-. However, the investors with holdingsvalue less thag 1,00,000/-
shall be allowed to offer their holding to the MariMaker(s) (individually or jointly) in that scriprovided that he sells his
entire holding in that scrip in one lot along witldeclaration to the effect to the selling broker.

The Market Maker shall not sell in lots less thaa minimum contract size allowed for trading on $ME platform of NSE
(in this case currently the minimum trading lotesiz [®] equity shares; however, the same may be changed by the SME
platform of NSE from time to time).

After a period of three (3) months from the manketking period, the Market Maker would be exemptegrovide quote if
the Shares of Market Maker in our company reach@5% of Offer Size. Any Equity Shares allottedvtarket Maker under
this Offer over and above 25% of Offer Size woutll be taken in to consideration of computing theshold of 25% of
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Offer Size. As soon as the Shares of Market Makeyur Company reduces to 24% of Offer Size, thekgtaMaker will
resume providing 2-way quotes.

There shall be no exemption/threshold on downsitbevever, in the event the Market Maker exhaustsrisntory through
market making process, NSE may intimate the sans&E®l after due verification.

Execution of the order at the quoted price and tityamust be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s) tier quotes given by
him.

There would not be more than five Market Makersdacript at any point of time and the Market Makeray compete with
other Market Makers for better quotes to the inmest

On the first day of the listing, there will be pspening session (call auction) and there aftetrting will happen as per the
equity market hours. The circuits will apply frommetfirst day of the listing on the discovered pritging the pre-open call
auction.

The Market maker may also be present in the operafigauction, but there is no obligation on hindtwso.

There will be special circumstances under whichMaeket Maker may be allowed to withdraw temposgfillly from the
market — for instance due to system problems, @hgr@roblems. All controllable reasons requirepepproval from the
Exchange, whilgorce-majeurewill be applicable for non-controllable reason$ieTdecision of the Exchange for deciding
controllable and non-controllable reasons wouldirte

The Market Maker(s) shall have the right to terrténaaid arrangement by giving a six months’ noticeon mutually

acceptable terms to the Merchant Banker, who ghalh be responsible to appoint a replacement Maviaker(s) and
execute a fresh arrangement. In case of terminadifothe above-mentioned Market Making agreemenbrpto the

completion of the compulsory Market Making perigdshall be the responsibility of the BRLM to argenfor another
Market Maker in replacement during the term of tio¢ice period being served by the Market Makergridr to the date of
releasing the existing Market Maker from its duiie®rder to ensure compliance with the requiremeftregulation 261 of
the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended.hearbur Company and the BRLM reserve the rightgpoint other

Market Makers either as a replacement of the ctilkarket Maker or as an additional Market Makerjeubto the total

number of Designated Market Makers does not ex@igedr as specified by the relevant laws and ragpihs applicable at
that particulars point of time. The Market Makingr&ement is available for inspection at our offimen 10.00 a.m. to 5.00
p.m. on working days.

Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Makers: Stock Exchange will have all margins, which are
applicable on NSE main board viz., Mark-to-Markéalue-At-Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme Loss Margin, &pal Margins
and Base Minimum Capital etc. NSE can impose ahgranargins as deemed necessary from time-to-time.

Punitive Action in case of default by Market Makers SME Platform of NSE will monitor the obligations anreal time
basis and punitive action will be initiated for aeyceptions and/or non-compliances. Penaltieesfmay be imposed by the
Exchange on the Market Maker, in case he is na &blprovide the desired liquidity in a particukscurity as per the
specified guidelines. These penalties / fines bl set by the Exchange from time to time. The Ewrgbawill impose a
penalty on the Market Maker in case he is not presethe market (offering two-way quotes) for aast 75% of the time.
The nature of the penalty will be monetary as vesllsuspension in market making activities / tradimgmbership. The
Department of Surveillance and Supervision of tkeiange would decide and publish the penaltiesesfi suspension for
any type of misconduct/ manipulation/ other irregities by the Market Maker from time to time.

Price Band and SpreadsThe price band shall be 20% and the market makeadp(difference between the sell and the buy
quote) shall be within 10% or as intimated by Exad®from time to time.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/20dated November 27, 2012, limits on the upper &idenarket
makers during market making process has been npgdieable, based on the Issue size and as follows

Offer Size Buy quote exemption threshold (including Re-Entry threshold for buy quote (including
mandatory initial inventory of 5% of the Offer mandatory initial inventory of 5% of the Offer
Size) Size)
Up toZ20 Crort 25% 24%
%20 to350 Crore 20% 19%
%50 toZ80 Crort 15% 14%
Abovez80 Cror¢ 12% 11%

The SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DR/2012 dated January 20, 2012, has laid downfohassue size up to

%250 crores, the applicable price bands for the diay shall be:
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i. In case equilibrium price is discovered in the Qaliction, the price band in the normal trading s@sshall be 5% of the
equilibrium price.

In case equilibrium price is not discovered in @al Auction, the price band in the normal tradsegsion shall be 5% of the
issue price.

Withdrawal of the Offer

Our Company and the Selling Shareholder in consattavith the BRLM, reserve the right to not to peed with the Offer at
any time before the Bid/ Offer Opening Date withassigning any reason thereof.

If our Company withdraws the Offer any-time aftbe tBid/ Offer Opening Date but before the allotmehEquity Shares, a
public notice within 2 (two) working days of thediOffer Closing Date, providing reasons for nobgeeding with the Offer
shall be issued by our Company. The notice of wi#ha@l will be issued in the same newspapers whieeepre- Offer
advertisements have appeared and the Stock Exchéligdso be informed promptly. The BRLM, througfe Registrar to the
Offer, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBXccounts within 1 (one) working Day from the day receipt of such
instruction.

If our Company withdraws the Offer after the Bidiféd Closing Date and subsequently decides to mdaeeth an Offer of the
Equity Shares, our Company will have to file a ffré&raft Red Herring Prospectus with the stock ergeawhere the Equity
Shares may be proposed to be listed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Offer is subjerbbtaining (i) the final listing and trading appals of the Stock Exchange

with respect to the Equity Shares issued throughttaft Red Herring Prospectus, which our Compaillyapply for only after
Allotment; and (ii) the registration of Red HerriRgospectus/ Prospectus with RoC.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Share capital of our company as at the datei®Draft Red Herring Prospectus is set forth Welo

(R in Lakhs, except share data)

Sr. Particulars Aggregate Value | Aggregate Value
No. at Face Valug at Offer Price

Authorized Share Capital
A 2,50,00,00(Equity Shares having Face Valuez 10/ eact 2,500.00 )

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital prior tahe Offer

B 1,89,14,76Equity Shares having Face ValueZ 10/- eact

1,891.48 -

Present Offer in terms of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus*
C Upto 65,78,000 Equity Shares having Face Valug bd/-each at a price & 657.80 bl
[e] per shar

Consisting of

Fresh Issue of upto 60,78,000 Equity Shares of fatee ofZ 10/-each at a

Premium oR [e] per shar 607.80 ]

Offer for Sale of upto 5,00,000 Equity Shares afefaalue oR 10/-each at a

Premium ofZ [e] per shar 50.00 Pl

Which comprises o

Reservation for Market Maker Portion
D Upto [e] Equity Shares of 10/- each at a price & [e] per Equity Share [e] [®]
reserved as Market Maker Port

Net Offer to Public
E Net Offer to Public of ¢] Equity Shares of 10/- each at a price &[e] per [o] [e]
Equity Share to the Pub

Of which:

i. At least jo] Equity Shares aggregating up¥de] lakhs will be available [o] [o]
for allocation to Retail Individual Investc

ii. At least o] Equity Shares aggregating up3¥de] lakhs will be available [o] [o]
for allocation to No-Institutional Investor

iii. Not more than ¢] Equity Shares aggregating up ¥o[e] lakhs will be
available for allocation to Qualified InstitutionBlyers, five per cent. g
which shall be allocated to mutual fur

=

[e] ]

F Issued, Subscribed and Pai-up Equity Share Capital after the Offer

[e] Equity Shares of face value ¥ 10+ eact [o]

G Securities Premium Account
Before the Offer (as on date of this Draft Red HgriProspectu: 1,814.0
After the Offe [o]

*The Present Offer of upt65,78,000Equity Shares in terms of this Draft Red Herringp$pectus has been authorized pursuant
to a resolution of our Board of Directors dated Af9, 2024 and by special resolution passed urection 62(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013 at an Extra Ordinary Generaétey of the members held on May 13, 2024

*The Offer for Sale has been authorized by thar@eBhareholder by authorization letter dated Ap8), 2024

Sr. No.| Name of the Selling Shareholde |No of Equity Shares offeret | % of the pre-Offer paid-up Equity Share capital

Promoter Selling Shareholder

1. | Amrit Lal Manwan | 5,00,00! | 2.64

Allocation to all categories shall be made on agmdionate basis subject to valid Applications rieed. Under subscription, if
any, in any of the categories (except for the QHidh), would be allowed to be met with spill-ofesm any of the other
categories. Such inter-se spill over, if any, woblel affected in accordance with applicable lawdesu regulations and
guidelines.

Classes of Shares:

Our Company has only one class of share capitaEqaity Shares of face value ¥fL0/- each only. All the issued Equity Shares
are fully paid-up. Our Company has no outstandmmgvertible instruments as on the date of this DRa&ftl Herring Prospectus.

NOTES TO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

1. Changes in Authorized Equity Share Capital of our @mpany:

Sr. | Particulars Cumulative No. | Face Value of | Cumulative Authorized Date of Meeting Whether
No. of Equity Shares | Equity Share | Share Capital R in lakhs) AGM/ EGM
1. | On incorporatio 2,50,00,00 10 2,500.0( Upon Incorporatio N.A.
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2. Equity Share Capital History of our Company:

a) The following table sets forth details of the higtof the Equity Share capital of our Company:

DO

D

Date of No. of Face | Issue Price| Nature of Nature of | Cumulative | Cumulative | Cumulative
Allotment Equity |Value| (including |Consideration| Allotment [No. of Equity| Securities Paid-up
Shares (®) |Premium if Shares |Premium (%) | Capital (%)
allotted applicable)
®)
Upon Partly Cash & Subscription
P . 1,79,69,500 10/- 10/- Partly other p(i) 1,79,69,500 - 17,96,95,0
Incorporation to MOA
than cas
February 16/ 0501 | 10-| 202/ Cash Private | 1 86,50,001 13,06,73,47218,65,00,91
202 Placemen®
February 29, 5 64672 | 10| 202/ Cash Private | 1,89,14,763  18,14,90,49618,91,47,63
202¢ Placemer(

D

All the above-mentioned shares are fully paid umgeithe date of allotment.

()

details of which are given below:

Initial Subscribers to the Memorandum of Assocratioibscribed 1,79,69,500 Equity Shares of Facee/af& 10/- each,

Sr. No. | Name of Subscriber: Number of Shares Subscribe
1. Amrit Lal Manwan 1,79,64,50(
2. Varun Manwar 1,200
3. Arunima Manwar 1,200
4. Varsha B P Manwa 1,200
5. Akshay Manwar 1,20(
6. Narayan Belbas 100
7. Pintu Naske 100
Total 1,79,69,500

(i) Allotment of 6,80,591 Equity Shares of Face Valui&10/- each on Private Placement basis as per detpien below:

Sr. No. | Name of Allottee: Number of Shares Allottec
1. IndiaAhead Venture Fur 1,89,05:
2. Anchorage Capital Fun- Anchorage Capital Scheme 1,89,05:
3. Negen Undiscovered Value FL 94 ,52¢
4, Finavenue Capital Tru- Finavenue Growth Fut 56,71¢
5. Nikhil Ramesh Jaisingha 56,71¢
6. VPK Global Ventures Fun- VPK Global Ventures Fun- Scheme 37,81
7. Monika Garwar 37,81
8. Vicco Products Bombay Pvt L 18,90¢
Total 6,80,591

(iii) Allotment of 2,64,672 Equity Shares of Face Valu&10/- each on Private Placement basis as per detpien below:

Sr. No. | Name of Allottee: Number of Shares Allottec
1. Madhusudan Murlidhar Ke 94,526
2. Amit Dalmia 28,358
3. Deepak Dalmi 28,38
4, Shubhra Paral 18,905
5. Snehal Paral 18,905
6. Khushboo Paralt 18,905
7. Khushboo Siddharth Nar 18,905
8. Vinod Kumar Lodh 18,905
9. Arun Kumar Kothal 18,905

Total 2,64,672

b) As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospeabus Company does not have any Preference ShaitalCa

3. Except as mentioned in point number 2(i), 2(ii) &(id) above, the Company has not issued any Edglitare in the last two

years preceding the date of the Draft Red Herrimgectus.
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4.

Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other tesh:

Except as set out below we have not issued Eqhiéyes for consideration other than cash:

Date of Number of | Face | Issue Reason of Benefits Accrued to | Name of Allottees No. of
Allotment Equity Value | Price Allotment our Company Shares
Shares ® ® Allotteed
Upon 1,77,40,781 10.00 10.00 Pursuant to [h&cquisition of the| Amrit Lal Manwan | 1,77,40,78
Incorporation acquisition of M/s| running business of
Sahasra Electronic M/s Sahastrg TOTAL 1,77,40,781
Solution: Electronic Solutior

5. No Equity Shares have been allotted pursuant tcsehgme approved under sections 230-234 of the GoiepAct, 2013.

6. Our Company has not issued any shares pursuantEmaloyee Stock Option Scheme.

7. Except for Private Placement made on February @84 2nd February 29, 2024, mentioned in point nur@fig and 2(iii)
above, our Company has not issued Equity sharpsic below the Offer price within last one yeawnr the date of the
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

8. We have not revalued our assets since inceptionhand not issued any Equity Shares by capitalizing revaluation

reserves.

9. Shareholding Pattern of the Company

The table below represents the shareholding patteaur Company in accordance with Regulation 3thef SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regula6i5, as on the date of this Draft Red HerringsPectus:
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| - Our Shareholding Pattern:-

Category |Category of|Nos. of| No. of fully [No. of| No. of | Total nos. [Sharehol| Number of Voting Rights held in each |No. of [Shareholding|Number of | Number of | Number of
shareholder| share | paid-up [Partly | shares | shares held |ding as a class of securities* Shares| ,asa% |Lockedin Shares |equity shares
holdersiequity shareg paid- underlyi P of total Underl jassuming full| shares | pledged or held in
held up ng no. of ying | conversion otherwise |dematerialize
equity |Deposit shares Outsta of convertible encumbered| dform
shares| ory calculate No of Voting Rights Total as ¢ nding [securities (agNo. | As a No. (a| As a
held Receipt: d as per [Class EquityClass  Total % of convert a (a) | % of % of
SCRR, | Shares of |eg:y A+B+ C)| ible |percentage of total total
1957) [%10/- each”® securiti|diluted share Shares Share
As a % of es capital) held s held
(A+B+C2 includi| As a % of (b) (b)
) ng (A+B+C2)
Warra
nts)
I I Il \Y V VI |VII= IV+V+VI Vil IX X XI=VI+X Xl Xlil XV
(A) Promoters
Promoter 5 1,79,69,500 - - 1,79,69,500 95.00 1,79,69,500 | -,79,69,500| 95.00 - - - - 1,79,69,5(
Groug
(B) Public 17 9,45,26: - - 9,45,26. 05.0¢ 9,45,26. - 9,45,26:. 05.0( - - - - 9,45,26:.
© Non-
Promoter-
Non ) ) ) ) ) i ) i ) ) ) i ) i )
Public
(C1) | Shares
underlying - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
DRs
(C2) | Shares
held by
Emp. i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i
Trusts
Total 22 | 1,89,14,763 - - 1,89,14,763 100.00 1,8%63| - | 1,89,14,763 100.00 - - - - 1,89,14,7
The term “Encumbrance” has the same meaning agnassunder regulation 28(3) of SEBI (Substantiajuisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations1201
Notes:
e As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectusqlify share holds 1 vote.
e We have only one class of Equity Shares of faceevak 10/- each.
e We have entered into tripartite agreement datededeiper 25, 2023 and February 28, 2024 with NSDLIZSC respectively.
e Our Company will file the shareholding pattern retform prescribed under Regulation 31 of the SEBLting Obligations and Disclosure RequiremenRggulations, 2015, one

day prior to the listing of the Equity shares. Himareholding pattern will be uploaded on the Websftthe NSE before commencement of trading of Eqahly Shares.
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10. List of Shareholders of the Company holding 1% or rore of the paid up Share Capital of the Company:-

a) As on the date of filing of this Draft Red HerriRgospectus:-

Sr. No. | Names of Shareholders Shares held (Face | % Pre-Offer paid up
Value of% 10 each Share Capital
1. Amrit Lal Manwan 1,79,64,70 94 .9¢
Total 1,79,64,700 94.98
b) Ten days prior to the date of filing of this Dr&&d Herring Prospectus:-
Sr. No. | Names of Shareholders Shares held (Face | % Pre-Offer paid up
Value of% 10 each Share Capital
1. Amrit Lal Manwan 1,79,6460C 94.9¢
Total 1,79,64,600 94.98

c) One Year prior to the date of filing of this Dr&fed Herring Prospectus:-

Sr. No. | Names of Shareholders* Shares held (Face | % Pre-Offer paid up
Value of% 10 each Share Capital
1. Amrit Lal Manwan 1,79,64,50 99.9i
Total 1,79,64,500 99.97

*Details of shares held on June 25, 2023 and ptagerheld has been calculated based on the paidpital of our Company as
on June 25, 2023.

d) Two Years prior to the date of filing of this Dr&ted Herring Prospectus:

Our Company incorporated on February 22, 2023 legs than two years prior to the date of filingtieé Draft Red
Herring Prospectus. Hence, requirement of disctp#ie list of shareholders prior to two years fritra date of filing of
the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, is not applicablels.

11. Our Company has not made any Initial Public Offiespecified securities in the preceding two years.

12. There will be no further issue of capital, whethgrway of issue of bonus shares, preferential mkoit, Right issue or in any
other manner during the period commencing fromdéwe of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus untilEqeity Shares of our
Company have been listed or application money whgid on account of failure of Offer. Further, owntpany does not
intend to alter its capital structure within six ntles from the date of opening of the offer, by vediysplit/ consolidation of
the denomination of Equity Shares. However, our @amy may further issue Equity shares (includingidsef securities
convertible into Equity Shares) whether preferénifaotherwise after the date of the listing of iégshares to finance an
acquisition, merger or joint venture or for regalgtcompliance or such other scheme of arrangeoresnty other purpose as
the Board of Directors may deem fit, if an oppoityiof such nature is determined by the Board afebBlors to be in the
interest of our Company.

13. Capital Build-up in respect of Shareholding of ourPromoters

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospedug Promoter, Amrit Lal Manwani, Varun ManwanidaArunima Manwani
collectively holds 1,79,67,100 Equity Shares of Gampany. None of the Equity Shares held by oumBters are subject to any
pledge.

Set forth below is the build-up of the shareholdifigur Promoters in our Company since incorporatio

Date of No. of Face Issue/ Consideration | Nature of Issue| Pre-Offer Post-Offer
Allotment and Equity | Value | Acquisition/ Shareholdin | Shareholding
made fully paid | Shares Per Transfer g% %

up/ Transfer Share Price
® ®)
Amrit Lal Manwani
Partly Cash & -
On Incorporation 1,79,64,5 10 10 Partly other than Subscription to 94.98 o]
00 MOA
casl
Acquisition by
May 17, 2024 100 10 10 Cash way of transfer of Negligible [e]
shares®
June 15, 202¢ 10C 1C 1C Cast Acquisition by | Negligible [o]
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Date of No. of Face Issue/ Consideration | Nature of Issue| Pre-Offer Post-Offer
Allotment and Equity | Value | Acquisition/ Shareholdin | Shareholding
made fully paid | Shares Per Transfer g% %

up/ Transfer Share Price
®) ®)
way of transfer of
shares®
Total (A) 1’78664’7 94.98 [e]
Varun Manwani
On Incorporation| 1,200 10 10 12,000 S”bslg/clgpA“O” © 901 fo]
Total (B) 1,200 0.01
Arunima Manwani
On Incorporation| 1,200 10 10 12,000 S”bslg/clgpA“O” o go1 fo]
Total (C) 1,200 0.01
Grand Total 1,79,67,1
(A+B+C) 00 94.99 [e]
Note: None of the Shares have been pledged byroundrers.
(i) Details of acquisition of 100 Equity shares by Arhdl Manwani:
S. No. Date of Transfer Name of Transferor No. of share transfer
1. May 17, 202. Narayan Belba: 10C
TOTAL 100
(i) Details of acquisition of 100 Equity shares by Arhél Manwani:
S. No. Date of Transfer Name of Transferor No. of share transfer
1. June (5, 202¢ Pintu Naske 10C
TOTAL 100

14. The average cost of acquisition or subscription adhares by our Promoters is set forth in the table ddow:

Sr. No. | Name of the Promoters No. of Shares held Average cost of Acquisition (irk)
1. Amrit Lal Manwan 1,79,64,70 10.0C
2. Arunima Manwar 1,20( 10.0C
3. Varun Manwar 1,20( 10.0(

15. Shareholding of Promoters & Promoter Group

Following are the details of pre and post Offerrehalding of persons belonging to the categti®yomoters & Promoter
Group”:

Sr. Names Pre IPO Post IPO
No Shares Held | % Shares Held Shares Held % Shares Held
Promoters (A)
1. | Amrit Lal Manwan 1,79,64,70 94.9¢ [e] [o]
2. | Varun Manwar 1,20( 0.01 [e] [e]
3. | Arunima Manwar 1,20( 0.01 [e] [o]
Sub Total (A) 1,79,67,100 94.99 [e] [e]
Promoter Group (B)
4. | Varsha B P Manwa 1,20( 0.01 [e] [o]
5. | Akshay Manwar 1,20( 0.01 [e] [o]
Sub Total (B) 2,400 0.02 [e] [e]
Total (A) + (B) 1,79,69,500 95.00 [e] [e]

16. Except as provided below, no Equity Shares weralieety purchased/ sold by the Promoters & Prom@teup, Directors
and their immediate relatives within six months iediately preceding the date of filing of this Drdated Herring
Prospectus.
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Date of Allotment/ Name of No. of Equity | % of Pre Allotment/ Category of Allottees(Promoters/
Transfer Shareholder Share issue Capital |Acquire/ Transfer| Promoter Group/ Director)

May 17, 202. Amrit Lal Manwan 10C Negligible Acquire Promoter/ Directc

June (5, 202¢ Amrit Lal Manwan 10C Negligible Acquire Promoter/ Directc

17. None of our Promoters, Promoter Group, our Directand their relatives has entered into any finan@mangement or
financed the purchase of the Equity Shares of mm@any by any other person during the period ofrsiaths immediately
preceding the date of filing of the Draft Red HegiProspectus.

18. Details of Promoters’ Contribution Locked-in for Three Years

Pursuant to Regulation 236 and 238 of SEBI (ICDBRyations, 2018, an aggregate of 20.00% of the @fier capital held by
our Promoters shall be considered as Promoter’sribation (“Promoters Contribution”) and shall be locked-in for a period of
three years from the date of allotment of Equitsrels issued pursuant to this Offer. The lock iRm@moter’s Contribution would
be created as per applicable law and procedureletads of the same shall also be provided to thekSExchange before listing
of the Equity Shares.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospeatus Promoters collectively hold 1,79,67,100 Eg@hares constitutinge] %
of the post-issued, subscribed and paid-up Equitaré Capital of our Company, which are eligible foe Promoters’
contribution.

Our Promoters, Amrit Lal Manwani, Varun Manwani aldinima Manwani, have given written consent toude 1,79,67,100
Equity Shares held by them and subscribed by trepag of Promoters Contribution constitutirsg $6 of the post Offer Equity
Shares of our Company. Further, they have agreedonsell or transfer or pledge or otherwise digpo$in any manner, the
Promoters contribution, for a period of three ydewe the date of allotment in the Offer.

Date of Allotment/ No. of Equity Face Value | Issue/Acquisition/ Nature of Post-Offer Lock in
Transfer and made | Shares locked-in |Per Share §) | Transfer Price () transaction |(Shareholding % | Period
fully Paid Up
Amrit Lal Manwani
February 22, 2023 50,30,000 10 10 S‘:gsl\%rﬁ'o” [o] 3 years
Total 50,30,000 [e]

The minimum Promoter’s contribution has been braoughto the extent of not less than the specifiedimum lot and from
persons defined a&Promoter” under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. All Equity Sémr which are being locked in are not
ineligible for computation of Minimum Promoters Gobution as per Regulation 237 of the SEBI (ICORjgulations and are
being locked in for 3 years as per Regulation 288{ahe SEBI (ICDR) Regulations i.e. for a perioidthree years from the date
of allotment of Equity Shares in this Offer.

The entire pre-Offer shareholding of the Promo&Rromoter Group, other than the Minimum Promotmatribution which is
locked in for three years, shall be locked in fgeaiod of one year from the date of allotmenthiis Offer.

Eligibility of Share for “Minimum Promoters Contrib ution in terms of clauses of Regulation 237(1) ofEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018

Eligibility Status of Equity Shares forming

Reg. No. Promoters’ Minimum Contribution Conditions part of Promoter’s Contribution

237(1) (a) (i) Specified securities acquired duritigg preceding threpThe minimum Promoter's contribution does not
years, if they are acquired for consideration othan cash consist of such Equity Sharésence Eligible
and revaluation of assets or capitalization of rigthle
assets is involved in such transac

237 (1) (a) (i) | Specified securities acquired dgrithe preceding threeThe minimum Promoter’'s contribution does not
years, resulting from a bonus issue by utilizatioh| consist of such Equity Sharésence Eligible
revaluation reserves or unrealized profits of tbguér or|
from bonus issue against Equity Shares which aiggible
for minimum promoters’ contributic

237 (1) (b) Specified securities acquired by pramotduring the The minimum Promoter’s contribution does not
preceding one year at a price lower than the @toghich| consist of such Equity Shard$ence Eligible.
specified securities are being offered to publi¢hie initial
public offel

237(1) (c) Specified securities allotted to promoters duringe |t The minimum Promoter's contribution does not
preceding one year at a price less than the Offime,g consist of such Equity Shardsence Eligible.
against funds brought in by them during that perinccase
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Reg. No. Promoters’ Minimum Contribution Conditions

Eligibility Status of Equity Shares forming
part of Promoter’s Contribution

of an issuer formed by conversion of one or more
partnership firms, where the partners of the eriééwh
partnership firms are the promoters of the issudrthere is
no change in the management: Provided that specifie
securities, allotted to promoters against capitddting in
such firms for a period of more than one year on a
continuous basis, shall be eligi

237 (1) (d) Specified securities pledged with argdior. Our Promoters have not Pledged any shaitbs

any creditors. Accordingly, the minimum
Promoter’s contribution does not consist of siich
Equity Share: Hence Eligible

Details of Promoters’ Contribution Locked-in for One Year

In terms of Regulation 238(b) and 239 of the SHBDR) Regulations, 2018, in addition to the Miniméromoters contribution
which is locked in for three years, as specifiedvah the entire pre-issue equity share capital tdating 1,33,84,763 Equity
Shares shall be locked in for a period of one fren the date of allotment of Equity Shares in Dfer.

In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regidns, 2018, the Equity Shares which are subgedodk-in shall carry
inscription ‘non-transferable’ along with the Ratio of specified non-transferapériod mentioned in the face of the security
certificate. The shares which are in dematerializedh, if any, shall be locked-in by the respectdepositories. The details of
lock-in of the Equity Shares shall also be provitethe Designated Stock Exchange before the disifrthe Equity Shares.

Other requirements in respect of lock-in:

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

1. In terms of Regulation 242 of the SEBI (ICDR) Redigns, the locked in Equity Shares held by thenferters, as
specified above, can be pledged with any schedededmercial bank or public financial institution arsystemically
important non-banking finance company or a housingnce company as collateral security for loamnggd by such
bank or institution provided that the pledge of BgShares is one of the terms of the sanctioeflban. Provided that
securities locked in as minimum promoter’s contiithu may be pledged only if, in addition to fuliil the above
requirements, the loan has been granted by suck dramstitution, for the purpose of financing ooe more of the
objects of the offer.

2. Interms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (ICDR) Retjidns, the Equity Shares held by persons other tttea Promoters
prior to the Offer may be transferred to any ogherson holding the Equity Shares which are lockeaki per Regulation
239 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, subject to @wmtion of the lock-in in the hands of the tramsés for the
remaining period and compliance with the SEBI (Sa$al Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Retipria, 2011, as
applicable.

3. Further in terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (R)CRegulations, the specified securities held eyglomoters and
locked-in as per regulation 238 may be transfetoednother promoters or any person of the Pronm®teup or a new
promoters or a person in control of the issuerexttip continuation of the lock-in in the handgha# transferees for the
remaining period and compliance with SEBI (Substdmcquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulajd2011, as
applicable.

Neither, we nor our Promoters, Directors and thd R0 this Offer have entered into any buyback aond/standby
arrangements and/ or similar arrangements for tinehase of our Equity Shares from any person.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectiue entire Issued Share, Subscribed and PaidiapeSCapital of our
Company is fully paid up. Since the entire Offeicerin respect of the Offer is payable on applamatiall the successful
applicants will be allotted fully paid-up Equity &fes.

The BRLM i.e. Hem Securities Limited and their asates do not hold any Equity Shares in our Compengn the date of
filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospeattesdo not have any Employees Stock Option Sch&mgloyees Stock
Purchase Scheme and we do not intend to allot Aayes to our employees under Employee Stock Ogficimeme/
Employee Stock Purchase Plan from the proposedr.Offe and when, options are granted to our emplyeeler the
Employee Stock Option Scheme, our Company shallptpmith the SEBI (Share Based Employee BenefitsyiRations,
2014.

We have 22 (Twenty-Two) shareholders as on theafdttng of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

As on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herrifgospectus, there are no outstanding warrantyraptr rights to convert
debentures, loans or other instruments which weualitle Promoters or any shareholders or any gikeeson any option to
acquire our Equity Shares after this Initial Pul@ifer

Our Company has not raised any bridge loan agdiagiroceeds of the Offer.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospeatoesie of the shares held by our Promoters/ Pran@rteup are subject to
any pledge.

We here by confirm that there will be no furthesue of capital whether by way of issue of bonuses)apreferential

allotment, rights issue or in any other manner riurihe period commencing from the date of the DRdd Herring
Prospectus until the Equity Shares offered have bis&d or application money unblocked on accaidrailure of offer.

An over-subscription to the extent of 1% of thee@ffsubject to the maximum post Offer paid up edmt 225 Cr., can be
retained for the purpose of rounding off to therasainteger during finalizing the allotment, sujio minimum allotment,
which is the minimum application size in this Off@onsequently, the actual allotment may go up byagimum of 1% of
the Offer, as a result of which, the post-Offerdpap capital after the Offer would also increasethy excess amount of
allotment so made. In such an event, the Equityre3hiaeld by the Promoter and subject to 3-year-lotkhall be suitably
increased; so as to ensure that 20% of the post @&id-up capital is locked in .

At any given point of time there shall be only @leomination of the Equity Shares, unless otherpggenitted by law.

Our Company shall comply with such disclosure andoanting norms as may be specified by NSE, SERI ather
regulatory authorities from time to time.

There are no Equity Shares against which deposieargipts have been issued.

Other than the Equity Shares, there is no othesadé securities issued by our Company.

There are no safety net arrangements for this paiffer.

As per RBI regulations, OCBs are not allowed tdipgrate in this Offer.

Our Promoters & Promoter Group will not participatehis Offer.

This Offer is being made through Book Building Ress.

Our Company has not made any public issue or rightge of any kind or class of securities sincénitsrporation.

In terms of Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of the Securities Qacts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended, (tiRR3Ehe Offer is being
made for at least 25% of the post-Offer paid-up itygBhares Share capital of our Company. Furttigs, ©ffer is being

made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Riagjons, 2018, as amended from time to time.

No person connected with the Offer shall offer d@ngentive, whether direct or indirect, in the natuwf discount,
commission, and allowance, or otherwise, whetheash, kind, services or otherwise, to any Applican

We shall ensure that transactions in Equity Shlyethe Promoters and members of the Promoter Gibapy, between the
date of filing the Red Herring Prospectus with Registrar of companies and the Offer Closing Dageraported to the
Stock Exchanges within 24 hours of such transastiming completed.
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OBJECTS OF THE OFFER

The Offer includes a fresh issue of upto 60,78,800Qity Shares and Offer for Sale of 5,00,000 eqshgres by the selling
shareholder of our Company at an offer Pric& pé] per Equity Share.

We believe that listing will enhance our corporemage and visibility of brand name of our Compawie also believe that our
Company will receive the benefits from listing afuity Shares on the NSE Emerge (SME Platform).illtaiso provide liquidity
to the existing shareholders and will also createlaic trading market for the Equity Shares of @@ampany.

Offer for Sale

Our Company will not receive any proceeds of thteOfior Sale by the Selling Shareholder. Sellingu®holder will be entitled
to the respective proportion of the proceeds ofGifier for Sale after deducting their portion oétffer related expenses and
relevant taxes thereon. Other than the listing #kesost, fees and expenses in respect of ther @ffebe shared amongst our
Company and Selling Shareholder, respectively,rapgrtion to the proceeds received for the Freshesand their respective
portion of Offered Shares, as may be applicablenupe successful completion of the Offer.

Fresh Issue

Our Company proposes to utilize the funds whichleiag raised through the Fresh Issue, up [ie] lakhs, after deducting the
Offer related expenses to the extent payable byGmmpany with respect to the Fresh Issue, towandslifig the following
objects:

1. Funding Capital Expenditure towards installatioradflitional plant and machinery at new manufactufacility situated at
Bhiwadi, Rajasthan;

2. Investment in our Subsidiary, Sahasra Semicondsi®avate Limited for financing its capital expetole requirements in
relation towards installation of additional plamdamachinery;

3. To Meet Working Capital Requirements;

4. General Corporate Purposes.

(Collectively referred as th®bjects”)
Net Proceeds

The details of the Net Proceeds are set forth kelow

Sr. No | Particulars Amt (R in Lakhs)
1. Gross Proceeds of the Of [e]
2. Less: Offer related expenses in relation to O [o]
3 Net Proceed [e]

*Except for the Listing fees, which will be bornedur Company, all other expenses relating to tfferGas mentioned above will
be borne by our Company and the Selling Sharehatdproportion to the Equity Shares contributeddued in the offer

Requirement of Funds and Utilization of Net Proceesl

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in acwardédth the details as set forth below:

(Zin Lakhs)
Sr. No | Particulars Amount

1. Funding Capital Expenditure towards installation agfditional plant and machinery at new  6,028.04
manufacturing facility situated Bhiwadi, Rajastha

2. Investment in our Subsidiary, Sahasra Semicondsidoivate Limited for financing its capital 2,542.30
expenditure requirements in relation towards itetiaih of additional plant and machin

3. To Meet Working Capital Requireme [e]

4. General Corporate Purpos [e]
Total [e]

Our fund requirements and deployment thereof asedan internal management estimates of our cuptesihess plans and have
not been appraised by any bank or financial in#titu These are based on current conditions andubject to change in light of
changes in external circumstances or costs ohierdinancial conditions, business strategy, asudised further below.

Means of Finance

We intend to finance our Objects of Offer througkt ffer Proceeds which is as follows:
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Sr. No | Particulars Amt (Z in Lakhs)
1. Net Offer Proceed [e]
Total [e]

Since, the entire fund requirements are to be fudéom the proceeds of the Offer, there is no regument to make firm
arrangements of finance under Regulation 230(1)(ef) the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations through verifiable eans towards at
least 75% of the stated means of finance, excludihg amounts to be raised through the proposed ©ffe

Subiject to applicable law, if the actual utilizatitowards the Objects is lower than the proposgibgenent, such balance will be
used for general corporate purposes to the extantthe total amount to be utilised towards genevgborate purposes will not
exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds in accordanceReigiulation 7(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. bse of a shortfall in
raising the requisite capital from the Net Procemdan increase in the total estimated cost ofdhpects, business considerations
may require us to explore a range of options inalyditilizing our internal accruals and seeking itiddal debt from existing
and/or future lenders. We believe that such alterarangements would be available to fund any shohtfalls. Further, in case
of variations in the actual utilisation of fundsrmarked for the purpose set forth above, incredseding requirements for a
particular purpose may be financed by surplus fuifdany, available in respect of other purposesvibich funds are being
raised in the Fresh Issue. Any variation in théisatiion of the Net Proceeds as disclosed in thisfttRed Herring Prospectus
shall be subject to certain compliance requirementduding prior approval of the shareholders of @ompany. The Objects
may be varied in the manner provided‘@bjects of the Offer — Variation in Objectsbn page 66 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus. However, we confirm that no bridgenfaieg has been availed as on date, which is sutgdating repaid from the
Offer Proceeds.

As we operate in competitive environment, our Conypaay have to revise its business plan from tiongnie and consequently
our fund requirements may also change. Our Compgalmgtorical expenditure may not be reflective of tuture expenditure
plans. Our Company may have to revise its estimatsts, fund allocation and fund requirements ovtmgarious factors such
as economic and business conditions, increasedetdiop and other external factors which may notliin the control of our
management. This may entail rescheduling or reygidime planned expenditure and funding requiremeimiduding the
expenditure for a particular purpose at the digmnedf the Company’s management.

For further details on the risks involved in oursimess plans and executing our business stratgrésse see the section titled
“Risk Factors” beginning on page 25 of this Draft Red Herringdpextus.

Details of Utilization of Net Proceeds
The details of utilization of the Net Proceeds seeforth herein below:

1. Funding capital expenditure towards installation of additional plant and machinery at new manufacturirg facility
situated at Bhiwadi, Rajasthan.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospeatus existing factory unit is located at 68AA, HaiSpecial Economic Zone,
Nepz Post Office, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Noida — @91Bttar Pradesh, India, admeasuring the total &ea of 1,000 sq. mtr.
As a part of our strategy, we intend to expandaperations, we therefore intend to utilize a pathe Net Proceeds amounting
to T 6,028.04 Lakhs towards setting up of a new marnuifeag unit at Plot no B-3/1, Elcina Electronics Mdacturing Cluster,
Industrial Area Salarpur, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar-319, Rajasthan. We have entered into sub-lease dkted June 15, 2024,
with Sahasra Electronics Private Limited, our Gr@gmpany, for the period of 5 years for settingofipproposed factory unit,
admeasuring the total area of 1500 sq. mtr. Thpgsed plant and machineries are envisaged to hgs#tPlot no B-3/1, Elcina
Electronics Manufacturing Cluster, Industrial Ai®alarpur, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar-301019, Rajasthan.

The fund requirements, the deployment of funds taedntended use of the Net Proceeds, as desdndeih are based on our
current business plan and valid quotations frompkes, and other commercial and technical factbtswever, such total
estimated cost and related fund requirements havbaen appraised by any bank or financial ingtitubr any other independent
agency.

Estimated Cost:
Company proposes to acquire and install machinerySMT Line Equipments, testing and inspection lirees at an estimated

cost of Z 6,028.04 Lakhs for which we are yet to place thden The detailed of machinery to be acquired loyn@any is
provided below:

(% in lakhs)
S. : . . . Quotation
No. Machinery details Qty. Quotation details amt.
Precision Solder Paste printer Quotation dated May 08, 2024 from NMTronics
1. Model: Fuji GPX-CL 2 (India) Private Limited, Noida for USD 60,000 100.11
- 1050*864 «> 736 x 736 mr each valid for 90 day
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NSo.. Machinery details Qty. Quotation details Qu;)lfr?fllon
- 1 Set of Squeegee
- 5 x Cleaning Paper R
Pick & Place Machine with Standard Quotation dated May 08, 2024 from NMTronics
2. Accessories 2 (India) Private Limited, Noida for JPY 49,000,000 521.16
Model: FUJI 2 x AIMEXIII each valid for 90 day
Quotation dated May 08, 2024 from NMTronics
3. ﬂ ;es"’f‘iggﬁliﬁ;'ow Oven 2 | (India) Private Limited, Noida for USD 68,040 113.46
each valid for 90 day
le\]/llfl'iog-\ﬁ)%o()r-M1XL Quo_tation_ dated_ May 08, _2024 from NMTronics
4. 2 (India) Private Limited, Noida for INR 2.20 lakhs 4.40
- 1000 mm Length valid for 90 days
- Auto Width Adjustmer )
Link Conveyor
NMT-LC-1000-M1XL Quotation dated May 08, 2024 from NMTronics
5. - 1000 mm Length 2 (India) Private Limited, Noida for INR 2.20 lakhs 4.40
- Design for Bottom Line Scanner valid for 90 days.
- Auto Width Adjustmer
Reject Conveyor
: ;(gggg Leifrt]%tg Quo.tation. dated. May 08, .2024 from NMTronics
6. . 4 (India) Private Limited, Noida for INR 6.59 lakhs 13.18
*  Light Tower valid for 90 days.
e Monitor / Keyboard Stand
e Auto Width Adjustmer
Inspection Conveyor
N;/(I)-(I—)(I)Cm%]?(l)_zn'\gtlr:( L Quotation dated May 08, 2024 from NMTronics
7. . 2 (India) Private Limited, Noida INR 2.52 lakhs valid 5.04
- Light Tower for 90 days
- Monitor / Keyboard Stand ’
- Auto Width Adjustmer
Cooling Conveyor
NMT-CC-1000-M1XL Quotation dated May 08, 2024 from NMTronics
8. e 1000mm length 2 (India) Private Limited, Noida for INR 3.05 lakhs 6.10
e Cooling fans valid for 90 days.
e Auto Width Adjustmer
TRI Inspection & Testing Machines Solution Quotation dated May 08, 2024 from Test |&
9. TR7700L QE 3D AOI System (In Ling 2 Research India Private Limited, Gurugram for USD 163.51
Version 98,000 each valid for 90 da
TRI Inspection & Testing Machines Solution Quotation dated May 08, 2024 from Test |&
10. | TR7007L Sl Plus 3D SPI System (In line 2 Research India Private Limited, Gurugram for USD 130.14
version 78,000 each valid for 90 da
Precision Solder Paste printer
Model: Fuji GPX-CII Quotation dated May 23, 2024 from NMTronics
11. | - 29 x 29 Inch 4 (India) Private Limited, Noida for USD 50,000 166.85
- 1 Set of Squeegee each valid for 90 days.
- 5 x Cleaning Paper R
Zg:ckessgériezlace Machine —with ~ Standafd Quo_tation_ dated_ May 23, _2024 from NMTronics
12. Model: EUJI 4 x M3IIl + 1 x M6l + 1 x 4 ggg;]a\)/aligv%treglalrggig, Noida for JPY 80,000,000 1701.76
AIMEXIIIC )
Quotation dated May 23, 2024 from NMTronics
13, | JT Lead Free Reflow Oven — JT RS-1200(ll- , | (hia) private Limited. Noida for USD 68,000 226.91
(N) each valid for 90 day
'\Nﬂagrafgilégz(_j&rll_ Quo_tation_ dated_ May 23, _2024 from NMTronics
14. 4 (India) Private Limited, Noida for INR 5.80 lakhs 23.20
- 1000 mm Length each valid for 90 days
- Auto Width Adjustme )
Link Conveyor
NMT-LC-1000-M1L Quotation dated May 23, 2024 from NMTronics
15. | - 1000 mm Length 4 (India) Private Limited, Noida for INR 2.10 lakhs 8.40
- Design for Bottom Line Scanner each valid for 90 days.
- Auto Width Adjustmer
16. | Reject Conveyc 8 Quotation dated May 23, 2024 from NMTron 48.0(
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S. . . . . Quotation
No. Machinery details Qty. Quotation details amt.
NMT-RC-1000-M1L (India) Private Limited, Noida for INR 6.00 lakhs
e 1000mm length each valid for 90 days.
e NG PCB Liftup
e Light Tower
e Monitor / Keyboard Stand
e Auto Width Adjustmer
Inspection Conveyor
NMT-IC-1000-M1L
- 1000 mm Length Quotation dated May 23, 2024 from NMTronics
17. | - Top Cover 4 (India) Private Limited, Noida for INR 2.50 lakhs 10.00
- Light Tower each valid for 90 days.
- Monitor / Keyboard Stand
- Auto Width Adjustmer
Cooling Conveyor
NMT-CC-1000-M1L Quotation dated May 23, 2024 from NMTronics
18. | ¢ 1000mm length 4 (India) Private Limited, Noida for INR 3.00 lakhs 12.00
e Cooling fans each valid for 90 days.
e Auto Width Adjustmer
I\Nﬂagrafaf?zggcl)_ﬁ\?(ljﬁr Quotation dated May 23, 2024 from NMTronics
19. |~ 1000 mm Length 4 (India) Private Limited, Noida for INR 6.70 lakhs 26.80
- Auto Width Adjustmer each valid for 90 days.
. . . Quotation dated May 23, 2024 from Test |&
20. ?R{: !P;gggg%né\ffgmﬂﬁz zclillutlon 4 Research India Private Limited, Gurugram for USD 223.57
67,000 each valid for 90 da
. . . Quotation dated May 23, 2024 from Test |&
21. LI:?{: %[‘S??ggg‘cl\/glc?r'cﬁses:glt'on 4 | Research India Private Limited, Gurugram for USD 307.00
92,000 each valid for 90 da
. . 1. Quotation dated April 25, 2024 from Takaya
22. Igggﬁ%_g'ftg[zle\s/ser;li—:;lteioEAGOSDEL - APT 2 Corporation, Japan for USD 365,000 each valid608.94
P upto July 25, 202.
Quotation dated May 14, 2024 from Teradyne, Inc.
23. | Test Station LX/LX2 2 | - Systems Test Group, United States for USD934.34
560,000 each valid upAugus 13, 2024
. . Quotation dated April 22, 2024 from ETA
Automatic PCBA router for PCB size - .
24. N 2 International PTE Ltd, Singapore for USD 45,000 75.08
650*650mm (ICT5700XXL) each valid for 90 day
Wave soldering with N2 option, pallefs Quotation dated April 22, 2024 from ETA
25. | loading size 650x650mm (W4 customised 2 International PTE Ltd, Singapore for USD 61,000 101.78
machine) Spray flux: each valid for 90 day
Ultrasonic  Cleaner  for Frame  size Quotation dated April 22, 2024 from ETA
26. 1000x1000mm T 2 International PTE Ltd, Singapore for USD 34,200 57.06
each valid for 90 day
Quotation dated April 22, 2024 from ETA
27. | Solder Paste mixer I.C.T-PM500 2| International PTE Ltd, Singapore for USD 990 each 1.66
valid for 90 day:s
Quotation dated April 22, 2024 from ETA
28. | KIC Profiler with 12 channels 2 | International PTE Ltd, Singapore for USD 7380 12.32
each valid for 90 day
L ) Quotation dated April 22, 2024 from ETA
29. \{\éa;/ﬁ Srlé:cfif;rr;'t with 5 TCs, 2 PCBAs - (up fo 2 International PTE Ltd, Singapore for USD 47[f0 7.96
P each valid for 90 day
. . . . Quotation dated April 22, 2024 from ETA
[=
30. l\F/:gsJel,?rCtlc_llsFAl?lsgggtlon machine FA1085 2 International PTE Ltd, Singapore for USD 10800 18.02
T each valid for 90 day
. . . Quotation dated April 22, 2024 from ETA
31. ﬁﬁtgﬂ?'c In Line 2D AOI machine Modgl 2 International PTE Ltd, Singapore for USD 41400 69.08
each valid for 90 day
- . . Quotation dated April 22, 2024 from ETA
32. Mini Wave soldering C120 with 4 Nozzles + 2 2 International PTE Ltd, Singapore for USD 70R0 11.72

additional nozzles 200x25mm

each valid for 90 day
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S. . . . . Quotation
No. Machinery details Qty. Quotation details amt.
. | Quotation dated May 3, 2024 from Test & Resedrch
33. TRI TR?BOQLL Siil Fully Automatic 3D X 1 India Private Limited, Gurugram for USD 376,500 314.09
Ray Inspection .
each valid for 90 day
TOTAL 6,028.04

As per Quotation received from Supplier
The Quotation was received in US$ & JPY (Source + WYS$ = 83.4231 INR, 1JPY = 0.5318 INR)
www.rbi.org.in/scripts/ReferenceRateArchive.adpted May 30, 2024)

Notes

a) We have considered the above quotations for thgdtady estimate purpose and have not placed ofoletisem. The actual
cost of procurement and actual supplier/dealer vaay.

b) All quotations received from the vendors mentioddve are valid as on the date of this Draft Redibg Prospectus.
However, we have not entered into any definitiveeagients with any of these vendors and there ca lassurance that the
same vendors would be engaged to eventually sdpelynachineries/equipment’s or at the same costs.

c) The machinery/equipment models and quantity tourelased are based on the present estimates ofianagement. The
Management shall have the flexibility to reviselsastimates (including but not limited to changenafchinery or vendor or
addition/deletion of any machinery) at the timeaofual placement of the order. In such case, theag@ment can utilize the
surplus of proceeds, if any, arising at the timeactual placement of the order, to meet the costuch other machinery,
equipment’s or utilities, as required for manufaictg. Furthermore, if any surplus from the proceesirains after meeting
the total cost of machineries, equipment’s anditietl for the aforesaid purpose, the same will Bedufor our general
corporate purposes, subject to limit of 25% ofdheount raised by our Company through this Issue.

d) We are not acquiring any second hand machinery.

e) The quotations relied upon by us in arriving at dfseve cost are valid for a specific period of tiemel may lapse after the
expiry of the said period. Consequent upon whiclre could be a possible escalation in the costawhineries proposed to
be acquired by us at the actual time of purchaseilting in increase in the project cost.

Further, cost can be escalated on account of fredghenses, installation charges, packaging & fodwg, custom duty,
applicable taxes etc. Such cost escalation wouldnbe out of either of surplus portion of net isqreceeds (if any) or our
internal accruals.

Government approvals, permissions and clearances
The company will be requiring the below mentionedernment approvals, permissions and clearancethéoProposed factory

unit which includes, inter alia, Pre-Establishmepprovals/ permissions/ clearances and Post Estaldint approvals/
permissions/ clearances along with the proposeelities for the applications —

] Expected
Nl L;\?grclzsse/ GERl Y Applicable Laws Name of Authority timeline to make
the Application
Completion of the Building
work and possession of the - - 30-Jul-24
Premise
Electrical Connchon- HT and i JVVNL/ELCINA 30-Jul-24
Water connectic
Section 25/26 of the Water (Prevention |&
Consent to establish andControl of Pollution) Act, 1974 and undemRajasthan State Pollution 10-Aug-24
Consent to Operate Section 21(4) of the Air (Prevention &Control Board 9
Control of Pollution) Act, 198
Department of local selft
Fire No objection Certificate Rajasthan MunicigaktAct, 2009 government, Bhiwad 20-Aug-24
Rajastha
. i Chief  Inspector  of
Factory License & Building Factories Act, 1948 Factories and Boilers, 31-Aug-24
Plan approval - .
Jaipur, Rajastha
Directorate of
E- waste Authorization E-Waste (Management) Ru622 Environment and 31-Aug-24
Climate Chang
Hazardous waste Authorization Hazardous & Other Waste (Management| &ajasthan State Pollution 31-Aug-24
Transboundary) Rules, 2C Control Boari
Certificate of Registration of ~ ... =0 ds and Services Tax Act, 2017 Assistant Commissioner ;- 5.1 54
Goods and Services T of State Ta
UDYAM Registration| The Micro, Small and Medium Enterpris| Ministry of Small anc Issued date
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Nature of License/ Approval/ . . . Expected
NOCs Applicable Laws Name of Authority timeline to make
the Application
Certificate (Small Enterprise Development Act, 2(5 Medium enterprise April 27, 202«
Registration under Employee Regional Office,
State Insurance Cor i sEmployees State Insurance Act, 1948 Employee’s State  15-Sept-24
poration ;
Insurance Corporatic
Registration under EmployeesEmployees (Provident Fund aTcEmponees' Provident 15-Sept-24
Provident Func Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1€ Fund Organisatic

*The above timeline has been based on the estimétms Management

2. Investment in our Subsidiary, Sahasra Semiconducter Private Limited for financing its capital expendture
requirements in relation towards installation of adlitional plant and machinery;

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospecéxssting factory unit of our subsidiary compasylacated at Plot no B-2,
Elcina Electronics Manufacturing Cluster, Industdaea Salarpur, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar-301019, Retjsan, admeasuring the
total land area of 8225.60 sq. mtr. We hold 54.1@%he equity share capital of our Subsidiary Sahasra Semiconductors
Private Limited, which is primarily engaged in thesiness of manufacturing of electronic componékeésintegrated circuits,
chips, semiconductor devices, eMMC, mSD, COBs, @@Bed USBs, LED drivers IC, BGA, NAND flash & memaroducts.
For further details, see chapter titl&@Qur Subsidiary” on page 123 of this Draft Red Herring Prospecfis.a part of our
strategy, we intend to expand our operations, tiilnaur subsidiary Sahasra Semiconductors Privadtéd, we therefore intend
to utilize a part of the Net Proceeds amounting® t8542.30 Lakhs towards capital expenditure requérgsin relation to
installation of additional plant and machinerytatfactory unit located at Plot no B-2, Elcina Etenics Manufacturing Cluster,
Industrial Area Salarpur, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar, jBsthan- 301019. The infusion of funds by our Conypia our Subsidiary is
proposed to be undertaken in the form of equitgtedst or a combination of both or in any other marasemay be decided by our
Company. The actual mode of such deployment hadeen finalized as on the date of this Draft RedriHg Prospectus. The
fund requirements, the deployment of funds andiniended use of the Net Proceeds, for installatibadditional plant and
machinery, as described herein are based on owentususiness plan, current and valid quotatioosmfsuppliers, and other
commercial and technical factors. However, suchl testimated cost and related fund requirements nav been appraised by
any bank or financial institution or any other ipdadent agency.

A detailed breakup of estimated cost towards pueltd machineries, equipment’s and utilities whacl proposed to be funded
from the net issue proceeds is set forth below:

(Zin lakhs)
S. No. Machinery details Qty. Quotation details Qu;fr?tt ion
1 Singulation with Pick and place 1 Vide a Performa invoice dated May 08, 2024 frpm 455.98
' system Genesem Inc. Korea for USD 545, '
L . Vide a Performa invoice dated April 2024 from Dongg
2. Steel Strip tinning equipment L Allmerit Technology Co. Ltd for USD 4500( 37540
Vide a Performa invoice dated May 13 2024 from iBgjj
3. Acco Test Base system 8200 1| Huafeng Test & Control Technology Co. Ltd for USD 99.44
119200
Auto test handler fo Vide a Performa invoice dated May 23 2024 from SRM
4. Semiconductor Industry 1 Integration (Malaysia) SDN. BHD. for USD 195000. 2163
Model- ZF32
Fully Automatic Grinder/| . .
: - Quotation dated May 25, 2024 from Disco Corporafian
> | Polisher& Fully automatic mult 11 (jsp 1,780,000 each valid for 90 days. 1484.93
. . Quotation dated April 23, 2024 from Kulicke & Sofff E
6. Automatic Wire bonder 1 Ltd for USD 16400 eacl valid for 9C days 136.81
Stereo Microscone Quotation dated May 15, 2024 from Shenzhen Aguta
7. Model No.- XBZ-830T] 1 Industrial Co., Ltd. Guilin Optical Instrument Faoy., 0.54
B Shenzhen Offic for USD 65( eact valid for 90 day.
Mitutoyo make Profile Projector, Quotation dated May 22, 2024 from Mitutoyo SouthiaAs
8. PJ-PLUS series, model: RBJ 1 Private Limited for INR 82.8 Lakhs each valid for|3 8.28
PIOIOA month:.
9 BLUE-M curing oven 2 Quotation dated April 23, 2024 from Mitutoyo Souwkia 99.59
' Model- DCI-33€ Private Limitedfor USD 5968 eacl valid for 90 day: )
TOTAL 2822.95
Less— Advance already Pe 280.6¢
Balance to be paid 2542.30

As per Quotation received from Supplier
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The Quotation was received in US$ & JPY (Source + YS$ =
www.rbi.org.in/scripts/ReferenceRateArchive.aspredday 30, 2024)

83.4231 INR, 1JPY = 0.5318 INR)

Notes

a) We have considered the above quotations for thgdtady estimate purpose and have not placed ofoleadl the machines.
The actual cost of procurement and actual supgéetér may vary.

b) All quotations received from the vendors mentiomddve are valid as on the date of this Draft Redihig Prospectus.
However, we have not entered into any definitiveeagents with any of these vendors and there ca lssurance that the
same vendors would be engaged to eventually supelynachineries/equipment’s or at the same costs.

c) The machinery/equipment models and quantity tourelased are based on the present estimates ofianagement. The
Management shall have the flexibility to reviselsastimates (including but not limited to changenafchinery or vendor or
addition/deletion of any machinery) at the timeaofual placement of the order. In such case, theag@ment can utilize the
surplus of proceeds, if any, arising at the timeactual placement of the order, to meet the costuch other machinery,
equipment’s or utilities, as required for manufaictg. Furthermore, if any surplus from the proceesirains after meeting
the total cost of machineries, equipment’s anditietl for the aforesaid purpose, the same will Bedufor our general
corporate purposes, subject to limit of 25% ofdheount raised by our Company through this Issue.

d) We are not acquiring any second hand machinery.

e) The quotations relied upon by us in arriving at éifvve cost are valid for a specific period of tiamel may lapse after the
expiry of the said period. Consequent upon whicare could be a possible escalation in the costawhineries proposed to
be acquired by us at the actual time of purchaseilting in increase in the project cost.

Further, cost can be escalated on account of fredghenses, installation charges, packaging & fodwg, custom duty,
applicable taxes etc. Such cost escalation wouldnbe out of either of surplus portion of net isqureceeds (if any) or our
internal accruals.

3. To Meet Working Capital Requirements:

Our Company has on June 15, 2023 entered into r@emgnt for a term of 3 years with a company engjage the business of
designing and marketing of hardware and softwacelywsts like laptops, tablets, servers and IT perials, for the supply of
laptops, tablets, motherboards and related PCB# jsea the specification and purchase orders plagdtie customer from time
to time. Pursuant, to the agreement the compaplaiming to expand its share of business in thietalaptops and computer
hardware products market. For making the said esipanthe company will require additional workingpital majorly for
investment in trade receivables, inventories anghyeet to trade payables and funding day to day atjpers. Our Company
requires additional working capital for funding iteremental working capital requirements in thedficial Years ended March
31, 2025 and March 31, 2026 to the exterZ[®f Lakhs from the Net Proceeds of the Issue andnisaldrom borrowings at an
appropriate time.

With the expansion of the business the companywillde in the need of additional working capitabjuirements for investment
in trade receivables, inventories and paymentadetmpayables and funding day to day operations.Cdmapany will meet the
requirement to the extent dfe] Lakhs from the Net Proceeds of the Issue andnisalfrom borrowings at an appropriate time as
per the requirement.

Details of Estimation of Working Capital requirerhane as follows:

(Zin Lakhs)
Sr Audited (Restated) Projected
Nc; Particulars March February March March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
31,2022 | 21,2023 | 31,2023 2024 2025 2026
Proprietorship Company
| | Current Assets
Inventory 304.0¢ 857.2¢ 801.6¢ 2108.2: 6188.7. 7903.2!
Trade Receivable 459.8¢ 1714.5¢ 1764.7- 2656.6! 6907.3! 8876.0!
Cash & Bank Balance 47.4¢4 178.3¢ 316.6( 1710.0¢ 919.4( 1113.4:
Short term loans and advan 0.12 16.64 60.0¢ 1357.0¢ 1908.9: 2086.0(
Other Current Asset: 1.04 17.9¢ 45.3: 36.8¢ 22.7¢ 56.1¢
Total - Current Assets (1) 812.54 2784.80 2988.42 7868.90 15947.17 20034.84
Il | Current Liabilities
Trade Payable 454.9¢ 1236.9¢ 1292.2¢ 1756.2! 3037.0¢ 3816.2!
Other Current Liabilitie: 70.94 381.2: 640.8¢ 680.9¢ 1093.9° 1203.3
Short term Provision 88.4¢ 270.4 143.6: 127.6: 813.9: 1005.4:
Total - Current Liabilities (I1) 614.35 1888.72 206.78 2564.83 4944.97 6024.99
i '\I'St Working Capital Requirement (I | 146 19 | gog08 | 911.64| 530407  11002p 14009,
IV | Funding Pattern
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Sr Audited (Restated) Projected
Nc; Particulars March February March March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
31,2022 | 21,2023 | 31, 2023 2024 2025 2026
Proprietorship Company
Short term Borrowings and Interngl 198.19 896.08 911.64 5304.07 [o] [o]
Accruals
IPO Proceeds [e] [o]

Assumptions for working capital requirements

The following table sets forth the details of thiding period (with days rounded to the nearestletmumber) considered for
financial period/ years ended March 31 2022, Falyr@d, 2023, March 31 2023 & March 31 2024 as wslliprojections for
financial year ended March 31, 2025.

March 31, | February | March 31, | March March March
Particulars Unit 2022 21, 2023 2023 31,2024 | 31,2025 | 31, 2026
(Proprietor) (Company)
Debtors Days 77 9t 66 96 9C 9C
Creditor: Days 10€ 12E 70 121 52 53
Inventoiies Days 71 87 43 14¢£ 107 10¢

Justification:

Our company deals in electronic manufacturing aedrad 80—90% of our business comes from expoft to
various countries, i.e., the United States, Europsauntries, South Africa, etc. Exporting produittsn
India to other subcontinents took some time toveelii.e., customs clearance, inspection, in ttansi
logistics, lead time, etc. Secondly, being eledtra@romponents; these products are subject to extens
verification and examination by the buyers, so Hasethe experience from the past and understarndep
rotation of sales from the dispatch of goods to tkeeiving of money from debtors may take
approximately 80-90 days. Further, consideringekgansion we are planning to undertake in the fapto
and tablet markets, may also require us to prokigker credits to our customers to gain marketes

Trade Receivables

Our creditor payments days for FY 2021-22 were d&s, FY 2022-23 were 125 days, and FY 202324
were 121 days. Looking ahead, we are expectingdoupe the products in bulk quantities and makéyejar
payments to the vendors, which will help us iniggtbetter prices, improve our business prospauts| a
face competition in a better mani

Trade payables

The company has signed an agreement to manufdapiops and tablets, and the components that wi|l b
required to manufacture these components will bpryamported, hence we believe that the inventpry
days of the company will be at a higher side in¢bming financial year and also the cost of invaeto

Inventory will also increase due to the same. Therefore,rdeoto continue to production cycle the company is
required to maintain a minimum level of inventotyaay point of time, so as to assure smooth runofng
the production schedule at all times and reducetaty@ of components. Therefore, the company expects
the Inventory days to be in the range3.5 month going forwart.

Short term loans Short-term loans and advances include balancesgeitirnment authorities and other loans and adgance

Other loans and advances include loans to its gialogi company, Sahasra Semiconductors Private

and advances Limited

4. General Corporate Purpose

Our management, in accordance with the policieswfBoard, will have flexibility in utilizing the noceeds earmarked for
general corporate purposes. We intend to deployalence Fresh issue proceeds aggregatimj towards the general corporate
purposes to drive our business growth. In accorelavith the policies set up by our Board, we haesiliility in applying the
remaining Net Proceeds, for general corporate marpacluding but not restricted to, meeting opegatexpenses, initial
development costs for projects other than the ifledtprojects, and the strengthening of our bussngevelopment and marketing
capabilities, meeting exigencies, which the Compiartyre ordinary course of business may not foresesny other purposes as
approved by our Board of Directors, subject to climmge with the necessary provisions of the Comgmaict, 2013.

We confirm that any Offer related expenses shallbeoconsidered as a part of General CorporateoBarg-urther, we confirm
that the amount for general corporate purposemeasioned in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus,|siatl exceed 25% of the
amount raised by our Company through this Offer.

Public Offer Expenses

The total estimated Offer Expenses &rge], which is [#] % of the total Offer Size. The details of the @ffExpenses are
tabulated below:
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Activities Estimated As a % of As a % of
Expenses Estimates Offer Offer Size
(X in Lakh) Expenses

Book Running Lead Manger F¢ [e] [o] [e]

Fees Payble to Registrar to the Off [e] [o] [e]

Fees Payable for Advertising and Publishing Expg [e] [o] [e]

Fees Payable to Regulators including Stock Exct [e] [o] [e]

Payment for Printing & Stationery, Postage, [e] [o] [e]

Fees Payable to Attor, Legal Advisors and other Professiol [e] [o] [e]

Others (Fees payable for Marketing & distributiorpenses [e] [o] [e]

Selling Commission, Syndicate Members Commissionk&rage,

Processing Fees*, Underwriting fees and Miscellasdéxpense

Total [e] [o] [o]

Offer expenses will be finalized on determinatiérOffer Price and incorporated at the time of fgirof the Prospectus. Offer
expenses are estimates and are subject to change.

(1) Amounts will be finalised and incorporated in theo$pectus on determination of Offer Price. Offepenses include
applicable taxes, where applicable. Offer expemsesstimates and are subject to change.

(2) Selling commission payable to the SCSBs on thdopofor Retail Individual Bidders. Non-InstitutiohBidders, which
are directly procured by the SCSBs, would be dgvsl

Portion for Retail Individual Bidders’ [e] % of the Amoun Allotted* (plus applicable taxes

Portion for Nor-Institutional Bidders’ [e] % of the Amoun Allotted* (plus applicable taxes
*Amount allotted is the product of the number ofilsqShares Allotted and the Offer Price. The sglicommission payable to
the SCSBs will be determined on the basis of thdirig terminal ID as captured in the Bid Book oEB® NSE

(3) No uploading/ processing fees shall be payableuryGompany to the SCSBs on the applications dirgotbcured by them.
Processing fees payable to the SCSBs on the pdidioiRetail Individual Bidders and Non-InstitutidnBidders which
are procured by the members of the Syndicate/ gnbiGate/ Registered Broker/ CRTAs/ CDPs and siidnio SCSB for
blocking, would be as follows:

Portion for Retail Individual Bidde [e] per valid Bid cum Application Form (plus applicaltéexes
Portion for Nor-Institutional Bidder [e] per valid Bid cum Application Form (plus applicaltéexes

Notwithstanding anything contained above the tptakcessing fee payable under this clause will noceed[e] (plus applicable
taxes) and in case if the total processing feegens]e] (plus applicable taxes) then processing fees lvéllpaid on pro-rata
basis.

(4) The processing fees for applications made by Rietdividual Bidders using the UPI Mechanism wouddds follows:

Members of the Syndicate/ RTAs/ CDP®] per valid application (plus applicable taxes)
(uploadin¢ charges
Sponsor Bank [-e] [e] per valid Bid cum Application Formfplus applicable taxes) The Sponsor Bank
shall be responsible for making payments to thel tparties such as remitter bank,
NPCI and such other parties as required in conmectvith the performance of its
dutiesundeithe SEBIcirculars, the Syndical Agreemer andothel applicable laws
*For each valid application by respective SponsanB

Notwithstanding anything contained above in thausk the total Uploading charges/ Processing fegslge to Members of the
Syndicate/ RTAs/ CDPs for applications made by Rilsto <200,000), Non-Institutional Bidders (for an amoumore than
2200,000 and up t&500,000) using the UPI Mechanism and in case iftth& uploading charges/ processing fees exc¢etls
(plus applicable taxes) then uploading charges/ cpesing fees using UPI Mechanism will be paid anrpta basis.

(5) Selling commission on the portion for Retail Indivél Bidders and Non-Institutional Bidders whichearprocured by
members of the Syndicate (including their sub-®atdiMembers), Registered Brokers, CRTAs and CbRs cusing 3-in-1
type accounts- linked online trading, demat & backount provided by some of the Registered Brokbish are Members
of the Syndicate (including their Sub-Syndicate bns) would be as follows:

Portion for Retail Individual Bidder: [e] % of the Amoun Allotted* (plus applicable taxes
Portion for Nor-Institutional Bidder: [e] % of the Amoun Allotted* (plus applicable taxes

*Amount Allotted is the product of the number ofilBgShares Allotted and the Offer Price
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Uploading charges payable to Members of the Symeliacluding their sub-Syndicate Members), CRTAd €DPs on the
applications made by RIBs using 3-in-1 accounts Biod-Institutional Bidders which are procured byemth and submitted to
SCSB for blocking or using 3-in- 1 accounts, wdmtdas follows]e] plus applicable taxes, per valid application big the
Syndicate (including their sub-Syndicate Memb&8TAs and CDPs.

Bidding charges payable to the Registered BrokeRSTAs/ CDPs on the portion for RIBs and Non-Instihal Bidders which are
directly procured by the Registered Brokers or CRBA CDPs and submitted to SCSB for processingdvbelas follows:

Portion for Retail Individual Bidders’ [e] per valid applicatior (plus applicable taxe:
Portion for Nor-Institutional Bidders’ [e] per valid applicatior (plus applicable taxe:
* Based on valid applications

Notwithstanding anything contained above the totdbading/ bidding charges payable under this ctauéll not exceedle] (plus
applicable taxes) and in case if the total uplogdihidding charges exceefie] (plus applicable taxes) then uploading charges
will be paid on pro-rata basis.

The Selling Commission payable to the Syndicate/SSmdicate Members will be determined on the bekithe Bid cum
Application Form number/ series, provided that #pplication is also bid by the respective Syndic&eb-Syndicate Member.
For clarification, if a Syndicate ASBA application the Bid cum Application Form number/ seriea 8yndicate/ Sub-Syndicate
Member, is bid by an SCSB, the Selling Commissitbtevpayable to the SCSB and not the Syndicatb/S/ndicate Member.
Bidding Charges payable to members of the Synd{gatkiding their sub-Syndicate Members), CRTAs @BdPs on the portion
for RIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders which areopured by them and submitted to SCSB for blockiogld be as follows:
[e] plus applicable taxes, per valid application Higl the Syndicate (including their sub-Syndicate blens), CRTAs and CDPs.

The selling commission and bidding charges paybRegistered Brokers the CRTAs and CDPs will heragéned on the basis
of the bidding terminal ID as captured in the Bidd& of BSE or NSE

All such commissions and processing fees set amweathall be paid as per the timelines in termthefSyndicate Agreement and
Escrow and Sponsor Bank Agreement. Further, thegasing fees for applications made by UPI Biddestgi the UPI
Mechanism may be released to the remitter bankSBSTonly after such banks provide a written comdiion on compliance
with SEBI Circular No: SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/20B/0 dated June 2, 2021 read with SEBI Circular No:
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 2621.

Proposed Schedule of Implementation:

The proposed year wise break up of deploymentmdgiand Schedule of Implementation of Net OffercBeals is as under:

(X In Lakhs)
Sr. | Particulars Amount to be deployed and utilized in
No. F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2025-26
1. Fund[ng Capital Expendlturg towa}(ds !nstallatmj addnmngl plfmt and 3,549.00 2.479.04
machineryat new manufacturing facility situatedBhiwadi, Rajasthe
2. Investment in our Subsidiary, Sahasra Semicdodaidrivate Limited for
financing its capital expenditure requirementsdtation towards installation 2,542.30 -
of additional plant and maching
3. To Meet Working Capital Requireme [e] [e]
4. General Corporate Purpos [o] [e]
Total [e] [e]

To the extent our Company is unable to utilize pastion of the Net Proceeds towards the Objectpeashe estimated schedule
of deployment specified above, our Company shatllajethe Net Proceeds in the subsequent Financégry towards the
Objects.

Appraisal

None of the Objects have been appraised by any bafikancial institution or any other independémitd-party organization.
The funding requirements of our Company and thdogepent of the proceeds of the Offer are curretiged on available
quotations and management estimates. The fundiopgreznents of our Company are dependent on a nuofbiactors which
may not be in the control of our management, inoigdbut not limited to variations in interest raguctures, changes in our
financial condition and current commercial condiscof our Business and are subject to change lint ti§ changes in external
circumstances or in our financial condition, busmer strategy.
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Shortfall of Funds
Any shortfall in meeting the fund requirements Wil met by way of internal accruals and or unsetuoans.
Bridge Financing Facilities

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospeoiteshave not entered into any bridge finance gearents that will be repaid
from the Net Proceeds. However, in case of delahénlPO and consequent delay in accessing thproeeeds of the Issue, we
may draw down such amounts, as may be requireah, & overdraft arrangement/ cash credit/ term faaitity with our lenders
or through unsecured loans to finance for purcledssich machineries as described in the sectioe® of the Issue’ until
completion of the Issue. Any amount that is drawwi from such facility availed from any Bank/NBFE€ Einancial Institution
or through unsecured loans during this periodrtarfce ‘Objects of the Issue’ will be repaid frore thet Proceeds of the Issue.

Monitoring Utilization of Funds

In accordance with Regulation 262 of the SEBI ICRBgulations, our Company has appointefids the monitoring agency
(“Monitoring Agency”) to monitor the utilisation dhe Net Proceeds. Our Company undertakes to piecélet Proceeds in a
separate bank account which shall be monitorechbyMonitoring Agency for utilisation of the Net Reeds. Our Company
undertakes to place the report(s) of the Monitoxgency on receipt before the Audit Committee withany delay and in

accordance with the applicable laws. Our Comparlydigclose the utilisation of the Net Proceeds]uding interim use under a
separate head in its balance sheet for such fiabyear/periods as required under the SEBI ICDRuReipns, the SEBI Listing

Regulations and any other applicable laws or raguls, specifying the purposes for which the Netdéeds have been utilised.
Our Company will also, in its balance sheet for éipplicable financial year, provide details, if airy relation to all such Net

Proceeds that have not been utilised, if any, of swrrently unutilized Net Proceeds.

The reports of the monitoring agency on the utiia of the Net Proceeds shall indicate the deplaytof the Net Proceeds
under the following heads:

1. Funding Capital Expenditure towards installatioradflitional plant and machinery at new manufactufacility situated
at Bhiwadi, Rajasthan;

2. Investment in our Subsidiary, Sahasra Semicondsi®dwvate Limited for financing its capital expetode requirements in
relation towards installation of additional plandamachinery;

3. To Meet Working Capital Requirements

4. General Corporate Purposes

Pursuant to Regulation 32(3) of the SEBI ListinggRations, our Company shall, on a quarterly badisclose to the Audit
Committee the uses and applications of the Netd@w& On an annual basis, our Company shall prepatatement of funds
utilised for purposes other than those stated énDhaft Red Herring Prospectus and place it befeeecAudit Committee and
make other disclosures as may be required until siute as the Net Proceeds remain unutilized. Slimtlosure shall be made
only until such time that all the Net Proceeds hbgen utilized in full. The statutory auditor ofrdDompany will also provide
report/ certificate on the utilization of the NebBeeds to the monitoring agency.

Furthermore, in accordance with Regulation 32(1xhef SEBI Listing Regulations, our Company shalnfsh to the Stock
Exchanges on a quarterly basis, a statement inmaicé) deviations, if any, in the actual utilizati of the proceeds of the Fresh
Issue from the Obijects; and (ii) details of catggeise variations in the actual utilization of theoceeds of the Fresh Issue from
the objects of the Fresh Issue as stated abovs. ifffurmation will also be published in newspapgmultaneously with the
interim or annual financial results and explanafmnsuch variation (if any) will be included in lodirectors’ report, after placing
the same before the Audit Committee.

Interim Use of Proceeds

Pending utilization of the Net Proceeds for thepoges described above, our Company will deposiNigiteProceeds only with
scheduled commercial banks included in the Secategdile of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934amended, as may be
approved by our Board. In accordance with SectibofZhe Companies Act, 2013, our company confitinas it shall not use the
Net Proceeds for buying, trading or otherwise aeggin shares of any other listed company or for iawgstment in the equity
markets or investing in any real estate produceal estate linked products.

Variation in Objects

In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies 2013, our Company shall not vary the objects ef Igsue without our
Company being authorized to do so by the Sharer®loye way of a special resolution. In addition, tietice issued to the
Shareholders in relation to the passing of sucltiapeesolution shall specify the prescribed detais required under the
Companies Act and shall be published in accordavitte the Companies Act and the rules there under.p8r the current
provisions of the Companies Act, our Promotersantolling Shareholders would be required to prevésh exit opportunity to
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such shareholders who do not agree to the propmsalky the objects, at such price, and in suchrmagras may be prescribed by
SEBI, in this regard.

Other confirmations
There are no material existing or anticipated t@atisns with our Promoters, our Directors and oam@any’s key Managerial
personnel, in relation to the utilization of thetNeoceeds (except for the proceeds of Offer ft&)sélo part of the Net Proceeds

(excluding the Offer for sale) will be paid by us eonsideration to our Promoters, our director&ey managerial personnel
except in the normal course of business and in dange with the applicable laws.

77



Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

BASIS FOR OFFER PRICE

Investors should read the following summary wita #ection titled'Risk Factors”, the details about our Company under the
section titled“Our Business” and its financial statements under the sectideditFinancial Information of the Company”
beginning on page 25, 95 and 142 respectively®ttraft Red Herring Prospectus. The trading pri¢ehe Equity Shares of Our
Company could decline due to these risks and testor may lose all or part of his investment.

Price Band/ Offer Price shall be determined by @oampany and Selling shareholder in consultatioh wie Book Running Lead
Manager on the basis of the assessment of markert® for the Equity Shares through the Book Buddirocess and on the
basis of the qualitative and quantitative fact@slascribed in this section. The face value ofEfeity Shares i€ 10/- each and
the offer Price is4] times of the face value at the lower end of thied®Band and4] times of the face value at the upper end of
the Price Band.

For the purpose of making an informed investmeustsilen, the investors should also ref@isk Factors, “ Our Busines$ and
“Financial Statement as restatédeginning on page 295 and 142 respectively of this Draft Red Herrimggpectus.

QUALITATIVE FACTORS

We believe the following business strengths all@mai successfully compete in the industry and ghlewing are our primary
competitive strength:

Dedicated solutions for ESDM services.

Established relationships with customers acrosswsicountries
Established manufacturing capabilities

Quality Assurance

Experienced Promoters, management and operating tea

aogprOdDE

For a detailed discussion on the qualitative factohich form the basis for computing the price apke refer to sections titled
“Our Business” beginning on page 95 of the Draft Red Herring pectus.

QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

The information presented below relating to our @any is based on the Restated Financial Statenfemtsletails, please refer
section titled'Financial Information of the Company” on page 142 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Some of the quantitative factors which may formhhsis for calculating the Offer Price are as fofio
1. Basic & Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) (Face vak of% 10 each), as adjusted for change in capital:

As per the Restated Financial Statements;

Sr. No Period (Amount in X) Weights
1. Period ending March 31, 20 141 1
2. Period ending March 31, 23* 11.41 2
3. Period ending March 3:202¢ 18.(5 3
Weighted Average 13.06

*EPS for the period March 31, 2023 have been calimd considering the combined EPS of the compartyhéoperiod February

21, 2023 to March 31, 2023 and for the erstwhilegoietorship for the period April 01, 2022 to Felary 20, 2023.

Notes:

i The figures disclosed above are based on the ResEhancial Statements of the Company as adjusittdthe effect of
issue of Bonus shares.

i The face value of each Equity Shar&i8.00.

iii. Earnings per Share has been calculated in accordamith Accounting Standard 20 — “Earnings per Sharéssued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

iv. The above statement should be read with Signifigssttounting Policies and the Notes to the Rest&iedncial
Statements as appearing in Annexure V.

V. Basic Earnings per Share = Net Profit/(Loss) aft@x, as restated attributable to equity sharehoddeYWeighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the Apariod

Vi. Diluted Earnings per Share = Net Profit/ (Loss)eaftax, as restated attributable to equity shareleos / Weighted
average number of diluted potential equity shaneistanding during the year/ period.
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2. Price Earning (P/E) Ratio in relation to the PriceBand of X [e] to ¥ [e] per Equity Share of Face Value oR 10+ each
fully paid up

Particulars (P/E) Ratio at the | (P/E) Ratio at
Floor Price the Cap Price

P/E ratio based on the Basic & Diluted EPS, astedtfor period ending March 3202<, [o] [o]
P/E ratio based on the Weighted Average EPS, tseds [e] [e]
Industry P/E Ratio*
Highest Kaynes Technology India Limiti) 121.4°
Lowest (Trident Techlabs Limite 110.1¢
Industry Average 115.83

*For the purpose of industry, we believe the congamengaged in the same sector or engaged in thiasiline of business
segment, however, they may not be exactly compaialérms of size or business portfolio on a widté that of our business.
Average PE have been calculated based on the RtedPeer company of Kaynes Technology India LimStddident Techlabs
Limited.

Note:

i. The P/E ratio has been computed by dividing OffézePwith EPS.

i. P/E Ratio of the company is based on the exchangeumcement of the company for the year 2024 auk €ixchange data
dated June 13, 2024.

3. Return on Net worth (RoNW)*

Sr. No | Period RoNW (%) Weights
1. Period ending March 31, 24 54.09% 3
2. Period ending March 31, 23** 100.19% 2
3. Period ending March 31, 22 16.44% 1
Weighted Average 63.16%

*Restated Profit after tax/Net Worth

*RoNW for the period March 31, 2023 have been dated considering the combined PAT of the compamytHfe period
February 21, 2023 to March 31, 2023 and for theehnile proprietorship for the period April 01, 202@ February 20, 2023 and
divided by Networth as on March 31, 2023.

Note:
i. The RoNW has been computed by dividing net pritéit tax (excluding exceptional items) with resthiet worth as at the
end of the year/period

4. Net Asset Value (NAV) per Equity Share:

Sr. No. | NAV per Equity Share* Amount in
1. As at March 31, 2022 8.57
2. As at February 21, 2023 13.55
3. As at March 31, 2023 11.43
4. As at March 31, 2024 33.37
5. NAV per Equity Share after the Offer
i) At Floor Price [o]
i) At Cap Price [o]
6 Offer Price [o]

*The above NAV has been calculated giving the effieBonus Shares

Note:

i. The NAV per Equity Share has been computed \nglin restated networth with weighted average neindf equity shares
outstanding at the end of the year/ period.

5. Comparison of Accounting Ratios with Industry Peers

Name of Company Current Face Value| EPS * R) PE RoNW | Book Value | Total Income
Market Price ® (%) * ® (% in Lakhs)
®)
Sahasra Electronit [o] 10.00 1805 | ¢ | 54.00% 33.37 10278.79
Solutions Limite:
Peer Group
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Name of Company Current Face Value| EPS * R) PE RoNW | Book Value | Total Income
Market Price ® (%) * ® (% in Lakhs)
| @
Eﬁ’i’t‘:ds Technology India 3720.65 10.00 30.63 | 12147  7.37 389.37 186053.50
Trident Techlabs Limite 608.2( 10.0( 55; | 110.1¢| 20.1 26.9¢ 7300.3!
Notes:

(i) Source — Annual report of the company for the y&#4 and stock exchange data dated June 13, 2G#4od Company,
we have taken CMP as the Offer price of equity shBurther, P/E Ratio is based on the CMP of ttepegtive scrip’s.

(i) The EPS, NAV, RoNW and revenue from operationseo€ompany are taken as per Restated Financiab®iett for the
Financial Year 2023-24 as adjusted with the efeé@onus Issue.

(iif) P/E Ratio of the company is based on the Annualrtegf the company for the year 2024 and stock amxgh data dated
June 13, 2024.

(iv) RoONW has been computed as net profit after taxi@ivby closing net worth.

(v) Net worth has been computed in the manner as ggeifRegulation 2(1) (hh) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulas, 2018.

(vi) The face value of Equity Shares of our Comparyli6/- per Equity Share and the Offer price ¢ fimes the face value of
equity share.

6. Key Performance Indicators

The KPIs disclosed below have been used histoyidall our Company to understand and analyze thenbssiperformance,
which in result, help us in analyzing the growthvafious verticals in comparison to our peers.

The KPIs disclosed below have been approved bgauton of our Audit Committee dated June 11, 2884 the members of
the Audit Committee have verified the details dof iPIs pertaining to our Company. Further, the mersbof the Audit
Committee have confirmed that there are no KPIsapeng to our Company that have been disclosednip investors at any
point of time during the three years period priothe date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Ppestus. Further, the KPIs herein
have been certified by M/s. Kapoor Tandon & Co. i@rad Accountants, by their certificate dated Jiihe2024.

The KPIs of our Company have been disclosed inst@ions titled“Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opations — Key Performance Indicatorsin pages 95 and 214, respectively.
We have described and defined the KPIs, as apicab‘Definitions and Abbreviations”on page 1 of this Draft Red Herring

Prospectus.

Our Company confirms that it shall continue to ttise all the KPIs included in this section on aigmic basis, at least once in a
year (or any lesser period as determined by thedBofour Company), for a duration of one yearrafte date of listing of the
Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange or till the glete utilisation of the proceeds of the Freshesas per the disclosure made
in the Objects of the Offer Section, whicheveraget or for such other duration as may be requineder the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

Key Performance Indicators of our Company
(¥ In Lakhs except percentages and ratios)

As of and for the year/period ended
. February 22, April 1, 2022 to
FEIHELES March 31, 2024 | 2023 to rl\};larch Igebruary 21, | March 31, 2022
31, 2023 2023
Revenue from Operatio® 10115.2° 1043.: 5865.2: 2175.6
EBITDA® 3526.5¢ 246.2: 1876.8¢ 377.4¢
EBITDA Margin® 34.8t% 23.61% 32.0% 17.3"%
Profit After Tax (PAT 3262.7 230.5¢ 1794.5¢ 250.17
PAT Margir® 32.2t% 22.1% 30.6(% 11.5(%
ROE®) 54.0% 11.3% 73.7% 16.4%
ROCE® 42.5(% 9.11% 56.81% 16.3(%
Notes:

(MRevenue from Operations means the Revenue fronafiiper as appearing in the Restated Financial Steatets.

@EBITDA is calculated as Profit before tax + Depraion + Interest Cost - Other Income

© ‘EBITDA Margin’ is calculated as EBITDA divided Revenue from Operations

@ ‘PAT Margin’ is calculated as PAT for the periodar divided by revenue from operations.

®)Return on Equity is ratio of Profit after Tax anda®eholder Equity

®Return on Capital Employed is calculated as EBNidtid by capital employed, which is defined as shalders’ equity plus
total borrowings {current & non-current}.
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Explanation for KPI metrics

KPI Explanations

Revenue from Operations Revenue from Operationsed by the management to track the revenue pualfillee business and
in turn helps to assess the overall financial perénce of our Company and volume of our busirjess
in key vertical

EBITDA EBITDA provides information regarding the operagbefficiency of the busine

EBITDA Margin (%) EBITDA Margin (%) is an indicataf the operational profitability and financial fammance of our
busines

PAT Profit after tax provides information regarding theerall profitability of the busines

PAT Margin (% PAT Margin (%) is an indicator of the overall prtafility and financial performance of our busin

ROE(% ROE provides how efficiently our Company genergiesits from shareholders ‘func

RoOCE (%) ROCE provides how efficiently our Compaggnerates earnings from the capital employed in| the
busines:
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7. Set forth below are the details of comparison of keperformance of indicators with our listed industry peers:

(Z In Lakhs except percentages and ratios)

Key Financial Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited Kaynes Technology India Limited Trident Techlabs Limited
Performance FY February April 1, FY 2021-22| FY 2023- | FY 2022- | FY 2021-22| FY 2023-24 | FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
2023-24 22,2023 to 2022 to 24 23
March 31, February
2023 21, 2023
Revenue from operatio 10115.2 1043.: 5865.2: 2175.6! 180461.! | 112,611.4 | 70,624.9 7262.0t 6,734.7: 2,974.3:
EBITDA® 3526.5¢ 246.2: 1876.8¢ 377.4¢ 25416.8 16650.! 9281 1596.9: 888.3" 435.2¢
EBITDA Margin (%)® 34.86% 23.61% 32.0(% 17.3"% 14.08% 14.79% 13.14y 21.99¥ 13.19% 14.63%
PAT® 3262.7 230.5¢ 1794.5¢ 250.1% 18328.9 9519.¢ 4167. 936.7¢ 466.6¢ 64.4¢
PAT Margin (%® 32.2¢% 22.1% 30.6(% 11.5(% 10.16¥% 8.45% 5.90% 12.90¥ 6.93% 2.17%
RoE(%® 54.09% 11.3% 73.7% 16.4% 10.63¥% 16.36% 24.25Y% 28.32% 28.34% 4.95Y%
RoCE (%™ 42.5% 9.11% 56.81% 16.3(% 10.20% 14.52% 22.44Y 24.26Y 20.84% 8.32%

*All the information for listed industry peer meatied above are on a standalone basis and is sduocedheir respective audited/ unaudited finanaislults and/or annual report.

Notes:

(M Revenue from Operations means the Revenue fronatper as appearing in the Restated Financial $tatets/ Annual Reports of the respected

@ Growth in Revenue from Operations (%) is calculats Revenue from Operations of the relevant pariouis Revenue from Operations of the precedinmgedivided by Revenue
from Operations of the preceding period.

G EBITDA is calculated as Profit before tax + Depratin + Interest Cost - Other Income

@) ‘EBITDA Margin’ is calculated as EBITDA divided Revenue from Operations

®) ‘PAT Margin’ is calculated as PAT for the periodar divided by revenue from operations.
® Net worth means the aggregate value of the paidhape capital and all reserves created out ofghafits and securities premium account
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8. Weighted average cost of acquisition
a) The price per share of our Company based on theapyi new issue of shares (equity/convertible ddesy

Except as stated below, there has been no issudriequity Shares, during the 18 months precedirgdate of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus, where such issuanegual to or more than 5% of the fully diluteddsap share capital
of the Company (calculated based on the pre-isapéat before such transaction(s) and excluding leyae stock
options granted but not vested), in a single tretisa or multiple transactions combined togethezraw span of 30 days.

Date of No. of equity | Face value pe Issue price per Nature of Nature of Total
Allotment Shares Equity share | Equity share ) (Including | allotment | consideration | Consideration
allotted ®) Securities Premium) (in X lakhs)
February 224 29 69,500 10/- 10/- subscription) "eTY CSRLE| o o
2024 205 to MOA y :
than cas
February 16, ¢ g0 591 10/- 202/- Private Cash 1374.79
202/ Placemer
February 29, 5 64 672 10/- 202/- Private Cash 534.64
202/ Placemer

b) The price per share of our Company based on tl@ndecy sale/ acquisition of shares (Equity Shares)

There have been no secondary sale/acquisitiongjaityEShares, where the promoters, members of theqter group
or shareholder(s) having the right to nominate alo€s) in the board of directors of the Compang arparty to the
transaction (excluding gifts), during the 18 monpineceding the date of this certificate, whereegithcquisition or sale
is equal to or more than 5% of the fully diluteddpap share capital of the Company (calculated dbasethe pre-Offer
capital before such transaction/s and excludingleyee stock options granted but not vested), imgls transaction or
multiple transactions combined together over a sgaalling 30 days.

Weighted average cost of acquisition, floor pricerad cap price:

Weighted average cost of Floor price* | Cap price*
Types of transactions acquisition R per Equity e ?p[.]) ( gg [o])
Shares) o o

Weighted average cost of acquisition of primaryefnissue ag 19.60 [o] times [o] times
per paragraph 8(a) abo )

Weighted average cost of acquisition for secondasafte/
acquisition as per paragraph 8(b) ab

NA? [e] times [e] times

Note:

AThere were no secondary sale/ acquisition as meetl in paragraph 8(b) above, in last 18 monthsnfithe date of this Red
Herring Prospectus.

* To be updated at Prospectus stage.

Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited is a Book Blssue and the price band for the same shall béiged 2 working days
before opening of the Offer in all editions of #eglish national newspapes][ all editions of Hindi national newspaper] [and
Delhi Edition of Regional newspapew][where the registered office of the company isaséd each with wide circulation.

The Offer Price of [e] has been determined by our Company and SellirageBlolder in consultation with the BRLM and wiill
be justified by us in consultation with the BRLM tre basis of the above information. Investors &hoead the abovementioned
information along with“Our Business”, “Risk Factors” and “Restated Finanal Statements”on pages 95, 25 and 142
respectively, to have a more informed view. Thelitrg price of the Equity Shares of our Company dadgcline due to the
factors mentioned ifiRisk Factors” or any other factors that may arise in the futarel you may lose all or part of your
investments.
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STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS

To,

The Board of Directors,

Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

33, Pocket 1, Jasola Vihar, New Friends Colony,

South Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110025
Dear Sirs/ Madam,

Sub: Statement of Tax Benefits (‘The Statement’) ailable to Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited (“The Company”) and
its shareholders under the Direct and Indirect TaxLaws in India

We hereby report that the enclosed annexure prégaréhe management &ahasra Electronic Solutions Limited states the
special tax benefits available to the Company &edshareholders of the Company under the IncomeAE8x1961, the Central
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Integratedd&@nd Services Tax Act, 2017, the Union Territ@ods and Services
Tax Act, 2017, respective State Goods and ServieesAct, 2017 (collectively the “GST Act”) presentin force in India.
Several of these benefits are dependent on the @oymr its shareholders fulfilling the conditionggcribed under the relevant
provisions of the Act. Hence, the ability of ther@many or its shareholders to derive the tax benefilependent upon fulfilling
such conditions which, based on business impematilrgch the Company may face in the future, the Gamy may or may not
choose to fulfill.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Annexurerconly special tax benefits available to the Comypand do not cover any
general tax benefits available to the Company.Heuytthe preparation of enclosed statement andaheents stated therein is the
responsibility of the Company’s management. We iafermed that, this Statement is only intended tovje general
information to the investors and is neither designer intended to be a substitute for professidarladvice. In view of the
individual nature of the tax consequences and tienging tax laws, each investor is advised to dorgs or her own tax
consultant with respect to the specific tax impglaas arising out of their participation in the posed initial public offering of
Equity shares (“the Issue”) by the Company.

We do not express any opinion or provide any ass@ras to whether:

a) The Company or its shareholders will continue taobthese benefits in future; or
b) The conditions prescribed for availing the bendfase been/would be met.

The contents of the enclosed statement are bas@dfamation, explanations and representationsiobthfrom the Company
and on the basis of our understanding of the basiaetivities and operations of the Company.

Our views are based on facts and assumptions tedita us and the existing provisions of tax law &8s interpretations, which
are subject to change or modification from timeitwe by subsequent legislative, regulatory, adniaise, or judicial decisions.
Any such changes, which could also be retrospeativeld have an effect on the validity of our viestated herein.

We assume no obligation to update this statemeringrevents subsequent to its issue, which may aawaterial effect on the
discussions herein. This report including enclogedexure are intended solely for your informatiod &or the inclusion in the
Draft offer document/ offer document or any othesuie related material in connection with the predasitial public offer of the
Company and is not to be used, referred to oriligd for any other purpose without our prior verit consent.

This statement has been prepared solely in commeetith the Proposed Issue by the Company underStwurities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disete Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended.
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ANNEXURE TO THE STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS

The information provided below sets out the spetairlbenefits available to the Company and the tgdsiareholders under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 presently in force in Indigisl not exhaustive or comprehensive and is nenided to be a substitute for
professional advice. Investors are advised to dottseir own tax consultant with respect to the it@plications of an investment
in Equity Shares particularly in view of the fabtat certain recently enacted legislation may nethea direct legal precedent or
may have a different interpretation on the bengfitsich an investor can avail.

A.

SPECIAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT TAX BENEFITS TO THE COM PANY:

» The following specific tax benefits are availabte the Company after fulfilling conditions as pere thespective
provisions of the relevant tax laws. Income aridiregn services provided by unit located in SEZ, ps section 10AA
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“IT Act”), a deductiof an amount equal to one hundred percent of tofitg and gains
derived by any unit located in SEZ for a periodbafonsecutive assessment years beginning fromsgessment year
relevant to the previous year in which the unitibedo provide services. Further an amount equéftiopercent of the
profit and gains derived from services is deduetiior the next 5 years and another next 5 yeareudeduction would
be available to the extent of 50 percent of thdippsovided condition exist in section 10AA shoui@ satisfied. The
Company has its manufacturing unit in SEZ Noida accbrdingly, is eligible for the aforesaid dedanti

» However, the aforesaid deductions are not availafide computing tax liability of the Company undglinimum
Alternative Tax (MAT). Nonetheless, such MAT paialy@able on the book profits of the Company compireterms of
the provisions of IT Act, read with the Companiest,2013 would be eligible for credit against tébllity arising
under normal provisions of tax post tax holidayiqer

SPECIAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT TAX BENEFITS TO THE SHA REHOLDERS:

The Shareholders of the Company are not entitlethyospecial tax benefits under the Income Tax 2@61 and GST Act.

NOTES:

1.

The above Annexure of special tax benefits setstlmitprovisions of Tax Laws in a summary mannel @md is not a
complete analysis or listing of all potential taonsequences of the purchase, ownership and dispiosiaéres.

The above Annexure covers only the special tax fiitenander the Act, read with the relevant rulegscuars and
notifications and does not cover any benefit urater other law in force in India. This Annexure atkwes not discuss any
tax consequences, in the country outside Indianahvestment in the shares of an Indian company.

The above Annexure of special tax benefits is asthee current direct tax laws relevant for the asseent year 2024-25.
Several of these benefits are dependent on the @oymor its shareholders fulfilling the conditionsesgcribed under the
relevant provisions of the Tax Laws.

In respect of non-residents, the tax rates andemprent taxation mentioned above will be furtherjectbto any benefits
available under the relevant Double Taxation AvomaAgreement, if any, entered into between Indié tae country in
which the non-resident has fiscal domicile.

A new Section 115BAA has been inserted by the Taxdtaws (Amendment) Act, 2019 (‘the Amendment A19") with
effect from Financial Year 2019-20 granting an optto domestic companies to compute corporate ttaxraduced rate of
25.168% (22% plus surcharge of 10% and cess of f¥yided such companies do not avail specifiedmgtens/
incentives. The option under section 115BAA of ket once exercised cannot be subsequently withdiawmany future
financial year. The Amendment Act, 2019 furtheryides that domestic companies availing such optidinot be required
to pay Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) under Sectidr15JB. The CBDT has further issued Circular 29/204t&d October
02, 2019 clarifying that since the MAT provisionsder Section 115JB itself would not apply whereoandstic company
exercises option of lower tax rate under SectidsBWA, MAT credit would not be available.

In such a case, the Company is not allowed to ctaignof the following deductions/ exemptions unier Act: -

Deduction under the provisions of Section 10AA.

Deduction under clause (iia) of sub- section (1peétion 32 (additional depreciation).
Deduction under section 32AD or Section 33AB ortBec33ABA

Deduction under section 35AD or Section 35CCC

Deduction under section 80G

SNENENENEN

Lower corporate tax rate under Section 115BAA of et and Minimum Alternate Tax ('MAT') credit undsection
115JAA of the Act which are in general availablel &ince may not be treated as special tax benefits.
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7.

10.
11.

The Company has evaluated and decided not to eretibe option permitted under Section 115BAA of #t for the
purpose of computing its income-tax liability fdret Financial Year 2021-22 to Financial Year 20232wever, the same
option to exercise has been considered by the CoynipaFinancial Year 2024-25.

This Annexure is intended only to provide genenfbimation to the investors and is neither designedintended to be a
substitute for professional tax advice. In viewtted individual nature of tax consequences, eachsitov is advised to consult
his or her tax advisor with respect to specific¢éarsequences of his/her investment in the shédtbe €ompany.

For the purpose of reporting here, we have notidensd the general tax benefits available to thragany or shareholders.

The above statement covers only certain relevaattiax law benefits and indirect tax law bendditbenefit.

No assurance is given that the revenue author@@msts will concur with the views expressed her&ime views are based on
the existing provisions of law and its interpretati which are subject to changes from time to titMe do not assume
responsibility to update the views consequent thsthanges. We shall not be liable to any claifagjlities or expenses
relating to this assignment except to the exterfiee$ relating to this assignment, as finally jiadig determined to have
resulted primarily from bad faith or intentional sconduct. We will not be liable to any other persomrrespect of this

statement.

Yours faithfully,

For, Kapoor Tandor& Co.
Chartered Accountants,
FRN: 000952C

Sd/-

Devendra S. Mathur
(Partner)

M. No. 082570
Place: New Delhi

UDIN: 24082570BKHVVM1126
Date: June 11, 2024
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SECTION V — ABOUT THE COMPANY

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information in this section has been extradtech various websites and publicly available docotedrom various industry
sources. The data may have been re-classified ligribe purpose of presentation. Neither we noy ather person connected
with the issue has independently verified the mittion provided in this section. Industry sourcaed paublications, referred to in
this section, generally state that the informatmontained therein has been obtained from sourcesemgdly believed to be
reliable but their accuracy, completeness and ulyitey assumptions are not guaranteed and theiatglity cannot be assured,
and, accordingly, investment decisions should edbdsed on such information.

Investors should note that this is only a summdrihe industry in which we operate and does notaianall information that
should be considered before investing in the EqBitares. Before deciding to invest in the Equitar8h, prospective investors
should read this Draft Red Herring Prospectus,uiiolg the information if‘Our Business” and “Financial Information”
beginning on pages 95 and 212 respectively ofDinggt Red Herring Prospectus. An investment inEagity Shares involves a
high degree of risk. For a discussion of certasigiin connection with an investment in the Eq@hares, se&Risk Factors”
beginning on page 25 of this Draft Red Herring Pezsus.

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

As the world nears the midpoint of what was intehtiebe a transformative decade for developmeatgtbbal economy is set to
rack up a sorry record by the end of 2024-the skbwmalf-decade of GDP growth in 30 years, accordinthe World Bank’s
latest Global Economic Prospects report. By onesoreg the global economy is in a better place thasas a year ago: the risk
of a global recession has receded, largely beoafutee strength of the U.S. economy. But mountiegpplitical tensions could
create fresh near-term hazards for the world ecgndseanwhile, the medium-term outlook has darkefeednany developing
economies amid slowing growth in most major ecomamisluggish global trade, and the tightest firmlnconditions in
decades. Global trade growth in 2024 is expectedet@nly half the average in the decade beforeptrelemic. Meanwhile,
borrowing costs for developing economies - esplgcihbse with poor credit ratings are likely to r&im steep with global interest
rates stuck at four-decade highs in inflation-atdidgserms.

Global growth is projected to slow for the thirdayen a row—from 2.6% last year to 2.4% in 2024n@dt three-quarters of a
percentage point below the average of the 2010selDging economies are projected to grow just 3.986re than one
percentage point below the average of the previtacside. After a disappointing performance last,yleav-income countries
should grow 5.5%, weaker than previously expecBydthe end of 2024, people in about one out of yWeur developing
countries and about 40% of low-income countries still be poorer than they were on the eve of@@VID pandemic in 2019.
In advanced economies, meanwhile, growth is ssloiw to 1.2% this year from 1.5% in 2023.

(Source https://www.worldbank.org/en/news/press-release420P/09/global-economic-prospects-january-2024-predeasg
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“Without a major course correction, the 2020s gitl down as a decade of wasted opportunity,” sadérmit Gill, the World
Bank Group’s Chief Economist and Senior Vice Presid “Near-term growth will remain weak, leaving myadeveloping
countries—especially the poorest—stuck in a traith waralyzing levels of debt and tenuous accessdd for nearly one out of
every three people. That would obstruct progressnany global priorities. Opportunities still exist turn the tide. This report
offers a clear way forward: it spells out the tfangwation that can be achieved if governments att to accelerate investment
and strengthen fiscal policy frameworks.”

To tackle climate change and achieve other keyajldbvelopment goals by 2030, developing countsitisneed to deliver a
formidable increase in investment —about $2.4idnllper year. Without a comprehensive policy paekaggospects for such an
increase are not bright. Per capita investment tiranvdeveloping economies between 2023 and 2024gected to average only
3.7%, just over half the rate of the previous tvecatles.

The report offers the first global analysis of wlitatill take to generate a sustained investmendnbodrawing from the
experience of 35 advanced economies and 69 dewelaguonomies over the past 70 years. It finds deatloping economies
often reap an economic windfall when they accedepar capita investment growth to at least 4% arsthi it for six years or
more: the pace of convergence with advanced-ecorinoome levels speeds up, the poverty rate declnee swiftly, and

productivity growth quadruples. Other benefits aisaterialize during these booms: among other thimdlation falls, fiscal and

external positions improve, and people’s accessdanternet expands rapidly.

“Investment booms have the potential to transfommetbping economies and help them speed up theyenensition and

achieve a wide variety of development objectivesjd Ayhan Kose, the World Bank’s Deputy Chief Emmiist and Director of

the Prospects Group. "To spark such booms, devedoggiéonomies need to implement comprehensive ppickages to improve
fiscal and monetary frameworks, expand cross-bardele and financial flows, improve the investmelithate, and strengthen
the quality of institutions. That is hard work, bnany developing economies have been able to blefare. Doing it again will

help mitigate the projected slowdown in potenti@vgth in the rest of this decade.”

The latest Global Economic Prospects also idestifighat two-thirds of developing countries—commodigxporters

specifically—can do to avoid boom-and-bust cycléke report finds that governments in these countoiéen adopt fiscal
policies that intensify booms and busts. When iases in commodity prices boost growth by 1 pereggnizoint, for example,
governments increase spending in ways that boostthrby an additional 0.2 percentage point. In gainén good times, fiscal
policy tends to overheat the economy. In bad tintedeepens the slump. This “procyclicality” is 3@rpent stronger in
commodity-exporting developing economies than inisther developing economies. Fiscal policie® and to be 40 percent
more volatile in these economies than in other pieg economies.

The instability associated with higher procycliaknd volatility of fiscal policy produces a chiomrag on the growth prospects
of commodity-exporting developing economies. Thagdcan be reduced—by putting in place a fiscal &aork that helps
discipline government spending, by adopting flexiekchange-rate regimes, and by avoiding restistan the movement of
international capital. On average, these policysuess could help commodity exporters in develogiognomies boost their per
capita GDP growth by as much as 1 percentage puiry four or five years. Countries can also bermfibuilding sovereign-
wealth funds and other rainy-day funds that caddg@oyed quickly in an emergency.

(Source https://www.worldbank.org/en/news/press-release420/09/global-economic-prospects-january-2024-predeass

INDIAN ECONOMY OUTLOOK

In general, global economic shocks in the past veenere but spaced out in time. This changed inthilrd decade of this

millennium. At least three shocks have hit the gladconomy since 2020. It all started with the panig-induced contraction of
the global output, followed by the Russian-Ukragenflict leading to a worldwide surge in inflatiofihen, the central banks
across economies led by the Federal Reserve respavith synchronized policy rate hikes to curbatifin. The rate hike by the
US Fed drove capital into the US markets causied8 Dollar to appreciate against most currendibis led to the widening of

the Current Account Deficits (CAD) and increasefthitionary pressures in net importing economie< Tate hike and persistent
inflation also led to a lowering of the global grbwforecasts for 2022 and 2023 by the IMF in itddBer 2022 update of the
World Economic Outlook. The frailties of the Chieesconomy further contributed to weakening the gnoferecasts. Slowing

global growth apart from monetary tightening magoalead to a financial contagion emanating fromabeanced economies
where the debt of the non-financial sector hasnrige2 most since the global financial crisis. Wiitflation persisting in the

advanced economies and the central banks hintirigridier rate hikes, downside risks to the glob@remic outlook appear
elevated.

The Indian economy, however, appears to have moweafter its encounter with the pandemic, stagirigllarecovery in FY22
ahead of many nations and positioning itself teeaddo the pre-pandemic growth path in FY23. Ydhicurrent year, India has
also faced the challenge of reining in inflatioattthe European strife accentuated. Measures takéine government and RBI,
along with the easing of global commodity priceayé finally managed to bring retail inflation beldlae RBI upper tolerance
target in November 2022. However, the challengethef depreciating rupee, although better perforntimgn most other
currencies, persists with the likelihood of furthecreases in policy rates by the US Fed. The widgnf the CAD may also
continue as global commodity prices remain elevated the growth momentum of the Indian economy mesnsirong. The loss
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of export stimulus is further possible as the staywvorld growth and trade shrinks the global madie¢ in the second half of
the current year.

Despite these, agencies worldwide continue to ptdjaia as the fastest-growing major economy &t760 per cent in FY23.
These optimistic growth forecasts stem in part frira resilience of the Indian economy seen in thigound of private
consumption seamlessly replacing the export stimsilihe leading driver of growth. The uptick invate consumption has also
given a boost to production activity resulting miacrease in capacity utilization across secfbhe rebound in consumption was
engineered by the near-universal vaccination c@e@verseen by the government that brought pecgpd& o the streets to
spend on contact-based services, such as reswmuhatels, shopping malls, and cinemas, among @tfidre world’s second-
largest vaccination drive involving more than Zibil doses also served to lift consumer sentimdrgsmay prolong the rebound
in consumption. Vaccinations have facilitated teeim of migrant workers to cities to work in comstion sites as the rebound
in consumption spilled over into the housing marKdtis is evident in the housing market witnessingignificant decline in
inventory overhang to 33 months in Q3 of FY23 fréthmonths last year.

The Capital Expenditure (Capex) of the central goreent, which increased by 63.4 per cent in that fiight months of FY23,

was another growth driver of the Indian economyhia current year, crowding in the private Capexeithe January-March
quarter of 2022. On current trend, it appears thatfull year's capital expenditure budget will imet. A sustained increase in
private Capex is also imminent with the strengthgmf the balance sheets of the Corporates and¢dhsequent increase in
credit financing it has been able to generate. Achmimproved financial health of well-capitalized e sector banks has
positioned them better to increase the credit sugpbnsequently, the credit growth to the Micro,emand Medium Enterprises
(MSME) sector has been remarkably high, over 3@6 gent, on average during Jan-Nov 2022, suppdnethe extended

Emergency Credit Linked Guarantee Scheme (ECLG®)efJnion government. The increase in the ovéabk credit has also
been influenced by the shift in borrower’s fundicipices from volatile bond markets, where yieldgehimcreased, and external
commercial borrowings, where interest and hedgogjschave increased, towards banks. If inflatioclides in FY24 and if real

cost of credit does not rise, then credit growtlikisly to be brisk in FY24.

India’s economic growth in FY23 has been principddid by private consumption and capital formatitirhas helped generate
employment as seen in the declining urban unemptoymate and in the faster net registration in Exygé Provident Fund. Still,
private capex soon needs to take up the leadershepto put job creation on a fast track. Recovei\MSMEs is proceeding

apace, as is evident in the amounts of Goods andc8s Tax (GST) they pay, while the Emergency @reshked Guarantee

Scheme (ECGLS) is easing their debt servicing aorscelhe Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employmenai@ntee Scheme
(MGNREGS) has been directly providing jobs in ruae¢as and indirectly creating opportunities faarlouseholds to diversify
their sources of income generation. Schemes likekiddn and PM Garib Kalyan Yojana have helped isueimg food security

in the country, and their impact was also endoisethe United Nations Development Programme (UNDOME results of the

National Family Health Survey (NFHS) also show impmment in rural welfare indicators from FY16 toZ0Y covering aspects
like gender, fertility rate, household amenitiesd a&omen empowerment.

Global growth has been projected to decline in 2828 is expected to remain generally subdued irdalf@ving years as well.

The slowing demand will likely push down global amdity prices and improve India's CAD in FY24. Howee, a downside

risk to the Current Account Balance stems from dtsecovery driven mainly by domestic demand atoda lesser extent, by
exports. The CAD needs to be closely monitorechaggtowth momentum of the current year spills omty the next. Growth is
expected to be brisk in FY24 as a vigorous credibutsal, and capital investment cycle is expettednfold in India with the

strengthening of the balance sheets of the companad banking sectors. Further support to econgnoiwth will come from the

expansion of public digital platforms and path-liag measures such as PM GatiShakti, the Natiopgidtics Policy, and the
Production-Linked Incentive schemes to boost mastufang output.

Economic Survey 2022-23 (Sourdgtps://www.indiabudget.gov.in/economicsurvey/dexiapter/echap01.pdf

Despite uncertainty from adverse geopolitical depeients and _ INTERIM ‘ﬁ_'_k}
expansionary fiscal measures taken during the CGMD “TE . BUUBET

pandemic, the Indian economy has demonstratedierssd and e AR

maintained healthy macroeconomic fundamentals. éstipe First =
Advance Estimates of National Income of FY 202312dja’s Real . Trends n
GDP is projected to grow at 7.3 per cent. This wtded in the CapEx

Macro-Economic Framework Statement 2024-25.
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Strong domestic demand for consumption and invastedong

with Government’s continued emphasis on capitaleexiture are
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the supply side, industry and services sectors \tleeeprimary
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growth among major advanced and emerging markehcgoes 10.5
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third-largest economy in 2027 in USD at market exaje rate. It
also estimates that India’s contribution to glotrawth will rise by
200 basis points in 5 years.

m Capital Expenditure Grant in Aid for
- Effactive Capital Creation of Copatal Assets

Expranditurs 15.0

2021-22 2022-23

89



Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

Calling the decade of 2014-23 as the golden er&mirinflows, Smt. Sitharaman informed the Housat tifne inflow during this
period was twice the figure during 2005-14, amaumtio USD 596 billion. “For encouraging sustainedefgn investment, we
are negotiating bilateral investment treaties witin foreign partners, in the spirit of ‘First Degplindia”, she added.

Macroeconomic stability and improvements in Indi@kernal position, particularly significant modgoa in the current account
deficit and revival of capital flows on the backao€omfortable foreign exchange reserves buffeglted in stability in the Indian
rupee during FY 2023-24. Further, inflationary pra®s in India moderated majorly driven by proacsupply side initiatives by
the Government, noted the Macro-Economic Framewgtakement 2024-25.

Strategic priorities for FY 2024-25:

The Government's fiscal policy stance has been #&kemthe domestic economy more resilient to exogersthwcks and to
mitigate the risks of global economic downturn with compromising on the overall macroeconomic bz#anThe FY 2024-25
fiscal strategy of the government is based ondheviing broad intents:

a. Directing towards more inclusive, sustainable andram
resilient domestic economy to absorb the unantiegba
shocks, if any;

b. Channelizing and allocating increased resourcesarisv j‘-
capital spending to sustain infrastructure develepm }
momentum; ;

c. Continuing the holistic approach of fiscal fedesalitowards
enhancing the public infrastructure by supportifigres of - Budget at a Glance
the States for capital spending; -

d. Focus on integrated and coordinated planning and
implementation of infrastructure projects in theuwty,
embracing the principles of PM Gati Shakti;

e. Prioritization of expenditure towards the key depehental
sectors viz., drinking water, housing, sanitatiagreen
energy, health, education, agriculture, rural depelent etc.
for long run sustainable and inclusive bettermehtthe
citizens;

f.  Enhancing the effectiveness of cash managementghro
just-in-time release of resources by using SNA/TsgAtem Tass, @ anas @ Ieanit @
etc.

(Source https://pib.gov.in/PressReleseDetailm.aspx?PRID=A200)

In ¥ crore
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INDUSTRY SCENARIO

The electronics industry is one of the largest fastiest growing industries in the world. Electropioducts continue to impact
and shape our lifestyle prominently in today’s thgiera. With the world being more connected theer e@nd the digital push
induced by COVID-19 pandemic; the demand for etetitr devices is expected to grow steadily and ocoetito be a major
economic driver across the globe. The global ededts industry is estimated at US$ 2.9 trillion2620. For comparison, the
global value of electronics industry is almost ddaahe economy size of India, which currentlynsta at US$ 2.9 trillion.

Exhibit 1: Global market size of key product segments in 2020-21 (USS$ billion)*

2L 540
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210
200 143
100 66
25
Maobile Phones B IT Hardware (laptops, tablets) Consumer electronics (TV and audio)
Wearables and hearables LED Lighting

On an overall basis, electronics manufacturing gemvn from US$37.1 billion in 2015-16 to US$ 67.Midn in 2020-21.
However, COVID-19 related disruptions impacted grewth trajectory in 2020-21 and led to a declinetie manufacturing
output to US$67.3 billion
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Exhibit 2: Value of electronics manufacturing in India and exports from 2015-16 to 2020-21° (USS billion)
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The National Policy on Electronics (NPE) 2019 searget of achieving a turnover of US$ 400 billloy 2025. However, the
COVID-19 pandemic brought with it unforeseen ancrecedented challenges. In light of this, the NRERtargets for
electronics production in 2025-26 at US$ 300 hilliappears to be more realistic considering theugtion on account of
COVID-19 in the past 18 months which has been aggea with the new variants of the COVID-19 virugls as the Omicron.
In keeping with the targets envisioned in the NRE2 there have been numerous consultations arided®ions between
industry, industry bodies and the Government tchiest the above revised target for the electrosgecsor

Exhibit 9: Scale required for manufacturing for domestic and export markets to reach US$300bn target*:
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Source: ICEA estimates

Technology is the key driver of all industries a@nfluences all spheres of our lives. Accordinglydib continues to strive to
emerge as a leader in the segment by capturingablsi pie of the electronics manufacturing ecosysteat propels the
technology sector. For India to be the global etetts manufacturing hub of the future, there netedbe a clear long-term
vision which must be achieved by means of the sieonh goals. In order to become a US$ 5 trilliooreamy by 2025-26, (or
2027-28 considering allowance for the two year lmssaccount of the pandemic), India shall strivéoéoa US$1 trillion digital

economy given its omnipresence across all spectofrife. Moreover, a special emphasis shall bd ta exports to achieve this
objective.

The long-term vision may be covered primarily unfiderr broad categories:

Make in India for the world

Make India the No. 1 electronics manufacturer axgbeter.

Become a significant player in the global valueicha

Build ecosystem comprising of primarily mobile plesnIT hardware, and consumer electronics of UBHian+ in the next
10 years.

Till 2011, India was a major manufacturing and expaoib for mobile phones. However, the pace of esp@duced significantly
post shutdown of Nokia’s manufacturing facility 2014. Domestic manufacturing also suffered tremaslyd4. Imports grew
and India’s mobile industry became largely impoependentl5. To push electronics manufacturing megeg and mobile
manufacturing in particular, the Government in edtaion with the industry resorted to Phased Manturing Policy (PMP) in
2017. This was aimed at a duty-based import sultistit effort that would largely depend upon impgsuohuties in a phased
manner. It was an attempt to start generating dbocnesnufacturing primarily for domestic use. Theperts were negligible16.
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Five years later in 2022, the approach and theeestrategy of the Government has undergone a ehafrgm PMP (import
substitution) to the Production Linked incentiveLPapproach aimed at transforming India into abglohub for mobile and
electronics manufacturing. This would bring conmipegness, scale and exports at the centre of thieypimcus, replacing the
earlier import substitution objectives and supp@riolicies.

This shift is evident as below: « NPE 2019 envisaggengthening India’s linkages with global traoiegration with global
value chains and build policies and incentive frenoix to boost exports. The policy aims to transfdnalia into a destination for
manufacturing and exports. « Hon’ble Prime Ministehis address on August 6 2021 to the Headsdi&imMissions abroad also
made a clarion call to focus on export led polidiesn India for increasing India’s share in globalue chains. In particular, he
cited the example of mobile manufacturing and etgpor The Ministry of Commerce and Industry is utaleing a major
restructuring exercise to support India’s outlookvards exports and Free Trade Agreements (FTAsg {f&ade policy is
exploring half a dozen new bilateral FTAs with UABK, Australia, Canada and EU in 2022. It has d&smched a revitalised
India-US Trade Policy Forum in November 2021.

In summary, there has been a complete shift inegfyawhich goes beyond the vision of import subttih to “Make in India for
the World”. This fresh outlook as noted above imed at transforming India’s manufacturing procegs féicusing on
competitiveness, scale and exports. Furthermometireong on the path of import substitution, Indialomestic electronics
market is estimated to reach at best US$ 150-186rbfrom the current US$65 billion over the nex6 years17. Thus, exports
of US$ 120-140 billion is critical to reach the UBB® billion mark for electronics manufacturing. 3lm turn is key for the US$5
trillion economy, US$1 trillion digital economy arke US$1 trillion export target envisaged by thmistry of Electronics and
Information Technology (MeitY) and the Ministry Gommerce and Industry respectively. Moreover, givenshorter timeframe
wherein electronics manufacturing has to nearlydgugle from present US$67 billion to US$300 billiby 2025-26, it is
imperative that specific product segments with higitential for scale are shortlisted and cateretiytavay of incentives and
policy measures. Such products segments cover ynaiobile phones, Information Technology hardwand (hardware’),
consumer electronics, wearables and hearables, ligtliing, electronic components in electric vehicletc. and have been
elaborated in the ensuing sections of this document

Mobile Phones
The Production Linked Incentives (‘PLI") scheme ptad with the presence of a large global
market being over $550 billion19 in 2021 (and eati®d to grow to US$650 billion (approx.)
by 202619) provides a viable opportunity to achiéwe substantial share of manufacturing
= targets. Moreover, India’s domestic mobile salesiadine with industry estimates and likely
@ to grow faster in the coming few years20 due tadasing digital lifestyle and COVID
= related disruptions. Thus, it shall be crucial foe electronics industry to align itself with
NPE 2019 and leverage the market opportunity.

Laptops and Tablets
Despite the overall growth of the Indian electranicdustry, that of the computer hardware
segment has remained largely insignificant over yhars, with more imports (being an
Information Technology Agreement-1 category projiaeid negligible exports21. India is
relatively a small market, but significant enoughihwan estimated market size of US$ 6.8
billion per annum?22. It is also estimated to be2809% higher by 2025, due to Information
= Technology ('IT’) and services growth, Digital Irdpush, and work and study from home on
the rise.23 Considering that global market is wegktr US$200 billion+ in 202124 and likely
to remain stable, techenabled manufacturing proeesk skilled local personnel become
crucial for companies looking to invest and movedurction outside their territories. The
reorganization of domestic labour, local talent lpaed digitalization of supply chains may
enable more export-oriented growth for laptops tatets manufacturing.

Hearables and Wearables (and related accessories)

The penetration of hearables and wearables hadeeateel post COVID creating more
dependence on digital products. With the world stiluggling through the pandemic and
acclimatizing itself to the new normal, the pentdra of hearables is estimated to grow.
Hearables market is estimated to account for mioa@ 60% of the overall market share
among Wearables by 202425. The hearables and Wesratarket is estimated to have

m overall production of ~US$ 8 billion by 2024, ifr¢ee scale hearables manufacturing could be
aimed to address 10% of the Global market by 2@8inilarly, the electronics accessories
market (such as mouse, keyboard, pencil, padistestimated to be significant in global size
and is also labor-intensive in nature. India mapitedize on its inherent strengths in labor-
intensive segments to undertake manufacturing aakeNh India for the World.
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Consumer and industrial electronics
The combined market for electronics such as washimgchines, refrigerators, air
conditioners and heaters, smart TVs, audio deviddsep and music streaming devices etc. is
estimated at around US$ 280 billion27 in 2021 anelstimated to grow to US$ 368 billion27

g by 2026. This provides a significant opportunityr fimdia to capitalize on its inherent

strengths and undertake manufacturing of electromioponents and parts to meet the global
demand of these products. This shall assist ineagtg the US$300 billion manufacturing
target and align with NPE 2019 objecti\

Printed Circuit Board Assembly (‘PCBA’)

PCBA is the core of every electronic device suchmaxbile phones, tablets, computers,

routers, televisions, washing machines, refrigesat@ir conditioners etc. The average

contribution of PCBA to the Bill of Materials (BoM$ at around 40% and presents a US$600

billion global PCBA market28. Given that PCBA is aitical piece of electronics

{:E‘ manufacturing and is omnipresent in electronic potsl it is crucial for India to gain a
significant foothold in the manufacturing of PCBA w&ell as serving the demand for global
markets. The growing scale, inter alia, of mobhepes and IT hardware manufacturing shall
act as a catalyst in undertaking manufacturing@BRs by the industry.

Others (such as auto electronics, LED lighting, tecom equipment and electronic components)

With the gradual development of an electronics nfecturing ecosystem for above product
categories and being globally competitive is estaddo open avenues for capturing a market
share of other associated product segments suelutemotive electronics, LED lighting,
%‘ telecom equipment. Moreover, backward integratigo the ecosystem may also assist India
= with manufacturing of electronic components andaea standalone market for them to
cater to the global demand. Therefore, these ptocltegories may also help achieve the
manufacturing objectives and contribute towardsi4B$300 billion target by 20:-26.

(Source https:/licea.org.in/blog/wp-content/uploads/2022KhalReport_VisionDocument_ 24012022 )df

Attractive Opportunities

India is committed to reach US$ 300 billion worttetectronics manufacturing and exports of US$ bilflibon by 2025-26.

Addressable market for domestic OEMs is projectelolet X 10 lakh crore (US$ 131.99 billion) by 2025.

The government intends to incentivise and attragtstments to set up semiconductor FABs (fabringtiants) in India.

Al is expected to add US$ 967 billion to Indian memy by 2035 and US$ 450-500 billion to India’'s GB{ 2025,

accounting for 10% of the country’s US$ 5 trilli@DP target.

e The Government is promoting the development of tEd@ics Manufacturing Clusters (EMCs) throughout tountry to
provide world-class infrastructure and facilities.

¢ In March 2023, the Government approved setting fuih@ Electronics Manufacturing Cluster (EMC) atbdHtDharwad in

Karnataka, worth US$ 22 millio¥ (180 crore) and is expected to create about 1§d30

Robust Demand

Second-largest manufacturer of mobile phones iwitrd.

Will be the fifth-largest consumers of electroniogucts by 2025.

India has strong design and R&D capabilities iroalectronics and industrial economics.

In FY23, the exports of electronic goods were rdedrat US$ 23.57 billion as compared to US$ 15iliérbduring FY22,
registering a growth of 50.52%.

Policy Support

e The production-linked incentive (PLI) schemes vpitbvide companies opportunities to establish martufang plants in
India.

e 100% FDI is allowed under the automatic route. dsecof electronics items for defence, FDI up to 49%llowed under
automatic route and beyond 49%, government appisvafuired.

e The Digital India Program has been transformingabentry into a digitally empowered society and \khexige economy
since its launch in July 2015.

e The Indian government's National Policy on EledeenNPE 2019) aims to facilitate a turnover of US¥ billion in
domestic manufacturing by 2025
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Investments

e Post-COVID, the Government of India was aiming teréase India’s contribution by around US$ 400idsillworth of
electronics goods including exports worth US$ 180oh, which would account for 9-10% of the ovdrglobal value
chains, from the current supply potential of 1-2%.

e Production-linked scheme (PLI) for largescale etadts manufacturing (including mobiles) has sesrestments wortR&
6,887 crore (US$ 833 million) (till June 2023),eddy surpassing the target for FY24 which &&5488 crore (US$ 664.4
million).

e Intel invested over US$ 7 billion in design and Ré&dgilities in the country to date.

e Major Government initiatives such as ‘Digital Indi&dMake in India’ and supportive policies includjna favourable FDI
Policy for electronics manufacturing have simpdfitae process of setting up manufacturing unitsida.

Sector policies

National Policy on Electronics (NPE), 2019

» The National Policy on Electronics 2019 (NPE 201®gpared after extensive stakeholder consultagipnisages to position
India as a global hub for ESDM with thrust on expdry encouraging and driving capabilities in toerdry for developing

core components, including chipsets, and creatingnabling environment for the industry to compgtdally.

» The NPE 2019 targets to promote domestic manufiagttand export in the entire value chain of ESDMI athieve a
turnover of US$ 400 billion by 2025

Phased Manufacturing Programme (PMP)

The Ministry of Heavy Industries has notified a Béh Manufacturing Programme (PMP) to promote intiges manufacturing
of Electric Vehicles, its assemblies / subasserstdied parts / sub-parts / inputs of the sub-assesaiflhe PMP envisaged a
graded duty structure to promote indigenous maruifgig over a period of time.

Production-Linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme

» PLI scheme for large scale electronics manufaggutaunched by Ministry of Electronics and Inforneaiti Technology
(MeitY) in April 2020 has been extended from exigtfive years band (FY21-FY25) to six years (FY242B).

» For growth industries, such as consumer electrorétsctric vehicles and renewable energy, ACC battoduction
represents one of the biggest economic opportsnifél scheme for the ACC battery would allow keymestic and
international players to set up a competitive AGfltdry plants in the region.

» PLI offers a production linked incentive to boostmkstic manufacturing and attract large investmentnobile phone
manufacturing and specified electronic componéntduding Assembly, Testing, Marking and PackagiAgMP) of units.

e Incentive: 4-6% on incremental sales (over base)ydajoods manufactured in India; incentives upJ&$ 5 billion will
be awarded over a period of five years.

e Eligibility: Subject to thresholds of incrementalestments and incremental sales of manufacturedsyo

(Source https://www.ibef.org/download/1707219554 ESDM-Denemn?023. pdf
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in this section, includinfiprmation with respect to our business plans atrdtegies, contain forward-
looking statements that involve risks and unceti@a You should reatorward-Looking Statements”on page 19 for a
discussion of the risks and uncertainties relatethbse statements and alfisk Factors”, “Restated Financial Information”
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finaiat Condition and Results of Operations — Significa Factors
Affecting our Results of Operationsbeginning on pages 25, 142 and 214, respectivelya fdiscussion of certain factors that
may affect our business, financial condition orules of operations. Our actual results may diffeatarially from those expressed
in or implied by these forward-looking statements.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwesguires, the financial information included herdés based on or derived
from our Restated Financial Information includedtins Draft Red Herring Prospectus. For furtheranhation, se¢Restated
Financial Information” beginning on page 142 of this Draft Red Herringp$prectus. We acquired Sahasra Semiconductors
Private Limited in May 02, 2024, and we have ineldighroforma condensed combined financial infornmafar Fiscal 2024 to
illustrate the impact of the acquisitions as if thequisitions had taken place on April 01, 2023 emtProforma Financial
Information” on page 20®f this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Our Company is an EN 9100:2018 (equivalent to ASB0@Land JISQ 9100:2016, including ISO 9001:201%)ifeed company,

which is engaged in the business of providing sohsttowards electronics system design and manufagt(“ESDM”) services

at its manufacturing plant located at 68AA, NSE£pl Post Office, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Noida, WRtadesh - 201305,
which is equipped with four high speed SMT linevihg a total capacity of around 1800000 units. Wevijgle product and
solutions right from printed circuit board (“PCB&ssembly, Box Build, LED lighting. Memory, IT aceesies, computer and IT
hardware. We have made export of over 80% of ocodywmts and solutions during the FY 2024 to certgiibal manufacturers
located in countries like United States of AmerRaanda, Tunisia, United Kingdom, Germany, Canadgtria & Belgium.

Our current product portfolio may be categorizedodlews:

1. Printed circuit board assemblies (“PCBA”): Our PCBAre used in products manufactured in the autemotnedical,
industrial, IT and consumer products industries, stmall include box-build products such as laptog tblets;

2. LED Lighting solutions, which include LED Chip —etsource of the lightning, power supply or the @rj\printed circuit
board for LED’s, housing or the frame.

3. Computer and IT accessories, which include motredsy DRAM modules, solid state drives (SSD), USBes$ and other
memory products and IT accessories.

Our Promoter and Managing Director, Amrit Lal Mamiawas earlier undertaking the business of tradihgliesel as a sole
proprietorship concern in the name of Northern dtetrm Company, which later entered into the busindsPCB assembly
during the FY2021 under the name of Sahasra Elgict@olutions, which was during the year 2023 amglLiby our Company on
a going concern basis. Further, we have duringFifie2024-25, acquired controlling stake in SahaseniSonductor Private
Limited, which became the subsidiary of our compdraring a Semiconductor Packaging Facility at Bidiy Rajasthan which
is engaged in the manufacturing of electronic conepés like integrated circuits, chips, semicondudivices, eMMC, mSD,
COBs, COB based USBs, LED drivers IC, BGA, NANDsfla& memory products. Also, we sell our LED liglgtisolutions to

Sahasra Electronics Rwanda Private Limited, which subsidiary of our group company Sahasra ElecgdPrivate Limited,

which further sell these LED lighting solutionsdountries like Rwanda etc.

We operate through our manufacturing facility ditdhat 68AA, NSEZ, Noida, Uttar Pradesh, whichadsaked in a Special
Economic Zone. Our manufacturing facilities incluelegineered layout with process controls and nacgssutomations for
quality and productivity. This allows us to keepr @ore competencies within our Company, allowingaigensure strict quality
control and safety at each step of our manufagyshocess. Our manufacturing facilities comprise®or SMT lines equipped
with machines including RMTS high speed clip maehisurface mount technology (“SMT”) machines, |&ag wave soldering
machine, PCBA router, high speed compact modulamias, reflow oven and surface cleaning machineigitfonally, we have
also installed quality inspection machines sucthigh speed PWB inspection, PWB Visual inspectiod XaRay inspection
machines to ensure the high standards of prodwaitguOur manufacturing facility is staffed withveorkforce of approximately
160 employees, as of March 31, 2024 which inclugldeam of around 35 engineers dedicated to entmmein operational
efficiency.

The components required for PCB Assembly or bokxdbagssembly are either imported or sourced fromallsappliers and then
assembled at our manufacturing facilities. Our nfiacturing capabilities have enabled us to addressconsumers’ diverse
needs, enhance existing products with emergingntdogies, develop of new products and optimize sasross our products
range through value analysis and value engineeWwyare an EN 9100:2018 certified company (equivaie AS 9100D and
JISQ 9100:2016, including ISO 9001:2015) for Qualitanagement System for manufacturing of PCB asSemlDur in-house
R&D team, in addition to undertaking electronicsrdveare designing, system architecture, mechaniesigd, component
engineering and optics design, also assists otwiomma@ss in cost reduction through product engingerihis enables us to address
consumer requirements across geographies and enbgisting products with emerging technologies.
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Our Company has on June 15, 2023 entered into r@emgnt for a term of 3 years with a company engjage the business of
designing and marketing of hardware and softwacelyets like laptops, tablets, servers and IT perials for the supply of
laptops, tablets, motherboards and related PCB# jsea the specification and purchase orders plagdtie customer from time
to time.

We have developed long relationships with certdiowr customers through a client servicing modelclvhaims to provide
integrated solutions, robust manufacturing cap@sliand delivering quality products on time. Fettér quality and customer
satisfaction we entrench with the customers froendbnception of their product, and subsequentlyengythe value chain with
them by leveraging our integrated offerings. Iniadd to maintaining our relationships with exiggircustomers, we have
increased our key customer base over time fromrar@® customers in Fiscal 2022 to around 40 cust®ineg~iscal 2024. Over
the years, we have established a diversified clieade across multiple end-use industries Railw&gspspace, Marine,
Automobile, Healthcare, IT Hardware etc., whichpghes minimize customer’s concentration risk.

We are led by our Promoters who have significapieeience in the ESDM industry. Our promoter & ManggDirector, Amrit
Lal Manwani is an engineering graduate from IIT Kan& MBA from FMS, Delhi University. He has workedith many
companies engaged in the electronic manufacturemgices industry for about 20 years, before he bdga entrepreneurial
journey. Varun Manwani, our Promoter and Non-exeubDirector is an economics graduate and is resiptnfor the growth
and expansion plans of the company, Arunima Manwaui Promoter and Whole-time Director is a comraggcaduate and
looks after the creating and formulation of stratdgusiness plans, research & development and teadinology advancements.
Under their leadership we have been able to expamdoperations and have established a significaeggmce in India and
abroad. We also have a qualified and experiencam t¢ho have along with our management have denatedtits ability to
anticipate and capitalize on changing market tremdanage and grow our operations and leverage aegeth customer
relationships.

Key Performance Indicators of our Company
(Z In Lakhs except percentages and ratios)

As of and for the year/period ended
g February 22, April 1, 2022 to
LIS March 31, 2024 | 2023to rl\);larch Igebruary 21, | March 31, 2022
31, 2023 2023

Revenue from Operatio® 10115.2° 1043.: 5865.2: 2175.6
EBITDA® 3526.5¢ 246.2: 1876.8¢ 377.4¢
EBITDA Margin® 34.86Y% 23.61Y% 32.00% 17.35%
Profit After Tax (PAT 3262.7 230.5¢ 1794.5¢ 250.17
PAT Margir® 32.26Y% 22.10% 30.60% 11.50%
ROE®) 54.09¥% 11.37% 73.70% 16.44%
ROCE® 42.50% 9.11% 56.81Y% 16.30¥%

Notes:

(MRevenue from Operations means the Revenue fronatlper as appearing in the Restated Financial Statets.

@EBITDA is calculated as Profit before tax + Depiain + Interest Cost - Other Income

©®) ‘EBITDA Margin’ is calculated as EBITDA divided Revenue from Operations

@ ‘PAT Margin’ is calculated as PAT for the periodar divided by revenue from operations.

®)Return on Equity is ratio of Profit after Tax anda®eholder Equity

®Return on Capital Employed is calculated as EBNiddid by capital employed, which is defined as shalders’ equity plus
total borrowings {current & non-current}.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

Dedicated solutions for ESDM services.

With a focus on our customers’ needs, we offer walersified solutions comprising PCB assembly, boid assemblies and
design solutions. Our services include PCB assembiye harness, box build solutions, IT hardwaredopccts, with
manufacturing lines that cater to high end entsepsolutions. Further, we focus on continually exiieg our technological
expertise in manufacturing for diverse industriagggrating our services, and thereby enhancingcapebility to serve multiple
industry verticals. Our capability to manufactumed asupply quality products ensures customer satisfg fosters customer
loyalty and generates repeat business. Additiondlig continuous learning from our diversified exg@ece enhances the
knowledge level of our workforce, makes it capadfi@lelivering solutions and creates talent. Theediification and expansion
of our product portfolio is primarily driven by threeeds of our customers and technological advanusnire the industry. As a
part of our diversification strategy, we have dgrthe FY2024-25 acquired controlling stake in ouinssdiary namely Sahasra
Semiconductor Private Limited, which is engagedhe business of manufacturing of semiconductor atsyieMMC, mSD,
COBs, COB based USBs, LED drivers IC, BGA, NANDsfia& memory products.
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Set out below is our revenue from operations bypsaducts and service offerings.

(amounts inZ Lakhs except percentages)

% to upto % to upto 21 % to % to
Product Name Me;rgg 431 Total March 31 | Total | February | Total 3l\£ar2%h22 Total
Sales 202% Sales 202% Sales ! Sales
Printed circuit board 8818.10 87.18 | 1014.35| 97.24  5703.27 97.25  1627.685.007
assemblies (“PCBA
gi\a,ceuss Flash Storage 1024.15 10.13 29.75 276|  105.5( 1.80 14489  6.68
Led Lighting Solution 232.6: 2.3C ; ; 55.9; 0.9E | 3975 | 18.3:
Computer and IT accessotl 39.8¢ 0.3¢ - - - - - -
Total 10114.69 100.00] 1043.10  100.00 5864.J0  100.00  217p. 100.00

Established relationships with customers acrossigas countries

Our product portfolio and quality assurance hagpéwlus establish strong relationships with our majents. We have
established and will continue to focus on strengjtig long-standing relationships with customersasdifferent industries that
we cater to. The varied applications of our produwve helped us build a wide customer base aonasy end-use industries.
Our customers across the end-use industries thaiatee to, include Railways, Aerospace, Marine,ofubbile, Healthcare, IT
Hardware etc. Our wide customer base across vasectsrs reduces our dependence on any one enddustry and provides a
natural hedge against market instability in anytipalar end-use industry. Our products are distedun India and overseas, in
over 10 different countries, including the Unite@t8s, Rwanda, Tunisia, United Kingdom, Germanyada, Austria, Belgium,
Norway & Panama. During the Fiscals 2022, 2023, 2024, our revenue from operations, attributablexports wag 2038.30
lakhs,? 6803.39 lakhs & 8503.97 lakhs, which accounted for approximat&y99%, 98.46%, and 83.57%, respectively of our
total revenue from operations. Our strong custdoase has not only been instrumental in our sudoedate, but will be a strong
driver of our future growth and help expand our ke&share, develop new products and enter newekatsar-or instance, Our
Company has on June 15, 2023 entered into an agredor a term of 3 years with a company engagéal time business of
designing and marketing of hardware and softwaoelyxts like laptops, tablets, servers and IT perigls for the supply of
laptops, tablets, motherboards and related PCB#&sea the specification and purchase orders plagdte customer from time
to time. Pursuant to this agreement, our compatiyow able to expand its market share in the beiddbsegment with increased
focus towards manufacturing of laptops, tablets senyers. Our customer-focused approach to ouratipes ensures that any
issues raised by our customers are immediatelyeaddd.

Established manufacturing capabilities

We currently operate through our manufacturinglitggciocated at 68AA, NSEZ, Noida, Uttar Pradeshattis supported by
around 160 permanent employees (as on March 3Y4)2@ur manufacturing facility is located in a sié@conomic zone,
which allow us to avail certain tax and other béséh respect of the products manufactured andeag out of these facilities.
We have established ERP platform which will regulbetter control and centralised databases forpoorants, vendors, quality
and supply chain, which will lead to productivitmprovements and efficient management. For the naatwing of our PCBA
products, our manufacturing facilities are equippeith modern and high-speed equipment that can leasdrface mount
components and through hole components. These naaghand equipments allow us to reduce manualvietdion in the
manufacturing process, thereby improving the produlity. In addition to the above, we have alsstalled inspection and
testing machines at each stage of our operatiathsise coding for inspection and tracing of defécsy These testing machines
ensure that each and every component on the PC8#ested effectively and ensure high reliability. @& part of our continuous
process improvement plan, we also have installedyXmachine, microscope, AOl machines etc. thatuaesl for testing and
inspection at different stages of production. Thegaipment helps us identify and correct any deféitat may happen in the
manufacturing process. Our competitive approachgaleith our engineering capabilities enable us teetnthe stringent
requirements of our customers. We make use of téagn and manufacturing execution systems to ergnanc workflows and
manufacture quality and reliable products. In addijt our ability to rapidly implement design or nufacturing process
improvements grants us the flexibility to optimitee use of our manufacturing facilities. Our in-Bewlesign capabilities that
comprise a design team, also contribute to oucieficy and stringent quality control. Our manufaiciy capabilities also enable
effective control over quality, manufacturing coatsl product development, further empowering usetwice customer requests
in an efficient manner, while better managing oanofacturing and administrative costs.

Quality Assurance

Our Company is dedicated towards quality of oudpads, processes and input materials and compon#etare accredited with
EN 9100:2018 (equivalent to AS 9100D and JISQ 92@D3, including 1SO 9001:2015) compliances at isnafacturing plants
located at 6BAA, NSEZ, Noida, Uttar Pradesh. Weehastablished ERP platform at our manufacturingifiaevith a view to
adhere to quality standards as prescribed by ostomers and to meet the desired requirements. &#liy Quality products on
time is one of our prime objectives. We have daditaour resources for quality assurance to enfaeduality norms are
continually met. We also have quality control cleblefore any consignment of material or componargsaccepted since it has
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a direct impact on the quality of Finished Proditte ability to consistently deliver high-qualityoglucts to customers is critical
to our business. Our quality assurance departmenducts various tests such as solder paste testisgal inspection

components testing, functionality test and religbitest of the PCBA to ensure that our end proslidhere to our quality
policies.

Experienced Promoters, management and operatingiea

The Promoters of our Company are Amrit Lal Manwafdarun Manwani and Arunima Manwani, who have videezience in
the field of EMS, and they have been instrumemtahe growth of our business. We also have a dfiexisBoard of Directors,
which is supplemented by a strong management tedm extensive experience in the electronic manufdtg sector. Our
Promoter and Managing Director, Amrit Lal Manwaisi,an engineering graduate from IIT Kanpur & MBArim FMS, Delhi
University. He has worked with many companies eedag the electronic manufacturing services inquitr about 20 years,
before he began his entrepreneurial journey. Véfanwani, our Promoter and Non-Executive Directaariseconomics graduate
and is responsible for the growth and expansiongptd the company, Arunima Manwani, our Promotet fhole-time Director
is a commerce graduate and looks after the creatidgormulation of strategic business plans, rese& development and track
technology advancements. Our experienced managdeantenables us to capture market opportunities)iflate and execute
business strategies, manage client expectatiodspm@ctively manage changes in market conditidhs. quality and experience
of our management team has been critical in aaijegur business results and allowing us to malkegiic and timely business
decisions in response to evolving customer needsraarket conditions.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES
Diversification of our product range

We have continuously sought to diversify our prdaduartfolio which could cater to customers acroasous end-use industries
and geographies. Accordingly, while we seek to ioomt to strengthen our existing product portfolie also intend to further
diversify into products with prospects for incrediggowth and profitability by leveraging our R&Dpabilities. We also plan to
continue to increase offerings in our current besinsegments as well as diversify into new prodogt&pping into segments
which in the view of our management have attracgik@wth prospects. Further, looking towards theaspmities in the laptop

and tablet market, we are intending to expand oarket share in the IT hardware and equipment seatith added focus

towards laptop and tablets. We believe that, weleaerage our experience in the PCBA and box heitdhnology and expand
our market shares by focusing on these areas. éfuntfe have during the FY 2024-25, acquired colimiglstake in Sahasra
Semiconductor Private Limited, which has becomesthitesidiary of our company, having a Semicondutrkaging Facility at

Bhiwadi, Rajasthan which is engaged in the manufaw of electronic components like integrated wiits; chips, semiconductor
devices, eMMC, mSD, COBs, COB based USBs, LED dsiV€, BGA, NAND flash & memory products.

Pursue inorganic growth through acquisitions

In conjunction to our organic growth strategies, lreae in the past, and going forward, intend toticole pursuing strategic
acquisitions by selectively evaluating targets artpers for strategic acquisitions and investmeW{s. have expanded our
business and operations through acquisitions atagyriation of operations with our operations, andimiend to continue our
strategic expansion plans through inorganic groepiportunities in sectors that complement our exjstoperations. Our

acquisitions include the acquisition of Sahasra iSenductors Private Limited in FY2023-24 and FY2@51 Our acquisition

will enable us access to serve the semiconductprirements in different parts of the country anduad the world. We may
pursue similar opportunities to undertake acquisgi(i) that allow us to enhance our scale and etgsition; (ii) that allow us

to strengthen our range of product offerings anstamer base; and (iii) that enable access to nmmtsland enter high-growth
geographies in a cost effective manner and prouievith a platform to extend our reach to new geplgic markets within

India; and (iv) that add new products to our pdigfor that allow us to enter strategic businegsesapture additional revenue
opportunities from our existing customer base. Véeke that our experience, track record and cwasiee approach of

identifying and implementing our inorganic growthesegy will enable us to acquire and successfotiggrate new businesses.

Increase our geographical reach and expand our ausier base

Our customer base is stretched across domestimtardational market. We continually seek to enleaoer addressable market
through our sales and marketing initiatives. Wekdeeexpand our global reach, through increasetbouesr acceptance of our
products in international markets. We seek to emeegv international markets. Owing to pricing preesucustomers’ are seeking
cost-competitive alternatives, giving opportunititr manufacturing of high complex PCBA with higlech, high mix,
BGA/Micro BGA, Flex circuit, System Integrated Ty Assembly, Mechanical Assembly, Cable Assembly &sting of all
electrical Assemblies. We believe we are well poséd to partner with these customers, backed by capabilities of
manufacturing quality products. The table belovs $etth details of the geographies where we exportproducts and services
for the last three financial years:

(amounts in¥ Lakhs except percentages)

Countries served March 31, 2024 % March 31, 2023 % March 31, 2022 %
USA 8011.0! 78.7° 6459.7: 93.4¢ 1612.1¢ 74.2¢
African Countrie: 364.2¢ 3.5¢ 97.17 1.41 417.7¢ 19.2¢
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Countries served March 31, 2024 % March 31, 2023 % March 31, 2022 %
United Kingdon 30.1¢ 0.3C 24.61 0.3¢€ 1.10 0.0%
European countrit 55.5¢ 0.5t 25.5¢ 0.37 0.17 0.01
Canad. 39.44 0.3¢ 179.7¢ 2.6( - -
India 1671.6: 16.4: 106.1« 1.54 131.8: 6.07
Ching 1.7¢ 0.0z - - - -
Gulf Countrie: 1.80 0.0z 0.41 0.01 0.2¢ 0.01
Hongkong - - 16.1; 0.2% 6.77 0.31

10,175.60 100.00 6,909.53 100.00 2,170.12 100.00

Invest in expanding our technological capabilitiesid manufacturing capacities

We intend to continue to invest in technology isfracture to enable further technical innovatianpiove our operational
efficiencies, increase customer satisfaction angr@ve our sales and profitability. We intend to thowe to focus on optimizing
and automating our manufacturing processes to mgpreturns in a rapidly changing technological emwvinent. We are
proposing to utiliz& 6,028.04 lakhs towards expansion of our manufargwrapabilities. We have taken premises on leaseshb
from our Group company Sahasra Electronics Pritameited at Plot no B-3/1, Elcina Electronics Manctiaring Cluster,

Industrial Area Salarpur, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar-3WM9, Rajasthan for installation of the additionedquction line for further
expansion of our manufacturing capabilities. Westantly endeavor to reduce the costs of our omerstivhile ensuring the
quality of our products. Further, by expanding taahnological capabilities we intend to be moreg-afcient player in each of
the products we manufacture. Economies of scalealgb enable us to continuously improve our openal efficiencies. We
will continue with this strategy of Invest in exuling our technological capabilities and manufacitapacities which will also
help us in attaining cost efficiency.

DESCRIPTION OF OUR BUSINESS

We offer manufacturing solutions for PCB assembliye harness, box build solutions, LED lightingw@ns and IT hardware

products and enterprise solutions. We manufactwtnenboards and server systems and enterprise §@démemory solutions

for domestic and overseas customers. Our businegelmavigates the entire value chain (prototypsample batch and mass
production) and lifecycle management and suppom. 8&metimes enter into supply agreements with ostomers. These

agreements outline the role and responsibilitiesbath the parties. These includes details regardi@gufacturing terms,

purchase order, pricing, payment and delivery termelity assurance obligations, defective prodiegiresentations and
warranties.

OUR PRODUCTS

The products currently manufactured by us are pexvbelow:

PCBA (Printed Circuit Board Assembly)

PCB assembly, also called board assembly, PCBAelemtronic assembly, refers to the process of siolgeand assembling
electronic components onto a printed circuit bo@P€B) to produce a functional electronics subas$emils a crucial
component in the manufacturing process of eleatrdavices, where individual electronic componen¢éssaldered onto a printed
circuit board (PCB) to create a functional elecitassembly. It may involve both through-hole andace mount components.
Industry applicationsThe PCBA are used in the electronic componenisiwtequire to undertake different functionalitidie

PCBA are embedded into electronics devices whieluaed in various industries like aerospace, rgiaatomobile, healthcare,
computer hardware etc.
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LED Lighting solutions

LED lighting solutions encompass a wide range afdpcts and applications, from residential to conmia¢rand industrial
applications. Majority of our LED lighting businessdependent on one of our Group company i.e. SaHalectronics Rwanda
Private Limited.

Industry applications Residential lighting solutions, industrial lighgi like warehouse lighting, manufacturing lighting,
packaging lighting and commercial lighting like io#f, outdoor etc.
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Computer and IT accessories

We manufacture various of information technologhaterl products, including motherboards, DRAM modul8SD and USB
drives. We further focus to increase our shardélaptop and tablet market as a part of our fustretegy looking towards the
demand in the market. The manufacturing processethése products are similar to the processesrtakde for the PCBA
described above. In addition, these products umdexgensive testing, which include stress testsnibg test and reliability/
compatibility tests. The plastic components ancohbdy part of these IT accessories are procuced the nominated vendors
of the company or customers as per the terms giuhghase orders.

Industry applicationsThese products are used in manufacture of comgpuéptops, video games and data storage devices.
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Business Process Flow

Material SMD
receiving and Solder Paste Solder Paste Co;llp AT

_ Quality Application Inspection Placement

inspection

Visual Pre-Reflow

Inspectlion A0l Reflow Inspeclion
Packaging and

shipping

1. Material Receipt and Quality inspection —This step involve the receipt of bare PCB and rottiferent components like
micro controllers, IC, resistors, capacitors, LGB and other semiconductors etc. Which are moutettie PCB. Post the
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receipt of these input materials we undertake ttgpection of the different components and base RE@8.undertake
different checks like de-lamination test (as pengling plan), Check for scratches and perform magkidherence-tape test
(as per sampling plan).

2. Solder Paste application A bare PCB is passed through the machine and tbergpaste (a combination of lead, tin and in
certain cases silver powder suspended in thick) fisxdeposited on the board through software progaad stencil are
loaded onto the machine. The software program aewci is loaded into the system, which is specificthe customer
requirements.

3. Solder paste inspection -The inspection program is loaded onto the soldatep@anspection machine. The board are
inspected for proper alignment, total pads coveragen solder paste deposition, solder paste heigluter bridging.

4. SMD component placement After solder paste printing is brought into theamiae through conveyor and the components
to be placed on the PCB are loaded in bulk pack#igesigh different feeders. The feeder and thetiocawhere the
component is to be placed on the board are definagprogram. The pick and place machines are fgetlis activity which
can be performed by our automated system. Autoroatigponent mounting ensures quick, precise and-&ge process.

5. Pre-reflow inspection —Under this step we verify that all components@aeed on the board, checking that the components
are not shifted from their pad on the board andjadey of solder paste deposition on the pads ofdngponents placed on
the PCB.

6. Reflow - During re-flow process, the PCB with componentcpltl on solder paste deposits is moved througmeegor.
There are multiple heating zones in the oven. Emeperature of each of the zone is set based otethgerature profile
measured on the PCB during the movement of the tR@Bigh the oven. During this process, the soldstggets converted
from paste form to solid form and the electricahrection from components to the pad on the boaedtablished.

7. AOI - After reflow soldering, the PCB from reflow oves passed onto automatic optical inspection systdene the
soldering qualities as well as the identity of deenponents are verified with reference to the sggieograms.

8. Inspection —This step involve inspection of the PCBA alonghathe components mounted on it. In most casesnplate is
used for manual inspection to inspect the soldeogmhections. The company also use machines likayXrRachines etc. for
inspection of the PCBA.

9. Packaging and shipping -All PCBAs are than packed which helps in prolongeutage after delivery. Packing boxes are
determined by the customer based on the projeetds

Capacity and Capacity Utilization

Product Details March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Installed Actual % Installed Actual % Installed Actual %
Capacity | Production Capacity | Production Capacity | Production
(in UOM) (in No.) (in UOM) (in No.) (in UOM) (in No.)
Printed circuit boarg
assemblies (“PCBA")
including Led Lighting
Solutions, SSD, USB 18,00,000| 9,90,048| 55.0018,00,000 7,57,056| 42.06 11,04,000 3,33,396 D.20
Flash Storage Device,
Computer and T
accessorie

As per the certificate dated May 02, 2024 receiveth Kakode Associates Consulting Private Limitedartered Engineer.

QUALITY CONTROL

We place strong emphasis on product and procedisyquantrol, which we consider crucial to our sass. We have established a
strict quality management system, which is desigoneshsure quality product design, production &fficy and high yields at our
manufacturing facilities. Quality checks are undken at various stages, including for incoming raaterial / components,
during the work in process stage, at packaginglastty, a quality check is undertaken prior to digi of our products. We have

obtained EN 9100:2018 certificate (equivalent to 880D and JISQ 9100:2016, including ISO 9001:20f) Quality

Management System for manufacturing of PCB assesibli

EXPORT OBLIGATION:

Our Company have the below mentioned export obtiggiursuant to the letter of approval issued &y $fEZ authorities, as on
date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus —
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(in Z Lakhs)
Particular 2025 2026 2027 | 2028 2029
FOB value of Expo 1300( 1380C | 1450C | 1500C | 1550(
Foreign exchange outgo for 5 ye 839( 880z 924¢ 956¢ 988(
NFE earnings for 5 yee 461( 499¢ 525¢ 543t 562(

Collaborations/ Tie Ups/ Joint Ventures

Except as disclosed in this Draft Red Herring Peosiss and normal course of business, we do not &mayeollaborations/ Ties
Ups/Joints Ventures as on date.

INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES:
1) Plant & Machinery
The major plant & machinery installed at our mawtdang facility is as under:

PCB Loader and Unloader, Paste Printer, Linking v@ger, Pick & Place Machines, Reflow machines, Aatic Optical
Inspection Machine, X-Ray Machine, Robotic Soldgridachine, Wave Soldering Machine, Ultra Sonic veddmachine,
Vacuum Sealing Machine, Chip counting machine, waeeing machine, wire cutting, crimping and strnppimachine,
Automatic PCBA router, Dry Cabinet, Compact modufexunter, PWB inspection, etc.

2) Availability of Raw Material and components
Our raw materials include:

Electronic Components (like micro controllers, F€sistors, capacitors, LED, PCB and other semicctads): We procure these
components directly from overseas manufacturers foountries like: United States, China, Taiwan eictheir authorized
distributors. Many times, PCB are also procurednfraur group company namely Infopower Technologyde Limited. Apart
from this we procure wire harness, plastic partsd ather consumables. These products are procuved dpproved vendors.
Strict quality control procedures, including thpdrty testing, are carried out to ensure compliamitie our quality specifications.
Our cost of materials consumed constituted a sgmf component of our expenditure and during tisedf 2024, 2023 and 2022
were ¥ 5310.35 lakhsZ 3824.10 lakhs and 1569.70 lakhs respectively, and constituted 77,42619% and 79.76%,
respectively, of our total expenses. Our purchds®ea our top 10 suppliers during the Fiscal 202822 and 2022 werg&
3751.77 lakhsg 2599.55 lakhs and 1124.19 lakhs respectively, and constituted 56,809%62% and 64.36%, respectively, of
our total purchases.

3) Power and fuel:

The requirement of power in our manufacturing faciat Noida SEZ is met through Pashchimanchal Yidhvitran Nigam
Limited. We use generators to meet exigencies sarenthat our facility is operational during povegtures.

4) Water:

We do not require water for our manufacturing atés. The water requirement for other activitiesriet through local sources.
Sales and Marketing

Our principal markets are India, United States, ¢d@mg, United Kingdom, Spain, Mexico, Austria, CdaaChina, Denmark,
Germany, Israel, Libya, Rwanda, South Korea & Tiani®ur diversified customer base enables us tacedur dependence on
any particular segment or market. Our marketingvgiets involve our development and engineeringrieavorking closely with
customers or prospective customers, and our desigrmanufacturing facilities work to design produetilored to meet specific
customer requirements. Further, our sales and rilagkeeam is regularly in contact with our customesales representatives and
agents to understand the evolving needs of cuswagewell as market trends.

Our revenue from domestic and export sales is dsrun

(in Z Lakhs)
Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amt. % Amt. % Amt. %
Domestic 1671.6: 16.4:% 106.1¢ 1.54 131.8: 6.07
Export 8503.9° 83.57 6803.3¢ 98.4¢ 2038.3( 93.9:
Total 10175.6 100.00 6909.53 100.00 2170.12 100.00
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Competition

We operate in the ESDM industry, which is very cetitive with high growth. Our competition varies market, geographical

areas and type of products manufactured. As atrésukemain competitive in our markets, we musittoaiously strive to reduce

our costs of production, transportation and distitn and improve our operating efficiencies. Wenpete primarily on the basis
of product quality, technology, cost, delivery awivice. Due to our diversified product portfoliee cater to various segments in
the Railways, Aerospace, Marine, Automobile, Hezltle, IT Hardware etc., and as a result, we compighevarious companies

for each of our business segments.

Human Resource

We have in our team qualified, technical, skilledi ainskilled personnel who are abreast with theatggimanufacturing norms.
They are committed & dedicated to maintain the Bjgecstandard, quality & safety of our productglaervices. As on March
31, 2024, our Company has employed approximatelyehployees at various levels of the OrganizaBatow are the details of
the department-wise employees of the company —

Department Employees as on March 31, 2024
HR & Administratior 12
Desigring & Quality contrg 22
Financt 7
Productiol 92
Purchas & Store 17
Sales & Marketin 10
Total 160

Further, we also employee contract labour basati@nequirement at our manufacturing facility.
Insurance

Operating our business involves many risks, whichpt insured, could adversely affect our businasd results of operations.
We maintain insurance coverage that we considgomesy in the industry against certain of the opegarisks. Our insurance
policies include vehicle insurance, Marine Cargeuhance, Bharat Laghu Udyam Suraksha Policy forRlant, Machinery,
Stock, Furniture and Building and Burglary InsurarRolicy. We believe that our current level of irmswce is adequate for our
business and consistent with industry practice,wmadhave not historically experienced a loss inesgmf our policy limits. We
may not be able to obtain insurance coverage irfutie to cover all risks inherent in our businessinsurance, if available,
may be at rates that we do not consider to be coniatly reasonable.

PROPERTIES
Intellectual Property

Below are the details of the trademark which oumpany is using for its business purposes. For ldetdiour intellectual
property rights, seéGovernment and Other Approvalsbn page 226 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Sr Name Applied Nature Application Registration No. | Class Present Status
No. Date
= SAHASRA Trademark Janzuoalrzl 29, 2892278 9 Registered
2. SAHASRA Word Mark | March 28, 202 538794. 9 Registere
3.
=TIT Device | \1ay 07, 2013 2526527 11 Registered
== Mark
4. ' iy
AH AS R A ,j;’:ﬁe May 07, 2013 2526526 11 Registered

*The all above trademarks are owned by SahasratElaics, Proprietorship Firm of Amrit Lal ManwanChairman, Managing
Director & Promoter of the company) who has granted company a No Objection Certificate (NOC) datguil 23, 2024, for
business purposes.
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Immovable Properties

Details of our immovable properties are as below:

S. No. Address of Property Actual Use | Owned/Leased Details of property
1. 33, Pocket 1, Jasola Vihar, Registered Leased The property admeasuring 300 sq. feet hexs th&en
New Friends Colony Office on lease vide a lease deed dated January 01, |2024
South Delhi, New Delhi entered with Varsha B P Manwani valid for 11 months
India — 110025 starting from January 01, 2024 to November 30, 2024
at a monthly rent ¢ 15,000 per monti
2. 68AA, Noida Special Corporate Leased The property admeasuring land area of 1@PQ s
Economic Zone, Noida + Office and meters has been taken on lease vide a lease dieet da
201305, India Manufacturing October 06, 2023 entered with Chairperson and Chief
Facility Executive officer, Noida SEZ Authority Noida val|d
for 15 years at a quarterly rentZ 47,750 per quarte
3. A-4  Phase-ll, Gautam Warehouse Leased The property has been takenase lide a lease
Buddha Nagar, Noida- agreement dated April 12, 2024 entered with
201305 Uttar Pradesh Infopower Technologies Private Limited (Infopower
Technologies Limited) valid for 11 months starting
from April 12, 2024 to March 11, 2025 at a monthly
rent ofZ 60,000 per montl
4. Plot no B-3/1, Elcina Proposed Leased The property admeasuring land area of 1g&f(
Electronics Manufacturing expansion meters has been taken on lease vide a lease agiepme
Cluster, Industrial Area dated June 15, 2024 entered with Sahasra Elec$ronic
Salarpur, Bhiwadi, Distt Private Limited valid for 5 years starting from &un
Alwar-301019, Rajasthan 15, 2024 at a monthly rent &f75,000 per month.
India
Details of the manufacturing facility of our Sulisiy Company are as below:
S. No Address of Property Actual Use Owned/Leased Details of property
1. Plot no B-2, Elcing Manufacturing Leased The property admeasuring land area of Q2%
Electronics Manufacturing Facility meters has been taken on lease vide a lease|deed
Cluster, Industrial Area dated November 12, 2020 entered with Eldina
Salarpur, Bhiwadi, Distt Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited
Alwar, Rajasthan- 301019, valid upto August 25, 2113 for a consideratiorZ qf
India 496.69 lakhs and O&M charges on land ¢
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KEY INDUSTRY REGULATIONS AND POLICIES

The following description is a summary of the ratgvregulations and policies as prescribed by th®/&nment of India and
other regulatory bodies that are applicable to dwrsiness. The information detailed in this chagtas been obtained from
various legislations, including rules and regulat® promulgated by the regulatory bodies that arailable in the public
domain. The regulations and policies set out bateay not be exhaustive, and are only intended teigeogeneral information
to the investors and are neither designed nor idéehto be a substitute for professional legal aglvithe Company may be
required to obtain licenses and approvals dependipgn the prevailing laws and regulations as apgdie.

For details of such approvals, please see the gedttled “Government and other Approvalsbn page 22@®f this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus -

INDUSTRY SPECIFIC REGULATIONS
The Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 2016

The BIS Act provides for the establishment of burdar the standardization, marking and quality iGegtion of goods.
Functions of the bureau include, inter-alia, (&ognizing as an Indian standard, any standard lesttatl by any other institution
in India or elsewhere, in relation by any othetitngion in India or elsewhere, in relation to aaicle or process; (b) specifying
a standard mark to be called the Bureau of Indimmd&ards Certification Mark which shall be of sut#sign and contain such
particulars as may be prescribed to representtaplar Indian standard; and (c), make an inspectind take such samples of
any material or substance as may be necessaretatsether any article or process in relation tochthe standard mark has
been used conforms to the Indian Standard or whéitleestandard mark has been improperly used atioal to any article or
process with or without a license.

Bureau of Indian Standards Rules, 2018

The Bureau of India Standards Rules, 2018 (the éBurof Indian Standards Rules”) have been notifreduper session of the
Bureau of Indian Standards Rules, 1987, in so $athay relate to Chapter IV A of the said rulestiah to registration of the
articles notified by the Central Government, andupersession of the Bureau of Indian StandardesR@D17 except in relation
to things done or omitted to be done before sugkeimession. Under the Bureau of Indian StandardssRihe bureau is required
to establish Indian standards in relation to angdgo article, process, system or service simal reaffirm, amend, revise or
withdraw Indian standards so established asheayecessary.

Electronics and Information Technology Goods (Requement for Compulsory Registration) Order, 2021

The Electronics and Information Technology Goodsdirement for Compulsory Registration) Order, 2Q&& “Compulsory
Registration Order”) has been notified in sgpesion of the Electronics and Informationhhedogy Goods (Requirement
for Compulsory Registration) Order, 2012. The Colapry Registration Order states that the manufagjustorage, import, sale
or distribution of goods, which do not meabe specified standard and/or bear a self-de@araonfirming conformance to
the relevant Indian standard is prohibited. Sucbdgoshall also bear the “Standard Mark” under ene from the Bureau of
Indian Standards in accordance with the Bureaundfah Standards (Conformity Assessment) Regulati@@48. The only
exception is for those goods or articles which meant for export which conform to the specificati@guired by the foreign
buyer and to goods or articles, for which the CanBovernment has issued a specific exemptionr)ditesed on reasons to be
recorded in writing.

Central Electricity Authority (Measures relating to Safety and Electric Supply) Regulations, 2010 (“Saty and Electric
Supply Regulations”)

The Safety and Electric Supply Regulations lay doggulations for safety requirements for electtip@y lines and accessories
(meters, switchgears, switches and cables). ltiregjall relevant specifications prescribed byBh® or the International Electro-
Technical Commission to be adhered to. These iechlicelectric supply lines and accessories to:

have adequate power ratings and proper insulation;

e be of adequate mechanical strength for the dutlecyc

e have a switchgear installation in each conductaveiy service line within a consumer’s premisest a

e be encased in a fireproof receptacle.

The construction, installation, working and mairtece of such supply lines must be in a method wiitlhensure the safety of
human beings, animals and property.

The Electrical Wires, Cables, Appliances and Protamn Devices and Accessories (Quality Control) Orde 2003 (“Quality
Control Order”)

The Quality Control Order sets out directions apelcHfied standards for a manufacturer for the mactufe, storage for sale, sale
and distribution of electrical wires, cables, appties, protection devices (including low voltagetcvgear and fuses) and
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accessorises. It prohibits those products whiclmatoconform to standards specified and those wti@mot near the standard
mark issued by the Bureau of Indian Standards ("Bkhd further requires any sub-standard or defeclectrical wires, cables,
appliances, protection devices or accessories ttefigmed by such manufacturer beyond use and shsbof as scrap. Further, it
directs that the commencement of manufacturingioh ®lectrical equipment can only after obtaininganse from the BIS for
the use of standard mark. The Quality Control Oigléssued by the Department of Industrial Poliog #romotion, Ministry of
Commerce and Industry, Government of India (“DIRAHe Central Government is authorized to appaimféicer who shall be
empowered to inspect any books or documents, seeuglpremises, seize any electric equipment, akasalequire any person
engaged in the manufacture, storage, sale orlisisn of electrical equipment to furnish infornmatiand samples, in the case of
contravention of the Quality Control Order.

The National Policy on Electronics, 2019 (“NPE”)

The NPE is issued by the Ministry of Electronicad dnformation Technology, Government of India. TR®E envisions
positioning India as a global hub for Electronigsstem Design and Manufacturing -(ESDM) by encgimg and driving
capabilities in the country for developing core aments, including chipsets, and creating an engl#invironment for the
industry to compete globally.

The Indian Telegraph Act, 1885 (“Telegraph Act”)

The Telegraph Act governs all forms of the usagigetégraph’. The term ‘telegraph’, as defined unthee Telegraph Act means
any appliance, instrument, material or apparatesl us capable of use for transmission or receptibsigns, signals, writing,
images, and sounds or intelligence of any natureviog, visual or other electro-magnetic emissiarslio waves or hertzian
waves, galvanic, electric or magnetic means. Asspetion 4, the exclusive privilege of establishingintaining and working
telegraphs shall be with the central governmemntitr persons licensed under section 7 of the TalgigrAct. A contravention of
the conditions prescribed in the license grantedkeusection 7 is punishable under section 20A efTtelegraph Act with a fine
which may extend t& 1000, and with a further fine which may extendt600 for every week during which the breach of the
condition continues.

The Telegraph Act gives the government the powena&e rules for conduct of all telegraphs establisimaintained or worked
by the government. This includes rules governirggdbnditions and restrictions subject to which siggraph line, appliance or
apparatus for telegraphic communication shall babéished, maintained, worked, repaired, transterehifted, withdrawn or
disconnected. Further, the rules prescribed byctrgral government may prescribe the fines for Brgach of such rules.
Pursuant to section 7(3), a person licensed umgef ¢legraph Act is punishable for breach of thetes, with a fine of 1,000,
and in the case of a continuing breach a furthmer if2 200 for every day after the first during the whoteany part of which the
breach continues.

The Indian Wireless Telegraphy Act, 1933 (“Telegrahy Act”)

The Telegraphy Act regulates the possession okleds telegraphy apparatus’ in India. The terméiess telegraphy apparatus’
has been defined to mean any apparatus, applisnstejment or material used or capable of use meless communication, and
includes any article determined by rule made bydietral government with respect to the maintenariaecords containing
details of the acquisition and disposal by saletberwise of wireless telegraphy apparatus posddssdealers. However, it does
not include any such apparatus, appliance, instniimematerial commonly used for other electricatgmses, unless it has been
specially designed or adapted for wireless comnatitic or forms part of some apparatus, appliantgtyiument or material
specially so designed or adapted, nor any artieterchined by rule made by the central governmetiti;rregard.

Under section 4 of Telegraphy Act, the central goreent has power to exempt any person or any cdhggrsons from the
provisions of the Telegraphy Act, either generadly subject to prescribed conditions, or in respefctspecified wireless
telegraphy apparatus. Barring this, no personldsved to possess wireless telegraphy apparatus ththe a wireless transmitter,
except under and in accordance with a license dsander the Telegraphy Act, failing which, fine100 might be imposed in
the case of the first offence and in the case sd@nd or subsequent offence, fine may exter®d260. Also under section 5 of
the Telegraphy Act, only the authority constitutgttler the Telegraphy Act is competent to issuenfies to possess wireless
telegraphy apparatus. Whoever possesses any witedgsmitter in contravention of provisions of frelegraphy Act might be
punished with imprisonment which may extend toe¢hyears, or with fine which may extend&d 000, or with both.

Guidelines for Procurement of Computer Hardware, Sétware and Computer Accessories etc. and for condemation and
disposal of IT e, 2010

The “Guidelines for Procurement of Computer Hardw&oftware, and Computer Accessories etc., an€émdemnation and
Disposal of IT Equipment” is a comprehensive docoirteat outlines the procedures and standardsheracquisition and
management of IT resources within an organizatioserves as a critical framework for ensuring tihat procurement process is
conducted in a transparent, efficient, and costetife manner, while also adhering to the highéstdards of quality and
compliance with relevant regulations.

The guidelines typically cover the entire lifecydé IT assets, from planning and budgeting to asitjan, maintenance, and
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eventual disposal. They emphasize the importanessdssing the current and future needs of theniazegon to make informed
decisions about the types and quantities of equipmegjuired. This includes evaluating the compkttjbof new hardware and
software with existing systems, as well as congidethe total cost of ownership over the assefssfian. Furthermore, the
guidelines stipulate the need for a competitivedisig process to ensure fair market prices and éggnt any potential conflicts
of interest. They may also include provisions foe ethical and environmentally responsible dispo$dl' equipment, which is
crucial for minimizing the ecological impact of eteonic waste.

In addition to procurement and disposal, the gindsl also address the maintenance and support eés&ts. This involves
setting up service level agreements with vendatsibdishing protocols for updates and upgradeseasdring that there are clear
procedures for reporting and resolving technicalés.

The Information Technology Act, 2000 (the “IT Act”) and the rules made thereunder

The IT Act seeks to: (i) provide legal recognititmtransactions carried out by various means dftedeic data interchange
involving alternatives to paper-based methods ehroonication and storage of information; (ii) fatte electronic filing of

documents; and (iii) create a mechanism for thbemtication of electronic documentation throughtdigsignatures. The IT Act
provides for extraterritorial jurisdiction over amffence or contravention under the IT Act comnditieutside India by any
person, irrespective of their nationality, if thet @r conduct constituting the offence or contraiemninvolves a computer,
computer system or computer network located indnddditionally, the IT Act empowers the Governmehtndia to direct any
of its agencies to intercept, monitor or decrypy arformation in the interest of sovereignty, intiég defence and security of
India, among other things. The Information Techggl¢Procedure and Safeguards for Blocking for Asaelsinformation by

Public) Rules, 2009 specifically permit the Goveemnof India to block access of any information grated, transmitted,
received, stored or hosted in any computer resobycéhe public, the reasons for which are requi@de recorded by it
inwriting.

The IT Act prescribes civil and criminal liabylitncluding fines and imprisonment for computeated offences including those
relating to unauthorized access to computgstesis, tampering with or unauthorised mamipoth of any computer,
computer system or computer network and damagimgpater systems, and creates liability for negligeirc dealing with or
handling any sensitive personal data or informaiioa computer resource and in maintaining readersdxurity practices and
procedures in relation thereto, among others.

In exercise of this power, the Department of Infation Technology, (“DolT”) Ministry of Electronicand Information
Technology, Government of India, in April 201notified the Information Technology (Reazble Security Practices
and Procedures and Sensitive Personal Data omtatan) Rules, 2011 (“IT Security Rules”) which gcebe directions for the
collection, disclosure, transfer and protectiorsefisitive personal data by a body corporate orpangon acting on behalf of a
body corporate. The IT Security Rules require evargh body corporate to provide a privacy policy andling and dealing
with personal information, including sensitive pmral data, ensuring security of all personal datkected by it and publishing
such policy on its website. The IT Security Rulagtier require that all such personal data be ssésly for the purposes for
which it was collected, and any third-party disadliesof such data is made with the prior conserthefinformation provider,
unless contractually agreed upon between them eravuch disclosure is mandated by law.

The DolT also notified the Information Technolodgtérmediaries Guidelines and Digital Media Ethtrsde) Rules, 2021 (“IT
Intermediary Rules”) requiring intermediaries red®j, storing, transmitting, or providing any wee with respect to
electronic messages to not knowingly hostbliph, transmit, select or modify any infotina prohibited under the IT
Intermediaries Rules, to disable hosting, pghibhg, transmission, selection or modificatiaf such information once
they become aware of it, as well as specifyingdire diligence to be observed by intermediaries.

The Electricity Act, 2003 (“Electricity Act”)

The Electricity Act consolidates the lawsatglg to generation, transmission, distributiarading and use of electricity.
It lays down provisions in relation to tramission and distribution of electricity. Itages that the Central Electricity
Authority may in consultation with the State Govaent can specify suitable measures for specifgciipn to be taken in

relation to any electric line or electrical plaat,any electrical appliance under the control eofconsumer for the purpose of
eliminating or reducing the risk of personajury or damage to property or interferencéwitis use.

The Factories Act, 1948

The Factories Act defines a ‘factory’ to be anyrpiges including the precincts thereof, on whichaog day in the previous 12
months, 10 or more workers are or were workingianghich a manufacturing process is being carrieaois ordinarily carried
on with the aid of power; or where at least 20 veoskare or were working on any day in the preced@ihgionths and on which a
manufacturing process is being carried on or isnardy carried on without the aid of power. Sta@vernments prescribe rules
with respect to the prior submission of plans, rtlagiproval for the establishment of factories araregistration and licensing of
factories.
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The Factories Act provides that the ‘occupier’ daetory (defined as the person who has ultimatgrobover the affairs of the

factory and in the case of a company, any oneeflifectors) shall ensure the health, safety arthweeof all workers while they

are at work in the factory, especially in respdcsafety and proper maintenance of the factory ghahit does not pose health
risks, the safe use, handling, storage and trahgdactory articles and substances, provisiomaéquate instruction, training
and supervision to ensure workers’ health and patttanliness and safe working conditions.

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises DevelopmenfAct, 2006

In order to promote and enhance the competitiveagddicro, Small and Medium Enterprise (“MSME”") thdicro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is enacfedNational Board shall be appointed and estabtishy the Central
Government for MSME enterprise with its head offeteDelhi in the case of the enterprises engagetthénmanufacture or
production of goods pertaining to any industry niwred in first schedule to Industries (Developmamd Regulation) Act, 1951
as “micro enterprise”, where the investment in plmd machinery does not exceed twenty-five lakieeas, “Small enterprise”,
where the investment in plant and machinery is ntbam twenty-five lakh rupees but does not excéesl ¢rore rupees, or a
medium enterprise, where the investment in pladtraachinery is more than five crore but does noees ten crore rupees and
in the case of the enterprise engaged in the s=rvidlicro-enterprise”, where the investment in ipquent does not exceed ten
lakh rupees, “Small Enterprise” where the investimerequipment is more than ten lakh rupees busdum# exceed two crore
rupees, or “Medium Enterprise” where the investniergquipment is more than two crore rupees bus cmt exceed five crore
rupees.

The Legal Metrology Act, 2009

An act to establish and enforce standards of weightl measures, regulate trade and commerce ifntseigeasures and other
goods which are sold or distributed by weight, meaor number and for matters incidental therete phart of metrology in
relation to weighing and measuring units as welireshods of weighing and measuring instruments thighobject of ensuring
public guarantee and from the point of view of séguand accuracy of weighing and measurement. ejght or measure
which conforms to the standard of such weight oasnee and also conforms to such of the provisiéi®eo 7 as are applicable
to it shall be the standard of weight or measumy Aumeral which conforms to the provisions of $eshall be the standard
numeral. It further provides that no weight, measor numeral, other than the standard weight, measunumeral shall be used
as a standard weight, measure or numeral. No pestsalh manufacture, repair or sell, or offer, expos possess for repair or
sale, any weight or measure unless he holds askcé&sued by the Controller. No license to rephallsbe required by a
manufacturer for repair of his own weight or measiur State other than the State of manufacturd@fsame. The Controller
shall issue a license in such form and runner @h sonditions, for such period and such area @$diotion and on payment of
such fee as may be prescribed.

The Legal Metrology (Packaged Commodities) Rules, 041, with amendments up to October 2023 (“Legal Medlogy
Rules”)

The Legal Metrology Rules are ancillary to the Lelgi@trology Act, and set out to define various mi@anturing and packing
terminology. It lays out specific prohibitions wieemanufacturing, packing, selling, importing, distting, delivering, offering
for sale would be illegal and requires that anyrfasf advertisement where the retail sale priceivgrg must contain a net
guantity declaration. Circumstances which are phatite are also laid out.

The Digital Personal Data Protection Act, 2023 (“DBP ACT")

The DPDP Act was notified on August 11, 2023 angkisto come into effect. It replaces the existilaga protection provision, as
contained in Section 43A of the IT Act. The DPDPt Aball come into force on such date as the Cef@oalernment may, by
notification in the Official Gazette, appoint anifferent dates may be appointed for different psavis of the DPDP Act. The
DPDP Act seeks to balance the rights of individualprotect their digital personal data with thed¢o process personal data for
lawful and other incidental purposes. The DPDP patvides that personal data may be processed only lawful purpose after
obtaining the consent of the individual. A noticeishbe given before seeking consent, except in o&degitimate uses as
provided under the DPDP Act. It further imposedaiarobligations on data fiduciaries including rfipke reasonable efforts to
ensure the accuracy and completeness of datdu{lg reasonable security safeguards to preverdta lbreach, (iii) inform the
Data Protection Board of India (the “DPB”) and aff=l persons in the event of a breach, and (i\®egparsonal data as soon as
the purpose has been met and retentionots necessary for legal purposes (storagetdiion). In case of government
entities, storage limitation and the right of treadprincipal to erasure will not apply. The DPDEt Anposes certain additional
obligations on a significant data fiduciary, suchagpointment of a data protection officer, appuoarit of an independent data
auditor and undertaking of other measures namedyipgic data protection impact assessment, periaddit and such other
measures as may be prescribed under the DPDP AetCéntral Government will establish the DPB. Kegdtions of the DPB
include: (i) monitoring compliance and imposing akies, (ii) directing data fiduciaries to take essary measures in the event
of a data breach, and (iii) hearing grievances nigdaffected persons. The DPB members will be agpdifor two years and
will be eligible for re-appointment. The Central@onment will prescribe details such as the nunatbenembers of the DPB and
the selection process.

109



Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 (“SEZ Act") and Sial Economic Zones Rules, 2006 (“SEZ Rules”)

The SEZ Act provides for the establishment, devalept and management of special economic zoneshéptomotion of
exports. The SEZ Act constitutes a Board of Apptdawsavhom any person wishing to establish a spemi@nomic zone may
make a proposalhe Central Government has the power to notify igigddentified areas as special economic zones, based on
communications received from the Board of Appraegjarding sucha proposal and the fulfilment of certain uegments
by the person making sueh proposal. The SEZ Acempowers the Central Government to appoint a dpwadmt
commissioner to ensure the speedy developmerat sfecial economic zone and the promotion of eggbdrefrom. Any person
intending to set up a unit for carryingn authorised operations in a special economic zoag submit a proposal to the
development commissioneAny goods or services exported out of, wipadrted into, or procured from the rest loflia
excluding speciakeconomic zones, by a unit in a special economie zwra developer of a special economic zone, shatiject
to the terms and conditions prescribed, bemgt from the payment of taxes, duties essc under the specified
enactments.

The SEZ Rules prescribe the procedure for the ksitatent of a special economic zone, the procethrrthe establishment of a
unit within a special economic zone, and the teants conditions for the grant of permission to ofgergithin a special economic
zone by the development commissioner.

Shops And Establishments legislations in various ates

Under the provisions of local shops and establistimiegislations applicable in the states in whéshablishments are set up,
establishments are required to be registered. fagislations regulate the working and employmentditions of the workers
employed in shops and establishments including cermiad establishments and provide for fixation obriing hours, rest
intervals, overtime, holidays, leave, terminatioh service, maintenance of shops and establishmamds other rights and
obligations of the employers and employees. Alustdes have to be registered under the shops statilishments legislations
of the state where they are located. There aralfies prescribed in the form of monetary fine mprisonment for violation of
the legislations.

Fire prevention laws

The state legislatures in India have the powernidoe the municipalities with the power to implemachemes and perform
functions in relation to matters listed in the TftlelSchedule to the Constitution of India, whiclelides fire prevention and
firefighting services. The state legislatures hals® enacted fire control and safety rules andlatigns such as the Karnataka
Fire Services Act, 1964 and Telangana Fire Ser&ite 1999 which are applicable to our manufactufiagjlities established in
Karnataka and Telangana, respectively. The legsiatinclude provisions in relation to fire safetyd life saving measures by
occupiers of buildings, licensing provisions andglges for non-compliance.

LAWS RELATING TO SPECIFIC STATE WHERE THE ESTABLISH MENT IS SITUATED
The Delhi Shops and Establishments Act, 1954

Under the provisions of local shops and establigtimmiegislations applicable in the states in whistablishments are set up,
establishments are required to be registered. fagislations regulate the working and employmemditions of the workers
employed in shops and establishments including cermiad establishments and provide for fixation obriing hours, rest
intervals, overtime, holidays, leave, terminatioh service, maintenance of shops and establishmeamds other rights and
obligations of the employers and employees. Alklglsshments must be registered under the shopsstatilishments legislations
of the state where they are located. There arelfEnarescribed in the form of monetary fine opimsonment for violation of
the legislations, as well as the procedures foeap relation to such contravention of the primris.

LABOUR RELATED LEGISLATIONS

Minimum Wages Act, 1948

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 came into force withadijective to provide for the fixation of a minimuwage payable by the
employer to the employee. Every employer is mamti&depay the minimum wages to all employees engagetb any work
skilled, unskilled, and manual or clerical (inclodiout-workers) in any employment listed in theestiile to this Act, in respect
of which minimum rates of wages have been fixetkwised under the Act.

Payment Of Wages Act, 1936

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 as amended (the étayoh Wages Act) has been enacted to regulatpaipment of wages in
a particular form at regular intervals without utfarized deductions and to ensure a speedy andtigfaemedy to employees

against illegal deductions and / or unjustifiedagetaused in paying wages. It applies to the persmployed in a factory,
industrial or other establishment, whether directlyindirectly, through a sub-contractor and presgidor the imposition of fines
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and deductions and lays down wage periods. The &atywf Wages Act is applicable to factories andusidal or other
establishments where the monthly wages payablesseharg 6,500 per month.

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 (Industrial DiggaiAct) provides for mechanism and procedure t¢arseindustrial peace and
harmony by investigation and settlement of indabidisputes by negotiations. The Industrial DispuAet extends to whole of
India and applies to every industrial establishmeartrying on any business, trade, manufacture strildiuition of goods and
services irrespective of the number of workmen eygyd therein. Every person employed in an estahkst for hire or reward
including contract labour, apprentices and paretemployees to do any manual, clerical, skillegkilled, technical, operational
or supervisory work, is covered by the Act. The Atdo provides for (a) the provision for paymentcofmpensation to the
Workman on account of closure or layoff or retreneit. (b) the procedure for prior permission ofrappiate Government for
laying off or retrenching the workers or closingagioindustrial establishments (c) restriction onainfabour practices on part of
an employer or a trade union or workers.

Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970, as Amended (THE “CLRA ACT")

The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Aof, 1970 (the “CLRA Act”) requires a company to legistered as a

principal employer and prescribes certain obligetiwith respect to the welfare and health of cattiegbourers. The CLRA vests
responsibility in the principal employer of an ddishment, to which the CLRA applies, to make apligption to the concerned
officer for registration of the concerned estabtigint. In the absence of such registration, contadciur cannot be employed in
the concerned establishment. Likewise, every cotdrato whom the CLRA applies, is required to abt license and may not
undertake or execute any work through contractatexcept under and in accordance with the licésseed. To ensure the
welfare and health of the contract labour, the CLiRf0ses certain obligations on the contractoelation to the establishment
of canteens restrooms, drinking water, washindifes, first aid, other facilities and paymentwéges. However, in the event
the contractor fails to provide these amenities, ihincipal employer is under an obligation to pdevthese facilities within a

prescribed time period. Penalties, including batles and imprisonment, may be levied for contraeentf the provisions of the

CLRA.

Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976, as amended (EfR pkovides for the payment of equal remuneratmmen and women
workers for same or similar nature of work and preion of discrimination, on the ground of sex,iagawomen in the matter of
employment and for matters connected therewithnoidental thereto. Under the ER Act, no discrimomatis permissible in
recruitment and service conditions, except wherpleyment of women is prohibited or restricted bwldt also provides that
every employer should maintain such registers ahérodocuments in relation to the workers emplopgdhim/ her in the
prescribed manner.

Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

It Employees’ State Insurance Act to provide fort@i@a benefits to employees in case of sicknessemity and employment
injury and to make provision for certain other raggtin relation thereto. Whereas it is expediergrtavide for certain benefits to
employees in case of sickness, maternity and emq#ay injury and to make provision for certain otimeatters in relation

thereto; this Act requires all the employees of ¢iseablishment to which this act applies to bereduo the manner provided
there under. The Employer and Employees both apgnesl to make contribution to the fund. The retafthe contribution made
is required to be filed with the Employee Statairasice department.

Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisns Act, 1952 (“EPF ACT")

The EPF Act applies to factories employing overe2fployees and such other establishments and ireustdertakings as

notified by the Government of India from time tmé. It requires all such establishments to be tegd with the State provident
fund commissioner and requires such employers aed employees to contribute in equal proportiontite employees’

provident fund the prescribed percentage of basiges and dearness and other allowances payabteployees. The EPF Act
also requires the employer to maintain registedssaibmit a monthly return to the State providentfecommissioner.

Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment and Conditions Of Service) Act, 1979

Inter-State Migrant Workmen Act is an act enactgdhHe Parliament of India to regulate the employhw@rinter-state migrant
workmen and to provide for their conditions of seev This Act is applicable to every establishmantl contractor who has
employed five or more inter-state of Pass-Bookuerg inter-state migrant workman with full detaitgyment of displacement
allowance equivalent to 50% of monthly wage& af5/-, whichever is higher, payment of journey atimce including payment
of wage during the period of the journey, suitatesidential accommodation, medical facilities andtgctive clothing, payment
of wages, equal pay for equal work irrespectivesex, etc. The main responsibility for the enforcet the provisions of the
Inter-State Migrant Workmen Act lies with the CetttGovernment and the State Governments/Union tbees in the
establishments falling in the Central and Stateesptrespectively.
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Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986

This statute prohibits employment of children belé# years of age in certain occupations and preseasd provides for
regulation of employment of children in all othercapations and processes. Under this Act the emqgay of child labour in the
building and construction industry is prohibited.

Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 is applicable tagestablishment employing 20 or more employees. §did Act provides for

payment of the minimum bonus specified under theté¢he employees. It further requires the maiatee of certain books and
registers such as the register showing computadfothe allocable surplus; the register showing $bé on & set off of the

allocable surplus and register showing the detdilhe amount of Bonus due to the employees. Fuitheso require for the

submission of Annual Return in the prescribed fQRORM D) to be submitted by the employer withindy/s of payment of the
bonus to the Inspector appointed under the Act.

Minimum Wages Act, 1948

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 came into force withodjective to provide for the fixation of a minimuwage payable by the
employer to the employee. Every employer is mamti&depay the minimum wages to all employees engagetb any work
skilled, unskilled, and manual or clerical (inclodiout-workers) in any employment listed in theeshlie to this Act, in respect
of which minimum rates of wages have been fixeteoised under the Act.

Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, as amended regslahe employment of pregnant women and ensureshiyaget paid leave
for a specified period during and after their pramgey. The Maternity Benefit Act is applicable tdaddishments in which 10 or
more employees are employed, or were employed grday of the preceding 12 months. Under the MatgrBenefit Act, a

mandatory period of leave and benefits should fzentgd to female employees who have worked in th&bkshment for a
minimum period of 80 days in the preceding 12 msritbm the date of her expected delivery. Such fisnessentially include
payment of average daily wage for the period oti@cabsence of the female employee. The maximunogéor which any

woman shall be entitled to maternity benefit sballl2 weeks, of which not more than six weeks girattede the date of her.

Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923

The Workmen Compensation Act, 1923 has been enadtbdthe objective to provide for the payment @impensation to
workmen by employers for injuries by accident agsout of and in the course of employment, andoftcupational diseases
resulting in death or disablement. The WCA make=ryemployer liable to pay compensation in accocdanmith the WCA if a
personal injury/disablement/loss of life is causeda workman (including those employed through atre@tor) by accident
arising out of and in the course of his employméntase the employer fails to pay compensationwhaeer the WCA within one
month from the date it falls due, the commissioagpointed under the WCA may direct the employepayp the compensation
amount along with interest and may also imposenalpe

Sexual Harassment at Workplace (Prevention, Prohilion And Redressal) Act, 2013

The Sexual Harassment at Workplace (PreventiorhiBition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (SHWPPR Act) jfes for protection
against sexual harassment at the workplace to wamnenprevention and redressal of complaints of @lekarassment. The
SHWPPR Act defines-Sexual Harassment to include lanyelcome sexually determined behaviour (whethisrcty or by
implication). Workplace under the SHWPPR Act hasrbdefined widely to include government bodiesyaig and public sector
organizations, non-governmental organizations, mimgdions carrying on commercial, vocational, ediocel, entertainment,
industrial, financial activities, hospitals and sing homes, educational institutes, sports ingitst and stadiums used for
training individuals. The SHWPPR Act requires arpéayer to set up an Internal Complaints Committeeagh office or branch,
of an organization employing at least 10 employ&ls. Government in turn is required to set up adl@omplaint Committee at
the district level to investigate complaints regagdsexual harassment from establishments whereirdarnal complaints
committee has not been constituted.

The Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 received thenasgehe President of India on September 28, 2080it proposes to subsume
certain existing legislations including the EmpleigCompensation Act, 1923, the Employees’ Staserrbmce Act, 1948, the
Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous PimvssAct, 1952, the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961¢tRayment of Gratuity
Act, 1972, the Building and Other Construction Wk Welfare Cess Act, 1996 and the un-organizedkéfs’ Social Security
Act, 2008. The provisions of this code will be bgbtiinto force on a date to be notified by the @artovernment. In addition to
above, we are subject to wide variety of generalglicable labour laws concerning condition of vingg benefit and welfare of
our labourers and employees such as the Sexuass$taest of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Proloibiind Redressal) Act,
2013 and the Employees (Provident Fund and Misoedlas Provision) Act, 1952.
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TAX RELATED LEGISLATIONS
Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax Act, 1961 is applicable to every Domefroreign Company whose income is taxable urfgeiptovisions of this
Act or Rules made under it depending upon its Residl Status and-Type of Income involved. U/s 13%very Company is
required to file its Income tax return for everyetious Year by 30th September of the Assessment ¢her compliances like
those relating to Tax Deduction at Source, Fringaddit Tax, Advance Tax, and Minimum AlternativexTike are also required
to be complied by every Company.

Goods And Service Tax, 2017

Goods and Services Tax (GST) is levied on supplgoafds or services or both jointly by the Centrad &tate Governments. It
was introduced as The Constitution (One Hundred Eiret Amendment) Act 2017 and is governed by tI&T &ouncil. GST

provides for imposition of tax on the supply of dsoor services and will be levied by central omargtate supply of goods or
services and by the States including Union teigtowith legislature/ Union Territories without Islgiture respectively. A
destination-based consumption tax GST would be & @ST with the central and states simultaneouslyihg tax with a

common base. The GST law is enforced by various et Central Goods and Services Act, 2017 (CGSTate Goods and
Services Tax Act, 2017 (SGST), Union Territory Gea@ohd Services Tax Act, 2017 (UTGST), Integrateddsoand Services
Tax Act, 2017 (IGST) and Goods and Services Taxr{@ansation to States) Act, 2017 and various ruledenthereunder.

Every person liable to take registration underé¢h&sts shall do so within a period of 30 days fritia date on which he becomes
liable to registration. The Central/State authosityll issue the registration certificate upon igtoaf application. The Certificate
shall contain fifteen-digit registration numberolm as Goods and Service Tax Identification Nun{@3TIN). In case a person
has multiple business verticals in multiple locatidn a state, a separate application will be nfadeegistration of each and
every location. The registered assesse is theriregto pay GST as per the rules applicable thewaauh file the appropriate
returns as applicable thereon. GST has replactmiviolg indirect taxes and duties at the central state levels.

ENVIRONMENT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Environmental Protection Act, 1986 (“Environmert Protection Act”), Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution)
Act, 1974 (“Water Act”) and the Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 (“Air Act”) provide for the prevention,
control and abatement of pollution. Pollution CohBoards (“PCBs”) have been constituted in all 8tates in India to exercise
the authority provided under these statutes forpimgose of preventing and controlling pollutioron@anies are required to
obtain approvals of the relevant State PCBs forssimns and discharge of effluents into the enviremmThe Hazardous
Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Mowaent) Rules, 2016(“Hazardous Waste Rules”Jmpose an
obligation on every occupier and operator of alitgogenerating hazardous waste to dispose of $ixdardous wastes properly
including proper collection, treatment, storage aigposal. Every occupier and operator of the itgcdenerating hazardous
waste is required to obtain an approval from th& P& collecting, storing and treating the hazaslewaste. Additionally, the
Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transbowdary Movement) Second Amendment Rules, 2028at came
into force from April ®, 2024 mentions about registration by Central RiolfluControl Board and extended responsibilities f
producers of used oil importers.

E-Waste (Management and Handling), Rules, 2022 algrwith E-waste (Management) Amendment Rules, 2024

The E-Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 26ig2jfy a comprehensive approach by the Indian gowent to address
the escalating issue of electronic waste. EnacteNavember 2, 2022, these rules supersede the EeVidanagement) Rules,
2016, reflecting the evolving landscape of e-wastmagement and the need for more stringent regnfatThe 2022 rules came
into effect on April 1, 2023, and are applicablertanufacturers, producers, refurbishes, dismantid recyclers involved in the
lifecycle of electrical and electronic equipmestéd in Schedule | of the rules.

The rules introduce an expanded definition of etejasow including solar photovoltaic modules, panelr cells that are
discarded as waste. This broadened scope is angspo the changing nature of electronic produetstheir components. The
term ‘bulk consumer’ has also been redefined tduthe any entity that has used at least one thousaitd of electrical and
electronic equipment listed in Schedule | at anypduring a financial year, encompassing e-retsiées well. A pivotal change is
the introduction of recycling targets within thetéxded Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan. Produese now mandated to
meet annual e-waste recycling targets, ensuringgureecycling and safe disposal of e-waste. Thi fiom the collection-
focused EPR under the 2016 rules to a recyclingricesppproach under the 2022 rules underscoregdkiernment’s commitment
to sustainable waste management.

Registration requirements have also been revisaditids involved in the e-waste business must negister on a portal

developed by the Central Pollution Control Boar®@B). Operating without registration or dealinghmiinregistered entities is
prohibited, reinforcing the accountability of sthkéders in the e-waste management chain.
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The amendment mentions that the Central Government establish one or more platform for exchangex&nded producer
responsibility certificates in accordance with thedelines issued by the Central Pollution ConBolrd with the approval of
Central Government.

Plastic Waste Management Rules, 2016

The Plastic Waste rules apply to manufacturerslastig, users involved in generation of plasticaasaw material as well as
individuals and institutions that generate plastaste. Any entity or institution that generatessptawaste is responsible for
segregating and handling the waste in the mannpreasribed under the rules. Further, the Plastistéd/Rules seek to minimize
and regulation of plastic and ensure proper catlacind disposal of plastic waste.

Draft Chemicals (Management and Safety) Rules, 2020

The “Draft Chemicals (Management and Safety Rul28R0” is a proposed regulatory framework by thdidn government,

aiming to enhance chemical safety and managemeseeks to replace older regulations with a comgmesive system that
includes clear definitions, a REACH model for cheahiregistration, and stringent compliance requéets. The draft rules

mandate registration, evaluation, authorizationg aestriction of chemicals, emphasizing hazard comioation and safe

handling practices. The Chemical Regulatory Divisad the Petroleum and Explosives Safety orgarupaits designated as the
enforcing authority. This initiative is poised tmsificantly impact the chemical industry in Indiagcessitating operational and
risk management adaptations to meet the new safetynvironmental standards.

The Noise Pollution (Regulation & Control) Rules, P00 (“Noise Regulation Rules”)

The Noise Regulation Rules regulate noise leveisdaostrial, commercial and residential zones. Noése Regulation Rules also
establish zones of silence of not less than 10@metear schools, courts, hospitals, etc. The al&sassign regulatory authority
for these standards to the local district courendhy for non-compliance with the Noise RegulatRules shall be under the
provisions of the Environment Act.

The Battery Waste Management Rules, 2022

It is established by the Indian government, ainm@anage and reduce the environmental impact of ridtéhrough various
measures. A central aspect is the Extended Prodegponsibility (EPR), which mandates that manufaes, importers, and
assemblers are responsible for the collection,calewy, and proper disposal of waste batteries. Brets must ensure that waste
batteries are collected and sent to authorizedctexs; meeting specific recycling targets. Batteriaust be labeled with
information on safe usage and disposal, and produnast educate consumers on the environmentakingbdatteries and their
disposal methods. The rules prohibit the dispokbhtteries in landfills and incineration to prevenvironmental contamination.
Additionally, producers, importers, and recyclers eequired to register with the Central Polluti@antrol Board (CPCB) and
submit annual compliance reports. Consumers areueaged to return used batteries to designatedatimh points established
by producers. Non-compliance with these regulatars result in penalties, ensuring strict adheréodbe rules. Overall, these
measures create a sustainable framework for magpégittery waste, promoting recycling, and redu@ngironmental harm.

IMPORT-EXPORT REGULATIONS
Foreign Direct Investment Policy, 2020

The Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) Policy aimsattract and promote foreign investment to supplérdemestic resources for
accelerated economic growth. FDI is subject to d@npe with relevant sectoral laws, regulationssusigy conditions, and
state/local laws. The Consolidated FDI Policy 20@8ued by the Department for Promotion of Industng Internal Trade
(DPIIT), establishes guidelines for FDI inflowsanndia. It is updated annually to align with reapolry changes.

Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 199

Foreign Trade Act empowers the Government of Intdiaamong other things, (a) make provisions forefflgement and

regulation of foreign trade; (b) prohibit, restrart otherwise regulate exports and imports; (cjnigdate an EXIM policy; and (d)
appoint a Director General of Foreign Trade for phepose of administering foreign trade and adgishre Central Government
in formulating EXIM policy and implementing the sanEvery importer and exporter is required to obta ‘Importer Exporter

Code’ from the Director General of Foreign Traddérom any other duly authorized officer.

Foreign Trade Policy

The Foreign Trade Policy provides that no exporingport can be made by a person without an IEC asnkich person is
specifically exempted. The policy provides foretports and imports made shall be governed by dhneign Trade Policy, unless
otherwise specified. FTP provides for handbook afcpdures laying down the procedure to be followgdan exporter or
importer or by any Licensing/Regional Authoritylmr any other authority for purposes of implemengimgvisions of FT (D&R)
Act, the Rules and the Orders made there undepaovisions of FTP.
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Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”") andregulations Framed Thereunder

Foreign investment in India is governed primarijythe provisions of the FEMA which relates to regidn primarily by the RBI
and the rules, regulations and notifications therder, and the policy prescribed by the DepartroéRromotion of Industry and
Internal Trade. As laid down by the FEMA Regulatiaro prior consents and approvals are required frerReserve Bank of
India, for Foreign Direct Investment under the Guatic route’ within the specified sectoral capsrdspect of all industries not
specified as FDI under the automatic route, andespect of investment in excess of the specifierosal limits under the
automatic route, approval may be required fromRHB and/or the RBI. The RBI, in exercise of itsygw under the FEMA, has
notified the Foreign Exchange Management (Transféssue of Security by a Person Resident Outsid&) Regulations, 2000
(“FEMA Regulations”), as amended from time to titneeprohibit, restrict or regulate, transfer by sslie security to a person
resident outside India and Foreign Exchange ManagerfExport of Goods and Services) Regulations02@0 regulation on
exports of goods and services.

GENERAL STATUTORY LEGISLATIONS
Companies Act, 2013 (“Companies Act”)

The Companies Act, 2013, has replaced the Compagied956 in a phased manner. The Act receivecsisent of President of
India on 29th August 2013. The Companies Act deatls incorporation of companies and the procedureiricorporation and
post incorporation. The conversion of private compiato public company and vice versa is also toan under the Companies
Act, 2013. The procedure related to appointmenDibéctors. The procedure relating to winding upjuntary winding up,
appointment of liquidator also forms part of thetA€urther, Schedule V (read with sections 196 B9id), Part | lays down the
conditions to be fulfilled for the appointment ofreanaging or whole-time director or manager. ltvies the list of Acts under
which if a person is prosecuted, he cannot be apgwias the director or Managing Director or Mamaafea Company. The
provisions relating to remuneration of the direst@ayable by the companies is under Part Il ofséid schedule.

Competition Act, 2002

The Competition Act, 2002 prohibits anti-compettiagreements, abuse of dominant positions by eigespand regulates
combinations in India. The Competition Act alscabtished the Competition Commission of India #k€ClI) as the authority
mandated to implement the Competition Act. The mioms of the Competition Act relating to combimais were notified
recently on March 4, 2011 and came into effectumeJl, 2011. Combinations which are Likely to caaiseppreciable adverse
effect on competition in a relevant market in India void under the Competition Act. A combinatisefined under Section 5
of the Competition Act as an acquisition, mergeawralgamation of enterprise(s) that meets certssptaor turnover thresholds.
There are also different thresholds for those aategd as Individuals and Group. The CCI may ergjuito all combinations,
even if taking place outside India, or betweeniparbutside India, if such combination is Likelyltave an appreciable adverse
effect on competition in India. Effective June D12, all combinations have to be notified to thel @@hin 30 days of the
execution of any agreement or other document fgraaguisition of assets, shares, voting rightsamtml of an enterprise under
Section 5(a) and (b) of the Competition Act (indhgl any binding document conveying an agreemerdemision to acquire
control, shares, voting rights or assets of anrprige); or the board of directors of a companygerequivalent authority in case
of other entities approving a proposal for a memeamalgamation under Section 5(c) of the Comipetifct. The obligation to
notify a combination to the CCI falls upon the aicguin case of an acquisition, and on all parteeshe combination jointly in
case of a merger or amalgamation.

Indian Contract Act, 1872

The Contract Act is the legislation which lays dotlie general principles relating to formation, periance and enforceability of
contracts. The rights and duties of parties andspieific terms of agreement are decided by théractng parties themselves,
under the general principles set forth in the GattAct. The Contract Act also provides for circtamges under which contracts
will be considered as ‘void’ or ‘voidable’. The Qoact Act contains provisions governing certaincsglecontracts, including
indemnity, guarantee, bailment, pledge, and agency.

Specific Relief Act, 1963

The Specific Relief Act, 1963 is complimentary e provisions of the Contract Act and the TransfdProperty Act, as the Act
applies both to movable property and immovable ergp The Act applies in cases where the Court cater specific
performance of a contract. Specific relief can snted only for purpose of enforcing individualitights and not for the mere
purpose of enforcing a civil law. Specific performed means Court will order the party to perform histd agreement, instead
of imposing on him any monetary liability to payntiages to other party.

Sale of Goods Act, 1930

The law relating to the sale of goods is codifiedhie Sale of Goods Act, 1930. It defines sale agrgement to sell as a contract
whereby the seller transfers or agrees to trarlkéeproperty in goods to the buyer for a price pralides that there may be a
contract of sale between part owner and anothethaidhe contract of sale may be absolute or ¢iomail.
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Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 (“PLI ACT")

The PLI Act imposes liability on the owner or caller of hazardous substances for any damage @risit of an accident
involving such hazardous substances. The governbyeway of a notification has enumerated a lishafardous substances. The
owner or handler is also required to obtain anr@sce policy insuring against liability under tregislation. The rules made
under the PLI Act mandate that the owner shalldoutie towards the environmental relief fund a segmal to the premium paid
on the insurance policies. The amount is payabteeansurer.

Consumer Protection Act, 2019 (“Consumer ProtectiorAct”) and Rules Made Thereunder

The Consumer Protection Act was designed and athéeterovide simpler and quicker access to redressumer grievances. It
seeks, amongst other things, to promote and peotbet interests of consumers against deficienaiels defects in goods or
services and secure the rights of a consumer agaifigir trade practices, which may be practicedntgnufacturers, service
providers and traders. The definition of “consumenter the Consumer Protection Act includes persmgaged in offline or
online transactions through electronic means otebg-shopping or direct-selling or multi-level matiug. It provides for the
establishment of consumer disputes redressal foamdscommissions for the purposes of redressabo$umer grievances. In
addition to awarding compensation and/or passimgective orders, the forums and commissions ungeiQonsumer Protection
Act, in cases of misleading and false advertisement empowered to impose imprisonment for a tehich may extend to two
years and fine which may extend to ten lakhs.

In line with the Consumer Protection Act, the Minysof Consumer Affairs, Food and Public Distritmrtj Government of India
(“Ministry of Consumer Affairs”) has also notifieitie Consumer Protection (E-Commerce) Rules, 20B608mmerce Rules”)
on July 23, 2020, which provide a framework to fateithe marketing, sale and purchase of goodssandces online. The E-
Commerce Rules govern e-commerce entities which, mperate, or manage, a digital or electronic itgcibr platform for
electronic commerce, but does not include a seffering his goods or services for sale on a matkee e-commerce entity. The
Ministry of Consumer Affairs has also released daafiendments to the E-Commerce Rules for publicneents. The aforesaid
draft amendments require e-commerce entities tongst other things, register themselves with thpaBenent for Promotion of
Industry and Internal Trade, and appoint a chighgiiance officer, a nodal contact person and adesgi grievance officer.
Additionally, the draft amendments prohibit e-comageentities from misleading users by manipulasegrch results, prohibit
flash sales and abuse of dominant position, anddatane-commerce entities to identify sponsoredhgist of products and
services with clear and prominent disclosures.

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908

The Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 is a procedusal telated to the administration of civil proceegtinn India. The Civil
Procedure Code consolidates and amends the latingeta the procedure of the Courts of Civil juiitébn. The Code of Civil
Procedure is an adjective law it neither createdales away any right. It is intended to reguthprocedure to be followed by
Civil Courts. The Civil Procedure Code consistsvad parts. 158 Sections form the first part andrtiies and orders contained in
Schedule | form the second part. The object ofGbee generally is to create jurisdiction while tiées indicate the mode in
which the jurisdiction should be exercised.

The Code does not affect any special or local la@rsdoes it supersede any special jurisdictionowvey conferred or any special
form of procedure prescribed by or under any oldnerfor the time being in force. The Code is theeyal law so that in case of
conflict between the Code and the special law #lier prevails over the former. Where the speeial is silent on a particular
matter the Code applies, but consistent with tkeeish enactment.

Code of Criminal Procedure Code, 1973

It is the main legislation on procedure for adnti@ison of substantive criminal law in India. It sv@&nacted in 1973 and came
into force on 1st April, 1974. It provides the mewdry for the investigation of crime, apprehensmfnsuspected criminals,
collection of evidence, determination of guilt mnocence of the accused person and the determrmnaftipunishment of the

guilty.

Criminal law occupies a pre-dominant place amorgyagencies of social control and is regarded asraidable weapon that
society has forged to protect itself against aotia behaviour. The law of criminal procedure isant to be complimentary to
criminal law. It is intended to provide a mechani&mthe enforcement of criminal law. The Code oin@nal Procedure creates
the necessary machinery for apprehending the calsiimvestigating the criminal cases, their trkzd$ore the criminal courts and
imposition of proper punishment on the guilty persdhe Code enumerates the hierarchy of criminattsan which different
offences can be tried and then it spells out tinédiof sentences which such Courts are authotzedss.

The law of criminal procedure is intended to pravid mechanism for the enforcement of criminal I8Without the proper
procedural law the substantive criminal law whidfies offences and provides punishment for themldvbe almost worthless.
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Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996

The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 is ant&o consolidate and amend the law relating to dstimearbitration,

international commercial arbitration and enforcetmanforeign arbitral awards as also to define léa relating to conciliation

and for matters connected therewith or incident@rato. It aims at streamlining the process ofteatibon and facilitating

conciliation in business matters. The Act recogsiitee autonomy of parties in the conduct of arbgiraceedings by the arbitral
tribunal and abolishes the scope of judicial reviginthe award and minimizes the supervisory roleColrts. A significant

feature of the Act is the appointment of arbitratby the Chief Justice of India or Chief JusticeHgdh Court. The Chief Justice
may either appoint the arbitrator himself or norgna person or Institution to nominate the arlitraThe autonomy of the
arbitral tribunal has further been strengtheneempowering them to decide on jurisdiction and tosider objections regarding
the existence or validity of the arbitration agresm

Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881

In India, cheques are governed by the Negotiatdguments Act, 1881, which is largely a codificatif the English Law on the
subject. The Act provides effective legal provistorrestrain people from issuing cheques withowirwasufficient funds in their

account or any stringent provision to punish thenthie event of such cheque not being honoured diy Itfankers and returned
unpaid. Section 138 of the Act, creates statutdignae in the matter of dishonour of cheques ongtteeind of insufficiency of

funds in the account maintained by a person wighbiinker which is punishable with imprisonmentdderm which may extend
to two year, or with fine which may extend to twibe amount of the cheque, or with both.

Indian Stamp Act, 1899

Under the Indian Stamp Act, 1899 (the “Stamp Astgmp duty is payable on instruments evidencingiaster or creation or

extinguishment of any right, title or interest mrmovable property. Stamp duty must be paid onnaliriments specified under
the Stamp Act at the rates specified in the sclesdtd the Stamp Act. The applicable rates for staly on instruments

chargeable with duty vary from state to state.rimsents chargeable to duty under the Stamp Actglwaie not duly stamped are
incapable of being admitted in court as evidenceheftransaction contained therein and it also ides/for impounding of

instruments that are not sufficiently stamped drstamped at all

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RELATED LEGISLATIONS
Trade Marks Act, 1999 (“Trade Marks Act”)

The Trade Marks Act governs the statutory protectd trademarks and prevention of the use of freerdumarks in India. It
provides for the application and registration afdemarks in India. It also provides for exclusiights to marks such as brand,
label, and heading and to obtain relief in casdnfiingement for commercial purposes as a tradecrgg®n. Under the
provisions of the Trade Marks Act, an applicationtfade mark registration may be made with thetf@dlar General of Patents,
Designs and Trademarks by any person or persomsictato be the proprietor of a trade mark, whetinéividually or as joint
applicants, and can be made on the basis of attteal use or intention to use a trade mark infuhgre. Once granted, a trade
mark registration is valid for 10 years unless edled, subsequent to which, it can be renewedotfranewed, the mark lapses
and the registration is required to be restoreddio protection under the provisions of the Traderhd Act. The Trade Marks
Act prohibits registration of deceptively similaatlemarks and provides penalties for infringemfegifying or falsely applying
for trademarks. Further, pursuant to the notifmatf the Trade Marks (Amendment) Act, 2010, sikndtous protection of trade
mark in India and other countries has been madiaal@to owners of Indian and foreign trade matkslso seeks to simplify
the law relating to the transfer of ownership afde marks by assignment or transmission and t@ lihia law in line with
international practices.

Copyright Act, 1957

Copyright is a right given by the law to creatofdirary, dramatic, musical and artistic worksdgsroducers of cinematograph
films and sound recordings. In fact, it is a bunofigights including, inter alia, and rights of reduction, communication to the
public, adaptation and translation of the work. fEheould be slight variations in the compositiortted rights depending on the
work.

The Patents Act, 1970 (“Patents Act”)

The Patents Act governs the patent regime in Irdi@ia is a signatory to the Trade Related Agredroanintellectual Property

Rights and recognizes both product as well as gsopatents. The Patents Act provides for, inter; glie following:

e Patent protection period of 20 years from the dafding the patent application;

¢ Recognition of product patents in respect of fanddicine and drugs;

¢ Import of patented products will not be considesisdan infringement; and

e Under certain circumstances, the burden of proafise of infringement of process patents may hesfieared to the alleged
infringer.
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The Design Act, 2000

The Design Act, which came into force in May 20@igng with the rules made thereunder consolidate @nend the law

relating to protection of designs. A design refershe features of shape, configuration, pattemamentation or composition of
lines or colours applied to any article, in twothree dimensional or both forms, by an industrigcess or means, whether
manual, mechanical or chemical, separate or cordbirfech in the finished article appeal to and idged solely by the eye. In
order to register a design, it must be new or naband must not be disclosed to the public anyetierindia or any other

country by publication in tangible form or by useio any other way prior to the filing date. A dgsishould be significantly

distinguishable from known designs or combinatibkriown designs in order for it to be registeredredyistered design is valid

for a period of 10 years after which the same @arebewed for a second period of five years, befwgexpiration of the original

period of 10 years. After such period, the desggmade available to the public by placing it in prublic domain.

OTHER LAWS
Municipality Laws

Pursuant to the Seventy Fourth Amendment Act, 1892 respective State Legislatures in India haeepibwer to endow the
Municipalities (as defined under Article 243Q o&tlonstitution of India) with the power to implemhexchemes and perform
functions in relation to matters listed in the TitlelSchedule to the Constitution of India whichlides regulation of public
health. The respective States of India have endaigs empowering the Municipalities to regulate lpubealth including the
issuance of a health trade license for operatitiggautlets and implementation of regulationstiatiito such license along with
prescribing penalties for non-compliance.

Police Laws
The State Legislatures in India are empowered #&ztelaws in relation to public order and police ené&ntries 1 and 2 of the

State List (List Il) to the Constitution of IndiBursuant to the same the respective States of iadi@a enacted laws regulating the
same along with prescribing penalties for non-coamgle.
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HISTORY AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Brief history and Background of our Company:

Our Company was incorporated as Limited Comparthénname of “Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limitaedtier the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 vide Certificate of Irpmration dated February 22, 2023 issued by Registfr Companies, Central
Registration Centre bearing Corporate Identity Nemb26202DL2023PLC410521. At the time of incorpmmatour company
has took over the running business of proprietprsbincern of the promoter Amrit Lal Manwani, namklfs Sahasra Electronic
Solutions along with the assets and liabilitieshef proprietorship concern as going concern.

Amrit Lal Manwani, Arunima Manwani, Varun Manwaniarsha B P Manwani, Akshay Manwani, Narayan Beltssd Pintu
Naskar were the initial subscribers to the Memouamaf Association of our Company.

For information on our Company’s profile, activitjeproducts, market, growth, technology, managedahpetence, standing
with reference to prominent competitors, major Mansdand suppliers, please refer the sections tidea Business”, “Industry
Overview”, “Our Management”, “Financial information of the Company” and “Management's Discussion anch@lysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operationsbn pages95, 125 142 and 2l4respectively of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Our Locations:

Registered Office 33, Pocket : Jasola Vihar New Friends Colony, South D-11002¢, New Delhi, Indii

Corporate Office/ | 68-AA Noida Special Economic Zone, Nepz Post Offidautam Buddha Nagar, Noida-201305, Uttar
Manufacturing Unit Pradesh, Ind

Changes in the Registered Office of the Company gia Incorporation:
There has not been any change in our RegistereédeGihce incorporation till the date of this Drid Herring Prospectus.
Main Objects of our Company as per the Memorandum bAssociation:

The main objects of our Company as contained in @ause 3(A) of Memorandum of Association of ourn@any are as
follows:

1. Manufacture of PCB assemblies, Electrical or Etattr box, USBs (Mini/Micro, Storage Devices), Enelgeters with or
without enclosures, LED Lights (Panel Light, Stre&ght, Down Light, Flash Light, Tail Light), LED I[Ectronic Lighting
assemblies, Components/ Parts with or without Mé&kistic fixtures, LED Drivers, Design ServiceslGfChip/Packages
(Component/ Substrates/ PCBs) and manufacture mfc®aductors (including packaging) & related elentc parts. Wire
Harness, Plastic Injection Molding, Box Builds, Hardware i.e., Motherboard, Server, Desktop, Lapi@blets. To buy,
sell, import, export and/ or deal in all kind oaisformers, regulators, battery charges, battémiredtors, voltage testing
sets, voltage stabilizers, and all types and detsoni of electronic components and conductors.

2. To take over of running business of proprietordinm Sahasra Electronic Solution whose proprietasvhri Amrit Lal
Manwani with effect from date of incorporation byayvof transfer of assets and liabilities of Sah&destronic Solution as
a result of succession of the proprietorship firgn Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited in the bas@ carried on by
proprietorship firm.

3. Manufacture of SSDs, USBs, RAMs, Desktops, Mothearls, Laptops, Tablets, Data Servers etc.

4. Manufacture of magnetic and optical storage devéteh as magnetic disk drives, flash drives, CDPDANd other storage
devices.

5. To buy, sell, import, export and/or deal in all &inf electronic equipment including engineeringestific, mechanical,
electrical hydraulic pneumatic, medical, healthcargiation, thermal, sonic, ultrasonic, opticalrgical and surveying
equipment's, mother board for data center, instrisn@nd parts thereof, all kinds of descriptioepair & services thereof.

6. To carry on all or any of the business of indentorgorters, exporters, installers, maintainerpaners of and dealers in
electronic and electrical appliances and appawtesery kind description whether invented or tareented and including
computing and tabulating machines, digital compyteftectronic or electromechanical scanners, ssnstactronic profile
display units, input and output terminals, printighgvices and other machines of similar nature oction which may be
used in association with or in conjunction with ariyhe aforesaid machines.

Amendments to the Memorandum of Association:

Except as stated below there has been no charilge Memorandum of Association of our Company siteé&ncorporation:
119



Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

Date of | Type of

Meeting Meeting Nature of Amendments

Clause 3(a)(1) of the Memorandum of Association aragnded to reflect the amendment in
existing main object of the company:

;gnggzri EGM 1. Manufacture of SSDs, USBs, RAMs, Desktops, Motheards, Laptops, Tablets, Data Servers
' Clause 3(b) of the Memorandum of Association wasredl to add matters which are necessary| for
furtherance of the objects specil
May 13, Clause 3(a) of the Memorandum of Association wasrated for changing the sequence of the existing

2024 EGM objects of the compar

Major Key Events, Milestone and Achievements of ouCompany:

The Table below sets forth some of the major kesnés/in the history of our company:

Year/ F.Y. | Key Events / Milestone / Achievements/ Awards/ Regaitions/ Accreditations

2021 Received approval for manufacturing of PCBefdsly in Proprietorship firm of Amrit Lal Manwarmm ithe name
of M/s. Sahasra Electronic Solutic

2022 Obtaine(1SC 9001:2(15 certificatior for Manufacture of PCB Assembli

202 Takeovelof ProprietorshigFirm of Amrit Lal Manwaniinto Company

202: Got 2 Prize in Export (SME) from ELCINA Awards 20-23

2023 Obtained EN 9100:2018 equivalent to AS 91080 #SQ 9100:2016, including 1SO 9001:2015 cedifan for
Manufacture of PCB Assembli

2024 Acquired 54.18% stake in Sahasra SemiconduBdvate Limited through acquiring the equity lsapursuant tg
which it became our Subsidiary Comp

202¢ Achieved Revenue < 10CCr.

Other details about our Company:

For details of our Company’s activities, produagspwth, awards & recognitions, capacity, locatiohstores, technology,
marketing strategy, competition and our customaesase refer section titlé®ur Business”, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Ogions” and “Basis for Offer Price” on pages 95, 214 and 78 respectively
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. For detaflewr management and managerial competence ardefails of shareholding
of our Promoters, please refer to sections tit@dr Management” and“Capital Structure” beginning on page 125 and 57 of the
Draft Red Herring Prospectus respectively.

Capital Raising (Debt/ Equity):

For details in relation to our capital raising w®ittes through equity, please refer to the chapitted “Capital Structure”
beginning on page 57 of the Draft Red Herring Pectiys. For details of our Company’s debt facilitisee Statement of
Financial Indebtednesson page 212 of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Changes in activities of our Company during the lasfive (5) Years:

There has not been any change in the activity ofGampany during the last five (5) years precedhgdate of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

Our Holding Company:
As on the date of the Draft Red Herring ProspeausCompany is not a subsidiary of any company.
Our Subsidiary Company:

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospeatus Company has one Subsidiary Company. For éuitiformation, please
refer to the section titletOur Subsidiary” on page 123 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Associates, and Joint Ventures:

Our Company does not have any Associates or jentwes as on the date of this Draft Red HerriragBectus.

Launch of key products or services, entry into newgeographies or exit from existing markets, capacityfacility creation
and location of plants:
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For information on key products or services laumichg our Company, entry into new geographies ot fesin existing markets,
capacity/ facility creation, location of our mancffaring facilities, please see the section titl®dir Business” on page 95 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Details regarding material Acquisition or divestmers of Business/ Undertakings, Mergers, AmalgamatigrRevaluation of
Assets etc., in the last ten years:

Except as disclosed below, our Company has not raagenaterial acquisitions or divestments of angitess or undertakings,
mergers, amalgamation or revaluation of assetsanast 10 years preceding the date of this Draft Rerring Prospectus.

1. Our Company has acquired the running businessagrigtorship concern of the promoter Amrit Lal Mamni; namely M/s
Sahasra Electronic Solutions along with the asssdsliabilities of the proprietorship concern asngaconcern, pursuant to a
Business Succession Agreement dated February 23 @Gtered among Amrit Lal Manwani proprietor ofsMdahasra
Electronic Solutions and Sahasra Electronic Sahstioimited. Major details of the agreement areelsw -

i. Our Company acquired the business of M/s Sahasw@rBhic Solutions for an aggregate sale consideratf ¥1,774.08
Lakhs including specified assets and liabilitie®ad-ebruary 21, 2023;

ii. The company has issued 17,74,780 Equity sharepite 0fZ10 per equity shares of face vaRE) each to Amrit Lal
Manwani towards the sales payable to him amourntdd.774.08 lakhs.

2. The company has acquired 54.18% stake of Sahasn&c@euctors Private Limited with effect from JuBg, 2024. The
principal business of Sahasra Semiconductors Rrikamited is manufacturing, wafer/chip dicing, gting chip bonding,
testing marking, packing & selling of semiconductmmponents and products or accessories using feesionductors.
Further, to carry on complete process of integrat&duits (IC) packaging as authorized under itsnromandum of
association. As a result of the acquisition, weadre to consolidate all of these operations intolusiness at a group level.
Accordingly, we have included in this Draft Red Heyg Prospectus, the Unaudited Proforma Financidrination of our
Company, comprising the proforma consolidated lizasheet as at March 31, 2024 and the proformanséait of profit and
loss for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2@ rwith the notes to the proforma financial infation, prepared to
illustrate the impact of the acquisition of SahaSemiconductors Private Limited on the group’s ffitial position as at
March 31, 2024 as if the acquisition of Sahasra iamductors Private Limited had taken place on Apri2023. The
Unaudited Proforma Financial Information addressdgypothetical situation and does not representotual consolidated
financial results and is not intended to be indveaobf our future condition and results of operatioSeé&Risk Factors —The
Proforma Financial Information included in this Drdt Red Herring Prospectus is not indicative of oexpected results or
operations in the future periods or our future fimecial position or a substitute for our past result®n page 25 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Injunction or Restraining Order:

Except as disclosed in the section titl&@utstanding Litigation and Material Developmentsbeginning on page 223 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus, there are no injonsiirestraining orders that have been passed affanSompany.

Number of shareholders of our Company:

Our Company has 22 (Twenty-Two) shareholders atherate of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. fidher details on the
shareholding pattern of our Company, please refée chapter titletiCapital Structure” beginning on page 57 of the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

Changes in the Management:

For details of change in Management, please septahttled “Our Management on page 125 of the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Agreement with key managerial personnel or Directos or Promoters or any other employee of the Company

There are no agreements entered into by Key Maizd®rsonnel or Directors or Promoters or any odmployee, either by
themselves or on behalf of any other person, with shareholder or any other third party with reg@ard¢ompensation or profit
sharing in connection with dealings in the secesitf the Company.

Shareholders Agreements:

There are no subsisting shareholder’s agreemerdgag@our shareholders in relation to our Companyyhia@h our Company is a

party or otherwise has notice of the same as odateof the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Collaboration Agreements:
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As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, Campany is not a party to any collaboration agrests.
Material Agreement:

Our Company has not entered into any subsistingmaatagreements including with strategic partn@sit venture partners
and/or financial partners, entered into, other tinathe ordinary course of business of the Company.

Strategic or Financial Partners:

Except as disclosed in this Draft Red Herring Peatys, Our Company does not have any strategioandial partners as on the
date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Time and Cost Overruns in Setting up Projects:
There has been no time / cost overrun in settingrajects by our Company.
Defaults or Rescheduling of Borrowings with Finandal Institutions/Banks:

There have been no defaults or rescheduling obldangs with any financial institutions/banks astbe date of the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

Other Agreements:
i. Non-Compete Agreement:

Our Company has not entered into any Non- compefeedinent as on the date of filing of this Draft Reerring
Prospectus.

ii. Joint Venture Agreement:

Our Company has not entered into any Joint VenAgeeement as on the date of filing of this DraftdRiderring
Prospectus.
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OUR SUBSIDIARY

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospeoctus Company has one Subsidiary Company beingssat@emiconductors
Private Limited. Set out below are details of oubSidiary Company:

1. Sahasra Semiconductors Private Limited“SSPL")
Corporate Information
SSPL was incorporated as a private limitedngany under the provisions of Companies Ad)13 pursuant to the

certificate of incorporation dated July 15, @0&ued by the Registrar of Companies, CeReglistration Centre. The Table
below sets forth more information of the company:

CIN U32109DL2020PTC3662:

Date of Incorporation July 15, 202

PAN ABDCS9700¢

Registered Office Plot No. 33, Pock-1 Jasola, Management Institute, South Delhi, [-110076, Indi

Nature of Business

SSPL is engaged in the business of manufacturiafgnfehip dicing, grinding chip bonding, testingnkiag, packing & selling
of semiconductor components and products or acdessasing these semiconductors. Further, to camrgomplete process of
integrated circuits (IC) packaging as authorizedarrits memorandum of association.

Capital Structure

The following table sets forth details of the capditructure of SSPL:

Particulars | Aggregate Nominal Value  in Lakhs)
Authorised Capital

6,00,00,00 Equity Shares ¢210 eac | 6,000.0¢

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

5,89,59,374 Equity Shares cZ10 eac | 5,89E.93

Shareholding Pattern

The Equity Shareholding pattern of SSPL is as fatlo

S. | Name of the Shareholder No. of equity Shares| % of total equity

No. of 10 each shareholding

1. Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limi 3,19,43,40C 54.18

2 Desai ElectronicPrivate Limitec 1,43,62,97 24.3¢

3. Amrit Lal Manwan 1,07,12,49 18.17

4. Arunima Manwar 12,94,00! 2.1¢

5. Varun Manwar 4,46,50( 0.7¢€

6. Anurag Rajes 2,00,00( 0.34

7. Sahasra Electronics Private Limi 1C Negligible
TOTAL 5,89,59,374 100.00%

Board of Directors

The Directors of SSPL is as follows:

Name of Director DIN Designation

Amrit Lal Manwan 0092020 Directol

Varun Manwar 0092173! Directol

Arunima Manwar 0699614 Directol

Vikram Manubhai Desi 0037099; Directol

Financial Performance

The brief financial details of SSPL derived from &udited financial statements for Fiscals 2022328nd 2022 are set forth
below:
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g in lakhs, except per share data)

. . . . For the year ended

Audited Financial Information March 31, 2024 | March 31, 202 | March 31, 2022
Equity Share Capita) 5,525.9¢ 4,805.9¢ 2,719.4¢
Reserves & Surplu (699.44 (148.91 (43.95

Net wortt 4,826.5( 4,657.0: 2,675.4¢
Total Revenue (including other incom 300.8¢ 126.3: 0.61
Profit/(Loss) after ta (550.53 (104.96 (27.82
Basic Earnings per share (face valug 10 each’ (1.03 (0.30 (0.14
Diluted Earnings per share (face valu& 10 eact (2.03 (0.30 (0.24

Net asset value per shal) 8.7¢ 9.6¢ 9.84

Other Confirmations:

Accumulated profits or losses:

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospecthere are no accumulated profits or losses ofLSBBt have not been
accounted for or consolidated by our Company.

Listing

The equity shares of our Subsidiary Company arelisigd on any Stock Exchange. None of the seesritif our Subsidiary
company have been refused listing by any stockan@h in India or abroad or failed to meet therlstiequirements of any stock
exchange in India or abroad.

Business interest

Our Subsidiary do not have any business or ottterdst in our Company other than as stated incetitied “Our Business”,
and transactions disclosed in the section titRestated Financial StatementsNote Y —Related party disclosuresin page 95
and 168 respectively of this Draft Red Herring Pexgus.

Common pursuits

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospeabus Subsidiary has common pursuits with our Camgpend is authorized to
engage in similar business to that of our Company.
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OUR MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors:

The following table sets forth the details regagdihe Board of Directors of our Company as on tage @f filing of this Draft

Red Herring Prospectus:

Name, designation, age, date of birth, address, esqence, occupation, qualification,
current term, date of appointment and DIN

Other directorships

Amrit Lal Manwani

Designation: Chairman & Managing Director

Age: 74 years

Date of Birth: March 07, 1950

Address: 33, Pocket |, Jasola, South Delhi-110025 India.
Experience:More than50 Years

Occupation: Business

Qualification: Bachelor of Technology in Electrical Engineeringdavaster of Busines
Administration

Sahasra Electronics Private

Limited

Sahasra Semiconductofrs
Private Limited

Infopower Technologies
Private Limited

Electronic Industries
Association Of India
Electronics  Sector  Skills
Council Of India

Tegna Electronics Private
Limited

Awesense Five Private
Limited

Elcina Electronics

Manufacturing Cluster Privat
Limited

Current Term: For a period of three years, with effect from Jd®e 2023, not liable t0 9. Megma RFID And Labels
retire by rotation Private Limited

10. Sahasra Electronics (Rwand
Period of Directorship: Since incorporation Private Limited

11. Optima Technology
DIN: 0092020 Associates Inc
Arunima Manwani
Designation: ExecutiveDirector
Age: 42 years
Date of Birth: February 23, 1982

1. Sahasra Semiconducto
Address: 33, Jasola, Pocket 1, South Delhi-110025, India. Private Limited

2. Infopower Technologies
Experience: 10 years Private Limited

3. Sahasra Sambhav Sk
Occupation: Business Development Private Limited

4. Megma RFID And Labels

Quialification: B.Com

Current Term: Designated as Executive Director of the Compang,wJanuary 12, 202
and shall be liable to retire by rotation

Period of Directorship: Since Incorporation

DIN: 0699614

Private Limited

rs

D

Varun Manwani

Designation: Non-Executive Director

Age: 42 years

Date of Birth: September 26, 1981

Address: 33, Jasola, Pocket 1, South Delhi-110025, India

Experience: 23 year

Sahasra Electronics Prival
Limited
Sahasra
Private Limited
Infopower
Private Limited
Sahasra Sambhav Sk
Development Private Limited
Megma RFID And Labels
Private Limited
Winbond Electronics

Semiconducto|

Indi

Technologies

te

rs

D
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Name, designation, age, date of birth, address, experience, occupation, qualification,
current term, date of appointment and DIN

Other director ships

Occupation: Business

Qualification: B.A. (Honours) in Economics

Current Term: Appointed with effect from February 22, 2023 liable to retire by rotation.
Period of Directorship: Since Incorporation

DIN: 00921735

Private Limited (formerly
known as GLMTD Technology
Private Limited)
Sahasra Electronics (Rwanda)
Private Limited

Abhilasha Gaur

Designation: Independent Director
Age: 44 years

Date of Birth: August 28, 1980

Address: Flat No.330, Block S2 Raheja Society, Sector -31, Sadar Bazar, Gurgaon-122001,
Haryana, India.

Experience: More than 19 years
Occupation: Business
Qualification: B.BA, PGDBM, Doctor of Philosophy in Management

Current Term: For aperiod of 5 years with effect from July 17, 2023 not liable to retire by
rotation.

Period of Directorship: 5 years

DIN: 07607862

1

First Ray Private Limited

Pradeep Kumar

Designation: Independent Director

Age: 75 years

Date of Birth: July 26, 1949

Address: 93, Anupam Apartments B-13 Vasundhara Enclave, Delhi East-110096, India
Experience: Morethan 50 years

Occupation: Professional

Qualification: Bachelor of Technology in Electrical Engineering and Post-Graduate
Diplomain Business Administration

Current Term: For a period of 5 years with effect from July 17, 2023 not liable to retire by
rotation

Period of Directorship: 5 Years

DIN: 00505518

Nil

Udayan Mukerji
Designation: Independent Director

Age: 72 years

Aarken Consultants Private
Limited

Avineh Technologies Private
Limited

Mobius Research
Knowledge Services

And
India
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Name, designation, age, date of birth, address, expence, occupation, qualification,

current term, date of appointment and DIN Oz elleslE|

Date of Birth: September 26, 1951 Private Limited

Address: C-12, Chirag Enclave, Near Nehru Place, Greatelaklail, South Delhi -110048,
Delhi India

Experience: More than 44 years
Occupation: Professional
Qualification: M.Sc. (Chemistry), Bachelor of Law

Current Term: For a period of 5 years with effect from May 13220ot liable to retire by
rotation

Period of Directorship: 5 Years

DIN: 0363665

Brief Profile of Directors:

1. Amrit Lal Manwani, is our Founder Promoter and Chairman & Managing®ar of our Company. He has been associated
with the Company since incorporation. He has coteglénis Bachelor of Technology in Electrical Engirieg from IIT
Kanpur in year 1973 and Master of Business Admiaiitn from University of Delhi in year 1983. Hesha work experience
of more than 50 years in the field of Electronioglustry. He played a significant role in the growththe company. At
present, he looks after functions such as busith@aslopment and project execution in our Company

2. Arunima Manwani, is one of the Promoters and the Director of our famy. She has been associated with the Company
since incorporation. She has completed Bacheld€@hmerce from University of Mumbai, in year 200heShas work
experience of 10 years in the Industry. She isiptayital role in creating and formulating strate@usiness plans, research
& development, Track technology advancements ardis to stay competitive.

3. Varun Manwani, is one of the Promoters and the Non-Executive ddireof our Company. He has been associated with th
company since incorporation. He has completed tAs @lonours) in Economics from University of Delim year 2003. He
has around 23 years of experience in the field afiufacturing, operations to sales and marketingstderrently responsible
for providing his expertise for growth and expansid the Company.

4. Abhislasha Gaur,is an independent director of our Company. Shecbaspleted her BBA from Kurukshetra University in
2001, PGDBM from Entrepreneurship & Management &sees International in 2003 and Doctor of Philogoph
Management from IFTM University in year 2019. Shas tan overall experience of more than 19 yearheénfield of
Business Development, Operations, Planning andeémghtation and Team Management.

5. Pradeep Kumar, is an independent director of our Company. He dwmpleted his Bachelor of Technology in Electrical
Engineering from Indian Institute of Technology, rfar in year 1970 and Post-Graduate Diploma in rBass
Administration from The Indian Institute of Managemt, Ahmedabad in year 1972. He has experienceooé than 50 years
in the field of business strategy and managememgudtancy.

6. Udayan Mukerji, is an independent director of our Company. Hedumspleted his M.Sc. (Chemistry) from University of
Rajasthan in year 1972 and Bachelor of Law from Charan Singh University, Meerut in 2013 and isreotly senior

lawyer. He is retired IPS Officer of batch of 198@d from year 2013 he is handling litigation/ legaunselling in diverse
areas.

Confirmations:

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus

a) None of our Directors is or was a director of asted company during the last five years precetheglate of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus, whose shares have been orswspended from being traded on the BSE or the NGiing the term of

their directorship in such company.

b) None of our Directors is or was a director of aisged company which has been or was delisted froynséock exchange
during the tenure of their directorship in such pamy.
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c)

None of our Directors are categorized as a willfadlter or a fraudulent borrower, as defined uriRlegulation 2(1)(lll) of

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue @it@kand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations8201

d)
2018.

Nature of any family relationship of our Directors

None of our Directors is declared a fugitive ecoimooffender under section 12 of the Fugitive Ecoim@ffenders Act,

The following Directors of the Company are relatedceach other within the meaning of Section 2 @7)he Companies Act,
2013. Details of which are as follows:

Sr. No. | Name of the Director/KMPs Relationship
1. Amrit Lal Manwan Father of Varun Manwani & Fatt-in Law of Arunima Manwar
2. Varun Manwar Son of Amrit Lal Manwani & Husband of Arunima Manm
3. Arunima Manwar Wife of Varun Manwani & Daught-in law of Amrit Lal Manwar

Arrangements with major Shareholders, Customers, Sppliers or Others:

We have not entered into any arrangement or uratelistg with our major shareholders, customers, leengpor others, pursuant
to which any of our directors were selected ascttireor member of the senior management.

Service Contracts:

The Directors of our Company have not entered amyp service contracts with our company which presifor benefits upon

termination of their employment.

Details of Borrowing Powers of Directors

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an Bxttimary General Meeting of our Company held oryNIa, 2024 and pursuant
to provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and other agtile provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2@h8 rules made thereunder,
the Board of Directors of the Company have beehai#ed to borrow monies from time to time, any sonsums of money on

such security and on such terms and conditiondv@Bbard may deem fit, notwithstanding that the eyoto be borrowed

together with the money already borrowed by our famy may exceed in the aggregate, its paid upalapitd free reserves and
security premium (apart from temporary loans olgdinto be obtained from bankers in the ordinanyrse of business), provided
that the outstanding principal amount of such beimg at any point of time shall not exceed in tlygr@gate oR 300 crores
(Rupees Three Hundred Crores Only).

Compensation of our Managing Director & Executive Drector

The compensation payable to our Managing Directut &xecutive Director will be governed as per teemis of their

appointment and shall be subject to the provisminSections 2(54), 2(94), 188,196,197,198 and 268 any other applicable
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 reath Schedule V to the Companies Act,2013 and thesrmade there under
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-etraent thereof or any of the provisions of the Comesa Act, 1956, for the time

being in force).

The following compensation has been approved for Meging Director & Executive Director

Particulars

Amrit Lal Manwani

Arunima Manwani

Appointment/ Change in

Designation

Appointed as Director since incorporation g
re-designated Managing Director w.e.f. JU
26, 2023 and further designated as Chairr
& Managing Director of Company w.e.
April 09, 202/

ndppointed as Non-Executive Direct
r@nce incorporation and re-designated
n&xecutive Director w.e.f. January 1
f.2024.

Dr
as

>

Current Designation

Chairman & Managing Direct

Executive Directc

Term of Appointment

3 Years, Not liable to retire by rotati

Liable to retre by rotatiol

Remuneration & Perquisites

Upto %15,00,000 p.m. along with Bonu
Leave Travel Concession ¢f15,00,000 p.a.
Perquisite: as per policy of the Company.

SUpto Z2,00,000 per month along wit

g

Concessiork2,00,000 P.A; Perquisite:
per policy of the Compar

Bonus %2,00,000 P.A, Leave Trave

B

1S

Compensation paid in the FY
202:-24

¥ 175.00 Lakhs (including Bonus and LTA)

¥ 28.00 Lakhs (including Bonus and LTA|
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Bonus or Profit-Sharing plan for our directors:

We have no bonus or profit-sharing plan for ouedhiors.

Sitting Fees:

As per Articles of Association of our Company anoiguant to Board Resolution dated May 23, 2024¢hsuneration payable in
terms of sitting fees to the Directors (includimgiépendent Directors) for attending the MeetingthefBoard and Committee

thereof shall not exceed the limits prescribed uisketion 197(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Shareholding of our Director as on the date of thiPraft Red Herring Prospectus:

Sr. No. | Name of the Director No. of Shares Held | Holding in % (Pre-Issue)
1. Amrit Lal Manwan 1,79,64,70 94.9¢
2. Arunima Manwar 1,20( 0.01
3. Varun Manwar 1,20( 0.01
Total 1,79,67,100 94.99

None of the Independent Directors of the Compangshany Equity Shares of Company as on the datiei©Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

For details of our subsidiary Company as definedearsection 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 arntdildeof the directorship
held in the Subsidiary Companies refer chaptezditHistory and Corporate Matters’beginning on page 119 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

Our Articles of Association do not require our dia's to hold any qualification Equity Shares ia ompany.
INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

All the Directors may be deemed to be interestethéoextent of remuneration and reimbursement péeses payable to them
under the Articles, and to the extent of remuneragaid to them for services rendered as an oftice@mployee of the Company.
For further details, please refer to Chapter tit@dr Management” beginning on page 125 of this Draft Red Herringspeztus.

Our directors may also be regarded as interestéldetextent of their shareholding and dividend pésyahereon, if any, and to
the extent of Equity Shares, if any held by theroun Company or held by their relatives. Further ditectors are also interested
to the extent of unsecured loans, if any, giverihem to our Company or by their relatives or by ¢benpanies/ firms in which
they are interested as directors/ Members/ PartRersher our directors are also interested tcetttent of loans, if any, taken by
them or their relatives or taken by the compariiesis in which they are interested as Directors/Nbens/Partners and for the
details of Personal Guarantee given by the Directowards Financial facilities of our Company pkasfer to“Statement of
Financial Indebtedness’on page 212 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Except as stated otherwise in this Draft Red HgrBmospectus, our Company has not entered intaCamyract, Agreements or
Arrangements during the preceding two years from date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus in whfdh Directors are
interested directly or indirectly and no paymerasénbeen made to them in respect of the contragtegements or arrangements
which are proposed to be entered into with them.

Except as stated in this sectit@ur Management” or the section titledFinancial information of the Company —Note - Y -
Related Party Disclosurebeginning on page 125 and 168 respectively of Bmaft Red Herring Prospectus, and except to the
extent of shareholding in our Company, our Direxstto not have any other interest in our business.

Interest in the property of Our Company:

Except for the acquisition of the liabilities angbats of the erstwhile proprietorship of our Mangdbirector Amril Lal Manwani
pursuant to the business purchase agreement deleddry 22, 2023 and the details mentioned belawdoectors do not have
any other interest in any property acquired/ retgdur Company in a period of two years befotiadilof this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus or proposed to be acquired by us aaterofithis Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

S. No. Address of Property Actual Use Details of property

1. 33, Pocket 1, Jasola Vihar, New Registered | The property admeasuring 300 sq. feet has beem takelease
Friends Colony, South Delhj, Office vide a lease deed dated January 01, 2024 enteted/atisha B P
New Delhi, India — 110025 Manwani valid for 11 months starting from Januafy 2024 to

November 30, 2024 at a monthly ren 15,000 per montt

2. A-4 Phase-ll, Gautam Buddha Warehouse The property has been taken on leaseelse agreement dated
Nagar, Noida-201305 Uttgr April 12, 2024 entered with Infopower Technologisivate
Prades Limited (Infopower Technologies Limitecvalid for 11 month:
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S. No. Address of Property Actual Use Details of property

starting from April 12, 2024 to March 11, 2025 atanthly rent
of 2 60,000 per mont!

3. B-3/1, Elcina  Electronics Proposed | The property admeasuring land area of 1,500 sgemnéias been
Manufacturing Cluster, expansion | taken on lease vide a lease agreement dated Ju2024% entered
Industrial  Area  Salarpur, with Sahasra Electronics Private Limited valid foyears starting
Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar-301019 from June 15, 2024 at a monthly ren®0f5,000 per month.
Rajastha

Changes in Board of Directors in last 3 Years:

Name of Directors Date of Change Reasons for Change

Amrit Lal Manwan June 26, 20z Re-designated as Managing Direc

Abhilasha Gat July 17, 202¢ Appointed as an Additional Independent Dire
Abhilasha Gat October 16, 20z Regularized as an Independent Direl
Pradeep Kumi July 17, 202¢ Appointed as an Additional Independent Dire
Pradeep Kumi October 16, 20z Regularized as an Independent Dire
Arunima Manwan January 12, 20: Re-designated as Executive Direc

Amrit Lal Manwan April 09, 2024 Designated as Chairm

Udayan Muker May 13, 202 Appointed as an Independent Direl

MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION STRUCTURE

The following chart depicts our Management OrgativraStructure:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
[ ! | 1
Amrit Lal Manwani Arunima Manwani Varun Man“:ani
(Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director) ('N(E;Ji}éfggtwe
Business Project Sales & Acc;.""nts Research & Compliance &
Development Execution Marketing Finance Developmnet I.egal Operatians

Neha Tahir
(Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer)

Maneesh Tiwari
(Chief Financial Officer)

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In addition to the applicable provisions of the Qumamies Act, 2013, provisions of the SEBI (Listingli@ations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended and @EBR) Regulations, 2018 in respect of corporaveegnance will be
applicable to our Company immediately upon thenlistof our Company’s Equity Shares on Stock ExcleahgVe are in
compliance with the requirements of corporate goamce with respect to composition of Board and ttutisn of the

committees of the Board, including the Audit Comedt Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stdkenhdrelationship
Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Cotte®aj by our Company and formulation and adoptibrpdicies, as

prescribed under the SEBI Listing Regulations. Boaard undertakes to take all necessary steps tiincento comply with all

the requirements of Listing Regulations and the gamies Act, 2013.

Our Board has been constituted in compliance viith@Gompanies Act, the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. Board of Directors
function either as a full board or through varicosnmittees constituted to oversee specific operatiareas.

Our Board of Directors consist of six (6) Directamfswhich three (3) are Independent Directors, aedhave two (2) women

director on the Board. In compliance with Sectid@® If the Companies Act, 2013, not less than twalshof the Directors
(excluding Independent Directors) are liable tiregby rotation.
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Committees of the Board:

The Board of Directors functions either as a fudatd or through various committees constitutedversee specific operational
areas. In addition to the Committees detailed beloww Board of Directors may, from time to time stitute Committees for
various functions.

Details of the Committees as on the date of theftRed Herring Prospectus are set forth below

1. Audit Committee

Our Company has formed Audit Committee, vide Bdaesolution passed in the meeting dated August 023 Z subsequent
amendment thereof on May 23, 2024 in compliancé e provisions of the Section 177 of the Compa#aiet, 2013 read with

rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and d&/&) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 18 of SEBI LisfRegulations. The Audit
Committee comprises following members:

Name of the Director Status in Committee Nature of Directorship
Pradeep Kumi Chairperso Independent Direct
Abhilasha Gat Membe Independent Direct
Amrit Lal Manwan Membe Managing Directc
Udayan Muker Membe Independent Direct

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act &scaetary to the Audit Committee. The scope amdtian of the Audit
Committee and its terms of reference shall inclindefollowing:

A. Tenure of the Committee:
The Audit Committee shall continue to be in funotas a committee of the Board until otherwise ne=blby the Board, to
carry out the functions of the Audit Committee ppraved by the Board.

B. Meetings of the Committee:
The audit committee shall meet at least four tiimea year and not more than one hundred and tweayg shall elapse
between two meetings. The quorum for audit commititeeting shall either be two members or one tfittie members of
the audit committee, whichever is greater, witfeast two independent directors. The Chairpersah@fAudit Committee
shall be present at Annual general meeting to anshareholder queries.

C. Power of the Committee:
The audit committee shall have powers to investigaty activity within its terms of reference, séeformation from any
employee, obtain outside legal or other professiadaice and secure attendance of outsiders widvaet expertise, if it
considers necessary.

D. Role of the Committee:
The Role of Audit Committee together with its powexs per Part C of Schedule Il of SEBI Listing Ration and
Companies Act, 2013 shall be as under:

The role of the Audit Committee shall include the éllowing:

1) oversight of the listed entity’s financial repodiprocess and the disclosure of its financial imfation to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient and dved

2) recommendation for appointment, remuneration amdgdef appointment of auditors of the listed entity

3) approval of payment to statutory auditors for atheo services rendered by the statutory auditors

4) Reviewing, with the management, the annual findretetements and auditor’s report thereon befolengssion to the
Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. matters required to be included in the directogsponsibility statement to be included in the bardport in

terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Sectida af the Companies Act, 2013;

changes, if any, in accounting policies and prast@nd reasons for the same;

major accounting entries involving estimates bamethe exercise of judgment by management;

significant adjustments made in the financial stegets arising out of audit findings;

compliance with listing and other legal requirensereiating to financial statements;

disclosure of any related party transactions;

g. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

5) reviewing, with the management, the quarterly foiahstatements before submission to the boardgproval;

6) reviewing, with the management, the statement e$ uspplication of funds raised through an isgubl{c issue, rights
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statemefurafs utilized for purposes other than those statdbte offer document /
prospectus / notice and the report submitted byntbaitoring agency monitoring the utilisation obpeeds of a public
issue or rights issue or preferential issue orifjedlinstitutions placement, and making approgrisgscommendations to
the board to take up steps in this matter;

~0oo0xT
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7) reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independeaid performance, and effectiveness of audit psyces

8) approval or any subsequent modification of trarieastof the listed entity with related parties;

9) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10) valuation of undertakings or assets of the listatitye wherever it is necessary;

11) evaluation of internal financial controls and rislanagement systems;

12) reviewing, with the management, performance ofustey and internal auditors, adequacy of the irdkrontrol
systems;

13) reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functibmny, including the structure of the internal @wtkpartment, staffing
and seniority of the official heading the departtegporting structure coverage and frequency tefrival audit;

14) discussion with internal auditors of any signifitéindings and follow up there on;

15) reviewing the findings of any internal investigatioby the internal auditors into matters whereehersuspected fraud
or irregularity or a failure of internal controlstgms of a material nature and reporting the madtére board;

16) discussion with statutory auditors before the aodihmences, about the nature and scope of audieldas post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17) to look into the reasons for substantial defaultthe payment to the depositors, debenture holdeeseholders (in case
of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors

18) to review the functioning of the whistle blower rhagism;

19) approval of appointment of chief financial officafter assessing the qualifications, experiencebauttground, etc. of
the candidate;

20) Carrying out any other function as is mentionethimterms of reference of the audit committee.

21) reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advanfresn/investment by the holding company in the g@libsy exceeding
rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of theidiary, whichever is lower including existing fesa/ advances /
investments existing as on the date of comingfimtce of this provision.

22) consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefisimpact of schemes involving merger, demerger |ganaation etc.,
on the listed entity and its shareholders.

23) Such roles as may be delegated by the Board apdéscribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SH&Ing
Regulations or other applicable law.

Further, the Audit Committee shall mandatorily esvithe following information:

1) management discussion and analysis of financiadion and results of operations;
2) management letters/ letters of internal controlkmeases issued by the statutory auditors;
3) internal audit reports relating to internal contne@aknesses;
4) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneraifaihe chief internal auditor shall be subjectewiew by the audit
committee; and
5) statement of deviations:
a. quarterly/ half yearly statement of deviation(glirding report of monitoring agency, if applicabdepmitted to
stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1hef$SEBI ICDR Regulations;
b. Annual statement of funds utilized for purposesotthan those stated in the offer document/prospéuitice
in terms of Regulation 32(7) of the SEBI ICDR Regidns.

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Our Company has formed Nomination and Remuner&mmmittee, vide Board Resolution passed in the imgetated August
11, 2023 & subsequent amendment thereof on May2@34 in compliance with the provisions of the Smttil78 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the ComgmtiMeeting of Board and its Power) Rules, 2014 Radulation 19 of

SEBI Listing Regulations. The Nomination and Renratien Committee comprises following members:

Name of the Director

Status in Committee

Nature of Directorship

Udayan Muker] Chairperso Independent Direct
Abhilasha Gat Membe Independent Direct
Pradeep Kumi Membe Independent Direct
Varun Manwar Membe Non-Executive Directc

The scope and function of the Committee and itesesf reference shall include the following:

A. Tenure of the Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shaltinaa to be in function as a committee of the Boamtll otherwise

resolved by the Board.

B. Meetings of the Committee:

The nomination and remuneration committee shalltraekeast once in a year. The quorum for a meetfrtge nomination
and remuneration committee shall be either two meamlor one third of the members of the committebickever is
greater, including at least one independent direictcattendance. The Chairperson of the nominatiod remuneration
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3.

committee may be present at the annual generalimgeéd answer the shareholders’ queries; howdtvshall be up to the
chairperson to decide who shall answer the queries.

Role of Terms of Reference:

The Role of Nomination and Remuneration Commite®art D of Schedule Il of SEBI Listing Regulatimmd Companies
Act, 2013 shall be as under:

1. formulating the criteria for determining qualificats, positive attributes and independence of ecttir and recommend
to the Board a policy relating to the remuneratibthe directors, key managerial personnel andrah®loyees;
2. For the appointment of an independent director, dbemittee shall evaluate the balance of skillspvidedge and
experience on the Board and on the basis of sualu@ion, prepare a description of the role andabéies required of
an independent director. The person recommenddtietdoard of directors of the Company for appoimtires an
independent director shall have the capabilitieiified in such description. For the purpose @hiifying suitable
candidates, the Committee may:
a. use the services of external agencies, if required;
b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgreumaving due regard to diversity; and
c. Consider the time commitments of the candidates.
formulation of criteria for evaluation of perform@nof independent directors and the board of dirsgt
devising a policy on diversity of board of directpr
identifying persons who are qualified to becomeectiors and who may be appointed in senior manageimen
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recomsinte the board of directors their appointment serdoval.
6. whether to extend or continue the term of appoimtna the independent director, on the basis of rdggort of
performance evaluation of independent directors.
7. recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whextésrm, payable to senior management;
8. Performing such other functions as may be deledayetie Board and/or prescribed under the SEBingsRegulations,
Companies Act, each as amended or other applitable

abkw

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Our Company has formed Stakeholders Relationshiprgitiee, vide Board Resolution passed in the mgeatisted May 23,
2024 in compliance with the provisions of the Sattl78(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read withgdtamed thereunder and
Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing Regulations. The $taddders Relationship Committee comprises followimgmbers:

Name of the Director Status in Committee Nature of Directorship
Varun Manwan Chairperso Non-Executive Directc
Udayan Muker Membe Independent Direct
Amrit Lal Manwan Membe Managing Directc

The scope and function of the Stakeholder RelatipnGommittee and its terms of reference shalludelthe following:

A

Tenure of the committee:
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall ooetito be in function as a committee of the Boamtl wtherwise
resolved by the Board, to carry out the functiohthe Stakeholders Relationship Committee as apgutdoy the Board.

Meetings of the committee:
The stakeholder’s relationship committee shall maetleast once in a year. The Chairperson of trekeBiblders
Relationship Committee shall be present at the argeneral meetings to answer queries of the ggdwlders.

Terms of Reference:
The Role of Stakeholders Relationship Committed’at D of Schedule Il of Securities And Exchangeif8oof India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirementsp&ations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013 shalkhender:

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holdertheflisted entity including complaints relatedttansfer/transmission
of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipdeclared dividends, issue of new/duplicatetifiestes, general
meetings etc;

2. Review of measures taken for effective exerciseotihg rights by shareholders;

3. Review of adherence to the service standards adldyt¢he listed entity in respect of various seggibeing rendered by
the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives riakg the listed entity for reducing the quantum usfclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividendrmants/annual reports/statutory notices by theestedders of the
company;

5. Such roles as may be delegated by the Board angfescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SE®ing
Regulations or other applicable law.
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4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Our Company has formed Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, vide Board Resolution passed in the meeting dated May
23, 2024 in compliance with the provisions of the Section 135 & Schedule V11 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed
thereunder. The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises following members:

Name of the Director Status in Committee Nature of Directorship
Pradeep Kumar Chairperson Independent Director
Arunima Manwani Member Executive Director
Abhilasha Gaur Member Independent Director
Udayan Mukerji Member Independent Director

The Committee shall act in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the tenure, meeting and terms of
reference specified hereunder:

1. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shal indicate the activities to be undertaken by the
Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013;

2. To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on activities referred to in Section 135(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013;

3. To ingtitute a transparent monitoring mechanism for the implementation of the CSR projects, programs and activities
undertaken the Company from time to time;

4. To Monitor the Corporate Social Responsihility policy of the Company from time to time; and

5. Any other matter of CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of Directors or as may be
delegated by the Board and/ or prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable law.

Policy on Disclosures & Internal procedure for prevention of Insider Trading:

The provisions of Regulation 8 and 9 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 will be applicable to our Company immediately upon the listing of its Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange. We shall
comply with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
on listing of our Equity Shares on stock exchange. Further, Board of Directors have approved and adopted the policy on insider
trading in view of the proposed public issue. Our Board is responsible for setting forth policies, procedures, monitoring and
adherence to the rules for the preservation of price sensitive information and the implementation of the Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading conduct under the overall supervision of the Board.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Our Company is supported by a team of professionals having exposure to various operational aspects of our business. A brief
detail about the Key Managerial Personnel of our Company is provided below:

Name, Designation, Educational Qualification & Age Year of | Compensation| Overall Previous
Term of office (Years) | joining | paidfor F.Y. | experience employment
ended 2023-24 (in years)
(in X Lakhs)

Amrit Lal Manwani

Designation: Chairman & Managing Director
Educational Qualification: Bachelor in Technology
in Electrical Engineering and Master of Business

Administration 74 2023 175.00 50 NA

Term of office: For a period of three years, with

effect from June 19, 2023, not liable to retire by

rotation

Maneesh Tiwari

Designation: Chief Financial Officer Sahasra

Educational Qualification: Master of Commerce & 43 2023 10.28 19 Electronics Private

Masters of Business Administration (Financial Limited*

Management)

Neha Tahir

Designation: Company Secretary and Compliance APAC &

Officer 33 2023 5.10 8 .
Associates LLP

Educational Qualification - Company Secretary &
Bachelor of Laws

* Maneesh Tiwari was appointed in year 2005 in the group company Sahasra Electronics Private Limited as ‘Accounts Assistant’,
on June 01, 2022 he was internally transferred to our company, thereon, on July 01, 2023 he was re-designated as the CFO of the
company.
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BRIEF PROFILE OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Amrit Lal Manwani - Please refer to section “Brief Profile of our Directors” beginning on page 125 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus for details.

Maneesh Tiwari is the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. He has completed his Master of Commerce from Ch. Charan
Singh University, Meerut in year 2003, thereon in 2014 he has completed his Master of Commerce & Masters of Business
Administration (Financial Management) from Indira Gandhi National Open University. He has over 19 years of experience in
Accounts, Finance, taxation matters and audits. He looks after the overall financial matters of our Company.

Neha Tahir is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. She is an associate member of the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India since 2016 and has completed Bachelor of Laws from Dr. Bhimrao Ambedkar University, Agrain
year 2017. She has experience of around 8 years in the field of secretarial and corporate law compliances. She is currently
responsible for the overall Corporate Governance and secretarial Compliance and functions of our Company.

All the Key Managerial Personnel are permanent employees of our Company.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The brief details of our senior management personnel are as follows:

Dilip Kumar Singh is the General Manager (Stores) in our Company. He has completed his Diploma in Electronics in 1993. He
looks after functions such as purchase and quality control of our Company. He has experience of around 30 years.

Y B Satishkumar is the Business Head (Operations) in our Company. He has completed his Bachelor of Engineering in
Production Engineering in 2002 from University of Madras. He looks after functions such as engineering, manufacturing and
plant management of our Company. He has experience of around 20 years.

Aman Tyagi is the Generd Manager (Manufacturing) in our Company. He has completed his Bachelor in Technology
(Electronics & Comm Engineering) in 2010 from Punjab Technica University, Jhaandar. He looks after functions such as
engineering and SMT processing of our Company. He has experience of around 14 years.

Rahul Gupta is the Vice President (Business Development) in our Company. He has completed his Bachelor of Engineering
(Mechanical) in 2006 from Maharshi Dayanand University, Rohtak. He looks after functions such as manufacturing, operations
and vendor development of our Company. He has experience of around 17 years.

We confirm that:

a.  All the persons named as our Key Managerial Personnel above are the permanent employees of our Company.

b. There is no understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or any others pursuant to which any of the above-
mentioned Key Managerial Personnel have been recruited.

c. None of our KMPs except Amrit Lal Manwani is also part of the Board of Directors.

d. Inrespect of al above mentioned Key Managerial Personnel there has been no contingent or deferred compensation accrued
for the period ended March 31, 2024.

e. Except for the terms set forth in the appointment letters, the Key Managerial Personnel have not entered into any other
contractual arrangements or service contracts (including retirement and termination benefits) with the issuer.

f.  None of the Key Managerial Personnel hold any shares of our Company as on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus except as under.

Sr. No. Name of the KMPs No of shares held
1. Amrit Lal Manwani 1,79,64,700
Total 1,79,64,700

g. Presently, we do not have Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)/ Employee Stock Purchase Scheme (ESPS) for our
employees.

Nature of any family relationship of our Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

The following KMP of the Company are related to any director or KMP within the meaning of Section 2 (77) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Details of which are asfollows:

Sr. No. | Name of the Director/KMPs Relationship

1. Anmrit Lal Manwani Father of Varun Manwani & Father-in Law of ArunimaManwani
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Payment of benefits to officers of Our Companyr(on-salary relatedl

Except as disclosed in this Draft Red Herring Pegtyss and any statutory payments made by our Coymigaits officers, our
Company has not paid any sum, any non-salary telateount or benefit to any of its officers or te @mployees including
amounts towards super-annuation.

Except statutory benefits upon termination of emplent in our Company or superannuation, no officepur Company is
entitled to any benefit upon termination of sucficef's employment in our Company or superannuatdontributions are made
by our Company towards the Provident fund, Gratfuihd and Employee State Insurance

Changes in the Key Managerial Personnel in last tlee years:

There have been no changes in the Key ManageriabReel of our Company during the last 3 (thregdryexcept as stated
below:

Name of Directors Date of Change Reasons for Change

Amrit Lal Manwan June 26, 20z Re-designated as Managing Direc

Neha Tahi July 01, 202 Appointed as Company Secret:

Maneesh Tiwa July 01, 202 Appointed as Chief Financial Offic

Amrit Lal Manwan April 09, 2024 Designated as Chairm

Neha Tahi April 09, 2024 Re-designhated aCompany Secretai& Compliance Office

Interest of our Key Managerial Personnel

Apart to the extent of remuneration allowed andhimirsement of expenses incurred by them for oredralb of the Company,
none of our Key Managerial Personal is interesteouir Company. For details, please refer sectitadtiFinancial information

of the Company — Note Y - Related Party Disclostrbeginning on page 168 of this Draft Red Herringspeztus.

Interest in the property of our Company

Except as mention in section titlethterest of Directors” our KMPs do not have any interest in any propextguired by our
Company in a period of two years before the filofghis Draft Red Herring Prospectus or proposetig@cquired by us as on
the date of filing the Red Herring Prospectus VRtC.

Details of the Service Contracts of the Key Managé@l Personnel

Except for the terms set forth in the appointmettels, the Key Managerial Personnel have not edtieto any other contractual
arrangements with our Company for provision of igner payments of any amount upon terminatioeraployment.

Loans given/availed by Directors / Key Managerial Brsonnel of our Company

For details of unsecured loan taken from or giveour Directors/KMPs and for details of transactinered by them in the past
please refer ttNote — Related Party Disclosutepage 168 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP’)/ employee stogburchase scheme (‘ESPS Scheme’) to Employees

Presently, we do not have any ESOP/ ESPS Schenoeif@mployees.
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OUR PROMOTERS:

OUR PROMOTERS & PROMOTER GROUP

The Promoters of our Company are Amrit Lal Manwamynima Manwani & Varun Manwani.

As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, Finomoters, in aggregate, hold 1,79,67,100 Eaisres of our Company,
representing 94.99% of the pre-offer paid-up Eq@itare capital of our Company. For details of thideup of the Promoters’
shareholding in our Company, s&apital Structure — History of the Equity Share Qital held by our Promoters”on page 57
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Brief Profile of our Promoters is as under:

Amrit Lal Manwani — Chairman & Managing Director

Amrit Lal Manwani, aged 74 years, is one of ourrRoters and is also the Chairm

residential address, educational qualificationgeeience in business or employme
business and financial activities, special achiex@s) positions/posts held in the p
and other directorships, sé@ur Management —Brief profile of Directors’on page
125 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Other ventures of our Promoters-Except as mentioned below and as set out in
chapter titled'Our Management, our Promoters are not involved with any ot
venture, as a shareholder/ stakeholder, propriptstner, promoters or director.

Proprietorship:
1. Sahasra Electronics
2. Sahasra Electronic Solutions

His permanent account number is ABQPM2852B.

For details of his shareholding, please ‘Se&pital Structure” on page 57 of this Drai
Red Herring Prospect.

and Managing Director on our Board. For furtheradst i.e., his date of birth

0

Arunima Manwani — Executive Director

Arunima Manwani, aged 42 years, is one of our Ptensoand is also the Executi

financial activities, special achievements, posgiposts held in the past and otf
directorships, se8Our Management —Brief profile of Directors”on page 125 of thi
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Other ventures of our Promoters- Except as set out in the chapter titl&ur
Management, our Promoter is not involved with any other vesfuas a shareholde
stakeholder, proprietor, partner, promoters oratine

Her permanent account number is AKQPR4131H.

For details of her shareholding, please “&sgpital Structure” on page 57 of this Drai
Red Herring Prospectus.

Director on our Board. For further details, i.eer ldate of birth, residential addres
educational qualifications, experience in business employment, business and

N

D

r

Varun Manwani- Non-Executive Director

Varun Manwani, aged 43 years, is one of our Promaaad is also the Non-Executi
Director on our Board. For further details, i.eis Hate of birth, residential addres

financial activities, special achievements, posgiposts held in the past and ot
directorships, se8Our Management —Brief profile of Directors”on page 125 of thi
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Other ventures of our Promoters- Except as set out in the chapter titl€ur

Management, our Promoter is not involved with any other veetuas a shareholde
stakeholder, proprietor, partner, promoters orafine
His permanent account number is AIHPM9176G.

For details of his shareholding, please $€apital Structure” on page 125 of thi

N

D

r

D

Draft Red Herring Prospect.
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BRIEF PROFILE OF PROMOTERS

Amrit Lal Manwani - Please refer to chapt&®ur Management” beginning on page 125 of this Draft Red Herringspectus
for details.

Arunima Manwani - Please refer to chapte®ur Management” beginning on page 125 of this Draft Red Herringdpectus
for details.

Varun Manwani - Please refer to chapt&®ur Management” beginning on page 125 of this Draft Red Herringspectus for
details.

Confirmations/ Declarations:

In relation to our Promoters, Amrit Lal Manwani, iima Manwani & Varun Manwani, our Company confirthat the PAN,
Bank Account Numbers, Passport Number, Aadhaar Nardber and Driving License number shall be suledito NSE at the
time of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Undertaking/ Confirmations:
None of our Promoters or Promoter Group or Groumgany or person in control of our Company has been:

e prohibited or debarred from accessing or operaitinthe capital market or restrained from buyindlirsg or dealing in
securities under any order or direction passedERI $r any other authority or
refused listing of any of the securities issuedbgh entity by any stock exchange, in India or abiro
No material regulatory or disciplinary action ikea by any by a stock exchange or regulatory aitthor the past one
year in respect of our Promoters, Group CompanyGordpany promoted by the promoters of our company.

e There are no defaults in respect of payment ofésteand principal to the debenture / bond / fidedosit holders, banks,
Fls by our Company, our Promoters, Group Compard @ompany promoted by the promoters during the flase
years.

e The litigation record, the nature of litigation,dastatus of litigation of our Company, Promotersp@@ company and
Company promoted by the Promoters are disclosedchiapter titled “Outstanding Litigations and Material
Developmentsbeginning on page 223 of this Draft Red Herringgpectus.

e None of our Promoters, person in control of our @any is or have ever been a promoter, directoreosgn in control of
any other company which is debarred from accesbiagapital markets under any order or directiosspd by the SEBI
or any other authority.

Interest of our Promoters:
i Interest in promotion and shareholding of Our Compg:

Our Promoters are interested in the promotion of Gompany and also to the extent of their sharehgldnd

shareholding of their relatives, from time to tinfi@;, which they are entitled to receive dividengalale, if any, and other
distribution in respect of the Equity Shares heydthhem and their relatives. As on the date of iaft Red Herring

Prospectus, our Promoters, Amrit Lal Manwani, Amai Manwani & Varun Manwani collectively holds 1,689,100

Equity Shares in our Company i.e. 94.99% of thegffer paid up Equity Share Capital of our Compa@yr Promoters
may also be deemed to be interested to the extethheoremuneration, as per the terms of their apgpoént and
reimbursement of expenses payable to them forethie purchase and sale transactions. For det&sse refer tdNote - Y

—“Related Party Transactions’beginning on page 168 of this Draft Red Herringdpectus.

For details regarding the shareholding of our Primsoin our Company, please s&apital Structure” on page 57 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

ii. Interest in the property of Our Company:

Except for the acquisition of the liabilities anskats of the erstwhile proprietorship of our Manggbirector Amril Lal
Manwani pursuant to the business purchase agreedaged February 22, 2023 and the details mentidoedow, our
Promoters do not have any other interest in anpqutg acquired by our Company in a period of twargebefore filing of
this Draft Red Herring Prospectus or proposed tadapiired by us as on date of this Draft Red HgrHrospectus.

S. No. Address of Property Actual Use Details of property
1. 33, Pocket 1, Jasola Vihar, New Registered | The property admeasuring 300 sq. feet has been takéease vide
Friends Colony, South Delhj, Office a lease deed dated January 01, 2024 entered witth&/eB P
New Delhi, India — 110025 Manwani valid for 11 months starting from Januaty, @024 to
November 30, 2024 at a monthly ren 15,000 per monti
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S. No. Address of Property Actual Use Details of property

2. A-4 Phase-Il, Gautam Buddha Warehouse The property has been taken on leaseaiese agreement dated
Nagar, Noida-201305 Uttdr April 12, 2024 entered with Infopower Technologi®sivate
Pradesh Limited (Infopower Technologies Limited) valid fdtl months

starting from April 12, 2024 to March 11, 2025 ahanthly rent of
260000 per montt

3. Plot no B-3/1, Elcina  Proposed | The property admeasuring land area of 1,500 sgennéias been
Electronics Manufacturing expansion | taken on lease vide a lease agreement dated Jur2®24% entereg
Cluster, Industrial Area with Sahasra Electronics Private Limited valid foyears starting
Salarpur, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar from June 15, 2024 at a monthly ren&0f5,000 per month.

30101¢ Rajastha India

For further details of property please refer to @ha titled “Our Business” beginning on page 95 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

iii. In transactions for acquisition of land, construain of building and supply of machinery

None of our Promoters or Directors is interestedny transaction for the acquisition of land, cangion of building or
supply of machinery.

iv. Other Interests in our Company

For transactions in respect of loans and other taoydransactions entered in past please mdfgte - Y on “Related
Party Transactions” on page 168 forming part 6Financial Information of the Company” of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Further, our promoters may be interested to thergxtf personal guarantees given by them in fatahe Company, for the
details of Personal Guarantee given by Promotexsrits Financial facilities of our Company pleasgerdo “Statement of
Financial Indebtedness”and “Financial Information of Our Company” on page 212 and 142 respectively of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

Payment or Benefits to our Promoters and Promoter @up during the last 2 years:

For details of payments or benefits paid to oumitters and promoter group, please refer to thegpapa“Compensation of
our Managing Director” in the chapter titledOur Management” beginning on page 125 also ref¢ote - Y on“Related Party
Transactions” on page 168 forming part oFihancial Information of the Company”and Paragraph dinterest of Promoter”
in chapter titled Our Promoters and Promoter Groupn page 137 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Companies/Firms with which our Promoters have disasciated in the last (3) three years

None of our promoters have disassociated themsé&lwesany of the Company, Firms or other entitiesing the last three years
preceding the date of this Draft Red Herring Progjse

Other ventures of our Promoter

Save and except as disclosed in this section tilad Promoter & Promoter Group”beginning on page 137 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus, there are no ventures pronimtedir Promoters in which they have any businegseésts/ other interests.

Litigation details pertaining to our Promoter

For details on litigations and disputes pendingirsiathe Promoters and defaults made by the Pros@iease refer to the
section titled “ Outstanding Litigations and Material Developmeritsbeginning on page 137 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Experience of Promoters in the line of business

Our Promoters, Amrit Lal Manwani, Arunima Manwani\&arun Manwani have an experience of around 50syddr years and
23 years respectively in the business of electeomidustry. The Company shall also endeavor torerthat relevant professional
help is sought as and when required in the future.

Related Party Transactions

Except as stated iNote — Y - Related Party Transactidhseginning on page 168 of this Draft Red Herringgpectus, and as
stated therein, our Promoters or any of the Pron®teup Entities do not have any other interestunbusiness.
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OUR PROMOTER GROUP:

In addition to the Promoters named above, theiolig natural persons are part of our Promoter Group

1. Natural Persons who are part of the Promoter Group:

As per Regulation 2(1)(pp)(ii) of the SEBI (ICDRe@ulations, 2018, the Natural persons who are gfattie Promoter Group
(due to their relationship with the Promoter) asdalows:

Name of the Relatives

REEWSIE Amrit Lal Manwani Arunima Manwani Varun Manwani

Father Lt. Narain Das Manwa Rudradeo Prasad Rajt Amrit Lal Manwan

Mother Late Padma Manwa Renu Rajes Varsha B P Manwa

Spouse Varsha B P Manwa Varun Manwar Arunima Manwar

Brother Lt. Roop Chand Manwa Anurag Rajes Akshay Manwar

. Lt. Meera Sidhwat . .

Sister Lajvanti Wadhwar Richa Rajesh -
Akshay Manwar . .

Son Ahaan Manwani Ahaan Manwani
Varun Manwar

Daughte - Suhana Manwa Suhana Manwa

Spouse’s Fath

Lt. William Dennis Tarsius Nazare

Amrit Lal Manwan

Rudradeo Prasad Rajt

Spouse’s Mothe Lt. Aileen Marie Nazare! Varsha E P Manwan Renu Rajes
Spouse’s Brothi - Akshay Manwar Anurag Rajes
Spouse’s Sisti - - Richa Rajes

2. Corporate Entities or Firms forming part of the Promoter Group:

As per Regulation 2(1)(pp)(iv) of the SEBI (ICDRggulations, 2018, the following entities would fopart of our Promoter

Group:
S. No. Nature of Relationship Name of Entities
1. any body corporate in which twenty per centrmare of the equity 1. Sahasra Electronics Private Limited
share capital is held by the promoter or an imntedialative of the 2. Infopower Technologies Private Limited
promoter or a firm or Hindu Undivided Family in vehithe promoter 3. Megma RFID And Labels Private Limiteg
or any one or more of their relative is a member; 4. Sahasra Sambhav Skill Development
Private Limitec
2. any body corporate in which a body corporatepawvided in (A)| 1. Optima Technology Associates
above holds twenty per cent. or more, of the eagligre capital; and | 2. Sahasra Electronics (Rwanda) Private
Limited
3. any Hindu Undivided Family or firm in which tle®gregate share of1. Sahasra Electronics
the promoter and their relatives is equal to orenitian twenty pef 2. Sahasra Electronic Solutions
cent. of the total capita

3. Other persons included in Promoter Group:

None of other persons forms part of promoter grimughe purpose of shareholding of the Promoteru@ronder Regulation 2(1)
(pp)(v) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations 2018.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and payment of dividends, if anyl] e recommended by our Board of Directors angraped by our
shareholders at their discretion, subject to trewipion of the Articles of Association and the Camnjes Act. The dividends, if
any, will depend on a number of factors, includimg not limited to the earnings, capital requiretseand overall financial
position of our Company. In addition, our ability pay dividends may be impacted by a number ofrothetors, including,
restrictive covenants under the loan or financioguinents that we may enter into from time to time.

The dividend distribution policy of our Company wadopted and approved by our Board in their mediigld on January 12,
2024. The Board shalinter alia, consider certain financial, internal and exterraigmeters before declaring dividend including
level of debt, capital expenditure requirement, kiray capital requirement and profit earned during year. Our Company may
also, from time to time, pay interim dividends. Télgective of the dividend policy is rewarding 8areholders and retaining
capital for growth and ensuring fairness, sustdlitgband consistency in distributing profits tch&eholders. For details in
relation to risks involved in this regard, s&sk Factor” on page 25 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

The details of the dividend paid by our CompanytenEquity Shares during the last three Fiscalgimen below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of equity shares at year/period el 1,89,14,76* 1,79,69,50 NA

Face value per equity share %) 1C 1C 1C
Dividend paid (irZ Lakhs) 11,68,01,75C.0C - -
Dividend per Equity Share (%) 6.5C - -

Rate of dividend (% 65% - -

Mode of payment of dividen RTGS - -

*As on the dividend declaration date the company h@9,69,500 outstanding number of equity shares.

In addition, our ability to pay dividends may bepacted by a number of factors, including restreettovenants under the loan or
financing arrangements our Company is currentlyliamgaof or may enter into to finance our fund r@gments for our business
activities. For further details, please see thé@eentitled“Statement of Financial Indebtednessn page 212 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

The amount of dividend paid in the past is not esasly indicative of the dividend policy of our @pany or dividend amounts,

if any, in the future. There is no guarantee thmgt dividends will be declared or paid or the amatnetreof will be decreased in
the future.
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SECTION-VI

RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S EXAMINATION REPORT ON RESTATE D FINANCIAL INFORMATION

To,

The Board of Directors,

Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited
33, Pocket 1, Jasola Vihar,

New Friends Colony, South Delhi,
New Delhi, India, 110025

Dear Sirs,

1.

We have examined the attached Restated Finana#érsents of Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limiteammrising the

Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities ddath 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, the Restated Statésrof Profit and
Loss, the Restated Cash Flow Statement for thegér.04.2023 to 31.03.2024 & 22.02.2023 to 31@A32the Summary
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies, thet® and Annexures as forming part of these RektRirancial

Statements (collectively, the “Restated Finanaiibimation”), as approved by the Board of Directofghe Company at
their meeting held on 11.06.2024 for the purpos@difision in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus/Ridring Prospectus/
Prospectus (Draft Offer Document/Offer Documentepared by the Company in connection with its psgglbSME Initial

Public Offer of equity shares (“SME IPQ”) prepaiaderms of the requirements of:

a) Section 26 of Part | of Chapter Il of the Companiet, 2013 (the “Act");

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issu€apital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulati®®l8, as
amended ("ICDR Regulations"); and

c) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospect(Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chader
Accountants of India (“ICAI"), as amended from tincetime (the “Guidance Note”).

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsibietie preparation of the Restated Financial Infdiomafor the purpose
of inclusion in the Draft Offer Document/ Offer Dooent to be filed with Securities and Exchange Baxdrindia, relevant
stock exchange and Registrar of Companies, Delliia®yana in connection with the proposed SME IPOe Restated
Financial Information of the Company have been &mep by the Management of the Company and approyedte Board
of Directors on the basis of preparation statedrinexure IV of the Restated Financial Informati@ur responsibility is to
examine the Restated Financial Information and ioonfvhether such Restated Financial Information glymwith the

requirements of the Act, the Rules, SEBI-ICDR Ratjahs and the Guidance Note.

We, M/s Kapoor Tandon & Co., Chartered Accountab&en subject to peer review process of the Itstibd Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) and hold a valid peeview certificate issued dated 05/01/2024 valldBiiV01/2027

We have examined these Restated Financial Infoomédiking into consideration;

a) The terms of reference and terms of our engageagmeed upon with you in accordance with our engageretter
dated 24.05.2024 in connection with the proposed $RD of the Company.

b) The Guidance Note also requires that we comply thighethical requirements of the Code of Ethicsadsby the ICAL.

c) Concepts of test checks and materiality to obteasonable assurance based on verification of esédsmpporting the
Restated Financial Information; and

d) The requirements of Section 26 of the Act and tbBR Regulations. Our work was performed solely gsist you in
meeting your responsibilities in relation to yowmpliance with the Act, the ICDR Regulations and @uidance Note
in connection with the SME IPO.

These Restated Financial Information have been gethpy the Management from the audited Financtate®nents of the
Company for the Fiscal year March 31, 2024 andopefiom February 22, 2023 to March 31, 2023 whievehbeen

approved by the Board of Directors of the Compadrhe financial statements of the Company for thedtigear March 31,

2024 have been audited by us and the financiarmaet for the period from February 22, 2023 to Ma8t, 2023 has been
audited by Jain Pramod Jain & Co., Chartered Actaoin

Based on our examination and according to the inédion and explanation given to us, we report thatRestated Financial
Information have been prepared:
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a) After incorporating adjustments for the changeadonounting policies and regrouping/reclassificatiogtrospectively, if
any to reflect the same accounting treatment athpesiccounting policies and grouping/classifiaagicand

b) in accordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations arel@uidance Note.
7. For the purpose of our examination, we have redied

8. Auditors’ reports issued by us on the financiatesteents of the Company as at and for the Fiscal Meach 31, 2024 and
the financial statements of the Company for theogeirom February 22, 2023 to March 31, 2023 hamnbeudited by Jain
Pramod Jain & Co., Chartered Accountant as redarréaragraph 5 above;

9. We have also examined the following Notes to thet&ed financial information of the Company setiauthe Annexure V,
prepared by the management and approved by thelBb&irectors on June 11, 2024 for the fiscal MaBd, 2024 and for
the period February 22, 2023 to March 31, 2023.

Annexure V - Notes to the Restated Summary Finhhdiarmation;

1) Restated Statement of Share Capital, Reserveswaptu$ as appearing in Note A to this report;

2) Restated Statement of Long-Term Borrowings as appgesn Note B to this report;

3) Restated Statement of principal terms of Secureaht@nd Assets charged as security as appearihgiénB(A) to this
report;

4) Restated Statement of terms & conditions of unsggtlgans as appearing in Note B(B) to this report;

5) Restated Statement of Deferred Tax (Assets) / lifigsi as appearing in Note C to this report;

6) Restated Statement of Long-Term Provisions as ajogea Note D to this report;

7) Restated Statement of Short-Term Borrowings asappein Note E to this report;

8) Restated Statement of Trade Payables as appeariwé F to this report;

9) Restated Statement of Other Current Liabilitieaggearing in Note G to this report

) Restated Statement of Short-Term Provisions asaajogein Note H to this report;
11) Restated Statement of Fixed Assets as appeariNgtal to this report;
) Restated Statement of Non-Current Investments psaaimg in Note J to this report

13) Restated Statement of Long-Term loans and advascappearing in Note K to this report

14) Restated Statement of Other Non-Current Assetpsaging in Note L to this report

15) Restated Statement of Trade Receivables as apgeéarNote M to this report;

16) Restated Statement of Cash and Cash Equivaleafspasiring in Note N to this report;

17) Restated Statement of Inventories as appearingia © to this report;

18) Restated Statement of Short-Term Loans and Advaasesstated as appearing in Note P to this report;

19) Restated Statement of Other Current Assets as apgéa Note Q to this report;

20) Restated Statement of Revenue from Operationspesadpg in Note R to this report;

21) Restated Statement of Other Income as appeariNgt| S to this report;

22) Restated Statement of Cost of Material Consumeppsaring in Note T to this report;

23) Restated Statement of Change in Inventories of Wongrogress and finished goods as appearing ire Nbto this
report;

24) Restated Statement of Employee Benefit Expensapearing in Note V to this report;

25) Restated Statement of Finance Cost as appeargteW to this report;

26) Restated Statement of Depreciation & Amortizatisrappearing in Note | to this report;

27) Restated Statement of Other Expenses as appeariaté X to this report;

28) Restated Statement of Related Party Transactioapesaring in Note Y to this report;

29) Restated Statement of Tax Shelter as appearingta Rlito this report;

30) Capitalization Statement as appearing in Note Zthi®report;

31) Restated Statement of Mandatory Accounting Rasospgearing in Note ZB to this report;

32) Restated Statement of Other Disclosures as perd8tehél of the Companies Act 2013 as appearinglate ZC to this
report;

33) Restated Statement of Other Disclosures as apgeariote ZD to this report;

34) Restated Statement of Contingent Liabilities asappg in Note ZE to this report;

10. The Restated Financial Information do not refl@et éffects of events that occurred subsequenktoetbpective dates of the
reports on the audited financial statements meatlan paragraph 7 above.

11. This report should not in any way be construed @sssuance or re-dating of any of the previoustaegorts issued by us or
other auditors, nor should this report be constasd new opinion on any of the financial statesesferred to herein.

12. We have no responsibility to update our reportefeents and circumstances occurring after the dateaeport.
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13. Our report is intended solely for use of the Boafrdirectors for inclusion in the Draft Offer Docemt/Offer Document to
be filed with Securities and Exchange Board of dndelevant stock exchange and Registrar of Corepabielhi & Haryana
in connection with the proposed SME IPO. Our repbiduld not be used, referred to, or distributadaioy other purpose
except with our prior consent in writing. Accordipgwe do not accept or assume any liability or aoyy of care for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom #psit is shown or into whose hands it may comeawitiour prior consent
in writing.

14. In our opinion, the above financial information t@ined in Annexure | to Annexure Il of this repoetad with the respective
Significant Accounting Polices and Notes to Accauas set out in Annexure IV are prepared after ngakidjustments and
regrouping as considered appropriate and have pesyared in accordance with the Act, ICDR RegufstjdEngagement
Letter and Guidance Note and give a true and feiw\un conformity with the accounting principlesrgeally accepted in
India, to the extent applicable.

For M/S Kapoor Tandon & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. -000952C
Peer Review No.: 016174

Sd/-

Devendra S. Mathur

(Partner)

Membership No.: - 082570
Place: - New Delhi

Date.: June 11, 2024

UDIN - 24082570BKHVVB2291

144



Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

ANNEXURE — |

RESTATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Zin Lakhs)
As at the year ended
PRRITIEULARS e March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
A) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' Funds A
(a) Share Capiti 1,891.4¢ 1,796.9!
(b) Reserves & Surplt 4,140.2: 230.5¢
(©) Share Application Mone -
Total 6,031.69 2,027.50
2. Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowing B - -
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Ne C - -
(d) Long Term Provisior D 35.%6 26.117
Total 35.96 26.11
3. Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowing E 2,171.8¢ 689.8¢
(b) Trade Payablt F - -
Due to Micro and small enterprise 220.9¢ 386.5:
Due to Othet 1,535.2¢ 905.7¢
(c) Other Current Liabilitie G 680.9¢ 640.8¢
(d) Short Term Provisior H 127.6: 143.6:
Total 4,736.71 2,766.62
Total 10,804.36 4,820.23
B) ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
(& Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible A:
i) Property, Plant and Equipm:i 1,336.5¢ 1,136.1¢
ii) Intangible Asse! 1.6C -
iii) Capital Work in progre! - -
(b) Non-Current Investme J 959.0( 659.0(
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (N C 18.2¢ 13.8¢
(d) Long Term Loans and Advant K 134.0¢ -
(e) Other Noi-Current Asse! L 485.9; 22.8(
Total 2,935.46 1,831.81
2. Current Assets
(& Trade Receivabli M 2,656.6¢ 1,764.7:
(b) Cash and Cash equivale N 1,710.0¢ 316.6(
(c) Inventorie: @) 2,108.2: 801.6¢
(d) Shor-Term Loans and Advanc P 1,357.0¢ 60.0¢t
(e) Other Current Asse! Q 36.8¢ 45.35
Total 7,868.90 2,988.42
Total 10,804.36 4,820.23
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ANNEXURE - I

RESTATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(Zin Lakhs)

For the year ended on

PARTICULARS Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Revenue From operatic R 10,115.2 1,043.1(
2 Other Incom S 163.5: 20.81
3 Total Revenue 10,278.79 1,063.91
4 Expenses
(a) | Cost of Material Consund T 5,523.5¢ 989.3¢
(b) | Purchase of Stock in tra - -

(c) | Change of Inventories of Work in progress and Fieis good U (213.19 (268.73

(d) | Employee Benefit Expens vV 886.2: 52.51

(e) | Finance Cos W 107.8¢ 8.57

() Depreciation and Amortisation Expen I 203.3: 19.4¢

(g) | Other Expenst X 351.2¢ 23.32

5 Total Expenses 6,859.00 824.53

6 Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional & Extraordinary items & 3.419.79 239 38
Tax (3-5)

7 Exceptional iter -

8 Profit/(Loss) Before Extraordinary items & Tax (6-7) 3,419.79 239.38

9 Prior Period Expens - -

10 | Extraordinary item - -

11 | Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (8-9-10) 3,419.79 239.38

12 | Tax Expense:

(@) | Current Tax 597.5! 39.9¢

(b) | Deferred Ta (4.39 (13.85

(c) | Previous year T¢ - -

(d) | MAT Credit entitlement (436.10 (17.27

(e) | Prior period expens - -

(U] Excess/ short provision written back/ - -
Total 157.02 8.83

13 | Profit/(Loss) for the Year 3,262.77 230.55
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ANNEXURE - 11l

RESTATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Zin Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities :
Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit &Loss 3,419.7¢ 239.3¢
Adjustment for
Deprecition and amortization Expens 203.3: 19.4¢
Finance Cos 107.8¢ 8.57
Interest Incom: (27.64 (3.92
Loss on sales of Asse 0.2¢ -
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,703.64 263.51
Changes in Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receiva (891.95 (50.17
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventc (1,306.52 55.6(
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans & Adval (1,297.04 110.7%
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Cur Asset: (13.85 (22.98
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Paya 463.97 55.3(
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabili 40.C7 238.(6
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions (18.70 (467.59)
Cash generated from operations 679.62 182.56
Less- Income Taxes paid 584.9¢ -
Net cash flow from operating activities A 94.66 1856
B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets including of CW (485.18 (13.53
Sale of propert 79.2% -
Loans& Advances iver/ repaymer (134.08 87.6¢
Investmenmade/ sold during the peri (300.00 -
(Increase)/Decrease Non- Curren Asset: (26.80 (5.53
Interest Incomt 27.6¢ 3.92
Net cash flow from investing activities B (839.15) 72.52
C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities :
Proceeds from Issue of Share Cag 1,931.8: 0.51
Dividend Paic (1,168.02 -
Borrowings taken/ repaid during the pel 1,482.0! (108.76
Finance Cos (107.88 (8.57
Net cash flow from financing activitie C 2,137.96 (116.82)
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equiva (A+B+C) 1,39347 13827
Cash equivalents at the beginning of the 316.6( 178.3:
Cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,710.08 316.60
Notes:- (Zin Lakhs)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Component of Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash on han 0.6¢ 1.11
Balance With bank 609.4( 18466
Fixed Deposit: 1,100.0¢ 130.8:
Total 1,710.08 316.60

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methdtkreby profit before tax is adjusted for the effeaf transactions of a non-
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of paftitore cash receipts or payments. The cash flfsas regular revenue
generating, financing and investing activitiesttd tompany are segregated.

The accompanying summary of significant accoungiolicies, restated notes to accounts and notesljostenents for restated.
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ANNEXURE - IV

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S & NOTES TO RESTATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Company is engaged in manufacturing of Prif@&duit Boards, LED Lighting Products and USB Fle&&iorage Devices.
The Company has registered office at House No.,-P8gket-I, Jasola, New Delhi — 110025 and is ha¥actory at Noida
Special Economic Zone, Noida, Uttar Pradesh— 201305

I.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Restated Financial Statements (Annexure 1) cs@p of financial statements of Sahasra Electr&oictions Limited as at
March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and the Restatet@i8ent of Profit and Loss (Annexure 1l) and Restétatements of Cash
Flows (Annexure lIl) for the same period mentiorslstbve and the annexure thereto (collectively, tRestated Financial
Statements”) have been extracted by the managemoentthe audited Financial Statements of the Comganthe period/year
01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024 and 22.02.2023 to 31.@3.2pproved by the respective Board of Directorthefcompanies.

These financial statements are prepared on a Gzomgern Basis and in accordance with Indian Gelyetalcepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convwembon the accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatocpunting standards as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies 203 (‘the Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companf{éscounts) Rules, 2014,
the provisions of the Act. The accounting policagopted in the preparation of financial statemératge been consistently
applied. All assets and liabilities have been d@ssas current or non-current as per the compangrmal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to thenanies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of opersténd time difference
between the provision of services and realizatibcash and cash equivalents, the company has aisezttits operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of current and non-ctickassification of assets and liabilities.

These financial statements are now restated asqeirements of Companies Act, 2013, SecuritiesExahange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Reigns, 2018, as amended (“the SEBI ICDR Regutatipand Guidance
note on reports in Company Prospectus (Revised)20®idance Note”) issued by the Institute of deeed Accountants of
India (“ICAI").

B) BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The Restated Financial Statements have been pdeparaccrual basis and under historical cost caimenexcept for certain
financial assets and liabilities which are measuatgdir value.

The Restated financial statements have been ppara going concern basis. The accounting polafesapplied consistently
to all the period presented in the Restated firrmstiatements except where a newly issued accagustandard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accountingdaiad requires change in accounting policy hithertase.

The Functional and presentation currency of the pamg is Indian Rupees (“INR”) which is the currenaf/ the primary
economic environment in which the Company operafeansactions and balances with values below theding off norm
adopted by the Company have been reflected asd)Zerthe relevant notes to Restated financiatesteents.

C) USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of Restated Financial statementsmfiormity with Indian GAAP requires the manageirienmake judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartezlint of assets and liabilities as at the Balaheet date, reported amount of
revenue and expenditure for the year /period asdalures of contingent liabilities as at the Batasheet date .The judgements,
estimates and assumptions used in the accompaRgsigted Financial statements are based upon thaddment's evaluation
of the relevant facts and circumstances as at dle af the Restated Financial statements. Actwalltsecould differ from these
judgements, estimates and assumptions. Estimagsuaderlying assumptions are reviewed on a yeaisb&evisions to
accounting estimates, if any, are recognized iryte /period in which the estimates are revisetliarany future years affected.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Revenue recognition

Sales are recognized, net of returns and tradewli¢s, on transfer of significant risks and rewasfi®wnership to the buyer,
which generally coincides with the delivery of gedd customers.
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Revenue from rendering of services is recognizednithe performance of agreed contractual task éas bompleted.
Interest income is recognized on a time proportiasis taking into account the amount outstandinpthe rate applicable.
B. Property, plant and equipment’s

Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at costdessmulated depreciation. Cost of acquisitionuahsassets is inclusive of all
incidental expenses incurred in bringing the agsetiseir working condition for the intended use.

The cost of a self-constructed item of propertanpland equipment are stated as per Cost Modeai.eost less depreciation and
impairment, if any. Cost directly attributable toqaisition are capitalized until the property, glamd equipment are ready for
use, as intended by management.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, @adt equipment are capitalized or recognized aparate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic bésefssociated with the item will flow to the Compaand the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount gf @mponent accounted for as a separate assetrésodmized when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance aregeltbto statement of profit and loss during theortipg year/period in which
they are incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for therdetssioning of an asset after its use is includethe cost of the respective
asset if the recognition criteria for a provisiage aet.

An item of property, plant and equipment’s and aigpificant part initially recognized is derecogeizupon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from itsarsgisposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-rectigniof the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal procasdishe carrying amount of the asset) is includeate statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derecognized.

C. Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment hamb@m®vided pro-rata to the period of use, on thigtevr down value method,
using rates determined based on management’s ass#ssf useful economic lives of the asset at yeal:

Following are the estimated useful life of varimagegory of assets used evaluated at year end:

Asset Class Life of the asset (in years)
Factory Building 3C
Plant & Machiner 1t
Furniture and fixture 1C
Building Fixture: 1C
Electricals Equipment’s& Fixtur 1C
Computers (End user devic 3
Air Conditione 1C
Office Equipment’ 5
Vehicles- Cat 8
Vehicles— Motor Bike 1C
Temporary Partitio 1C

A Property, Plant &Equipment is eliminated from firancial statements on disposal or when no furtiemefit is expected from
its use and disposal.

Losses arising from retirement or gains or lossesng from disposal of Property, Plant & Equipmerttich are carried at cost
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewédeach reporting date. If the useful life of aneasis estimated to be
significantly different from previous estimatesethmortisation period is changed accordingly. Hréhhas been a significant
change in the expected pattern of economic benfedite the asset, the amortisation method is chantgeeflect the changed
pattern.

D. Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are amortized over a period pé&s based on the estimated useful life as datedridy the management. If
the management's estimate of the useful life dheangible asset at the time of acquisition of éisset or of the remaining useful
life on a subsequent review is shorter than thaisaged in the aforesaid schedule, amortizatiggnrdsided at a higher rate based
on the management's estimate of the useful lifeineimg useful life.
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An intangible asset is derecognized on disposatten no future economic benefit is expected fr@mite and disposal. Losses
arising from retirement and gains or losses arifiog disposal of an intangible asset are measasedtie difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounteoésisets, and are recognized in the Statemenofif &rd Loss.

E. Impairment

The Management periodically assesses, using ektenghinternal sources, whether there is an intinathat an asset may be
impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wheretfer carrying value of an asset exceeds its reableramount. The
recoverable amount is higher of the asset's nitgeglrice and value in use, which means the pitegalne of future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of tleetaand its eventual disposal. An impairment lossh asset is reversed if, and
only if, the reversal can be related objectivelyato event occurring after the impairment loss wegnized. The carrying
amount of an asset is increased to its revisedvezable amount, provided that this amount doesroged the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any accatedilamortization or depreciation) had no impaitness been recognized
for the asset in prior years.

F. Inventories

Inventories of Raw materials, Store and spare adsvalued at cost or Net Realisable value whiehé&y lower as per stocks
taken by the management. Semi-finished and finigluedis are valued at cost or Net Realisable vahiehever is lower. Cost of
raw material and stores and spare parts has beeputed on the basis of Weighted average method. @diished goods and
semi-finished goods include Raw material cost aated overheads.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling piicthe ordinary course of business, less the estichcost of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

G. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the adtjais or construction of qualifying assets are talpied as part of the cost of

such assets. A qualifying asset is one that nedlyssakes substantial period of time to get reddyintended use. All other

borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

H. Employee Benefits

o Defined contribution plan
The employee’s provident fund scheme is a defirdribution plan. The Company makes specified migntbntributions
towards employee provident fund to Government adst@red provident fund scheme which is a defineatridoution plan.
The Company's contribution is recognized as anres@@ the Statement of Profit and Loss duringpéeod in which the
employee renders the related service.

o Defined benefit plan
The Company’s gratuity plan and leave encashmentfite are defined benefit plans. The gratuity pktitles an
employee, who has rendered at least five yearofirmes service, to receive one-half month’s gafar each year of
completed service. The gratuity plan of the Companynfunded.

I. Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognizetthe prevailing exchange rates on the transaciaes. Realised gains and

losses on settlement of foreign currency transastiare recognized in the Statement of Profit andsL&onetary foreign

currency assets and liabilities at the year-endrareslated at the year-end exchange rates anesh#ant exchange differences

are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

J. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect metidtereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted thug effects of transactions of

non-cash nature and any deferrals or accrualsstfgpduture cash receipts or payments. The castsffrom operating, investing

and financing activities of the Company are segezjhased on the available information.

K. Taxes on Income

Tax expense for the year comprises of current maixdeferred tax. Current taxes are measured @ntleeints expected to be paid
using the applicable tax rates and tax laws.
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Deferred Tax resulting from “timing differences”theen book and taxable profit is accounted for gighre tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted délse Balance Sheet date. The deferred tax assetognized and carried
forward only to the extent that there is a reastmebrtainty that the asset will be realized irufat

L. Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent asets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a pagtnt, the Company has a present legal obligdiiahis reasonably estimable,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic bigmevill be required to settle the obligation. Rigions are determined by the
best estimate of the likely future outflow of ecamio benefits required to settle the obligationhat teporting date.

Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disgddsunade as contingent liability. A disclosure dotontingent liability is also
made when there is a possible obligation or a ptedaigation that may, but probably will not, réguan outflow of resources.

M. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet @®npash at banks, cash on hand and term depoiitshighly liquid
investments.

N. Related Party Transactions

Related parties as defined under Accounting Stahdai8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ have been idiedti based on

representations made by management and informatiaitable with the Company. All transactions wigtated parties are in the
ordinary course of business and on arms' lengtis.bas

O. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies act, 2013 ngpeny, meeting the applicability threshold, needpend at least 2% of its
average net profit for the immediately precedinge¢hfinancial years on CSR activities. The areasd8R activities are

eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promotirdueation, art and culture, health care, destittee and rehabilitation,
environment sustainability, disaster relief andatudtevelopment projects. The funds were primarilgcated to a project and
utilized through the year on these activities whacé specified in schedule VII of the Companies, 61.3.

Note — The threshold as per Section 135 of the Gareg Act have been met during FY2023-24, hence i83Rt applicable on
the company.

P. Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earningegeity share in accordance with AS-20, ‘Earningsgbere’. Basic earnings
per equity share is computed by dividing net profibss attributable to the equity shareholderstfier year by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding foly#ze. Diluted earnings per share is computed usiegweighted average
number of equity and dilutive equity equivalentr&saoutstanding at the year end, except whereethdts are anti-dilutive.

Q. Leases

The company has taken machinery and factory orelaad classified as an Operating lease and leas&slg@re recognized in
profit of loss account as per lease terms.

R. Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intdridebe held for not more than a year from the dat@cquisition are classified
as current investments. All other investments &esdied as long-term investments.

Long term investments are stated at cost. Provif@omiminution in the value of investments is mauidy if such a decline, in
the opinion of the management, is other than teargor

S. Insurance Claim

Insurance claims are accounted for on the bastdaiihs admitted / expected to be admitted and ¢oetktent that there is no
uncertainty in receiving the claims.

T. Government Grant / Subsidy

Government Subsidy received in relation to purcladeroperty, Plant & Equipment are adjusted wiith €ost of the identified
assets.
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Grants related to specific fixed assets are deddoten the gross value of the concerned assetsiinray at their book values.

U. Segment Reporting

The Company is exclusively engaged in the busirdsManufacturing of populated printed Circuit bosrdssembly, LED
Lighting Products and USB Flash Storage Devicess,Tih the context of Accounting Standard (AS 1&g®ent Reporting,
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountantsidia, constitutes one single primary segment.

The Company is having revenue from its customeckvhre located outside India; of more than 10%sofaital revenue.
Accordingly, as per As-17 Segment Reporting thepamy has identified geographic segment as its tapler segment.
Similarly, Assets of outside India is identifialitethe extent of Continent wise Outstanding Traded®/able only.

Accordingly, we have disclosed geographic SegmeneRue and Segment Assets in table below for Daengstlia) and Export

(Outside India): -
(Amount in Z Lakhs)

Particulars For period March For period
31, 2024 February 22, 2024
to March 31, 202!

Revenuefrom operation
India 1,671.6: 2899
Outside Indii

1. Africa 364.2¢ -

2. Asia 3.5¢ 3.7¢

3. North Americ: 8050.4¢ 1007.0:

4. South Americ - -

5. Europe 85.6¢ 5.04
Total 10175.6: 1044.8:
Carrying Amount of Segment Asset
India 281.1: 125.1«
Outside Indii 2,375.%7 1,639.6!

1. Africa 245.9¢ 65.9¢

2 Asia - -

3. North Americ: 2,094.2( 1,535.1¢

4, South Americ - -

5 Europe 35.3¢ 38.4¢
Total 2,656.69 1,764.7:

V. Employee Benefits

The Company has adopted Accounting Standard 15sé@\2005) on Employee Benefits during the restéitehcials period.
The present Value of obligation of gratuity is detamed based on actuarial valuation using the Etegeunit Credit Method,
which recognizes each period of service as givisg to additional unit of employee benefit entitlathand measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation. Thdigdition for leave encashment and long benefit dwaralso recognized in the
same manner as gratuity.

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary d®wsd in actuarial valuation, takes into accoufigiion, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors including supply and aednin the employment market. The above informattonertified by the
actuary.

The disclosure as envisaged under the Accountiagdard is provided hereunder:
(Amount in Z Lakhs)

Gratuity
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

a) Change in Present Value of obligation

Defined Benefit obligation at beginning of the y 10.4¢ 10.5¢
Current Service Ca 19.31 0.3C
Interest Cos 0.77 0.0¢
Past Service Cc - -
Actuerial (gain)/Los: (12.98 (0.30)
Benefit Pai - (0.17
Defined Benefit obligation at year € 17.5¢ 10.4¢
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Gratuity
b) Amount Recognised in Profit & Loss Account
Current Service Ca 19.31 0.3C
Past Service Cc - -
Interest Cos 0.77 0.0€
Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognised in the pe (12.98 (0.30
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 7.1C 0.0¢
C) Amount Recognised in Balance Sheet
Present Value of Obligatis 17.5¢ 10.4¢
Fair Value of Plan Asse - -
Effects Of Asset Ceilin - -
Net Asset/ (Liability (17.55 (10.45)
D) Actuarial Assumptions
Discounting Rate (per Annui 7.15% 7.40%
Salary Growth rate (per Annu 9.00% 12%
Expected rate of return on plan Assets (per Ani - -
Mortality Table 100% of IALM 201:-14 -

II. NOTES TO RESTATED SUMMARY STATEMENTS:

The financial statements for the period 01.04.2231.03.2024 and 22.02.2023 to 31.03.2023 resmdgtare prepared as per
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013: -

1. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extat not provided for): A disclosure for a contingent liability is reported
in the notes to restated financial restatementsnwhere is a possible obligation that may, reqaineoutflow of the
Company's resources. For details of contingentlifigiplease refer Note ZE of the financial staterse

2. Related party transactions are already reported as per AS-Tafpanies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as
amended, in the Note -Y of the enclosed finanté&ksments.

3. Deferred Tax liability/Asset in view of AccountingStandard — 22: “Accounting for Taxes on Income” have beeovjgled
in the Note —C of the enclosed financial statements

4. Directors' Remuneration:

(Zin lakhs)
Particulars F.Y. 2023-24 For the period 22.02.2023 to 31.03.2023
Directors'Remuneratio 273.0( -
Total 273.00 -
5. Auditors' Remuneration:
(Zin lakhs)
Particulars F.Y. 2023-24 For the period 22.02.2023 to 31.03.2023
a. As Auditor
Statutory & Tax Audit Fet 1.78 0.2
Total 1.75 0.25

6. Earnings per Share:
(Amt. Zin Lakhs, except EPS

e F.Y. For the period
2023-24 22.02.2023 to 31.03.2023
A. A. Total Number of equity shares outstanding atethe of the year (in lakF 18,914,76 17,969,50
B. X:fr:%hmd average number of equity shares outstgndiming the year (in 18,074,023 17,745,781
C. Net profit aft_er tax available for equity sharetesisl (excluding exceptional 326277 23055
and extraordinary items) (as resta
D. Basic and Diluted earnings per sheZ)(C/B) 18.(5 1.3C

7. Figures have been rearranged and regrouped wheyeicable and considered necessary.

8. The management has confirmed that adequate prosisiave been made for all the known and deternliabilities and the
same is not in excess of the amounts reasonahlyreeito be provided for.
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9. The balances of trade payables, trade receivablmss, and advances are unsecured and considepddagd are subject to
confirmations of the respective parties concerned.

10. Particulars of loans given, guarantee given or isiycprovided and investment made as per sectid{4)8f companies act
2013

S. No. | Particulars Name of Co. Amount (In lakhs) | Purpose
(& Investment mac | Sahasra Semiconductors PrivLimited 94¢ Investment for new proje
(b) Loan Givel Sahasra Semiconductors PrivLimited 1,12¢ Investment for new proje
© Investment made| Infopower Technologies Private tachi 11 Inve;tment .to be utilized for
working capital
(d) Megma RFID & LabelsPrivate Limited To be utlized for business
Guarantee 500
-NSEZ purpose
®©) Guarantee Sahasra Semiconductors Private Limijted 7502, -rl)—grpgz utilized for business

11. Balances of trade receivables, short term/long tdoans and advances and trade payables are subject
confirmation/Reconciliation.

12. The company has utilized the borrowing receivedhfltanks for the purpose for which it was takenmyithe year.
13. The Company has not entered into any transactitmttve Companies struck of U/S 248 of the Compahats2013.

14. All benefits of Noida Special Economic Zone inclgliSection 10AA of Income Tax act will be made &lae to the
company from 22.02.2023 and onwards in pursuant®ef letter no. 09/02/2005Proj/2794.

15. The Board of Directors in their meeting held ontil2an 2024 has recommended interim dividend of 68% 6.5/- on per
fully paid-up equity share &f 10/- each aggregating ¥1,168.02 lakhs. Such dividend is proposed to Imsidered as final
dividend.

16. Details of loans are granted to related partiesat@repayable on demand.

Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advance in the| Percentage to the total loans and
nature of loan outstanding advances in the nature of loar

Related Parties  (Sahasra  Semi- o
Conductors Private Lt r‘n 1125 lakhs 100%

17. Realizations

In the opinion of the Board and to the best okitewledge and belief, the value on the realizatibourrent assets and loans and
advances are approximate of the same value ad .state

18. Contractual liabilities

All other contractual liabilities connected withetbusiness operations of the Company have beepgjgtely provided for.
19. Amounts in the financial statements

Amounts in the financial statements are roundedooffie nearest °. Figures in brackets indicatetreg values.

20. Impact of Audit Qualifications/Observations in Statutory Auditor's Report on Financial Statements

There have been no audit qualifications/observatiorStatutory Auditor’s Report for period March, 2023 and March 31, 2024
which requires adjustments in restated financatkeshents.

21. Material Adjustments
Appropriate adjustments have been made in theteglsfanancial statements, whenever required, bgdassification of the
corresponding items of assets, liabilities, andhcflew statement, in order to ensure consistencg aompliance with

requirements of Schedule VI and Accounting Starslard

Statement of Adjustments in the financial statemerstis presented here below

154



Sahasra Electronic Solutions Limited

RECONCILIATION OF RESTATED PROFIT

(Zin Lakhs)
. For the period 22.02.2023 to
Adjustments for F.Y.2023-24 31.03.2023

Net profit/(Loss) after Tax as per Audited Profit.&ss Accour 3324.1! 230.5!
Adjustments for:

Provision for gratuity (Refer note no 0.08 (0.26)

Adjustment for Chages in cost of material consumed & Inven - 16.9¢

Short/exces Provision of tax (Note no. (2.95 (1.69

Short/exces Deferred tax Provision (Note no. (75.27 (30.35
Adjustment for difference in depreciat 16.7¢ 8.84

Adjustment for Mat Cred - 23.11

Adjustment for difference in other € - (16.64

Net Profit/ (Loss) After Tax as Restated 3262.7° 230.5¢

Notes: -

1. The provision for gratuity has been done in allrgezvered for restatement as per Actuarial VadmaiReports and provided
in the respective year in which such liability lisen as per AS 15: Employee Benefits.
2. Provision for Taxation has been adjusted for Itdikes Income Tax related to Earlier Years and Shrdvision for Earlier

Years and Mat Credit Availed.

3. Due to changes in depreciation and gratuity promsithe deferred tax component on the same hasiatygone a change.
4. The reconciliation of Equity and Reserves as pelitad results and the Equity and Reserves as pstatee Accounts is

presented below:

RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY AND RESERVES:

(% In Lakhs)
. For the period 22.02.2023 to
Particulars F.Y. 2023-24 31.03.2023
Equity and Reserves as per Audited Balance sheet 6093.0: 2005.0¢
Adjustments fol
Share Capiti 22.38
Opening adjustment to Rese 0.04
Difference Due to Change in P¢ (61.38) 0.04
Prior period Adjustmen
Adjustment done in Reserves, now correct through_
Equity and Reserves as per Re-stated Balance sheet 6031.69 2027.50

Appropriate adjustments have been made in theteesfinancial statements, wherever required, bydassification of the

corresponding items of Income, expenses, assetbaildies, in order to bring them in line withe groupings as per the audited

financial of the company for all the years and eguents of the Securities and Exchange Board dialfissue of Capital and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018.
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NOTE - A
RESTATED STATEMENT OF SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND SURPLUS

(Zin Lakhs)

As At
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Particulars

Authorised Share Capital

25000000 Equity shares %10/ each 2,500.0( 2,500.0(

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

18914763 Equity Shares 2 10+ each fully paid u 1891.4¢ 17745

Calls on arrea - 22.3¢

Total 1,891.48 1,796.95
(Zin Lakhs)

Particulars As At

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Reserves and Surplus

Surplus in Profit and Loss account

Balance at the beginning of Financial Y 230.5¢ -
During the yee 3262.7° 230.5¢
Balance as at the end of Financial \ 3,493.3: 230.55
Less: Interim Dividend 1168.02 -
Closing balance (A) 2,325.30 230.55
Security Premium

Addition During the Yee 1814.90 -
Total (B) 1814.90 -
Balance as at the end of Financial Year (A+B) 4140.21 230.55

1. Terms/rights attached to equity shares:
i. The company has only one class of shares reféaeas equity shares having a par valu€ldf/-. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share
ii. In the event of liquidation of the Company, thelders of equity shares shall be entitled to ivecany of the remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of a#fgrential amounts. The amount distributed willibgoroportion to the
number of equity shar